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VISION, MISSION & CORE VALUES

VISION STATEMENT

To be a leading Company in meeting the growing energy
requirements for the country by increasing domestic production
through conventional and non-conventional sources and marketing
of cheaper energy alternatives while ensuring optimal value for all
stakeholders.

MISSION STATEMENT

To maximize energy production with a sustainable growing return
to the shareholders and recognizing our people as the most
valuable resource.

CORE VALUES

Professional Competence
Creative and Proactive
Ethical Behavior and Integrity
Authority with Responsibility
Accountability
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CORPORATE INFORMATION

Board of Directors

Ms. Ayla Majid
(Chairperson
Independent, Non-Executive Director)

Capt. (Retd.) Muhammad Mahmood*
(Non-Executive Director)

Mr. Mohammad Hassan Igbal*
(Non-Executive Director)

Mr. Abrar Ahmed Mirza*
(Non-Executive Director)

Ms. Saira Najeeb Ahmed*
(Non-Executive Director)

Dr. Sajjad Ahmad
(Non-Executive Director)

Mr. Haseeb Shakoor Paracha
(Independent, Non-Executive Director)

Mr. Masood Nabi
(Chief Executive Officer/ Managing Director)

*appointed as Directors, subsequent to June
30, 2022

Chief Financial Officer
Mr. Muhammad Arif
Company Secretary

Mr. Manzar Hayat

Auditors

A. F. FERGUSON & CO
Chartered Accountants

Legal Advisors

Rahman & Associates
Attorneys at law & Corporate Counsel

Tax Advisors

M/s A.F. Fergusons & Co., Chartered
Accountants

Bankers

National Bank of Pakistan
United Bank Limited
Allied Bank Limited

Habib Bank Limited

MCB Bank Limited

Bank Al- Falah Limited

Registered Office

7% Floor, Petroleum House

Ataturk Avenue

G -5/2, Islamabad

Registration Number

| - 02570

Contact Details

PABX: +92 (51) 9211236-7, 9213976,
9211239-240

Fax: +92 (51) 9213972
Web Site: www.ghpl.com.pk
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COMMITTEES OF THE

B

OARD

The Board has constituted four Committees to
discharge its responsibilities in effective manner:

(i)
(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

Board Audit Committee

Board Finance, Procurement and Risk
Management Committee

Board Business Development & Strategy
Committee

Board Human Resource and Nomination
Committee

Board Audit Committee

Composition as at June 30, 2022

Mr. Haseeb Shakoor .
Chairman

Paracha
Mr.  Muhammad Anwer Member
Sheikh
Ms. Saira Najeeb Ahmed Member
Dr. Sajjad Ahmad Member

Terms of Reference

The Terms of Reference of the Board Audit

Co

mmittee include the following:

Determination of appropriate measures to
safeguard the company’s assets;

Review of quarterly, half-yearly and annual
financial statements of the company, prior to
their approval by the Board of Directors;

Facilitating the external audit and discussion
with external auditors on major observations.

Ensuring coordination between the internal
and external auditors of the company;

Review of the scope and extent of internal
audit and ensuring that the internal audit
function has adequate resources and is
appropriately placed within the Company;

Consideration of major findings of internal
investigations and management’s response
thereto;

Ascertaining that the internal control system
including financial and operational controls,

accounting system and reporting structure are
adequate and effective;

Review of the company’s statement on
internal control system prior to endorsement
by the Board of Directors;

Instituting special projects, value for money
studies or other investigations on any matter
specified by the Board of Directors, in
consultation with the Chief Executive;

To consider remittance of any matter to the
external auditors or to any other external body;

Determination of compliance with relevant
statutory requirements;

Monitoring compliance with the best practices
of corporate governance and identification of
significant violations thereof;

Recommending of approving the hiring or
removal of the chief internal auditor;

Overseeing  whistle-blowing  policy and
protection mechanism and consideration of
any other issue or matter as may be assigned
by the Board of Directors;

Suggesting the appointment of external
auditor to the Board, the audit fee and any
guestion of resignation or dismissal;

Considering the objective and scope of any
non-financial audit or consultancy work to be
undertaken by the external auditors and
reviewing the remuneration of this work;

Review Code of Conduct and related policies
applicable to employees, officers, and director
and other agents and associates of the
Company at least annually and make
recommendations to the Board as
appropriate;

GHPL | Annual Report 2022



= Provide oversight as needed to ensure that the
Compliance program effectively prevents
and/or detects violations by Company
employees, officers, directors and other
agents and associates of the Company law,
regulation, Company  policy, special
conditions imposed on the Company by any
licensing authorities, and the Code of
Conduct;

= The Whistle blowing unit will report to the Audit
Committee.

Board Finance,
Procurement and Risk
Management Committee

Composition as at June 30, 2022

Mr.  Muhammad Anwar

Sheikh Chairman
Ms. Ayla Majid Member
Ms. Saira Najeeb Ahmed Member
Mr. Hassan Mehmood

; Member
Yousufzai
Mr. Haseeb Shakoor Paracha Member
Mr. Masood Nabi Member

Terms of Reference

The Terms of Reference of the Committee are
given below:

= Reviewing corporate strategy, Operational
Plans and Long-term Projections of the
Company.

= Reviewing Proposals/Feasibility  Studies
prepared by the management of all major
projects.

= Review the proposed annual Business Plan
and Budget and endorsing the same for
approval of Board of Directors.

= |dentification and management of strategic
business risks of the Company considering
the general economic conditions of the
country, competitive realities and scenarios
and ensuring that risk management processes
and cultures are embedded throughout the
Company.

= Providing regular update to the Board of
Directors on key risk management issues and
its proposed mitigating factors.

= Considering investments and disinvestments
of funds outside normal conduct of business
and reviewing cash and fund management
policies and procedures.

= Review and recommend Annual Procurement
Plan of the Company and required budget.

Board Business
Development & Strategy
Committee

Composition as at June 30, 2022

Ms. Ayla Majid Chairperson
Mr. _ Muhammad Anwar MemBet
Sheikh

Ms. Saira Najeeb Ahmed Member

Dr. Sajjad Ahmad Member

Mr. Masood Nabi Member

Terms of Reference

The Terms of Reference of the Committee are
given below:

= Review corporate medium to long-term
business development strategy

= Review proposals for medium to long term
Strategic Business Plan.

= Review and advise on business opportunities
in upstream sector such as Farm-in in
Exploration Joint Ventures

= Review growth possibilities through new
projects in oil and gas which includes inter-alia
infrastructure development, LNG, downstream
projects, refining etc.

= Review feasibility studies for special projects
to assess possibilities for prospective
business expansion and investment.
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= Considering business opportunities as may be = Recommend for approval of salary ranges,
referred by the Board of Directors. salaries and other compensation for the CEO
and Senior Management/Senior General

Manager reporting to the CEO.

BOard H uman ReS ource = Recommend annual increments and bonus to
and Nomination employees
. ¢ Identify, evaluate and recommend candidates
COmmlttee for vacant positions including casual
Composition as at June 30, 2022 vacancies on the Board including candidates
. . . recommended by the Government for
Ms. Saira Najeeb Ahmed Chairperson consideration of shareholders or in case of
Ms. Ayla Majid Member casual vacancy to the board of directors after
Mrf]- hSYEd Imtiaz Hussain Member examining their skills and characters that are
Sha needed in such candidates.
Mr. Muhammad Anwer Member
Sheikh
Dr. Sajjad Ahmad Member
Mr. Masood Nabi Member

Terms of Reference

The Terms of Reference of the Board HR &
Nomination Committee include the following:

= A sound plan of organizing for the company.

= An effective employees’ development
program.

= Sound compensation and benefits plans,
policies and practices designed to attract and
retain the caliber of personnel needed to
manage the business effectively.

= Evaluate and recommend for approval of
changes in the organization, functions and
relationship affecting management positions
equivalent in importance to those on the
management position schedule.

= Determine appropriate limits of authority and
approval procedures for personnel matters
requiring decisions at different levels of
management.

= Establish plans and procedures that provide
an effective basis for management control
over company manpower.

= Review data of competitive compensation
practices and review and evaluate policies
and programs through which the company
compensates its employees.
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ATTENDANCE OF BOARD & COMMITTEE
MEETINGS

Board Finance, Procurement

Board of Directors Board Audit Committee & Risk Management
Name of Director Committee
Meetings Attendance Meetings Attendance Meetings Attendance

Ms. Ayla Majid 17 17 - - 4 4
Dr. Arshad Mehmood ** 8 8 - = - -
Mr. Muhammad Anwer Sheikh 17 16 4 4 4 4
Ms. Saira Najeeb Ahmed 17 17 4 4 4 4
Mr. Haseeb Shakoor Paracha 17 17 4 4 4 4
Mr. Hassan Mehmood Y ousufzai 17 17 - - 4 3
Syed Imtiaz Hussian Shah* 11 11 - - - -
Dr. Sajjad Ahmed 17 17 4 4 - -
Mr. Muhammad Zubair * 5 5 - - - -
Mr. Ali Raza Bhutta** 7 7 - - - -

Board Business
Development & Strategy

RIS NI Fee paid to the Directors

Name of Director Committee Committee

Meetings Attendance Meetings Attendance (RUIEES)
Ms. Ayla Majid 10 10 8 8 3,900,000
Dr. Arshad Mehmood ** 3 3 - - 1,100,000
Mr. Muhammad Anwer Sheikh 10 10 8 8 4,200,000
Ms. Saira Najeeb Ahmed 10 10 8 8 4,300,000
Mr. Haseeb Shakoor Paracha - - - - 2,500,000
Mr. Hassan Mehmood Y ousufzai - - - - 2,000,000
Syed Imtiaz Hussian Shah* - - 7 7 1,800,000
Dr. Sajjad Ahmed 10 10 8 8 3,900,000
Mr. Muhammad Zubair * - - 1 1 600,000
Mr. Ali Raza Bhutta** - - - = 700,000

* Mr. Muhammad Zubair was replaced by Syed Imtiaz Hussain Shah w.e.f October 28, 2021
** Dr. Arshad Mahmood was replaced by Mr. Ali Raza Bhutta w.e.f January 07, 2022
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HIGHLIGHTS 2021-22

Operational Highlights

13 10 06 1,045 600

Line Km 2D Sqg. Km 3D

Exploration Development Discoveries
seismic acquired seismic acquired

/ Appraisal wells wells
Operational activity in partner operated blocks

Financial Performance
Rs. 989 Rs. 714 Rs. 432 Rs. 205 44%

Earnings per Share  Net Profit Margin
(billion) (basic and diluted)

Net Sales Revenue Gross Profit Profit after taxes
(billion) (billion)

Production Results
7,899 219 206

Oil/condensate Gas LPG
(MTD)

(BPD) (MMSCFD)
Net Sales Revenue
(Products)

Net GHPL'’s share of Production

Net Sales Revenue
(Main JVs)

Others
Chz)zda 15%
TAY
4%

Gambat South
8%

Nashpa
17%
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SIX YEARS SUMMARY

2017-18  2018-19 2019-20 2020-21  2021-22

Operational Performance

Seismic Survey - 2 D line km 2,975 2,166 619 938 640 1,045
-3D sg. km 1,483 440 614 510 730 600

Wells Drilled - Exploratory / Appraisal numbers 25 22 21 9 10 13
Development numbers 12 7 10 5 4 10

Oil & Gas Discoveries numbers 3 6

Oil / Condensate BPD 9,001 9,384 9,094 7,780 7,781 7,899
Gas MMSCFD 253 262 257 233 227 219
LPG MTD 125 163 197 181 189 206
Sales - Net Rs. billion 48.0 61.9 77.6 71.9 67.1 99.0
Gross Profit Rs. billion 30.3 42.9 59.6 49.4 46.3 71.4
Profit before Taxation Rs. billion 32.2 42.1 54.4 50.4 48.4 65.2
Profit after Taxation Rs. billion 20.3 27.5 34.6 33.0 33.5 43.2
Share Capital & Reserves Rs. billion 80.4 103.4 136.7 165.1 193.5 232.5
Non Current Liabilities Rs. billion 16.2 17.2 17.6 17.7 16.8 14.3
Current Liabilities Rs. billion 22.0 11.1 15.6 16.4 12.7 89.0
Total Equity & Liabilities Rs. billion 118.6 131.7 169.8 199.2 223.0 335.8
Fixed Assets Rs. billion 47.7 48.8 48.2 49.9 48.7 47.0
Long term investment & Loan Rs. billion 3.1 4.8 11.4 11.3 12.0 46.0
Current Assets Rs. billion 67.8 78.0 110.1 138.0 162.3 242.9
Total Assets Rs. billion 118.6 131.7 169.8 199.2 223.0 335.8
Opening Balance Rs. billion 2.9 3.5 2.6 16.2 235 36.6
Operating activities Rs. billion 36.0 5.9 19.8 14.4 27.1 26.8
Investing activities Rs. billion (28.4) 11.2 (1.4) (2.5) (9.0 (37.5)
Financing activities Rs. billion (7.0) (18.0) (4.8) (4.6) (5.1) (4.6)
Changes in Cash & Equivalents Rs. billion 0.6 (0.9) 13.6 7.3 13.1 (15.2)
Cash & Equivalents at year end Rs. billion 3.5 2.6 16.2 235 36.6 21.4

Contribution to National Exchequer

Total Contribution Rs. billion 41.5 31.8 40.3 42.4 40.4 48.6
Gross Profit Margin % 63% 69% 7% 69% 69% 72%
EBITDA Margin % 53% 59% 66% 61% 62% 58%
Net Profit Margin % 42% 44% 45% 46% 50% 44%
Return on equity % 25% 30% 32% 22% 19% 20%
Return on average capital employed % 34% 39% 40% 30% 25% 29%
Debtor turnover Times 1.7 1.7 1.2 0.9 0.7 0.9
Debtors Collection period Days 212 219 292 428 519 410
Current ratio Times 3.1 7.0 7.1 8.4 12.7 7.1
Cash to Current Liabilities Times 1.6 14 1.4 1.8 3.9 1.2
Earnings per Share Rupees 10.0 13.6 16.8 15.8 16.0 20.5
Dividend per share Rupees 9.9 25 2.4 2.4 3.4 2.3
Dividend Payout Ratio % 98% 18% 14% 15% 21% 12%
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Net Sales (Rs. in billion) Sales Volume (BoEs in million)
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Trade Receivables (Rs. in Billion)

Debtors Turnover (in days)
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104 109
85
53
- I
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Current Ratio (times)
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Contribution to National Exchequer
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48.6
403 424 404
! I I I

17-18 18-19 19-20 20-21 21-22

41.5

= The Company earned highest revenue, in its
history, of Rs. 99 billion for FY 2021-22 mainly
due to positive price and foreign exchange
variance.

= The Company’s revenue fluctuates due to
changes in international oil prices, production
level and USD/Rs. exchange rates.

= Over the years, the Companys trade
receivables have increased due to the circular
debt issue.

= During FY 2021-22, the trade receivables
reached unprecedented level of Rs. 141 billion,
mainly due to low recoveries from SNGPL and
SSGCL.

= Despite mounting receivables and liquidity
constraints, the Company has managed to meet
all its operating, regulatory & statutory financial
obligations and is a significant contributor to the
National Exchequer.
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VERTICAL & HORIZONTAL ANALYSIS

2016-17 2017-18 2018-19 2019-20 2020-21 2021-22

Vertical Analysis

Sales - Net 100% 100% 100% 100% 100% 100%
Cost of Sales -37% -31% -23% -31% -31% -28%
Gross Profit 63% 69% 7% 69% 69% 72%
Other Income 7% 4% 4% 6% 7% 5%

Expl. & Prospecting Expenditure -2% -2% -1% -1% -1% -1%

General & Admin expenses -1% 0% 0% -1% -1% -1%

Other expenses 0% -3% -10% -3% -2% -10%
Profit before Taxation 67% 68% 70% 70% 72% 66%
Taxation -25% -24% -26% -24% -22% -22%
Profit after Taxation 42% 44% 45% 46% 50% 44%
Share Capital &Reserves 68% 78% 81% 83% 87% 69%
Non Current Liabilities 14% 13% 10% 9% 8% 4%

Current Liabilities 19% 8% 9% 8% 6% 27%
Total Equity & Liabilities 100% 100% 100% 100% 100% 100%
Non Current Assets 43% 41% 35% 31% 27% 28%
Current Assets 57% 59% 65% 69% 73% 72%
Total Assets 100% 100% 100% 100% 100% 100%

Horizontal Analysis (base year: 2016-17)

Sales - Net 100% 129% 162% 150% 140% 206%
Cost of Sales 100% 107% 101% 127% 117% 155%
Gross Profit 100% 142% 197% 163% 153% 236%
Other Income 100% 65% 90% 130% 129% 144%
Expl. & Prospecting Expenditure 100% 100% 50% 55% 52% 63%

General & Admin expenses 100% 86% 115% 175% 181% 249%
Other expenses 100% 784% 3270% 1086% 599% 4322%
Profit before Taxation 100% 131% 169% 156% 150% 202%
Taxation 100% 122% 167% 146% 126% 185%
Profit after Taxation 100% 136% 170% 163% 165% 213%
Share Capital &Reserves 100% 128% 170% 205% 241% 289%
Non Current Liabilities 100% 106% 108% 109% 103% 88%

Current Liabilities 100% 51% 71% 74% 58% 404%
Total Equity & Liabilities 100% 111% 143% 168% 188% 283%
Non Current Assets 100% 106% 117% 120% 119% 183%
Current Assets 100% 115% 163% 204% 239% 358%
Total Assets 100% 111% 143% 168% 188% 283%

GHPL | Annual Report 2022



STATEMENT OF VALUE ADDITION

2020-21 2021-22
Rs. Billion % Rs. Billion %
Gross Revenue 75.7 106% 112.1 113%
Less: i i
Operating, G&A and Exploration (7.3) -10% (9.0)  -9%
Expenses
68.4 96% 103.1 104%
Add: Income from Financial Assets 3.6 5% 4.9 5%
Income from Non-Financial Assets 1.2 2% 0.8 1%
Less: Other Expenses 1.6 -2% 10.0) -10%

Total Value Added

DISTRIBUTED AS FOLLOWS:
Employees Remuneration and Benefits 0.4 1% 0.5 1%

Government as:

Company Taxation 14.3 20% 25.4 26%
Sales Tax, Excise Duty etc 8.6 12% 13.1 13%
Royalty and other levies 7.6 11% 11.4 11%
Dividends 7.0 10% 5.0 5%
37.5 52% 54.8 55%
To Society* 0.0 0% 0.0 0%
Retained in Business:
Depreciation 2.3 3% 2.6 3%
Amortization 4.0 6% 3.8 4%
Impairment 0.3 0% 1.8 2%
Deffered Taxation 0.6 1% 3.3) -3%
Net Earnings 26.4 37% 38.6 39%
33.7 47% 43.4 44%

Total Value Added 71.6 100% 98.8 100%

DISTRIBUTION OF VALUE ADDED

1% 1%

m Government Society & Employees Retained in Bunisess

*Contribution to MoE'’s Internship Program Rs. 2.4 million in FY 21-22
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QUARTERLY ANALYSIS FY 2021-22

1st 3rd 4th
Quarter Quarter Quarter Quarter

Annual

STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS

SALES - NET Rs. billion 20.8 23.2 257 29.2
Royalty and other levies Rs. billion (2.2) (2.6) (2.9) (3.7)
Operating expenses Rs. billion (3.0 (3.6) (3.6) (6.0)
GROSS PROFIT Rs. billion 15.7 171 19.2 195
Other income Rs. billion 1.0 1.4 1.3 2.0
Exploration & prospecting expenditure Rs. billion (0.1) (0.1) (0.0) (0.5)
General and administrative expenses Rs. billion (0.2) (0.2) (0.2) (0.3)
Share of loss of associate Rs. billion - (2.4) (0.1) (0.1)
Net impairment loss on financial assets Rs. billion - - - (0.5)
Other expenses Rs. billion (1.0 (1.5) (0.9) (3.8)
Finance cost Rs. billion (0.1) (0.0) 0.1 (0.4)
PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION Rs. billion 15.4 143 195 15.9
Taxation Rs. billion (5.9 (5.6) (6.4 (4.1
NET PROFIT FOR THE YEAR Rs. billion 9.5 8.8 131 11.8
EARNINGS PER SHARE Rs. 4.6 4.2 6.2 5.5

SALES VOLUME

Gas MMBTUS in million 16.2 16.0 15.4 15.3
Qil BBLs in million 0.7 0.7 0.7 0.7
LPG MTs in thousands 18.2 18.8 19.5 18.1

1st Quarter
21%

1st Quarter
22%

2nd Quarter
20%

2nd Quarter
23%

3rd Quarter
26%

3rd Quarter
31%
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REVIEW REPORT TO THE MEMBERS
ON THE STATEMENT OF
COMPLIANCE WITH THE PUBLIC
SECTOR COMPANIES (CORPORATE)
GOVERNANCE RULES, 2013
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pwc AFFERGUSONE, CO

REVIEW REPORT TC THE MEMBERS ON THE STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE WITH
THE PUBLIC SECTOR COMPANIES (CORPORATE GOVERNANCE) RULES, 2013

We have reviewed the enclosed Statement of Compliance with the best practices contained in
the Public Sector Companies (Corporate Governance) Rules, 2013 (the Rules) prepared by
the Board of Directors of Government Holdings (Private) Limited {the Company) for the year
ended June 30, 2022.

The responsibility for compliance with the Rules is that of the Board of Directors of the Company.
Our responsibility is to review, to the extent where such compliance can be objectively verified,
whether the Statement of Compliance reflects the status of the Company's compliance with the
provisions of the Rules and report if it does not and to highlight any non-compliance with the
requirements of the Rules. A review is limited primarily o nquiries of the Company's personnel
and review of various documents prepared by the Company to comply with the Rules.

As a part of our audit of the financial statements we are required to obtain an understanding of
the accounting and internal control systems sufficient te plan the audit and develop an
effective audit approach, We are nol required to consider whether the Board of Directors'
statement on intermnal control covers all risks and confrols or to form an opinion on the
effectiveness of such internal controls, the Company's corporate governance procedures and
risks.

The Rules reguires the Company to place before the Audit Commitiee, and upon
recommendation of the Audit Committee, place before the Board of Directors for their review and
approval its related party transacticns distinguishing between transactions carried out on terms
equivalent to those that prevail in arm's length transactions and transactions which are not
executed at arm's length price and recording proper justification for using such alternate pricing
mechanism. We are only required and have ensured compliance of this requirement to the
extent of the approval of the related party transactions by the Board of Directors upon
recommendation of the Audit Committee, We have not carried out any procedures o determine
whether the related party transactions were undertaken at arm's fength price or not.

Based on our review, nothing has come to our attention which causes us to believe that the
Statement of Compliance does not appropriately reflect the Company's compliance, in all
material respects, with the best practices contained in the Rules as applicable to the Company
for the year ended June 30, 2022,

ShFTer

Chartered Acgguntants
Islamabad

Date: June 23 2023

UDIN: CR202210083PNy70Q9mf

A, F. FERGUSON & C0., Chartered Accountants, a mentber firm of the PwC network
74-Fast, 2nd Floor, Blue Areq, Jinnah Avenue, P.0O.Box 3021, Islamabad- 44000, Pakistan

Tel: +02 (51) 227345 7~60/2604G54-37; Fx: +92 (51) 2277924, 2206473, < Www.pre.cont/ pk>

KARACHI = LAHORE = |ISLAMABAD




Statement of Compliance with the Public Sector Companies

Name of company:
Name of the line Ministry:
For the year ended:

{Corporate Govaernance) Rules, 2013

Government Heldings {Private} Limltad (the Company)

Ministry of Energy (Petroleum Division)

June 30, 2022

This staterment is being presented to comply with the Public Sector Companies {Corporate Governarnca)
Rules, 2013 (hereinaftar called “the Rulas") issuad for tha purpose of establishing a frarmework of good
govemance, whereby a public sector company is managed in compliance with the best practices of
public sactor govemnance.

The Company has complied with the provisions of the Rules in the follewing manner:

5. #

Provision of the Rules

Rule
Na.

Y

Remarks

The independent directors meet the criteria of
independence as defined under tha Rules.

2(d)

v

Director, Dr. Sajjad Ahmad
was initially appointed as
Independent Director on
034 Jan. 2020. However, an
200 July 2021, he was
appointed by the
Government of Pakistan for
another assignment in its
Attached Department, the
Geological  Survey  of
Pakistan.

The Board has at feast ene-third of its total members
as independent directors.
At present the board includes:

3(2)

Number of indepandent
diractors was iower than the
required strangth.

Catagory Names Date of
appointment
Executive 1. Mr. Masood 19-Jun-2020
Diractors Nabi
{MDICEQ)
Independant | 1. Ms. Ayla Majid | 03-Jan-2020
Directors {Chairperson)
2. Mr. Hasesb 03-Jan-2020
Shakoer
Paracha
Nan- 1. Mr Ali 07-Jan-2022
Executive Raza
Cirectors Bhutta
2. Mr. Hassan
Mehmood 18-Jun-2021
Yaousufzai
3. Muhamma | 03-Jan-2020
d Anwer
Sheikh
4. Syed
(mtiaz 28-O0t-2021
Hussain
Shah
B. Ms. Saira 27-Apr-2020
Najesb
Ahmed
1 dﬁ!‘ﬂa‘




Name of company:
Name of tha line Ministry:

Statement of Compliance with the Public Sector Companies
{Corporate Governance) Rules, 2013

For the year endead: June 30, 2022

Government Heldings (Private) Limitad (the Company)
Ministry of Energy {Patroleum Division)

S #

Provision of the Rules

Rula
No.

Y

N

Remarks

6. Dr. Sajjad | 03-Jan-2020
Ahmad

The directors have confirmed that none of them is
serving as a director on more than five public sector
companies and listed companias simultaneousiy,
except their subsidiaries.

¥S)

The appeinting authorities have applied the fit and
proper ¢titeria given in the Annexure to the Rules in
making nominations of the persons for election as
board members under the provisions of the Act.

3(7)

The chairman of the board is working separately from
the chief executive of the Company.

4(1)

The chairman has been elected by the board of
directors except where chairman of the hoard has
heen appointad by the government.

474)

Chairman of the Board of
directors has been appointed
by Federal government.

The Board has evaluated the candidates for the
position of the chief executive on the basis of the fit
and proper criteria as well as the guidelines specifiad
by the Commission. (Not applicable where the Chief
Executive has been nominataed by the Government)

5(2}

NiA

{a) The company has prepared a "Code of Conduct”
to ensure that professional standards and
corporate values are in place.

(b} The Boarg has ensured that appropriate steps
have been taken to disseminate it throughout the
company along with the supporting policies and
procedures, inciuding posting the same on the
company's website (www.ghpl.com.pk).

{c) The Board has set in place adequate systems
and controls for the identification and redressal of
grigvances arising from unethical practices.

54)

The Board has established a systemn of sound
internal control, to ensure compliance with the
fundamental principles of prabity and propriety;
objectivity, integrity, and honesty; and relationship
with the stakeholders, inthe manner prescribed in
the Rules.

5(5)

10.

The Board has developed and enforced an
appropriate conflict of interest policy to lay down
circumstances or considerations when a person
may be deemed to have actual or potential conflict
of interests, and the pracedure for disclosing such
interest.

S5)(b)
(it}

11.

The Board has developed and mplemented a
policy on anti-corruption o minimize actual or

perceived corruption in the company.

S(S)b)
(vi}

T3 s g >
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Statement of Compliance with the Public Sector Companies
{Corporate Governance) Rules, 2013

Mame of company: Govarnment Holdings {Private} Limited {the Company)
Name of the line Ministry: Ministry of Energy (Petroleum Division)
For the year endad: June 30, 2022
S Pravisien of the Rules ':::“ Yo B Remarcs
12. |The Board has ensured equality of opportunity by | 5(8){c) | -
establishing open and fair procedures for making {ii)

appaintments and far determining terms and
conditions of service.

13. |The Board has ensured compliance with the law as | 5{5)c)| -
well as the company's internal rules and (ili)
procedures relating to public procurement, tender
regulations, and purchasing and technical
standards, when dealing with suppliers of goods
and services.

14, |The board has developed a vision or mission 5(6) v -
statement and corporate strategy of the company.

15, | The Board has developed significant policies of the 5(7) ¥ -
company. A complete record of pariculars of
significant policies along with the dates on which thay
wara approvad or amended, has been maintained.

16. [ The board has quantified the outlay of any action in 58) | N/A -
respect of any service deliverad or goods sold by the
Company as a public service cbligation and has
submitted its request for appropriate compsensation to
the Government for cansideration.

17. |The Board has ensured cormpliance with policy | 5{11) v -
directions requirements received from the
Govemment,

18, | {a) The board has met at least four times during 6(1} v -

the year.

{b} Written notices of the board meetings, along 6(2) v Notice of 156, 157, 158,

with agenda and working papers, were circulated 152,160,161,150, meetings

at least seven days befora the meetings. of BOD could not be
circulated within the

{c) The minutes of the meetings were 6(3) v stipulated time dua to the

appropriately recorded and circulated, urgent nature of the agenda.
However, the same

requirement  has  been
waived off in the respective
meetings by BOD.

19. | The Board has monitored and assessed the 8(2) v -
performance of senior management on
annual/half-yearly/quarterly basis and held them
accountable for accomplishing objectives, goals
and key performance indicators set for this
pUrpOsE.

20. | The beard has reviewad and approved the related 9 v -
party transactions placed before it aflar
recommendations of the audit committes. A party
wisa record of transactions entared with the related
parties during the year has been maintained.

91 M 7023



MName of company:
Name of tha line Ministry:
For tha year andead:

Statement of Compliance with the Public Sector Companies
(Corporate Governance) Rules, 2013

June 38, 2022

Government Heldings {Private) Limited {the Gompany)
Ministry of Energy (Petroleum Division)

S.#

Provision of the Rules

Rula
No.

Y

Remarks

21.

{a} The board has approved the profit and loss
account for, and balance sheet as at the end of, the
first, second and third quarter of the year as well as
the financial year end.

{b) In case of listed PSCs, the Board has prepared
half yearly accounts and undertaken limited scope
review by the auditors.

{¢) The Board has placed the annual financial
statements on the company's website.

10

NiA

v

The company has not
placed the quarerly
financial statements
within the stipulated tima
before the board as
required by Public Sector
Companies {Corporate
Governance) Rules,
2013.

22.

All the board members underwent an orientation
course arranged by the company to apprise them of
{he material developments and information as
specified in the Rules.

11

23.

(a) The board has formed the requisite commitieas,
as specified in the Rules.

(b) The commitlees were provided with written
term of reference defining their duties, authority,
and composition.

(c} The minutes of the meetings of the commitiees
were circulated to all the board members.

{d) The committees wera chaired by the following
non-executive directors:

Mo, of
Members

Marme of
Lhair

Committee

Mr. Haseeb
Shakoor

Audit Committesa 4

Ms. Saira
Najeeb
Ahmed

Hurman Resourca and 5
Nomination Committes

Muhammad
Arwer
Sheikh

Finance, Procurement 5
and Risk Management
Committee

Ms. Ayla
Majid

Business 4
Development and
Strategy Commitiee

12

24,

The board has approved appointment of Chief
Financial Officer, Company Secretary and Chief
Internal Auditor, by whatever name called, with
their remuneration and terms and conditions of
employment.

13

28 JUN 202
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Name of company:
Name of the line Ministry:

Statement of Compliance with the Public Sector Companies

{Corporate Governance) Rules, 2013

For the ysar ended: June 30, 2022

Govermment Holdings {Private] Limited {the Company)
Ministry of Energy {Petroleum Division)

5.#

Provision of the Rules

Rule
No.

Y

N Remarks

25,

The Chief Financial Officer and the Company
Secretary have requisite qualification prescribed in
the Rules.

14

¥

26.

The company has adopted International Financial
Reporting Standards notified by the Commission In
terms of sub-section (1) of section 225 of the Act.

16

27.

The directors’ report for this year has been
prepared in compliance with the requirements of
the Act and the Rules and fully describes the
salient matters required to be disclosed.

17

28.

The diracters, CEC and executives, or thair
ralatives, are not, directly, or indirectly, concerned
or interested in any contract or arrangement
entersd by or on hehalf of the company except
those disclosed to the company.

18

29.

(a) A farmal and transparent procedure for fixing
the remuneration packages of individual diractors
has bean set in place and no directar is involved in
deciding his own remuneration.

{h) The annual report of the company contains
criteria and details of remuneration of each
director.

18

30.

The financial statements of the company were
duly endorsed by the chief axecutive and chief
financial officer before consideration and
approval of the audit committee and the Board.

20

23 JUN 2028,




Name of company:
Name of tha line Ministry:
For the year ended:

Statement of Compliance with the Public Sector Companies
(Corporate Governance) Rules, 2013

June 39, 2022

Govarnment Holdings (Private) Limited {the Company)
Ministry of Energy (Petreoleum Division)

8. #

Provision of the Rules

Rula
No.

Y

Remarks

.

The board has formed an audit committee, with
defined and written terms of reference, and having
the following members:
Name  of |Category
Memhber
Mr. Haseeb
Shakoor
Paracha

Professional
hackground
Lawyer

Independent
director

Dr. Sajjad Non-
Ahmad Executive
Director

Technical (Gaoclogist)

Ms. Saira Mon-
Najeeb Executive
Director

Jaint Sacretany
(CA/A}in the Ministry
of Energy (Petroleum
Division}

Additicnal Sacretary

Muhammad |[Non-
Anwer Executive Finance Division
Shaikh Diractor {CF-Wing)

The chief executive and chairman of the Board are
not members of the audit committee,

24%)
&
212)

v

32.

{a} The chief financial officer, the chief internal
auditer, and a representative of the extemnal auditors
attended all meetings of the audit committee at which
issues relating to accounts and audit were discussed.
{b} The audit committee met the external auditors, at
least once a year, withaut the prasence of the chief
financial officer, the chief internal auditor, and other
axacutives,

{c} The audit committes met the chief internal auditor
and other members of the internal audit functicn, at
least once a year, without the presence of chief
financial officer and the extemal auditors.

271(3)

33,

{a)} Tha Board has set up an effactive internal audit
function, which has an audit charter, duly approved
by the audit committee.

{b} The chief Internal auditor has requisite
qualification and exparience prescribed in the Rules.
fc} The intemal audit reports have basn provided to
the external auditors for thair review.

22

34.

The extermal auditors of the company have confirmed
that the firm and all its partners are in compliance with
International Federation of Accountants (IFAC)
guidelines an Code of Ethics as applicable in Pakistan.

23(4)

35,

The auditers have confirmed that they have observed
applicable guidelines issued by IFAC with regard to
provision of hon-audit services.

23(5)

75 JoN 0
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Statement of Compliance with the Public Sector Companies
{Corporate Governance) Rules, 2013

Name of company:
Name of tha line Minlstry:
For thae year ended:

y
e

Nama: A\;Lé- MQJ(D

Chairparson

Dated:
Islamabad

Government Holdings (Privata} Limitad {the Company)
Ministry of Energy (Petroleum Divislon)
June 39, 2022

MmN O4r
name:_Mprsoon N gl

Managing Director/ CEO

Dated:
Islamabad
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Statement of Compliance with the Public Sector Companies
(Corporate Governance) Rules, 2013

Government Holdings {(Private) Limited {the Company)
Ministry of Energy {Petroleum Division)
June 30, 2022

Name of company:
Name of tha line Ministry:
For the year ended:

We confirm that all other material requirements envisaged in the Rules have been complied with except
for the fellowing, toward which reasonable progress is being made by the Company to seek compliance
by the end of next accounting year.

Sr. No.

Rule /sub rule no,

Reasons of Non-Compliance

Further course of action

1

2(d) & 3(2)

One of the Independent Directors, Dr. Sajjad
Ahmad was initially appointed as Independent
Director on 037 Jan. 2020. However, an 29%
July 2021, he was appointed by the
Government of Pakistan for another
assignment in its Attached Department, the
Geological Survey of Pakistan.

Pursuant to the enactment
of State-Owned
Enterprises (Management
and Operations} Act,
2023, the requisite
rnumber of independent
directors on the Board is
proposed to be ¢hanged
and is expecied to be
achigved upen necessary
appointment by the
Government.

10

The board has approved the profit and lass
account and balance shesei for all three
quarters in its 164" meeting. However, the
Quarterly Financial Statements wera not
prepared within one month of the relevant
quarter because cost statements from
respactive operators are issued within 30 days
of the relevant month.

Efforts will be made to
ensure preparation of
Quarteny Financial
Statements within  the
required time including
faking up the matter with
the respective operators.

Name: P\‘\QL]A' MP:J ih

Chairperson

Dated:
Islamahad

Mows® vk

28 Jun 2028

Namae: MP‘SQ\OD NP&J’

Managing Director CEO

Dated:
Islamabad
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT
for the year ended June 30, 2022

The Board of Directors is pleased to present the
Directors” Report along with Audited Financial
Statements of the Company and the Auditors'
Repart thereon for the year ended June 30,
2022,

INTRODUCTION

effective sharehalding in Reko-Diq project.
Subseguent to year end, the deposit convertad
into 33.33% equity interest in Pakistan Minerals
{Private) Limited, giving the Company an 8.33%
effective working interest in the Reko Dig Mining
Projact,

EXPLORATION & PRODUCTION PORTFCLIO

Government Holdings (Private) Limited (GHPL)
was incorporated in the year 2000 as a private
limited company under the Companies
Ordinance, 1984 {current Companies Act 2017).

GHPL is ong of the three public sector Oil and
Gas Exploration Companias working under the
Petroloum Division of Ministry of Energy,
Pakistan,

GHPL =acts as a non-operator partner for
“onshore petroleum E&P joint ventures and is the
licensee of offshore petroleum explaration
Iice;nces in Pakistan.

PATTERN OF SHAREHOLDING

Government Holdings (Private) Limited is fully
owned by the Government of Pakistan (GOP)
and all the members of the Board of Directors
are nominated by the GOP.

GROUP STRUCTURE

The Company has two wholly owned
subsidiaries namely Intersiate Gas Systems
{Private) Limited {ISGS) and Pakistan LNG
Limited {PLL).

These Companies are collectively referred to as
“the Graup™.

During the year, the Company subscribed to
25% equity interest in Pakistan Intarnational il
Limited {PICL) based in Aby Dhabi — UAE.

As part of its diversification strategy, the
Company deposited funds for an 8.33%

GHPL is currently operating as a non-operator
partner for onshore patroleum E & P jaint
ventures and licensee of Government of
Pakistan for offshare petroleum exploration. Its
exploration and production portfolio are spread
across Pakistan with intemational presence in
UAE.

GHPL is partner with several local and foreign
ol & gas exploration and production companies
in Pakistan, which includes OGDCL, PPL, UEP,
MOL, OPPL, POL, MPCL, AlHaj Enterprises,
and KUFPEC.

The Company's onshore E&P investment
partfolio within the country as at year end
comprise of:

i. 61 Exploration Licenses under Petroleum
Concession Agreements (PCA)

i. 101 Development and Production [DaP)
Leases

Further, the Company through its equity
investment in PIOL (25%) holds working interest
in Abu Bhabi Offshare Block — 5.

GHPL is also licensee of three {03) offshore
blocks within the country, under Production
Sharing Agreements (PSA).

The Company is constantly exploring
oppoertunities 1o enhance its investments in the
Energy Sector,

OPERATIONAL HIGHLIGHTS

Seismic Activities

Atotal of 1045 L. Km (2021: 640 I. Km) of 2 D
seismic and 600 Sq. Km {2020: 730 Sq. Km) of
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30 seismic lines were acquired during the year
in diffarant partner operated blocks.

Drilling Activities

Following drilling activities were carried out in
different non — operated blocks of the Company.

ells Status 2021-22 202¢(-21
E:-cplorlanon & 13 0
Appraisal
Development 10 4
Discoveries

A total of 6 discoveries were made during the
year ended June 2022:

Taj (B sand) & Taj (Basal Sand) discovaries
in Mirpur Khas Block aperated by UEPL.

Naimat West DT discovery in Khipro Block
operated by UEPL.

Fazil discovery in Mubarak Block operated by
UEPL.

Umair SE discavery in Guddu Block operated
by OGDCL.

Nim East discovery in Nim Block aperated by
OGDOCL.

These discaveries resulted in an addition of 2.30
BCF of natural gas and 0.70 MMBO of oil to the
Campany's hydrocarban reserves.

Production

GHPL's share of average daily praduction from
all fields during tha year anded June 2022 is as
follows:

2021-22 2020-21

QOil (Bpd) 7,899 7,781
Gas (MMscfd) 219 227
LPG {MT/D) 206 18%

The Company's share of production accounts
for 11%, 6% and 10% of the Country's overall
Qil, Gas and LPG production* respectivety
during the vear 2021-22.

{* ¥age of Company's produchion o e Counlry's overall production
as reporied In PPIS Annual Repart for FY 2021-22)

Reserves

The total net proved (i1P) reserves of the
Company as on June 30, 2022, are 10.02
MMSTB {2021: 11.2 MMSTB) of il  condensate
and 287.45 BCF (2021: 323.3 BCF) of gas.

Major Development and Producing Assets

Mirpur Khas & Khipro Block (GHPL's working
interest (W1) 25%)

= Cperated by UEPL.

= Total average production from these two
blocks was 323 MMscid (Milion Standard
Cubic Feet Per Day) of Gas, 5008 Bpd
{Barrels per day) of Condensate and 56 MTD
{Metric Tons per day) of LPG.

= Various compression and efficiency
improvement  projects  were  initiated/
completed during the year. Produclion of
LPG was enhanced through segregation of
LPG-rich gas from lean gas and selling gas
through separate Point of Deliveries {PODs)
after revised Gas Sales Agreements with
Gas Buyer.

* New gil discoveries in the block including Taj
field {Taj-1, Taj-2, Taj-3, Taj4 & Taj-5 wells)
& Naimat West DT-1 as well as production
from devaloprment wells Baga-3, Umar-4 and
Naimat West-7 enhanced the cil & gas
production this year,

Tal Block (GHPL's W 15%)

* Operated by MOL Pakistan

* Total average production remainad at 270.33
MMscfd of Gas, 16,385 Bpd of Oil &
condensate & 466.79 MT/D of LPG.

* Several well interventions, surface well
testing and reservoir monitoring activities
were also caried out during the year for
production continuity and enhancement.

* Projects completed in TAL Block are
Maramzai field compression and Makori-3
Producad \Water Treatment & Injection
Facility Project. Manzalai Secondary
Comprassion is in progress.
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Nashpa Block (GHPL's W1 15%)

Operated by OGDCL

Average production was around 102.06
MMscid Gas, 13,880 Bpd Qil and 355.35
MTD of LPG.

Compression remainsd operational during
the year. Drilling of Mela -§ and Nashpa-11
development wells continued during the year.
Several wall interventions, surface well
testing and reservoir rmonitoring activities
werg also carried out during the year for
production  continuity and enhancement
especially at Nashpa-2 and Nashpa-10.
Upcoming projects include Nashpa reservoir
simulation study and further development
wells.

Chanda D&PL {GHPL's W 17.5%)

Operated by OGDCL

Average production was 10.44 MMscid;
2,985 Bpd (Barrels of Qil per day) and 15.5
MT/D of LPG (Metric Ton per Day) from 05
wells

Reservoir simulation study is in progress at
yaar end lo evaluate further potential and
enhance recovery.

Tando Allah Yar Block {GHPL's W( 22.5%)

Qperated by OGDCL

Average production was about 46.18 Miscid
Gas, 1,166 Bpd Oi/Condensate and 111
MTD of LPG.

Production from the field is being processed
at KPD-TAY Plant.

Sial-1 well was connected with existing
pipeline netwark for production through KPD-
TAY Integrated Plant.

Saveral well intervention activities and
workovers are planned to bring shut-in well
on production.

Gambat South Block (GHPL's W1 25%)

= Operated by PPL
* Total average production was about 134.35

MMscfd Gas, 1,328 Bpd condensale and
11.26 MTD of LPG.

* Regular reservoir surveillance and well
intervention aclivities were conducted. G&G
and reservoir studies are in progress to
identify further drilling prospects.

= A flowline was completed to produce the
Kabir X-1 through Hadaf line up to the
processing faciliies and sales through
existing $SGC network.

» Development aptions are under review to
axploit the reserves of Hatim discovery due
to its low healing value gas.

Sinjhore Block (GHPL's W1 22 5%)

= Operated by OGDCL

* Average production from fields was around
24.61 MiMscfd  Gas, 1,066 Bpd
Qil/Condensale and 101 MT/D of LPG.

* Field is on decline and options are being
evaluated to enhance production and put
shut in wells an production

v Several well intervention jobs were carried
out to maintainfenhance production. Two
development wells were drilled during the
year including Hakeem Daho-3 and Lala
Jamali-2.

» Production from newly drilled Hakim Daho-3
well started after tie-in with Sinjhoro gas
precessing facilities & LPG Plant, whereas
tie-in activities of Lala-Jamali-2 well are in
progress

Nim Block (GHPL's W1 22.5%)

= Operated by 0GDCL

= The average production from Nim during
2021-22 was around 2288 MMscfd Gas &
471 Bpd Gilf Candensate

* Jarwar-1 well remained suspended due to
surface facilities maintenance. Production
continued from Mangric-1, Chutto-1, Saand-
1 and Saand-2 wells. Saand-1/2 well are
being processed at KPD-TAY LPG plant.
Mangrio-2 devalopment well was connacted
with existing pipeline netwark for production
through Daru Central Facility.

= Surface well testing of Low-pressure wells in
NIM Block was carried out and alternate
sales arrangements are being evaluated by
the JV to bring these wellg on production.
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Guddu Block (GHPL's W 22.5%)

= Operated by CGDCL

*  Awverage production from the field was about
9.05 MMscfd Gas.

* Gas from Guddu field is being supplied to
third party (M/s Engro}.

* Umair SE-1 exploratory well driling and
testing camied out during the year.

» Field Compression project is in prograss at
year and.

Bitrism Block (GHFL's Wl 22.5%)

= Cperated by OGDCL

= Average produclion was 14.67 MMsefd Gas,
847 Bpd Condensate and 47.46 MTD of LPG.

= Bitrism wells are being processed through
Sinjhoro gas processing facilies & LPG
Plant.

* Production commenced from Pandhi-1 &
Gundanwari-1 wells after their tie-ing with
axisting Sinjhoro gas processing facilities &
LPG Plant.

Jakhro D&PL (GHPL's W1 22,5 %)

= Operated by OGDCL

» Avarage production from the field was around
.65 MMscfd Gas, 7 Bpd Condensate and
2.07 MTD of LPG

= Jakhro field is being procaessed at Sinjhora
processing facilities.

Zarghun South D&PL (GHPL's WI 17.5%)

v Dperated by MPCL

= Average production was around 11.92 and
0.51 Bpd Condensate

= Security issues remain a threat, however, are
being managed for smooth operations.

Dhok Sultan Block (GHPL's W1 25%)

= Operated by PPL

= Total average production was about 0.65
MMscfd Gas, 370 Bpd condensate and 3.65
MTD of LPG after production commencead
from Dhok Sultan X-1 ST-3 w.ef. 28-May-
2022 under EWT.

= The work on rental oil handling facility & gas

transportation pipeline far gas processing
and LPG recovery at third party plant was
completed to bring the well on praduction.

Mehar Block (GHPL's W1 25%)

Operated by UEP

Average production from the Mehar Biock
during 2021-22 was about 17 MMscfd Gas
and 1,272 Bpd Condansate from four wells.,
Compression remained operational during
the year.

Mehar-4, Sofiya-3 & Mehar-6 wells tie-ins
ware completed during the year to bring the
wells on praduction.

Several well intervention activities including
reservoir surveillance and re/ additional
perforations were carried out along with
process optimizatlons te maintain/ enhance
production and reduce OFEX.

G & G and reservoir studies are in progress
to identify further drilling prospects.

Sawan D&PL (GHPL's W 22.5%)

Operated by UEP

The average gas production was 23.53
MMscfd.

Producticn from Sawan undergeing natural
decline.

Several well intervention activities including
additional perforations/scale cleanout jobs
and application of deliguification techniques
for off-loading of wells & confinuity of
production  were carried out  to
maintain/gnhance production.

Sawan processing facilities continued to
process Latif JV gas resulting in efficient
utilization of spare capacity available at the
pracessing facilities and extension of field
life.

Zamzama D&PL (GHPL's WI 25%)

Operated by OPPL

The average production was 13.13 MMscfd
Gas and 80 BCPD condensate (Barrels of
condensate per day).

The field is on natural decline,
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Khewari D&PL {(GHPL's Wl 22.5%)

= QOperated by OPPL

= Toial average production was about 1.06
MMscfd Gas, 9.25 Bpd condensate and 1.06
MTD of LPG.

= Production commanced from Chabaro-1 well
w.e.f. April-2022 after its tie-ins with existing
Sinjhere gas processing faciliies & LPG
Plamt.

Others

= Production started from Benari DA&PL of
Shah Bandar JV (GHPL's WIl. 2.5%;
Operator: PPL) well in May 2021. Average
production during the year was about 7.62
Mitscfd Gas and 16 Bpd condensate. Well
witnessed sharp decline. Stimulation job is
planned to improve production.

= GoP renewed Mazarani D&PL (GHPL's WI:
12.5%; QOperator: PPL) for a period of four
years w.e.f Septernbear 01, 2021.

* Average production from the field during
2021-22 was 2.79 MMscfd and around 06
Bpd Condensate.

= Further, GaP has approved upward revision
of gas sales price of Mazarani field from
US51.75 /| MMBtu to US$ 3.75 / MMBtu
subject tc 15% additional payment of
wellhead value of hydrocarbons produced to
the GoP.

= In Chachar DBPL (GHPL's Wi. 25%:
Operator:  PPL), Chachar field is bsaing
produced through Kandhkot processing
facilities. Average production from the field
during 2021-22 was 0.42 MMscid Gas.

= Gas Offtake by GENCO-Il thru M/s SNGPL
remained suspended since 23rd January,
2021 as GasTurbine-14 was under
maintenance. Production from field resumed
w.e.f April-2022

SUBSIDIARIES

The Company has two (02) subsidiaries namely
Interstate Gas Systems (Private) Limited
(ISGS), Pakistan LNG Limited (PLL).

Interstate Gas S3Systems (Private} Limited
{ISGS)

Inter State Gas System (Private} Limited (ISGS)
was incorporated on August 04, 1996 as 3
private limited company.

Projects being pursued by the ISGS include:

- lran Pakistan Gas Pipeline Praject (IP-
Project);

- Turkmenistan - Afghanistan - Pakistan - India
{TAPl) Gas Pipeline;

- Pakistan Stream Gas Pipeline (PSGP) Project
{formery known as North South Gas Pipeline);

- Strategic Underground Gas Sforage (SUGS)
Project; and

- South North Gas Pipeline {(SNGF) Project.

The Company has a direct shareholding of
100% with 340,126,105 (2021: 100% with
205,882,080) eguity sharaes of Rs.10 sach held
in 1ISGS.

Further, an advance against issue of shares
amounting Rs. 2,329 millicn was outstanding as
at year end.

Moareover, under g toan arrangzment between
the Company and I1SGS for funding latter's
operational requirements, the total cuistanding
amount due from ISGS is Rs. 270.3 million on
account of principal and Rs. 84.8 million on
account of accrued interest at June 30, 2022,

Pakistan LNG Limited {PLL)

PLL was incorporated as a public company on
Decembar 11, 2015. In compliance with GoP
decision, PLL merged with its associated
company, PLTL (Pakistan LNG Terminals
Limited) w.e.f January 91, 2021 with PLL being
the surviving entity.

The principle activity of PLL is to import, re-

gasify, transport, market and distribute Liguefied
Natural Gas (LNG).
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The Company holds 100% shares of PLL.

The Company has also provided loan i PLL ta
meet its operational requirernents. As at June
30, 2022 the total outstanding amount due from
PLL is Rs. 3,707 millioch on account of principal
and Rs. 1,642 million on account of accrued
interest. During the year, PLL repaid Rs. 1,240
million of principal and Ks. 300 million of interest.

Additionally, during the vyear, the llen on the
Company's short-terrm investments amounting
Rs. 4,000 million, which were held as security for
the guarantees issued by PLL in favour of the
LNG suppliar, was released.

FINANCING ARRANGEMENT

FINANCIAL RESULTS

The key financial results of the Company are
summarized as under:

2021-22

2020-21

Rs. in million
Sales 98,961 67,063
Gross Profit 71,439 46,295
Profit before tax 85,179 48,401
Profit after tax 43,190 33,456
EPS - basic (Rs.) 20.53 16.02

in order to fulfil the commitment of lhe
Government of Pakistan (GoP) towards the
Govemment of Balochistan (GoB) for partially
acquiring equity stake in the reconstituted Reko-
Dig Project, the GoP, through the Company,
arranged a term finance facility up to Rs. 65,000
milion from the National Bank of Pakistan
(NBP), against a GoP guarantee. As at year end,
the amount of Rs 81,742 milion has been
availed against this facility. GoP will directly
make the loan repaymant along with interest.
Accordingly, a corresponding amount has been
recognized as receivable from GoP at June 20,
2022

The ipan was initially drawn for a period of hine
months, with interest calculated at 9-month
Karachi Interbank Offered Rate (KIBOR) +
0.50% effective from the date of dishursemaent
i.e. March 31, 2022, and was repayable directly
by the GoP in a single bullet instalment.

Subsequent to the year-end, the loan facility has
been renewead, with the approval of Economic
Coordination Committee (ECC) of the Federal
Cabinet, for a tenor of seven years (inclusive of
a two-year grace period) with effect from
December 31, 2022 and carries an interest rate
of 6-month KIBOR + 0.20%.

Sales Revenue

During the year, the Company's net revenue
increased significantly to Rs. 98,961 million,
registering a 47.56% increase from the previous
year revenue of Rs. 67,063 million.

The increase in revenue is mainly attibutable to
positive price and foreign exchange variance of
Rs. 24,086 milion and Rs. 9,270 million
respectively, which is partially offset by net
negative sales volume variance of Rs. 1,459
million.

The net negative volume variance is mainky due
to natural decline in gas sales from MKK,
Zamzama, Sawan and Tal JVs while oil and LPG
sales slightly improved.

The favourabla price variance is primarily on
account of increase in international oil prices
during the year. The positive forex variance
resulted as the realized exchange rate (Rs. 179
{ USS$) for the year was higher as compared to
last year (Rs. 160/ USS).

Profitability

In the fiscal year, the Company reported the
highest ever prefit after tax of Rs. 43,190 million,
an increase of Rs. 9,734 million from the
previous year's profit of Rs, 33,456 million, This
translates into earning per share of Rs. 20.53,
compared to Rs. 16.02 in the previous year.

The strong financial performance of the
Company was primarily driven by increase in
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sales revenue and other income which more
than offset the impact of higher expenses under
the heads of cost of sales (royalty and JV Opex),
other expense {exchange losses, provision far
windfall levy} and current tax expenses (due to
higher revenue and imposition of super tax)
along with recognition ¢f share of less in
associate, PIOL.

Liquidity Management and cash flows

An amount of Rs. 26,8313 million (2021: Rs
27,120 million} was generated from Operating
activities of the Company which was mainly
used to undertake exploration and development
activities, capital expenditures, investmants and
payment of dividends. At the end of the yaar, the
Company reparted cash and cash equivalents of
Rs 21,387 million {2021: Rs 36,592 million}.

The Company places a strong emphasis on
liquidity management and as part of this effort,
financial projections are prepared on a regular
basis to ensure availability of funds at all times
while generating oplimum relurns through
placement of surplus liquid funds in secure and
well diversified invastment portfolio.

Trade Receivables

As at June 30, 2022, the Company's trade deabts
have increased significantly to reach a total of
s 141,458 million compared o Rs. 108,955
milion in the previous year. This includes
ovardue frade debts of Rs. 120,744 million which
mora than 98% comprise of receivables from
SNGPL and SSGCL.

For recovery of trade dehts, frequent follow-up is
made with gas distribution companies and
refineries alongside reporting the receivables
position to the concermed Ministry on regular
basis.

The mounting trade debt balance is placing a
strain on the Company's liquidity position and
requires GoP intervention for resclution of the
situation.

Dividends

During the year, the Company paid interim cash
dividend of Rs 5,000 million (Rs. 2.34 per share),

Contrikbution to national economy

The Company is a significant contributar to the
national economy. During the year, GHPL
contributed Rs. 48,578 million (2021: Rs 40,418
million) to National Exchequer on account of
Corporate taxation, dividend, royalty, sales tax,
federal excise duty, petrolaum lavy and windfall
ey,

In additlon, Company's oil and gas production
also contributed toward foreign exchange
savings as import substitution.

Group's Financial Performance

The Group reported sales revenue and profit
after tax of Rs. 497,540 million (2021; 283,976
million) and Rs. 21,259 million (2021: Rs. 42,317
million)

Auditors’ Observation

The Auditors have expressed an unmoedified
gpinion in their Audif Reports on the
unconsolidated and consolidated financial
statement for the year ended June 30, 2022,

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Board of Directors of the Company is
committed 1o maintaining high standards of
corporate  governance 1o ensure business
integrity and transparency.

Specific statements to comply with requirements
of the Public Sector Companies (Corporate
Governance) Rulas, 2013 are as follows:

= The Board has complied with the relevant
principles of corporate governance, ang has
identified the regulations that have not been
complied with, the period such non-
compliance continued and reasons for such
ncn-compliance.

Dirsctors' Report 2021-23



The financial statements, prepared by the
Management of the Company, present its
state of affairs fairly, the rasuit of ils
operations, cash flows and changes in equity.

Proper books of accounts have been
maintained by the Company.

Appropriate accounting policies have been
consistently applied in preparation of
financial statements and accounting
estimates are based on reasonable and
prudent judgment.

International Financial Reporting Standards
as applicable in Pakistan have been followed
in preparation of financial stataments.

There are no doubts upon the Company's
ahbility to continue as a going concern.

The Board recognizes its responsibility to
establish and maintain sound system of
internal control, which is regularly reviewad
and monitored.

The appointment of the Chainman and other
members of the Board and their terms of
appointment along with tha remuneration
policy adopted are in the best interest of the
Company as well as in line with the best
practices.

Disclosure on remuneration of Chief
Executives and Executives is given in Note
37.2 of the Companys unconsolidated
Financial Stalements for the year ended June
30, 2022.

Directars anly receive directors’ fees for
attending meetings of the Board and Board
Committees. The details of fees paid ta each
director are provided in the relavant section
of the Annual Report.

No subsidy or financial support has been
taken from the Government.

Reasons for significant deviations from last
year's operating results have been explained
in relevant saction of the Directors' Report.

Key operating and financial data of [ast six
years has been summarized in relevant
saction of the Annual report.

» Information about outstanding taxas and
levies is given in the notes to the financial
statements,

« The wvalbe of investment in employee
retirement funds based on the latest audited
accounts as of June 30, 2022 is as follows.

- Employees Provident Fund  Rs. 73,685,212

- Employess Gratuity Fund Rs. 150,752,165

= The numker of meetings of the Board and its
Committees held during the year and the
attendance thereat by the respective Director
has been disclosed in the relevant section of
the Annual Report.

= A statement of pattemn of shareholding in the
Company as at June 30, 2022 has been
disclosed in the Directors' Report.

= In accordance with the requirement of State -

Owned  Enterprises  (Govermnance &

Operations) Act, 2023, the Board of Directors

is pleased to declare that, in its opinion-

{a) there are reasonable grounds for believing
that the Company and its subsidiaries, shall
be able to pay their debts, if any as they
become due and payable; and

{b} the financial statements and the notes to them
comply wilh the reguirements of the Act and
International accounting standards.

EXTERNAL AUDITORS

The Company's auditors, A.F.Ferguson & Co.,
Chartered Accountants will retire on the
conclusion of the upcoming Annual Ganeral
MMeeating and being eligible offered themselves
for re-appointment as external auditors of the
Company.

The Audit Committee considered the matter and
recommended re-appointment of A.F. Ferguson
& Co., Charered Accountants as external
auditors for the financial year 2022-23. The
recommendations of the Audit Committee have
been endorsed by the Board of Directors for
approval at the Company’'s upcoming Annual
General Meeting.
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FUTURE QUTLOQK

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT

The Company remains committed to working
closely with Its Joint Ventura partners to expand
and accelerate exploration efforts for new
hydrocarbon discoveries in the country. These
discoveries are critical for reducing the country’s
import bill and meeting its energy needs. The
Company will also continua to focus on
development and production activities in its non-
operated blocks t¢ sustain and increase
production levels.

Looking ahead, the Company will seek to
enhance its existing portfelio by acquiring or
increasing its participatory shara in new or
existing petroleum blocks both domestically and
intemationally. Furthermere, the Company will
axplere diversification prospects to expand its
business and craate new revanuea stregams.

By pursuing these initiatives, the Company is
wall-positioned to  capitalize on  emarging
oppartunities and drive sustainable growth for
the benefit of all stakeholders.

Mooy Nt

The resuits for the year could not have been
made possible without the loyally, devolion,
hard work and commitment of Management and
staff. The Directors acknowledge and deeply
appreciate their cantributions toward
achigvement of the Company's goals.

The Diractors would also like to express their
gratitude to the Ministry of Energy (Petroleum
Division), Ministry of Financa and other
respective stakeholders for their continuous
support, guidance and cooperation,

Chief Executive Officer

Director
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

To the members of Government Holdings {Private) Limited
Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the annexed financial statements of Government Holdings {Private) Limited
{the Company), which comprise the statement of financial position as at June 30, 2022, and the
statement of prefit or loss, the statement of comprehensive income, the statement of changes in
equily, the siatement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the financial
statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory
information, and we state that we have obtained all the informaticn and explanations which, to
the best of our knowledge and belief, were necessary for the purposes of the audit.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according te the explanations given fo us, the
statement of financial position, the statement of proft or loss, the statement of comprehensive
income, the statement of changes in equity and the statement of cash flows together with the notes
forming part thereof conform with the accounting and reporting standards as applicable in Pakistan
and give the information required by the Companies Act, 2017 (XIX of 2017), in the manner so
required and respectively give a true and fair view of the state of the Company's affairs as at June
30, 2022 and of the profit and other comprehensive income, the changes in equity and its cash
fiows for the year then ended,

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (ISAs) as
applicable in Pakistan. Qur responsibilities under those standards are further described in the
Auditor’'s Responsibifities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are
independent of the Company in accordance with the International Ethics Standards Board for
Accountants’ Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants as adopted by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of Pakistan (the Code) and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have
obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditor’'s Report Thereon

Management is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the
infarmation included in the annual report, but does not include the financial statements and our
auditor's reports thereon.

Qur gpinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not
express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In cennection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other infermation is materially inconsistent
with the financial statements or our knewledge cbtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated. i, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a
material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact. We have
nothing to report in this regard.

A F. FERGUSON & CO., Chartered Accountants, a member firm of the PwC network
74-East, 2nd Floor, Blue Area, Jinnah Avenue, F.0.Box 3021, Islamabad-44000, Pakistan
Tel: +0z (51) 2273457-60/2604034-37; Fax: +92 (51) 2277024, 28006473, < HALW. pe.com,/pk>

KARACH| *"LAHORE »ISLAMABAD



Responsibilities of Management and Board of Directors for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements
in accordance with the accounting and reporting standards as applicable in Pakistan and the
requirements of Companies Act, 2017(XIX of 2017) and for such internal control as
management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company's
ability to continue as a geing concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate
the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic aiternative but to do so.

Board of directors are respansible for overseeing the Company's financial reporting nrocess.
Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reascnable assurance about whether the financial statements as a
whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an
auditer’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance,
but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with 1SAs as applicable in
Pakistan will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise
from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could
reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the hasis of
these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs as applicable in Pakistan, we exercise profassional
judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

* |dentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those
risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery,
intentional cmissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

+ Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in crder to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Company's internal control.

e Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management.

e Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty
exists related to events er conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company's
ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists,
we are required fo draw attention in our auditer’s report to the related disclasures in the
financial staterments or, if such disclosures are inadequate, tc modify our opinion. Cur
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conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of cur auditor's
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to
confinue as a going concern.

« Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with the board of directors regarding, among other matters, the pianned scope
and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements
Based on our audit, we further report that in our opinion:

a) proper books of account have been kept by the Cempany as required by the Companies
Act, 2017 {XIX of 2017,

b) the statement of financial positicn, the statement of profit or loss, the statement of
comprehensive income, the statement of changes in equity and the statement of cash
flows together with the notes thereon have been drawn up in conformity with the
Companies Act, 2017 (XIX of 2017) and are in agreement with the books of account and
returns;

c) investments made, expendiiure incurred and guarantees extended during the year were
for the purpese of the Company's business; and

d} no Zakat was deductible at source under the Zakat and Ushr Ordinance, 1980 (XV1ll of
1980).

Other Matter

The financial statements of the Company for the year ended June 30, 2021 were audited by
ancther auditor who expressed an unmodified opinion on those statements on July 22, 2022,

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent auditor's report is
JehanZeb Amin.

UNFKZeA

Chartered Accodntants

Islamabad

Date: Juhe 23, 2023

UDIN: AR2022100830cCEXZWAP



GOVERNMENT HOLDINGS (PRIVATE) LIMITED
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
AS AT .JUNE 30, 2022

Note
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
EQUITY
Share capital 72
Reserves 9
Unappropriated profit
Advance against issue of shares 22.5
TOTAL EQUITY
NON CURRENT LIABILITIES
Long term liabilities 24
Dreferred taxation 25
Provision far decarnmissioning cost 26
Deferred employee benefit 27
CURRENT LIABILITIES
Trade and other payables 28
Current portion of long term kabilities 24
Coniract liabilities 321
Short term borrowing 28
Provision for faxation a0

TOTAL LIABILITIES

TOTAL EQUITY AND LEABILITIES

CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS 31

2022 2021
-------------- ---Rupees {'000)------m-r-mv

21,327,561 20,885,121
56,614,846 57,695,064
152,222,554 112,590,424
2,329,895 2,336,091
232,494,856 193,506,700
3,436,946 3,511,804
2,579,598 5,870,866
8,240,916 7,343,545
64,797 39,183
14,322,557 16,765,388
18,788,392 11,497 087
1,599,557 B19,632

67,353 -

63,966,965 -
4,571,974 422 041
88,994,241 12,738,760
103,316,798 24,504, 158
335,811,654 223,010,858

The annexed notes from 1 to 49 form an integral part of these financial statements.

Mo 204, .

Chief Executive Officer

ASSETS

NQON CURRENT ASSETS

Property, plant and equipment,
Intangible assets

Exploration and evaluation assets
Development and preduction assets
tvestment in subsidiaries

Long term investment in associate
Deposit with the Government of Pakistan
far equity stake in Reko Dig project
Long term loan to subsidiaries and s{aff

CURRENT ASSETS

Stores, spares and loose toels - share in Jeint
operations' inventory

Current portion of long term lean to
subsidiaries and staff

Trade debts - net

Loans, advances and other receivables

Trade deposits and short term prepayments
Receivable from Government of Pakistan (GoP)
Accrued interest receivable

Short term investments

Cash and hank balances

TAOTAL ASSETS

i dpe

2022 2021
Note —--—mr —--r=Rupees {'000)}——----

6 27,429,821 28.041,515
7 7.872 24 0B5
8 5,775,066 5,752 966
9 13,759,289 14,910,565
10 5,761,156 5,324 912

11 2,165,989 =

18 34 301,231 N
12 3,724,238 5,099,540
92,924 662 59,153,572
13 4,132,757 4,099,210
12 1,810,578 1,800,726
15 141,458,170 108,655,084
16 12,641 10,798
17 11,287 10,405

19 63,966,965 -
14 160,036 57,978
20 24,053,955 39,621,954
21 7,180,603 9,501,131
242,886,992 163,857.286
335,811,654 223,010,858

Diractar




GOVERNMENT HOLDINGS (PRIVATE) LIMITED

STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2022

2022 2021

Note  rmccemeemeeen- Rupees ("000)---—-----——-
Revenue from contracts with customers - net 32 98,960,646 67,063,218
Rovyalty and other levies 33 {11,359,391) {(7,6800.142)
Operating expenses 34 {16,161,786) {13,168,128)
GROSS PROFIT 71,439,469 46,294,949
Exploration and prospecting expenditure 36 (685,935) {561,331)
General and administrative expenses 37 (763,140) {555,342}
Net impairment loss eon financial assets 15.3 (539,704) .
Cther income 39 149,195 894 127
Other expenses 38 (7,070,135) (1,320,282)
CPERATING PROFIT 62,529,750 44,852,112
Finance income 35 5,568,907 3,788,267
Finance cost 35 (4058,630) {239,355)
Finance income — net 5,163,277 3,548,912
Share of loss of associate accounted for
under equity method 1" (2,513,552) -
PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION 65,179,475 48,401,023
Taxation 40 (21,989,152) (14,944 467)
PROFIT FOR THE YEAR 43,190,323 33,456,556
Earnings per share- basic and diluted (Rupees} 41 20.53 16.02

J Ehe annexed notes from 1 to 49 form an integral part of these financial statements.

Mo Bh Ok - - ok

Chief Executive Officer Director




GOVERNMENT HOLDINGS (PRIVATE) LIMITED
STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2022

Note

PROFIT FOR THE YEAR
Other comprehensive income f (loss) for the year

ltems that will not be subsequentiy reclassified fo
statement of profit or loss:

Remeasurement loss on employees’ retirement benefits 29.3
Impact of tax

ftems that will be subsequently reclassified to
statement of profit or foss:

Effects of translation of investment in a foreign associate -
net of tax 11

TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FOR THE YEAR

2022

2021

--------- -Rupees ('000)-----------

43,190,323 33,456,556
(39,971) (14,207)
17,587 5,683
(22,384) (8,524)
383,973 -
383,973
43,551,912 33,448,032

The annexed notes from 1 to 49 form an integral part of these financial statements.

Mo 20O

Chief Executive Officer

Director




GOVERHMENT BOLDINGS {PRIVATE] LIMITED

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2022

Balance as at July 1, 2020

Tota! comprehensive income for the year
Profit for the ysar
Othar comprehensive loss for the year
Tatal comgrehensive income far the year

Transactions with owners of the Company
Cantribations
Advance recefved againzl ssue of shares

Fair value adjusiment on loan 1o subsidiacy

Distributions
Interim dividand 2021 Rs, 3,35 per share

Balanze as at June 30, 2021
Salance as al July 01, 2021

Total comprehansiva income for the year
Frofit for the year

Cther comprehensre mcame f (loss) for the year

Total comprebensive income for the year

Transactions with cwners of tha Company
Contributions
Advance receivad against issue of shares
Issue of sharas

Fair value adjusimenl on loan to subsidiary

Transfer of fair value adjustment on loan to subsidiary

reserve lo unappropriated profiis

Distributions
Inlerim dividend 2022: Rs. 2 34 per shars

Total contibutions and disttibtions- net

Balance a3 at June 30, 2022

The annexed notes fram 1 (0 489 o an inlegral parl of these mancial stalemants,

ORFLL.

Share capital Revenue Reserve Cgpital Resarve
Issupd, Advancs s Foreign Commdtted Asset Asnzals
Subscribed against issus Genaral adjustmant on CUTenCY outlay LHG projact InSranGe acquishion Linappropriatad Total
and Paid-up of shares A & loan ta iran| reserye Tasane rRSEvE resarve profies
subsidiary neEarde
Rupees (000}
20,885 121 414,327 2,284,626 1,126 EOA - 20,946 247 25,000,000 3,000,000 5,000,000 BE 479,775 165,136,504
- - - - - - = - - 33,456,556 33,456,556
- - - - - - - - - {8,524} {8,524)
- - - - - - - - - 33448032 33,448 032
- 1821 764 - . - - - - - - 1,921,784
- - - 337,383 . - - - S (337.383) 2
- 1,921,764 - 337.283 - - - - - [337.383) 1,921,784
. ) . . . . . {7.000,000) {7.000,000)
20.885.121 2,236,081 2 284 828 1,464,151 - 20,946 247 25,000,300 3000000 5 000,000 112.590 424 193,506,700
2093511 2,336,091 2,284 628 1.464,191 - 20,945 247 25,000,000 3,000,000 5,000,000 112,590,424 191,506,700
- . R - . - - . - 43,190,323 43,190,323
- : - - 383,973 - - o - (22,384) 361,389
- - - - 383,373 - - - - 43 167,938 43,551,942
- 436,244 - - . . R R - 435,244
daz 440 (442,440) - - B - - - - - N
- - - 116,298 - - - - {116, 208) -
- - - (4,500,459} - - - . 1,580,489 5
42,440 5,196} - (1,464,191} - - - - 1,464 191 436,244
- R - . - B - . - (5,000,000} (5,000,000}
442 440 1€,198) - {1,464,194) - - - - - 13,333,809) 4,561,755}
21,327,661 2,329,395 Z,284 826 - 383875 20,946,247 25 000,000 3,000,000 5,000,000 152222554 _ 23249485
!'\

Chiel Executive Officer

o e d

Directar




Page1of2
GOVERNMENT HOLDINGS (PRIVATE) LIMITED
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOW
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2022

2022 2021
Note  -———reereeee- Rupees {('000)----m-eeeme -

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Profit before taxation 65,179,475 48,401,023
Adjustments for:
Amortization of development and production assets 9 3,305,248 3872122
Depreciation on Joint operations' fixed assets 6.2 2,581,680 2,297,716
Gain on disposal of property, plant and equipment 39 {1,003) {139}
Impairment on property, plant and equipment 342 459,808 235,200
Impairment on development and production assets 34.2 772,213 72,31
Depreciation on owned fixed assets 6.1 23,620 19,783
Amortization of intangible assets 7 18,212 25,845
Share of less of associate 11 2,513,552 -
Cry hole wells 36 388,609 306,996
Provisicn for employee benefits 27 & 29 73,557 40,275
Unwinding of discount on provision for
decommissioning cost 28.1 394,365 216,362
Unwinding of discount on kong term liabiity 241 9,829 22,930
Discount of long term liability 24 1 {646,289) (177.617)
Linrealised exchange (gain} / loss 2,146,675 (1.186,933)
Provision for windfall levy on il / condensate 38 4,995 336 1,320,292
Reversal due to change in decommissioning
cost estimates 268.3 {347,222) {174,167)
Net impairment loss on financial assets 15.3 539,704
interest income 12 & 20 {5,038,916) (3,948,033)

77,868,453 51,443 967
Changes in woarking capltal:
(Increase) in stores, spare and leose tools - share in
Joint operations' inventory {33,546) (546,803)
{Increase) in trade debts (32,559,435) {4,618 323)
{Increase) in loans, advances and other receivables {1,843} {7,991}
{(Increase) in trade deposits and shori-term prepayments (882} (4,411)
Increase / {decrease) in trade and cther payables 1,044,680 (1,908,351)
Increase in contract liabilities 67,353 -

(31,483,873} {7 085,879)
Cash generated from operatlons 46,384,780 44,357,988
fIncrease) / decrease in leans to staff {6,804) {9,960)
Income tax paid 30 {19,504,130) (17,180,434)
Employee banefits paid 27.1 & 28.3 {60,662) (38,374}
Net cash genserated from operating activities 26,813,184 27,119,220

SFF4e.




2022 2021

Note  ——-——vemmea- Rupees ('000}-----mmmanenee-
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Capital expenditure {7.205,165) {6,047.841)
Deposit with the Government of Pakistan in
connection with Reko Dig Project {34,301,231) -
Proceeds from disposal of property, plant and equipment 1,055 139
Interest received 5,432,412 3,330,190
Investment in subsidiary (436,244} (1,026 664)
Investment in associates {4,205,500) -
Sale / (purchase) of short term investments 2,000,000 (8,000,000)
Proceeds form loan repayment 1,240,240 1,790,291
Loan to subsidiaries- net - {87 500)
Net cash used in investing activitles {37,474,383) {8,951.385)
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Advance received against issue of shares 223 436,244 1,921,764
Dividend paid (5,000,000} {7,000,000}
Net cash used in financing actlvities (4,563,756} {5,078,238)
NET INCREASE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS {15,224,955) 13,083,599
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT BEGINNING
OF THE YEAR 36,592,412 23,502 813
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT END OF THE YEAR 212 21,367,457 36,502 412

Page 2 of 2

The annexed notes from 1 to 49 form an integral part of these financial statemants.

Chief Executive Officer Director
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THE COMPANY AND ITS OPERATIONS

Government Holdings (Private) Limited {the "Company") was incorparated in Pakistan as a private limited
Company on January 15, 2000, under the Companies Qrdinance, 1984 (repealed by the Companies Act,
2017). The Company's registered office is siluated at 7th Floor, Petroleum House, Ataturk Avenue, G-5/2,
Islamabad. The main objectives of the Company are to:

a} Acquire shares of the companies or interest of Government of Pakistan {GoP) in the existing and new
oil and gas concessions, either by payment or by issuance of shares, credited as fully paid, or other
securities, as the Company may think fit and to hold and enjoy all interests, rights, contracts and
privileges vested in, or connected with, the title of such shares; and

b) Take over, acquire, renew, unitize, and held any exploration, prospecting, development and groduction
concessions of whatever nature or otherwise acquire any estate or interest, develop resources of work,
dispose off or gtherwise turn to account land or sea beds in any part of the world containing or thought
to contain petroleum or any other oil in any form, and to search for or participate in the exploration for
petrcleum or any other oil in any form, asphalt, bitumen or similar substances or natural gas, or any
substance used or which may be capable of use, and to organize, equip and employ expeditions,
experts and other agents tc carry out drilling and other exploratory operations, and o establish and
operate il and gas wells and other undertakings for the extraction of any of the aforesaid substances.

As of the date of statement of financial position, the Company has the following equity investments:

a) Inter State Gas Systermn {Private) Limited (ISGSL) - wholly owned subsidiary
b) Pakistan LNG Limited (PLL) - wholly owned subsidiary (effective from January 1, 2021,
Pakistan LNG Terminals Limited (PLTL) was merged into PLL with PLL being the surviving entity.}
c) Pakistan International Qil Limited {PIOL) - foreign operation - 25% sharehalding
d)  Deposit with the Government of Pakistan for equity stake in Reko Dig project - 8.33% sharehalding

These financial statements are separate financial statements of the Company in which investments in
subsidiary companies are accounted for on the basis of direct equity interest rather than on the basis of
reported results. Investments in associates are accounted for using the equity method of accounting, after
initially being recognised at cost. Consolidated financial statements are prepared separately.

The Company has interest in certain joint operations / concessions as non-operator. Geographical location of
concessions f blacks is as under;

Operator Congession | Block Working Interest {%) Province

Al-Haj Baska North 4.15 Balochistan & KPK
Al-Haj Potwar South 25 Punjab

Hycarbex Yasin 5 Sindh & Balochistan
KPBY Makhad 2.5 KPK

Tallahasse Karak North 2.5 KPK

MOL Tal 5 {Exp) ~ 15 {Dev}* KPK

MPCL Bolan / Zarghun South 17.8 Balochishtan
MPCI, Wali West 25 KPK

MPCL Sharan 25 Balochishtan
MPCL MNareli 2.5 Balochishtan
OGDCL Bitrism 5 (Exp) ~ 22.5 (Dev)* Sindh

OGDCL Guddu 5 (Exp) ~ 22.5 (Dev)* Sindh & Punjab
OGDCL Gwadar 2.5 Balochistan
OGDCL Jhakro 22.5 Sindh

OGDCL Khewari 5 (Exp}~ 25 {Dew)* Sindh

OGDCL Khuzdar Nerth 25 Balochistan



Operator

QGDCL
OGDCL
QOGDCL
OGLCL
OGDCL
OGBCL
CGDCL
OGDCL
OGRCL
OGDCL
OGDCL
OGDCL
OGLCL
OGDCL
OGEDCL
OGDCL
QGDCL
OGOGL
OGDCL
OGOCL
QGDCL
OPPL
PEL
PEL
PEL
POL
POL
POL
FPPL
PPL
PPL
PPL
PPL
PPL
PPL
PPL
PPL
PPL
PFL
PPL
UEP
UEP
UEP
UEP
UEP
UEP
UEP
UEP
UEP
Paige

Concession f Block

Khuzdar South
Kotra

Nashpa

Nim

Orakzai
Palantak
Pasni West
Pezu
Rakhshan
Ranipur
Chands
Sinjhoro

Tirah

Tando Allah Yar
Gurgalot

Zin

Lilla

Jhedum
Sujawal South
Khewari East
Suleiman
Zamzama
Block 22
Kandra

Mirpur Mathelo
Pariwali
Minwat

North Dhurnal
Bela West
Dhok Sultan
Gambat Sauth
Hisal

Mazarani
Chachar
Nausherwani
Shah Bandar
Sirani

South Kharan
Musakhel
Funjab

Badin Il
Gambat / Tajjal
Khipra

Kuhan

Mehar

Mehran

Mirpur Khas
Mubarak
Sawan

Murgha Faqir Zai

* Exp- Exploratory phase
* Dev- Development phase

Working Interest (%)

Province

2.5

5 (Exp) ~ 20 {Dev)*
5 {Exp) ~ 15 (Dev)*
5 {Exp) ~ 22.5 {Dev)*
4.66

25

25

264

25

25

5 {Exp) ~ 17.5 (Dev)*
5{Exp} ~ 22.5 (Dev)*
5

5 {Exp) ~ 22.5 {Dev)*
5 (Exp)*

5 (Exp)”

25

25

2.5

25

2.5

25

5 {Exp) ~ 22.5 (Dev)*
5 {Exp) ~ 25 (Dev)*
S (Exp)*

17.5

17.5

25

2.5

25

25

2.5

12.5

25

25

25

25

25

2.5

25

5 (Exp) ~ 25 (Dev)*
5 (Exp) ~ 22.5 (Dev)*
5 (Exp) ~ 25 (Dev)*
2.5

5 (Exp) ~ 25 (Dev}*
5 {Exp} ~ 25 (Dev*
5 (Exp) ~ 25 (Dev)*
5 (Exp} ~ 25 (Dev)*
22.5

5 (Exp)*

Sindh & Balochistan
Balochishtan
KPK

Sindh

KPK
Balochistan
Balochistan
Punjab & KPK
Balcchistan
Sindh

KPK

Sindh

KPK

Sindh

Punjab & KPK
Balochistan
Funjab
Funjab

Sindh

Sindh
Balochistan
Sindh

Sindh

Sindh

Singdh

Funjab
Punjab
Punjah
Balochistan
Punjab & KPK
Sindh

Punjab

Sindh

Sindh
Balachistan
Sindh

Sindh
Balochistan
Balochistan
Punjab

Sindh

Sindh

Sindh
Balochistan
Sindh & Balochistan
Sindh

Sindh

Sindh

Sindh
Balochistan
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BASIS OF PREPARATION
Statoment of Compliance

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the accounting and reporting standards
as applicable in Pakistan. The accounting and reporting standards applicable in Pakistan comprise of:

International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS Standards) issued by the International Accounting
Standards Board {IASB) as notified under the Companies Act, 2017; and

- Provisions of and directives issued under the Companies Act, 2017.

Where provisions of and directives issued under the Companies Act, 2017 differ from the IFRS Standards,
the provisions of and directives issued under the Companies Act, 2017 have been followed.

Basis of measuremant

These financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost convention excapt for certain items as
disclosed in the relevant accounting policies below,

Functional and presentation currency

ltems included in the financial statements are measured using the currency of the primary economic
environment in which the Campany operates. The financial statements are presented in Pakistan Rupeg
(PKR/ Rupees/ Rs) which is the Company's functional currency.

NEW AND REVISED STANDARDS AND INTERPRETATIONS

New or amendments / interpretations to exlsting standards, interprotations and forthcoming

Standards, amendments and interpretations to existing standards that are not yel effective and have not been
early adopted by the company:

Effective date (annual
reporting pericds beginning

on or after)

1AS 1 Presentation of Financial Statements {Amendments} January 1, 2022
IAS 8 Accounting Policigs, Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors

(Amendments) January 1, 2023
1AS 12 Income Taxes (Amendments) January 1, 2023
145 18 Property, Plant and Equipment (Amendments) January 1, 2022
1AS 37 Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets {Amendments) January 1, 2022
1AS £1 Agriculture (Amendments) January 1, 2022
IFRS 3 Busingss Combinations (Amendmants) January 1, 2022
IFRS 4 Insurance Centracts (Amendments) January 1, 2023
IFRS 9 Financial Instruments {Amendments) January 1, 2022
IFRS 16 Leases (Amendments) January 1, 2022
IFRS 10 Consolidated Financial Statements (Amendments) January 1, 2021
IAS 28 Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures {Amendments) January 1, 2021

The management anticipates that adoption of above standards, amendments and interpretations in future

periods will have no material impact on the Cempany's financial statements other than in presentation /
disclosures.

SOFFEL -
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Further, the following new standards and interpretations have been issued by the Intarnational Accounting
Standards Board (IASB), which are yet to be notified by the Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan
(SECP), for the purpose of their applicability in Pakistan:

IFRS 1 First-time Adaoption of tnternational Financial Reporting Standards
IFRS 17 Insurance Contracts

The following interpretations issued by the IASB have been waived of by SECP:

iFRIC 12 Service concession arrangements
Standards and amendments to approved accounting standards that are effactive

There are certain arrangements and inferpretations to the accounting and reporting standards which are
applicable on the Company from July 1, 2021, however, these do not have significant impact on the
Company’s financial reporting.

The Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan (SECP) through S.R.0. 67(1)/2023 dated January 20,
2023, in partial modification of its previous S.R.Q. 1177 {12021 dated September 13,2021, has notified that
in respect of companies holding financial assets due from the Govemnment of Pzakistan {(GoP) in respect of
circular debt, the requirements contained in IFRS 9 with respect to application of expected credit loss (ECL)
model shall not be applicable til Decerber 31, 2024, provided that such companies shall follow relevant
requirements of IAS 39 'Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement' in respect of above referred
financial assets during the exemption period. Earlier to the S.R.O. 985{1)/2018 dated September 02, 2019,
SECP in a press release dated August 22, 2019 communicated that IFRS § needs t¢ be looked inlo from
Pakistan perspective where phenomenon like circular debt need to be given due consideration. It was noted
that concerns expressed by companies regarding practical limitations in determining ECL on debls due from
govemment, due to uncertain cash recovery patterns of circular debt, carry weight. Public information
regarding expected settlement of circular debt by GoP in coming years may result in subsequent reversals of
impairment losses recognized in 2019, Financial assets due from GoP include those that are directly due from
GoP and that are ultimately due from GoP in consequence of the circular debt. In accordance with the
exemnption granted by SECP, ECL has naot been assessed / recognized in respect of financial assets due
directly / ultimately from GoP which includes trade debts amounting to Rs. 119,271 million {2021: Rs. 94,219
million) an account of inter-corperate circutar debts.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGMENTS

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with approved accounting standards requires the use of
certain critical accounting estimates. It also requires management {0 exercise its judgment in the process of
applying the Company's accounting policies. Estimates and judgments are continually evaluated and are
based on historic experience and other factors, including expectations of future events that are believed to be
reasonable under the circumstances. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognized in the period in which
the estimates are revised and in any future period affected.

In the procass of applying the Company's accounting poiicies, the management has made the following
estimates, assumptions and judgments which are relevant to these financial statements:
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Property, plant and equipment - notes 5.1 and &

The Gompany reviews appropriateness of the rate of depreciation, useful life and residual value used in the
calculation of depreciation on property, plant and equipment. Further, where applicable, an estimate of the
recoverable amount of property, piant and equipment is made for possible impairment on an annual basis. In
making these estimates, the Company uses the technical resources available with the Gompany. Any change
in the estimate in the future might affect the carrying amount of the respective items of property, plant and
equipment, with comesponding effects on the depreciation charge and impairment.

Exploration and evaluation expenditure - notes 5.3 and 8

The Campany’s accounting policy for exploration and evaluation expenditure results in certain items of
expenditure being capitalized for an area of interest where it is considered likely te be recoverable by future
exploration or sale or where the activities have not reached a stage which permits a reasonable assessment
of the existence of reserves. This policy requires management to make certain estimates and assumptions as
to future events and circumstances, in particuiar whether an eccnomically viable extraction operation can be
established. Any such estimates and assumptions may change as new information becomes available. IF,
after having capitalized the expenditure under the policy, a judgment is made that recovery of the expenditure
is unlikely, the relevant capitalized amount is written off to statement of profit or loss.

Development and production expenditure - notes 5.4 and 9

Joint operations where Company has carried cost working interest, on announcement of commercial
discovery, the Company initially provides for the liabflity related to relevant carried cost of the joint operations
and then recognise correspanding development and production expenditure; on the basis of best estimates
availabie from the shared cost statement of the relevant joint operation. An adjustment is made based on the
finalized cost agreed with the operator.

Taxation - notes 5.14 and 30

In determining tax provision, the Company takes into account the current tax laws and decisions laken by
appellate authorities. The current tax payabie or receivable is the best esfimate of the tax amount expected
to be paid or received that reflects uncertainty related to income taxes, if any. Instances where the
Company's view differs from the view taken by the income tax department at the assessment stage and the
Company considers that its view on items of material nature is in accordence with law, the amounts are
disclosed as contingent liabilities unless the possibility of any outflow is remote. Where the final tax outcome
of these matters is different from the amounts that were initially recorded, such differences will impact the
current and deferred tax balances in the year in which such determination is made.

Measurement of the expected credit loss allowance - notes 5.10.1 and 15.3

The measurement of the Expected Credit Loss {("ECL’) allowance for financial assets requires the use of
complex models and significant assumptions about future economic conditions and credit behavior {(g.g. the
likelihood of counter parties defaulting and the resulting losses),

Elements of the ECL madels that are considered accounting judgments and estimates include:

- Development of ECL models, including the various formulas and choice of inputs;

- Determining the criteria if there has been a significant increase in credit risk and so allowances for
financial assets should be measured on a lifetime ECL basis and the qualitative assessment;

- The segmentation of financial assets when their ECL is assessed on a collective basis;

- Determination of associations between macroeconomic scenarios and, economic inputs, and their
effect on Probability of Default {PDs}, Exposure At Defauit (EADs) and Less Given Default (LGDs); and

- Selection of forward-looking macroeconomic scenarios and their probability weightings, te derive the
econamic inputs into the ECL models.

.
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Provision for decommissioning cost - hotes 5.12 and 26

Provision is recognized for the future decommissioning and restoration cost of il and gas wells, preduction
facilities and pipelines at the end of their useful lives and involves estimates related to future expected cost,
discount rate and timing. Estimates of the amount of provision recognized are based on current legal and
constructive requirements, technology and price levels. Provision is based on the best estimates, however,
the actual outflows can differ from estimated cash outflows due to changes in laws, regulations, public
expectations, technology, prices and conditions, and can take place many years in the future. The estimated
timing of decommissioning may change due to certain factors, such as reserve life, a decision to terminate
operations or change in legisiation. The carrying amount of provision is reviewed annually and adjusted to
take account of such changes.

During the year, the Company revised its estimates of decommissioning cost, reserve life, discount and
inflation rates. This has been treated as change in accounting estimates, applied prospectively, in accordance
with IFRIC Interpretation 1 "Changes in Existing Decommissioning, Restoration and Similar Liabilities".

Following line items would have been affected had thera been no change in estimates:

Rupees
Provision for decommissioning cost would have been higher by 1,928,151
Property, plant and equipment would have been higher by 561,883
Development and production assets would have been higher by 897 475
Exploration & evaluation assets would have been higher by 21,571
Cperating expenses would have been higher by 347,222
Total comprehensive income would have been lower by 347,222

Estimation of oil and natural gas raserves - notes 5.4 and 9

Gil and gas reserves are an important element in calculation of amortization charge and for impairment
testing of development and producticn assets of the Company. Estimates of oil and natural gas reserves are
inherently imprecise, require the application of judgement and are subject to future revision. Reservas are
estimated by reference to available reservoir and well information, including production and pressure trends
for praducing reservoirs and, in some cases, subject to definitional limits, to similar data from other produging
reservoirs. All reserve estimates are subject to revision, either upward or dovwnward, based on new
information, such as from development, drilling and production activities or from changes in economic factors,
including product prices, contract terms of development plans.

Changes in estimates of reserves, affects the amount of amortization recorded in the financial statements for
development and production assets.

Impairment of non financial assets including development and production assets and related
property, plant and equipment - notes 5.5, 6, 8 and 9

Al each reporting date, the Company reviews the carrying amount of its non financial assets to determine
whether there is any indication of impairment. If any such indication exists, then the assets recoverable
amount is estimated.

E&E assets are assessed for impairment when facts and circumstances indicate that carrying amount may
exceed the recoverable amount of E&E assets. Such indicators include, the point at which a determination is
Mmade that as to whether or not commercial reserves exist, the period for which the Company has right to
explore has expired or will expire in the near future and is not expected to be renewed, substantive
expenditure on further expleration and evaluation activities is not planned or budgeted and any other event
that may give rise to indication that E&E assets are impaired.
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Impairment test of development and production assets and related property, plant and equipment is
performed whenever events and circumstances arising during the development and production phase
indicate that carrying amount of the development and production assets may exceed its recoverable amount,
Such circumstances depend on the interaction of a number of variables, such as the recoverable quantities of
hydrocarbons, the production profite of the hydrocarbons, the cost of the development of the infrastructure
necessary to recover the hydrocarbons, the production costs, the contractual duration of the production field
and the net selling price of the hydrocarbons produced. For impairment testing, assets are grouped together
into the smallest group of assets that generate cash inflows largely independent of other assets or CGUs. The
CGU applied for impairment test purpose is generally based on a number of fields grouped as a single cash
genarating unit where the cash flows of each field are inter-dependent.

The carrying value is compared against expected recoverable amount of an asset or CGU, generaly by
reference to the future net cash flows expected to be derived from such assets. An impairment loss is
recognized if the carrying amount of an asset or CGU exceeds its recoverable amount. Impairment losses are
recognized in statement of profit or loss. The impaiment loss is allocated to the assets in CGU on a pro rata
basis.

Where conditicns giving rise to impairment subsequently reverse, the effect of the impairment charge is alse
reversed as a credit in statement of profit or loss to the extent that the asset's carrying amount does not
exceed the carying amount that would have been determined, net of depreciation or amortization, if no
impairment loss had been recognized.

Employee benefits - notes 5.13, 27 and 29.3

The Company operates an approved gratuity fund for its regular and contract employees. The obligation at
the date of statement of financial position is measured at the present value of the estimated future cash
oufflows. Calcuiation of gratuity obligations require assumptions to be made of future cutcomes which mainly
includes increase in remuneration, expected long-term return on plan assets and the discount rate used to
convert future cash flows to cument values. Calculations are sensitive to changes in the underlying
assumptions. The assumptions used vary for the different plans and they are determined by independent
actuary annually,

The Company also has a policy whereby its regularicontractual employees are eligible o encash accumulated
leave balance at the time of retirement/Contract renewal/Resignation up to a maximum of 90 days. The
benefit obligations in respect of compensated absences are sensitive to changes in the underlying
assumpticns. The assumptions used vary and they are determined by independent actuary annuglly.

Provislon against financial assets not subject to ECL model - notes 5.10.1 and 15.3

As referred to note 3.3, the SECP has deferred applicability of ECL model in respect of financial assets due
directly/ ultimately from Govemment of Pakistan (GoP} fill June 30, 2023 in respect of circular debt.
Accordingly, the Company reviews the recoverability of its trade debis and investments that are due directly/
ultimately from GoP in respect of circular debt to assess whether there is any objective evidence of
impairment as per reguirements of IAS 3% 'Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement' at each
reporting data.

The Company has overdue receivables on account of inter-corporate circular debt. These overdue balances
are receivable from oil refineries and gas distribution companies. The Government of Pakistan (GoP} is
committed, hence continuously pursuing for satisfactory settlement of inter-corporate circular debt issue.
However, the progress is slower than expected resulting in accumulation of Company's debts. Inter-corporate
circular debt in Pakistan arises due to delayed payments in the energy sector supply chain; GoP either
directly or through its direct/indirect ownership of entities within energy sector supply chain is at the core of
circular debt issue. The Central Power Purchase Agency (CPPA), a government owned entity, is sole power
purchaser for the Country and the circular debt is a shortfali of payments primarily by the CPPA, however, in
case of gas distribution and transmission companies the shortfall also occurs because of a delay in receipts
of subsidies from the GoP for supply of gas to certain domestic/industrial consumers.
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Settlement of the Company's receivables is slower than the contractual terms primarily because circular debt
is @ macro economic level issue in Pakistan and its level at any given time is dependent on policies and/or
priorities of the GoP, the level of subsidies offered by GoP to certain domestic and industrial consumers,
exchange rate fluctuations, glabal crude oil prices and certain other systemic issues within energy seclor
{tariffs, losses, non/ delayed recoveries).

The Company's assessment of cbjective evidence of impairment with respect to over due amounts on
account of inter-corporate circular debt takes into account commitment made by the GoP, contractual rights to
receive compensation for delayed payments and plans of the GoP to address the issue of inter-corporate
circular debt.

The Company has contractual right and is entitled to charge interest if payments from customers delayed
beyond credit terms, however, the Company recognizes interest, if any, on delayed payments from customers
or investments only to the extent that it is highly probable that a significant reversal in the amount of income
recognized will not occur when the uncertainty associated with the interest is subsegquently resolved, which is
when the interest on delayed payments is received by the Company.

Stores, spares & loose tools - share in Jolnt operations® inventory - notes 5.9 and 13

The Company reviews the stores, spares and loose tools for possible write downs / provisions on an annual
basis. Any change in the estimates in future years might affect the carrying amounts of the respective items
with a corresponding affect on the provision.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
Property, plant and equipment

These are initially recognized at acquisition cost, including any costs directly attributable to bringing the assets
to the location and condition necessary for it to be capable of operating in the manner intended by the
Company’s management. These assets are subsequently measured using the cost model, which is cost less
subsequent depregiation and impairment losses {if any), except for freehold land and capital work in progress,
which are stated at cost less impairment loss (if any).

The cost includes the cost of replacing parts of the plant and equipment when that cost is incurred, # the
recognition criteria are met. Depreciation is charged using the straight ling method when assets are available
for use over the useful life of the underlying asset. The cost of replacing part of an item of property, plant and
equipment is recognized in the carrying amount of the item if it is probabie that the future economic benefits
embodied within the part will flow to the Company and its cost can be measured reliably. The carrying amount
of the replaced part is derecognized. Maintenance and normal repairs are charged to statement of profit or
loss.

An item of preperty, plant and eguipment and any significant part initially recognised is derecognised upon
disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal. The gain or loss arising
on derecognition of an item of property, pfant and equipment is determined as the difference between the
sales proceeds and the carrying amounts of the asset and is recognised in as other income in the statement
of profit or loss,

Capital work in progress is transferred fo the respective item of property, plant and eguipment when available
for intended use.

Intangible assets

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured at cost on initial recognition. Following initial recognition,
intangible assets are carried at cost less accumulated amortization and any accumutated impairment |oss.
Costs associated with routine maintenance of intangiole assets are recognized as an expense when incurred.
However, costs that are directly attributable to identifiable intangible assets and which enhance or extend the
performance of intangible assets beyond the original specification and useful life is recognized as capital
improvement and added ta the original cost of the software. The cost of intangible is amoriized over the
estimated useful life on a straight line basis.
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The useful lives of intangible assets are reviewed at each reporting date. The effect of any adjustment to the
useful life is recognized prospectively as a change in accounting estimates.

Exploration and evaluation assets {E&E Assets)

The exploration cost of all those joint operations is accounted for under the “Successful Efforts® method.
Under the successful efforts method of accounting, all property acquisitions, exploratoryfevaluation drilling
costs are initially capitalized as intangible Exploration and Evaluation (EZE) assets in well, field or specific
exploration cost centers as appropriate. Costs directly associated with an exploratory well are capitalized as
an intangible asset until the drilling of the well is completed and results have been evaluated. Major cosis
include employee benefits, material, chemica!, fuel, well services and rig operational costs. All other
exploration ¢osts including cost of technical studies, seismic acquisition and data processing, geological and
geophysical activities are charged in the statement of profit or loss as exploration and prospecting
expenditure. Pre license cost are charged to statement of profit or loss as and when they are incurred.

Intangible E&E assets relating to each exploration license / field are carried forward, until the existence or
otherwise of commarcial reserves have been determined subject to certain limitations including review for
indications of impairment. If commercial reserves have been discovered, the carrying value after any
impairment loss of the relevant E&E assets is then reclassified as development and preduction assets and if
commercial reserves are not found, the related costs are written off in statement of profit or loss. E&E assets
are not amortized prior to the conclusion of appraisal activities,

Development and production assets (D&P Assets)

During exploratory phase under carried cost working interest holding, relevant working interest of the
Company in various concessions is carried by its relevant partners in the respective Joint operations, in
accordance with the related Petroleum Concession Agreements. Consequent to the declaration of
commerciat discovery by the operator and approval by the Director General, Petroleum Concessions (DGPC),
the Company has right to increase its working interest up te 256% and the resulting censideration is payable to
relevant joint operation partners in these Joint operations, according to the provisions of the related
Petroleum Concession Agreements.

The carried cost payable to joint operation partners comprise of the cost of the successful wells and
expendilure that are attributable to the commercial discovery. The cost is directly recognized as
development and production assets to the extent fo which the cosl relates to wells. The remaining portion of
the cost is charged off to statement of profit or loss as expleration and prospecting expenditure.

Development and production assets also include the cost of developing the discovered commercial reserves
and bringing them intc production, together with the capitalized E&E expenditures incurred in finding
commercial reserves transferred from E&E assets as outlined in note 5.3 above and the cost of recognizing
provisicns for future site restoration and decommissioning.

Expenditure carried within each fieid is amortized from the commencement of production on a unit of
production basis, over the estimated useful life of the field determined by reference to proved reserves, on a
field by field basis. Changes in the estimates of commercial reserves or fulure field development costs are
dealt with prospectively. Amortization is charged to statement of profit or loss. Amortization expense for the
year is computed on all development and production assets at year end including additions / adjustments
made during the year. Changes in the estimates of commercial reserves or future field development costs are
dealt with prospectively.

Impairment of non financial assets

At each reporting date, the Company reviews the carrying amount of its non financial assets to determine
whether there is any indication of impairment. If any such indication exists, then the assets recoverable
amount is estimated.

WAL
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E&FE assets are assessed for impairment when facts and circumstances indicate that carrying amount may
excead the recoverable amount of E&E assets. Such indicators include, the point at which a determination is
made that as to whether or not commercial reserves exist, the peried for which the Company has right o
explore has expired or will expire in the near fulure and is not expected to be renewed, substantive
expenditure on further exploration and evaluation activities is not planned or budgeted and any other event
that may give rise to indication that E&E assets are impaired.

impairment test of development and production assets and related property, plant and equipment is
performed whenever events and circumstances arising during the development and production phase
indicate that carrying amount of the development and production assets may exceed its recoverable amount,
Such circumstances depend on the interaction of a number of vanatles, such as the recoverable quantities of
hydrocarbons, the production profile of the hydrocarbons, the cost of the development of the infrastructure
hecessary to recover the hydrocarbens, the production costs, the contractual duration of the production field
and the net selling price of the hydrocarbons produced.

Far impairment testing, assets are grouped together inte the smallest group of assets that generate cash
inflows largely independent of other assets or CGUs. The carrying value is compared against expected
recoverable amount of an asset or CGU, generally by reference to the future nat cash flows expected to be
derived from such assets. An impairment loss is recognized if the carrying amount of an asset or CGU
exceads its recoverable amount. Impairment losses are recognized in statement of profit or loss.

Where conditions giving rise tc impairment subsequently reverse, the effect of the impairment charge is also
reversed as a credit in profit or loss to the extent that the asset's carrying amount does not exceed the
carrying amount that would have been determined, net of depreciation or amortization, if no impairment loss
had been recognized.

If the change in estimate results in an increase in the decommissioning liability and, therefore, an addition to
the carrving value of the asset, the Company considers whether there is an indication of impairment of the
asset as a whola, and if se, test for impairment in accordance with the 1AS-36 Impairment of Assets,

Joint operations

Investments in joint arrangements are classified as either joint operations or joint ventures depending on the
contractual right and obligations of the parties to the arrangement. The Company has assessed the nature of
its joint arrangements and determined them to be joint operations. The Company has recognized its share of
assets, liabilities, income and expenditure jointly held or incurred under the joint operations on the basis of
latest available audited accounts of the joint operations and where applicable, the cost statements received
from operators of the joint arrangements for the intervening period up to the statement of financial position
date.

Investment in subsidiary

Investment in subsidiary is initially recognised at cost. At subsequent reporting date, recoverable amounts are
estimated to determine the extent of impairment loss, if any, and carrying amount of investment is adjusted
accordingly. Impairment losses are recognised as expense in the statement of profit or loss. Where
impairment loss is subsequently reversed, the carrying amounts of investment are increased to its revised
recoverable amount, mited to the extent of initial cost of investment. Reversal of impairment losses are
recegnised in the statement of profit or ioss.

-



5.8

5.9

510

5.10.1

-11-

The profits or losses of subsidiaries are carried forward in their financial statements and are not dealt within
these financial statements except to the extent of dividend declared by the subsidiaries. Gains and losses on
dispesal of investmient are included in other income. When the disposal on investment in subsidiary results in
loss of control such that it becomes an assaciate, the retained investment is carried at cost.

Investment in associated company

An associate is an entity over which the Company has significant influence and that is neither a subsidiary nor
an interest in the joint venture. Significant influence is the power to participate in the financial and operating
policy decisions of the investee but is not control or joint control over those policies.

The results, assets and liabilities of the associate have been incorporated in these financial statements using
the equity method of accounting. Under the equity method, investments in associates are initially recognized
at cost adjusted thereafter to recognize the Company's share of the post-acquisition profits or losses of the
associate in profit or less and the Company's share of movements in other comprehensive income of the
associate in other comprehensive income. Dividends received or receivable from tha associate is recognized
as a reduction in the carrying amount of the investment. Adjustments to the carrying amount may also be
necessary for changes arising from the foreign exchange translation differences. The investor's share of
those changes is recognised in the investor's other comprehensive income. Losses of an associate in excess
of Company's interest in that associate are recognized only to the extent that the Company has incurred legal
or constructive obligation ¢or made payment on behalf of the associate. Where objective evidence of
impairment of investment in associate is identified, then the carrying amount of equity-accounted investment
is tested for impairment in accordance with the policy described in note 5.5.

Stores, spares & loose tools - share in Joint ¢perations’ inventory

Stores, spares & ioose teols are valued at the lower of cost and net realizable value less impairment for slow
moving items. Cost is determined on the basis of costing methods adopted by operators of respective Joint
operations. Net realizable value signifies the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business less
costs necessarily to be incurred in order to make a sale.

Financial instruments

All financial assets and financial fiabilities are recognized at the time whan the Company becomes a party to
the contractual provisions of the instrument. All the financial assets are derecognized at the time when the
Company losses control of the contractual rights that comprise the financial assets. All financial liabilities are
derecognized at the time when they are extinguished that is, when the obligation specified in the contract is
discharged, cancelled, or expires. Any gains or losses on de-recognition of the financial assets and financial
liabilities are taken to the statement of profit or loss.

Financial assets

Classification

The Company classifies its financial assets in the following measurement categaries:
a) Amortized cost where the effective interest rate method will apply;

b) Fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL); and

¢) Fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI}

The classification depends on the entity's business model for managing the financial assets and the
contraciual terms of the cash flows.

»
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For assets measured at fair value, gains and losses will either be recorded in statement of profit or loss or
statement of cther comprehensive income (OCI). For investments in equity instruments that are not held for
trading, this depends on whether the Company has made an irrevocable election at the time of initial
recognition to account for the equity investment at fair value through other comprehensive income (FYTOCI).
The Company reclassifies debt investments when and only when its business model for managing those
assets changes.

Recagnition and deracognition

Regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are recognised on trade-date, the date on which the
Company commits to purchase or sell the asset. Financial assets are derecognised when the rights to receive
cash flows from the financial assets have expired or have been transferred and the Company has transferred
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership.

Measuremaent

At initial recognition, the Company measures a financial asset at its fair value plus, in the case of a financial
asset not at fair vaiue through profit or loss (FVTPL), transaction costs that are directly attributable to the
acquisition of the financial asset. Transaction costs of financial assets carried at FVTPL are expensed in
statement of profit or loss.

Debt instruments

Subsequent measurement of debt instruments depends on the Company’s business model for managing the
assef and the cash flow characteristics of the asset. There are three measurement categories into which the
Company classifies its debt instruments:

{a) Amortised cost

Assets that are held for collection of contractual cash flows where those cash flows represent sclely
payments of principal and interest are measured at amortised cost. Interest income from these financial
assets is included in finance income using the effective intsrest rate method. Any gain or loss arising on
derecagnition is recognised directly in profit or loss and presented in other operating gains/{losses),
together with foreign exchange gains and losses. Impairment losses are presented as separate line
item in the statement of profit or loss.

(b) Fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI)

Assets that are held for collection of contractual cash flows and for selling the financial assets, where
the assets' cash flows represent solely payments of principal and interest, are measured at FVTOCI.
Movements in the carrying amount are taken through OCI, except for the recognition of impairment
gains or losses, interest revenue and foreign exchange gains and losses which are recognised in profit
or ioss. When the financial asset is deracognised, the cumulative gain or loss previously recognised in
OCl is reclassified from equity to statement of profit or loss and recognised in other incomefcharges.
Interest income from these financial assets is included in finance income using the effective interest
rate method. Foreign exchange gains and losses are presented in other incomefcharges and
impairment expenses are presented as separate line item in the statement of profit or loss.

{c} Fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL)

Assets that do not meet the criteria for amortised cost or FVTOCI are measured at FVTPL. A gain or
loss on a debt investment that is subsequently measured at FVTPL is recognised in the statement of
profit or loss and presented net within other operating gains/(losses) in the period in which it arises.

’
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De-recogniticn of financial assets

A tinancial asset (or, where applicable part of a financial asset or part of a group of similar financial assets) is
derecognized when:

i) The rights 1o receive cash flows from the asset have expired.

ii} The Company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset or has assumed an
obligation to pay the received cash flows in full without material delay to a third party under a ‘pass-
through’ arrangement; and either (a) the Company has transferred substanfially all the risks and
rewards of the asset, or (b) the Company has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks
and rewards of the asset, but has transferred control of the asset.

When the Company has transferred its rights to receive cash fiows from an asset or has entered into a
passthrough arrangement, and has neither transferred nor retained substantially all of the risks and rewards
of the asset nor transferred control of the asset, the asset is recognized to the extent of the Gompany's
continuing invalvement in the asset.

In that case, the Company alse recognizes an associated liability. The transferred asset and the associated
liability are measured on a basis that reflects the rights and obligations that the Company has retained.
Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee over the transferred asset is measured at the lower
of the original carrying amount of the asset and the maximum amount of consideration that the Company
could be required tc repay.

Impairment of financial assets

The Compary assesses on a forward looking basis the Expected Credit Losses (ECL) associated with its
debt instruments carried at amortised cost and FYTOCI. The impairment methodology applied depends on
whether there has been a significant ingrease in credit risk.

Fellowing are financial instruments that are subject to the ECL madel:

= Trade debts

- Loans, advances, and other receivables

- Gash and bank balances

- Deposit with the Government of Pakistan for equity stake in Reko Dig project
- Loans to subsidiarigs and staff

- Receivable from Government of Pakistan (GoP)

= Short term investments

General approach for loans, advances, and other receivables, cash, and bank halances, deposits,
short term investments, deposit with the Government of Pakistan for equity stake in Reko Dig project,
loans to subsidiaries and staff and receivable from Govermment of Pakistan

The measurement of expected credit lusses is a function of the probability of default, loss given default (le.
The magnitude of the loss if there is a default) and the exposure at default. The assessment of the probability
of default and loss given default is based on historical data adjusted by forward-looking information {adjusted
for factors that are specific to the counterparty, general economic conditions and an assessment of both the
current as well as the forecast direction of conditions at the reporting date, including time value of money
where appropriate). As for the exposure at default for financial assets, this is represented by the assets' gross
camying amount at the reporting date. t.oss allowances are forward looking, based on 12 month expected
credit losses where there has not been a significant increase in credit risk rating, otherwise allowances are
based on lifetime expected lbsses.
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Expected credit losses are a probability weighted estimate of credit losses. The probability is determined by
the risk of default which is applied to the cash flow estimates. In the absence of a change in credit rating,
allowances are recognised when there is reduction in the nel present value of expected cash flows. On &
significant increase in credit risk, allowances are recagnised without a change in the expected cash flows,
although typically expected cash flows do also change; and expected credit losses are rebased from 12
month to lifetime expectations.

Simplified approach for trade debts

The Company recognises life time ECL on trade debts, using the simplified approach. The measurement of
ECL reflects:

- an unbiased and probability-weighted amount that is determined by evaluating a range of possible
outcomes,

- reasonable and supportable information that is available at the reporting date about past events,
current conditions and forecasts of future ecoenomic conditions.

Trade debts are separately assessed for ECL measurerment. The lifetime expected credit losses are
estimated using the Company's historical credit loss experience, adjusted for factors that are specific to the
debtors, general economic conditions and an assessment of both the current as well as the forecast direction
of conditions at the reporting date, including time value of money where appropriate.

Significant increase in credit risk

The Company considers the probability of default upon initial recognition of asset and whether there has been
a significant increase in credit risk an an ongoing basis throughout each reporting period. To assess whether
there is a significant increase in credit risk, the Company compares the risk of a default occurring on the
instrument as at the reporting date with the risk of default as at the date of initial recognition. It considers
available reasonable and supportable forward-looking information.

A financial asset is credit-impaired when one or more events that have a detrimental impact on the estimated
fulure cash flows of that financial asset have occurred. Evidence that a financial asset is credit-impaired
includes observable data about the following events:

- actual or expected significant adverse changes in business, financial or economic conditions that are
expected to cause a significant change to the debtor's ability to meet its obligations;

- actual or expected significant changes in the operating results of the debtor;

- significant increase in credit risk on other financial instruments of the same debtor;

- significant changes in the value of the collateral supporting the obligation or in the quality of third-party
guarantees;

-~ significant financial difficulty of the barrower;
- abreach of contract, such as a default or past due event;

- the company for economic or contractual reasons relating to the borrower's financial difficulty, have
granted to the borrower a concession({s) that the Company would not atherwise consider;

- itis becoming probable that the borrower will enter bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation: or

- the disappearance of an active market for that financial asset because of financial difficulties: if
applicable.
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Definition of default

The Company considers the following as constituting an event of default for internal credit risk management
purposes as historical experience indicates that receivables that meet either of the following criteria are
generally not recoverabie.

- when therg is a breach of financial covenants by the counterparty; or
- information developed internally or obtained from external scurces indicates that

the debtor is unlikely to pay its creditors, including the Company, in full {without taking intc account any
collaterals held by the Company). Irrespective of the abave analysis, a significant increase in credit rigk is
presurned if a debtor is more than 365 days past due in making a contractual payment unless the Company
has reasonable and supportable information to demonstrate that a mere lagging default criterion is more
appropriate.

Recognition of loss allowance

The Company recognizes an impairment gain or loss in the statement of profit or loss for all financial
instruments with a corresponding adjustment te their carrying amount through a loss allowance account.

Write-off

The Company write off financial assets, in whole or in part, when it has exhausted all practical recovery efforts
and has concluded there is no reasonable expectation of recovery. The assessment of no reasonable
expectation of recovery is based on unavailability of debtor's sources of income or assets to generate
sufficient future cash flows to repay the amount.

Financial liabilities
Classification, initial recognition and subseguent measurement
The Company classifies its financial liabilities in the following categories:

— at fair value through profit or loss {"FVTPL"); and
- at amortized cost.

The Company determines the classification of its financial liabilities at initial recognition. Al financial fiabilities
are recognized initially at fair value and, in the case of other financial liabilties, also include directly
altributable transaction costs. The subsequent measurement of financial labilities depends on their
classification, as follows:

Fair value through profit or loss

Financia! liabiltties at fair value through profit or loss include financial liabilities held-for-trading and financial
habilities designated upon initial recognition as being at fair value through profit or loss. The Company has not
designated any financial liability upon recognition as being at fair value through profit or loss.

Amortised cost

After initial recognition, other financial liabilities which are interest bearing are subsequently measured at
amorlized cost, using the effective interest rate method. Gain and losses are recagnized in the statement of

profit or loss, when the liabilities are derecognized as well as through effective interest rate amortization
process.
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De-recognition of financial liabilities

A financial liability is derecognized when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled or expires.
When an existing financial liability is replaced by anocther from the same lender on substantially different
terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially medified, such an exchange or modification is
treated as a de-recognition of the original Jiability and the recognition of a new liability, and the difference in
the respective carrying amounts fs recognized in the statemant of profit or logs,

The Company derecognizes financial lisbilities only when its obligations under the financia! liabilities are
discharged, cancelled or expired. The difference between the carrying amount of the financial liability
derecognized and the consideration paid and payable, Including any non-cash assets transferred or liabilities
assumed, is recognized in the statement of profit or loss.

Offsetting of financial assets and financial liabilities

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the statemant of financial position
if the Company has legally enforceable right to set-off the recognized amounts and the Company intends to
seftle on a net basis or realize the asset and settle the liability simultangously.

Cash and cash squivalents

Cash and cash equivalents in the statement of financial position comprise of term depository receipts
maturing within 3 months, cash in hand, cash at banks and the related accrued interest income maturing
within 3 months. Cash equivalents are short term highly liquid investments, that are readily convertible fo
known amaunts of cash and which are subject to an insignificant risk of change in value.

Decommissioning cost

The activities of the Company nomally give rise to obligalions for site restoration. Restoration activities may
include abandonment and removal of wells, facility decommissioning and dismantling, removal or treatment of
waste materials, land rehabilitation, and site restoration.

Liabilities for decommissioning cost are recognized when the Company has an obligation for site restoration,
and when a reliable estimate of that liability can be made. The Company makes provision in full for the
decommissioning cost on the declaration of commercial discovery of the reserves, to fulfil the obligation of
site restoration and rehabilitation. The obligations for oil and natural gas production or transporiation facilities,
are required on construction or installation. An obligaticn for decommissioning may also crystallize during the
period of operation of a well / facility through a change in legisiation or through a decisfon to terminate
operations.

The amount recognized is the estimated cost of decommissioning, discounted to its net present value at a
current pre-tax discount rate that reflects the risks specific to the decommissioning liability and the expected
outflow of economic resources to settle this obligation is up to next thirty years.

Decommissioning cost, as appropriate, relating to producing or developing fields is capitalized to the cost of
development and production assets and property, plant and equipment as the case may be. The recognized
amount of decommissioning cost is subsequently amortized/depreciated as part of the capital cost of the
development and production assets on a unit of production method and property, plant and equipment over
the assets useful life respectively. At the time of decommissioning of the field, any differences arising from
settlement of the provision are recognized in statement of profit or loss.

DAFLL.
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While the provision is based on the best estimate of future costs and the economic life of the fields, there is
uncertainly regarding both the amount and timing of incurring these costs. The Company reviews the
decommissioning provision at the reporting date. Any change in the present value of the estimated
expenditure is dealt with prospectively and reflected as an adjustment to the provision and a corresponding
adjustment to property, plant and equipment and development and production assets. If a decrease in a
pravision is greater than the carrying value of asset, the excess is recognized in statement of profit or loss.
The unwinding of the discount on the decommissioning provision is recognized as finance cost in the
statement of profit or loss,

If the change in estimate results in an increase in the decommissioning liability and, therefore, an addition to
the carmying value of the asset, the Company considers whether there is an indication of impairment of the
asset as a whole, and if so, test for impairment in accordance with the 1AS-36 Impairment of Assets.

Employee hensfits
Employees gratuity fund

The Company cperates approved gratuity fund for its regular and contract employees. The investments of
gratuity funds are made through approved trust funds. Employees are entitled to benefits under gratuity fund
from July 1, 2010. Contributions are made in accordance with actuarial recommendations. Actuarial
valuations are conducted by an independent actuary, annually using projected unit credit method related
details of which are given in note 29 to the financial statements. The obligation at the date of statement of
financial position is measured at the present value of the estimated future cash outflows.

Actuarial gains and losses (remeasurement gains/losses) on employees’ gratuity fund are recognised
immediately in other comprehensive income and past service ¢ost is recognized in statement of profit or loss
when they ocour,

Cost primarily represents the increase in actuarial present value of the obligation for the employees' gratuity
fund earned on employees service during the year and the interest on the net liability/(asset) in respect of
employee’s service in previous years. Calculations are sensitive to changes in the underlying assumptions.

Calculation of gratuity obligations require assumptions to be made of future outcomes which mainly includes
Increase in remuneration, expected long-term return on plan assets and the discount rate used to convert
future cash flows to current values. Calcutations are sensitive to changes in the underlying assumptions. The
assumptions used vary for the different plans and they are determined by independent actuary annually.

Employee compensated absences

The Company provides for compensated absences for all eligible employees in accordance with the rules of
the Company.

Deflned contribution plan

The Company operates an approved contributory provident fund for all employees. Equal monthly contribution
is made both by the Company and the employee to the fund at the rate of 8.33% of basic salary. The
Company's contributions are recognised as employee benefit expense when they are due.

Taxation

Income tax expense comprises of current and deferred tax.

-
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Current tax

Provisicn for current taxation is based on taxable income at the applicable rates of taxaticn after taking into
account tax credits and tax rebates, if any, adjusted for payments to the Government of Pakistan (GoP) for
payments on account of royalty and any adjustment to tax payable in respect of previous years. Income tax
expense is recognised in statement of profit or loss except to the extent that it relates to items recognised
directly in equity or in other comprehensive income.

The Company recognises provision for income tax based on best current estimates. However, where the final
tax outcome is different from the amounts that were initially recorded, such differences impact the income tax
pravision in the period in which such determination is made.

The Company takes into account the current income tax law and decisions taken by the taxation autharities.
Instances where the Company's views differ from the income tax department at the assessment stage and
where the Company considers that its view on items of material nature is in accordance with law, the amounts
are shown as contingent liabilities.

Deferred tax

Deferred income tax is accounted for using the statement of financial position liability method in respect of al
temporary differences arising between the carrying amount of assats and liabilities in the financial statements
and the corresponding tax bases used in the computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax labilites are
recognised for all taxable temporary differences and deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is
probable that future taxable profits will be available against which the deductible temporary differences, un-
used tax losses and tax credits can be utilized. Deferred tax is calcuiated at the rates that are substantially
expected to apply to the period when the differences reverse based on the tax rates that have been enacted.
Deferred tax is charged or credited to income except in the case of items credited or charged to equity in
which case it is inciuded in equity.

Deferred texation is recognised taking into account availsbility of taxable profits. The management uses
assumptions about future best estimates of the availability of future taxable profits based on available
information.

Offsetting deferrad tax assets and liabilities

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally enfarceable right to offset current tax
assets and liabilities and when the deferred tax balances relate to the same taxation authority. Current tax
assets and tax liabilities are offset where the entity has a legally enferceable right to offset and intends sither
to settle on a net basis, or 1o realize the assat and settle the liability simultanecusly.

Group taxation

The Company has opted for group taxation regime and thereby to be taxed as a one fiscal unit along with its
wholly owned subsidiaries under the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001. Current and deferred income taxes are
recognised by each entity within the Group in their respective statement of comprehensive income, regardless
of who has the legal rights or obligation for the recovery or payment of tax from or to the tax authorities.
However, tax liability / receivable is shown by the Company based on annual tax computation, who has the
legal obligation to pay or right of recovery of tax from the taxation authorities. Balances between the group
entiies on account of group tax is shown as other receivable / liability by the Company.

Provisions and contingent liabilities

A provision is recognised in the statement of financial pesition when the Company has a present, legal or
constructive obligation as & result of a past event, and it is probable that an outflew of economic benefits will
be required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of such ohligation,
Provisions are determined by discounting the expected future cash flows at a pre-tax discount rate that
reflects current market assessment of time value of money and risk specific to the liabiiity.
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A contingent liability is disclosed when the Company has a possible obligation as a result of past events,
whose existence will be confirmed only by the occurrence or han-occurrence, of one or more uncertain future
events not wholly within the control of the Company; or the Company has a present legal or constructive
obligation that arises from past events, but it is not probable that an outflow of resources embodying
economic benefits will be required to settle the obiigation, or the amount of the obligation cannot be measured
with sufficient reliability.

Revenue recognition

Revenue from contracts with custormers is recognized when or as the Company satisfies a performance
obligation by transferring a promised good to a custemer. Revenue associated with the sale of crude oil, gas
and liguefied petroleum gas is recognized at transaction price that is aliocated to that performance obligation,
Revenue from contracts with customers is recognized when the Company satisfies a performance obligation
by transferring a promised good to @ customer. A good is transferred when the customer obtains control of
that good or service. The transfer of control of crude oil, gas and liquefied petroleum gas coincides with title
passing to the customer and the customer taking physical possession. The Company principally satisfies its
performance obligations at a point in time and recognizes revenue relating to the performance.

Revenue is measured at the transaction price, net of gavernment levies. Transaction prices of crude oil and
gas are specified in relevant agreements and / or as notified by the government authorities based on
agreements with customers, ralevant applicable petroleum policy, degision of Economic Coordination
Committee (ECC) of the Cabinet or Petroleum Concession Agreements. Prices of liquefied petroleum gas are
approved by the appropriate authority of operator keeping in view the ceiling price notified by Gil & Gas
Regulatory Autharity (OGRA). Effect of adjustments, if zny, arising from revision in sale prices is reflected as
and when the prices are finalized with the customers and/or approved by the Government of Pakistan {GoP).

Billings are generally raised by the end of each month which are payable within 30 to 45 days in accordance
with the contractual arrangement with customers. Amounts billed or received prior to being earned, are
deferred and recognized as advances from customers. The Company based on its assessment has not
identified a significant financing component in its current contracts with customers because payment terms of
30 to 45 days are explicilly specified and delay in settiement of invoices does not result in & significant
financing component.

Finance income and expense

Finance income comprises Interest income on funds invested or loan issued to subsidiaries and exchange
gain. Interest income of financial assets at amortized cost is calculated using the effective interest method
and is recognized in statement of profit or loss. Interest income is calcuiated by applying the effective interest
rate to gross carrying amount of a financial asset except for financial assets that subsequently become credit
impaired. For credit impaired financial assets, the effective interest rate is applied to the net carrying amount
of the financial assets. Dividend income is recognized when the right to receive the payment is established.
Foreign currency gains and logses are reported on a net basis.

The Company has contractual right and is entitied to charge interest i payments from customers delayed
beyond credit terms, however, the Company recognizes interest, i any, on delayed payments from customers
only to the extent that it is highly probable that a significant reversal in the amount of income recognized will
not occur when the uncertainty associated with the interest is subsequently resclved, which is when the
interest on delayed payments is received by the Company.

Finance cost comprises interest expense on borrowings (if any), unwinding of discount on provisions or

liability and bank charges. Mark up, interest and other charges on borrowings are charged to profit or loss in
the period in which they are incurred.

NFFA0-
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Foreign currencies
Foreign currency transactions and translations

Transactions in foreign currencies are recorded at the rates of exchange ruling on the date of the transaction.
All monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated into Pakistani Rupees at
the rate of exchange ruling on the statement of financial pasition date and exchange differences, if any, are
credited / charged to statement of profit or loss for the year.

Foreign operations

The transactions of foreign operation are translated at rate of exchange prevailing on the date of transaction.
All monetary and non-monetary assets and liabilities of foreign operation are translated into Pak Rupees at
exchange rate prevailing at the date of statement of financial position and the resulting currency translation
differences are recognized in other comprehensive income and accumulated as a separate reserve in edquity
until the disposal of foreign operation, upon which these are reclassified from equity to statement of profit or
loss when gain or loss on disposal is recognized.

Dividends and resarvas

Cividend distribution and appropriation of reserves are recognized in the financial statements in the period in
which these are approved.

Earning per shara

The Company presents basic and diluted earnings per share (EPS) data for its ordinary shares. Basic EPS is
calculated by dividing the profit or loss attributable to ordinary shareholders of the Company by the weighted
average number of ordinary shares outstanding during the period. Diluted EPS is determined by adjusting the
profit or loss attributable to ordinary shareholders and the weighted average number of ordinary shares
outstanding for the effects of all dilutive potential ordinary shares.

Trade and other payables

These amounts represent liabilities for goods and services provided to the Company pricr to the end of
financial year which are unpaid. Trade and other payables are presented as current liability unless payment is
not due within twelve (12} months after the reporting period. They are recognized initially at their fair value
and subsequently measured at amortized cost using the effective interest methed.

Reserves

The Company has a policy to set aside out of the profits of the Company such amount as the Company think
proper as a reserve or reserves, which shall, at the discretion of the board of directors, be applicable for
meeting contingencies, or for any other purpose to which the profits of the Company may be properly applied,
and pending such application may, in the like discretion, either be employed in the business of the Company
Or be invested in such investments, (other than shares of the Company) as the board of directors may from
time to time think fit. Reserves are reviewed periodically and adjusted as necessary by the board of directors.

SKATLY.



1

21-

SARILY-

2022 2021
Note rwmmmmmm———————— Rupees {"000}------ e
6 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
Owned fixed assets 6.1 41,803 50,878
Share in Joint operations' fixed assets 6.2 24,021,823 24,900,717
Share in Joint operations' capital work in progress 8.3 3,366,195 3,088,920
27,429 821 28,041,515
6.1 Owned fixed assets
O_I’fice Furniture and Computer Vehicles Total
equipment fixtures equipmeant
Rupeeas {"000)
As at July 1, 2020
Cost 24,663 30,653 41,622 11,836 108,774
Accumulated depreciation {15,113} {14,094) {18,768) {9,366) {57,342)
Net boak vafue 9,550 16,559 22 854 2470 51,432
Year ended June 30, 2021
Opening net book value 9,550 16,559 22,854 2470 51,432
Additions 13,226 2,404 3,600 - 19,229
Disposals
Cast 438 - 811 - 1,248
Accumulated depreciation {438) - {811} - (1,249)
Depreciation charge {4,923) (3.860) (9,945) {1,055) {19.783)
Closing net book valua 17,852 15,103 18,509 1,414 50,878
Ag at July 1, 2021 .
Cost 37,450 33,057 44,411 11,836 126,754
Accumulated depreciation {19,598) {17,954} {27,902) 10,422) {75,876}
Net book value 17,852 15,103 16,509 1,414 50,878
Year ended June 30, 2022 -
Opening net book value 17,852 15,103 16,509 1,414 50,878
Additions 2,349 2.7%7 9,472 - 14,598
Disposals -
Cost 3,769 243 2,266 - 6,278
Accumulated depreciation {3,741) {218} {2,266) - {6,225)
{28) {25) - - {53)
Depreciation chargs {6,587) {4,305) (11,678) {1,052) (23,620)
Closing nat book value 13,586 13,550 14,305 362 41,803
Az at June 30, 2022 -
Cost 36,030 35,591 51,617 11,836 135,074
Accumulated depreciation (22,d444) (22,041) {37,312} (11,474) (93,271)
Net book value 13,586 13,550 14,305 362 41,803
Annual rate of
depreciation (%} 20 15 20-33 20




6.2

Share in Joint operations' fixed assets

As at July 1, 2020

Cost
Accumulated depreciation
Acsurmnulated Impairment

Met bock value
Year ended June 34, 2021

Cpening net book value

Additions

Adjustment of decommissioning cost
Transfers fram CWIP

Depreciation charge
Impawrnent charge
Closing net book value
As at July 1, 2021

Cost

Accumulated depreciation
Accumulated Impaiment
Net book value

Year ended June 30, 2022
QOpening net book value
Additions

Adjustment of decommissioning cost
Transfers From CWIP
Depreciation charge
Impairment charge
Closing net book value

Ag at June 30, 2022

Cost
Accumulated depreciation
Accumulated Impairment

Meat book value

Annual rate of
depreciatian {%)

KFFEL.
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Leasehold Plant and . Office Furniture and . Decommissioning
land equipment BiESiines equipment fixtures e cost o)
Rupees ("000}
54 215 44,670,646 7,338,278 335,957 77807 172,608 1,082 836 53,752,348
{40,460} (20,088,196) (3.877.138) {284 G58) (71,933 (159 454} {505,689) (25,027,574
(6,458} {2,851 547) {634,729) {25,93%) (3 813) {3,130} (59,032 (3.584,649)
7,297 21,730,803 2,846 411 25330 2.052 10.025 518105 25140,125
7297 21,730,903 2,846,411 25330 2,052 10.025 518,105 25140123
880 934,064 413,71 8,739 62 7,291 387 526 1,752,122
- {357,058) {58,505) - - - {310,680) {720,641)
- 849 118 2721 - - - 24 1,051,080
{1,459) {1.538,336} (402,806) 8,240) {638) {7406} 61,157 {2,297 716}
- (9,511) (14,591) {30} - g = {24,232)
8,488 21215081 2,585,540 25 848 1,478 8810 826,370 24 8900717
54 895 46,102,772 7,914,804 344,745 77,863 179,900 1,159,903 55,834,889
{41,950} (22,026 532) (4,279,844} {252,928) {72,575} {166.860) {444,502} {27,325,291)
{6,458} (2,861,150 {849,320} {25,969) {3,816) {3130 {59,032} (3,608,882)
5.488 21.215 081 2,985 540 25,849 1,478 8910 656 370 24 900 717
6,488 21,215,081 2,985,540 25,84% 1.478 9,910 666,370 24,900 717
- 1,762,650 357,238 5,077 {180) 4,399 95,424 2,225.607
- {251,847) . - - 1291,231) {543,078)
- 304,389 178,676 - - - - 480,065
- {2,145,065) (319,277) {4,568} (207} {5,259} {107,304) {2,581,660)
(6,488} {310,143} {121,677} {4,302} - {66} {17,132) [459,6808)
- 20,572,065 3,080,500 23,056 1,09 8,984 335,127 24,021,823
54,895 47,914,964 8,450,718 Is50,823 7r,6o% 164,299 964,096 57,997 483
{41,950) (24,171,558 {4.599,221) {297,496) [72,782) 172,118} {551,806} {29,906,971)
(12,945) (3,171,301) {(?70,957) {30.,271) {3.816) {3.196) (76,183) {4,068,689)
- 20,672 065 3,080,500 23,056 1,094 8,984 336,127 24,021,823
334 324 334 20 15 20 33-4
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2022 2021
---------- Rupees ("000)------meuuu
Share in Joint operations’ capital work in progress
Balance at the beginning of the year 3,311,421 2,865,291
Cost incurred during the year 756,340 1,692 167
Transferred to development and production assets - (94,977}
Transferred to share in Joint operations' fixed assets (480,0865) (1,051,060}
3,587,696 3,311,421
Accumulated impairment {221,501) {221,501}
Balance at the end of the year 3,366,196 3,089,920

Total capitaiised cost includes asset decommissioning cost amounting to Rs. 151,882 as at June 30, 2022
(2021: Rs. 147,027)
2022 2021
Note  seeeceeee Rupees {'000}-------~e---
Allocatlon of depreciation
Operating expenses 34 2,681,680 2,297 716
General and administrative expenses 37 23,620 14,783

2,605,300 2,317 4499

Allocation of impairment / (reversal) of impairment

Operating expenses 34 458,808 235,200

As the Company is a non-operator, property, plant and equipment other than owned fixed assets are not

in the possession of the Company and are operated by joint operations in which the Company has
working interest.

2022 2021

INTANGIBLE ASSTES - SOFTWARES @ Rupees ("000}--w---------
Cost 116,143 114,124
Accumulated amortisation (108,271) (90,059)
Net bock value 7.872 24 065
Opening net book value 24,065 47 439
Additions 2,019 2,421
Disposals

Caost N .

Accumulated amortisation - -
Amortisation charge for the year {18,212) (25,845)
Closing net book value 7,872 24 065
Annual rate of amonrtization (%) 33% 33%

SHATEL.
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EXPLORATION AND EVALUATION ASSETS

Balance at beginning of the year
Expenditure incurred during the year

Cost of dry and abandoned wells during the year
Transfer to development and production assets during the year

Balance at end of the year

36

2022 2021
--------- —~-Rupees {'000)--r—rrew=aa
5,752,966 5456,332
410,709 978,946
6,163,675 6,435,279
(388,609) {306,996)
- {375,317)
(388,608) (682,313)
5,775,086 5,752 088

Total capitalised cost includes asset decommissioning cost amounting to Rs. 7,293 at June 20, 2022

(2021: Rs. 28,884).

QDRI
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— _ Lamyan
2022 Cast Amarizalion lmpairment anEn?
As at : .hdjusl.melnt D.f as at As at Charga Ag at As at At at AE at
o | Working g1, 2023 Addiions  Adjustments Decommiseioning Trnsler™  juew 30,2022 Jul1. 2021 forthoyear Junedn 2022 Joi, 200 Yor the pear 2009 30,2022 June 30, 2022
Rupess (Q00)mrmsiiisnse e ~Rupens {000} Rupees {'0f0}-—-mmr——rmmem Rupees ('000)
Producing fields-Joint oparations

Badin lll 25.00% 306,792 B - 306,792 306, 72 - 306,792 - - -

Block-22 {all fialds) 22.50% 268,275 B {8,374) - B 259,505 213,088 18,370} 204,714 55,187 - 55,187 -
Ahmada PP arvwali 17.50% 8. M4 vEa - - - 775,472 535,917 41,645 £37,512 - - o 141,860
vl 17 50% 1647 184 - - - 3834 1,686 9% 4,782 . & = 2,048
Mazarani 12.50% 136,641 g {38} - - 136,602 5312 13 115,273 M, 328 28 1
Sawan 22 5% 3411, 086 4,554 - - F420,321 2,596,530 26 688 2623 MHE 604,062 04,062 193,240
Zawe-arna 25, 0% 4584, 3659 1463 (64T} 21878 4,774,428 3,631,526 7716 1,711,562 5o, xa¥ 146,441 1,016,730 461
Mubarak 25.00% 1,351,278 53422 - - - 1,404,700 215,760 L8131 272211 1,025,477 64,388 1,088 875 45514
Mim 22 5B0% 291,292 78,485 . - 151,085 520 Rd4a 115,503 124,580 257,482 - - - 263,381

Kighran 25 00% 59,2403 - - - - £8, 203 1,533 - 1,432 a7 270 - 67,270 -
Chanda™ 17.50% 1.612,514 513 {1121} (T8} - 1,616,435 558 805 186,875 1, 16E, 480 - - - 449, 355
Gambat 25.00% 441,428 BEd - - - 442 4033 241,756 984 242 T20 195,882 - 199,682 1
Tal (&l fiwasy” 15 00% 6,274,350 98,251 - {116,926) - §,253,675 4,839,513 432,896 5272414 - - - 981,261
Khipro (all fukds)” 25 00% 2,870,345 411,781 |20, 488Y [15,647) . 3,245,881 2,230,132 183,212 2,413,344 - - 812,647
Mirpurkhas (all fislds)" 25 DO 5 570,871 To8,814 [81,171) 137.684) - 6,200,628 4,606,306 530,142 5,138,448 . - 1,052,160
Chachar® 25 0% 257 B91 - - (&0} - 251,861 158,956 104 159 060 21,855 51,855 948
Waghpa™ 15 00% 5,007,511 4,441 {16,288) (7.572) 41,381 5,029,483 038,007 €3E,895 2,724,502 - S 2,794,581
Binjhera® 22.50% 501,138 334,418 - {5,166} - 830,330 370,593 102,009 472 602 - 157,784
Mehar 25.00% 3,318,582 1,058,157 15.734) - . 4,372 405 1,184,111 E51,414 1,745,734 E71.218 B71,218 1,058 487

Jhakre 2250% 10,107 - - B - 16,407 10,050 49 G078 Kt 8 -
Gl 22 50% 154,910 m - - - 154,838 111,424 2,421 113,855 - - 35,084
Bolan 17 508, 563,789 2,950 [92d) - - 565,815 372,228 100,743 47 - - . 92,704
Garnbat South® 25 00% 1,808,757 - {3,903} 70,324) - 1,734,930 539,535 162,508 702,627 e . . 1,032,403
Bilsisimn 22 50% 786,080 26,827 - - - Mzony 70,220 50,012 120,292 - - . 192,675
Tando Allah Yar (all iglds)* 22 50% 267,750 aay - 116,118} - 256,519 1TR042 16,362 245,374 - - - 43,145
Shah Bandar 2.50r% 58,951 4 - {938} - 3,017 11,342 45,668 57,030 - - 1287
Khewar 22.50% 176,725 5,598 - - 2T 440 200,763 - 5770 6,770 - - - 202 831
Datommigsioning cos 3,299,948 443,577 - 1681,178) - 3062247 1,337,923 2615 1,861,536 195,352 38,589 231,821 DEE 230
Eub total producing Mekls 43,656,035 5,243,887 198,525 1952, 263) 458,677 4E.267 712 27217250 3,806,248 022,458 3,430,501 18,656 4,045,157 1,218,057

“Fhis includes reversal of decommissioning oost amounting Re. 271,056 directly made againgl ralatad field sesets Under provisions of IFRIC 1 - Chengas in esisting decommisgioning, restoration and simiar liabilitias,

DAKATLL -




Oeveloping finlds-Joigt aperations

2022 Cost Amprilzation Inipairment Camying
i Enournt
Adjustment af
A3 al . s Az at Az at Charge As st Asa Charga A at As at
Particulars WorkeS uit gy Additiens  Adjustments Docommesioning THNSET  june 30,2022 Jui%, 201 forthyesr  Juned, 2022  Jul1,202( fortheyear June 30,2027 Juns 30, 2022
Rupees (00 mtem——— 1] 200 WL Rupess (O] — - Rupaes {"01}

Daveloplng fiekds-Joint cperatinns

Mehar 2500% - - - B - . - - - . - - -
Teanda Allah Yer [all Gields) 22 SU% - 25311 . - - 2531 . - - - - - 25,311
b Kandra 25 00% 3577 - - . - 1677 = - . 3,577 - 3 E77 =
Mim 22 0% 148,268 - . - {T51,085) |2,BGT] . - - - - - {2,807)
Katra 20 O0% BE,343 - [ram) - - 87,542 - - - 50,624 - 50,524 P18
Tal 15.00% - 265 38K - - - 255,366 - - - - - - 255 186
Mirpurisas (all fizlds) 25 00% - 139,78 - - - 118,781 - - . . - - 139,781
Khipre {all fields) 28 00% 7420 148,387 - - - 156,287 . - - - . - 156,287
Nashpa 15.00% 48,614 565,354 - - {41,381} 572,581 . - 4 . - . 5TZ,581
Gambat Soth 25 00% 570,684 . - - - 470,684 - - - - - - 970664
Block-22 22.50% 15534 - - B - 15,58 . - . 16,5604 - 15,534 .
Zamzamg 2E00% Fal ] - - - (218,781) - - - - 146,443 {146, 443) B .
— Singhars 22 S0% . 163,010 - - - 163,010 - - - - - - 183,010
Chands 17 50% - - - . . - B - - - - . -
Khewari 22 50% 184,19 42523 {60,578} - |27 4409 108,700 - - - - - - 108, 700
Dracammissioning cast 188,646 161 - [45,212) - 124 485 - - - 7,294 - 7,294 17,201
Sub total developing ffelds 1,825,581 1,340,377 {61,88p) {45,212) (438,677} 2620 461 - - - 233 672 1146, 443} 7e2 2,643,232
Total Af 431,989 4,584 264 [160.605) (957 475} . AR 208,173 27.217,350 3,005 248 31,022 433 3354173 w213 4,126,385 13,759 289

21 Develomny fields gompnse of cosl of wells and related sxpantiture which Bre under devalopaent / under driting and, hanoca, no emarligalion thereon has bean changsd
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Cost

Amartizalion

Impairterd

2021 Camaneg amaunt
Adpustment of ha Charge ! As al As at
Paniculars Working Jul?g:m Addkione, = AtRaiments o Decommiegendoa — Transiers Jun?.;.aztom Jul? :ézo mfmen'iiar Jm;aztun .IulA‘I;l;:JZG [Rav;gsal] Jun B0, 3071 Jun 30, 2029
Irterast Cost for 1ha yaar
TR L e e — —Rupecs (000 Rupees (000} Rugeas {T00)
Producing Refds-Joint operatians

Badin HI 26 (0% 306,752 - - - - 30 792 306,752 - 306,792 - - - s

Block-23 [all fiskds) 22.50% 275,418 . (7.143) - . 268 275 220,231 (7,143 213,084 55167 - 56,167 -
Ahmadal/Parrwmali 17 50% 7T 861 1178 (425) - - 1rari4 B85, 187 3a,73ap 555,517 - - - 16279
Mirrwal 17 .60% 3.498 143 - - - 3847 1.584 10z 1,686 . - - 1,961

Mazarani 12.50% 136,655 - (54) - - 136 641 115,37 [ELH 115,313 21328 21,528 -
Sawan® 22.50% 3,350,400 2.504 {4,922) (31,929) 85,313 2411766 2,564 254 22,076 2,596,330 534,063 - 604,083 11,373
Zamzama* 26.00H 4,637,892 BT N (B4, 152} . 4 554 388 3,716,138 (22,212 3683826 BS1 543 BE43 a70.287 285
Mubierak 258.00% 1,234,127 11715 - - - 1,351 7B 208,650 G510 215,260 1025477 - 1,025 477 110,54
Nim 22 80% 112 420 90,11 - - B8 153 81 293 142,430 3464 115,908 - - - 175,350

Mehran 25.00% 59,203 - - . . 68,203 1,933 - 1,533 £7.270 . 67,270 B
G lasnda 17.50% 1,040 444 ek i) {24,343 - 590077 1812514 8124 187,371 A4 B - - - 512,79

Gambat 25 (10% 387 241 61,200 [7.102} . . 441 428 187 654 54,088 241,757 190 &82 199 682 -
Tal (all faldsy 15.00% 5747 498 362 2872} 88,575 284 844 B,274,350 3694 165 1,145,353 4,838 518 - - . 1,434 831
khipro {al fialds)* 25.00% 26574753 183,154 - (43,782} 81,220 2870345 1,965 314 264 819 2,230,132 - - 540 213
Mirpurkthas (all lields)* 25 D% 550859 256,265 [12.234) {1281 7o) A4 5470871 3,910,353 595 953 4,606,206 - - S 954 565
Chachar 25.00% 257 891 - - - - 257 881 158,306 B | 158,956 91,855 - 91,855 Ee-|
Hashpa 15.00% 3720814 147,586 (21,582 - 1,151 493 5,007,511 1.425,148 658,660 | 2,088,007 - - & 2 503 504
Sinjhara 22.50% 414,697 - - - BE.441 501,138 275036 D4.B57 | 370,553 - 5 - 130 545
Mehar” 25.00% 2,312,134 490,828 {7.324) [14.581) 537 BaS 3.318,982 |{ 960,758 233,513 | 1,184,211 - - - 2,124 571
Jhakra 2E0% 10,107 - - - - 10,107 9825 195} 15,032 - - s 7
Guddu 22 50% 154 901 8 - - - 154,210 98,005 1341% | 111,424 - - 5 43 4BS
Bolan® 17.50% 97 221 5173 (56,110} (80,419 307 924 553,788 269 BOS 102,725 372,228 - - . 191,480
Gambat Souih® 26.00% 1.053.110 240 657 {B.520} (32, 8068) 548 416 1,B08, 757 432 924 1HEE1S ! 39,539 - - 1370218
Bitriaim 22.50% 261,235 24 BAB - . - 286 081 15,335 54 825 | 0,226 - - 215 B8O
Taredn Allsh Yar (gl fiekas) 22 BE0% 267 262 - - 484 287,750 62, Sk 16,508 179012 - S E8, 738
Shat Bandar 2.50% . o - - 58,851 58,551 - 11,542 I 11,342 E - - 48 609
Knewesi 22.50% - 76,201 - . 100,524 176,726 - - - . - & 176,725
Decommissioning sast 2,741,357 512,853 - (142,252 77,849 3,209,948 1,060,235 287 683 I 5,337 923 195,352 - 195 352 1,768 673
Sub total praducing fields 37 BE2TEA 2B4ANS26 (152,931) [6B5,209) 3,240,056 43, B6A, 005 23,245 128 3872122 27217252 3,121,857 8,543 3,130,50 13,308 282

“This includes reversal of decammissioning cost amounting Re. 553,056 directly mate against related figld assats under pravisions of IFRIC 1 - Chanass in eisting decommissianing. restoration and similar liabitiss




Develoging fialds-Joint cperstions

a0zt Crst Amorlization Impairroant Camying amouni
. Asat _ i Adjusimerd cf Ag ot Asat Charga As ol As at Charge s wl B at
Particulars ‘;‘::::;f Jul, pngg  Peditiens Adiusiments De“”“g’;";"‘“"“’ Teanslers 90 2029 July, 2020 for the Ee&r Jun 30,2021 fubn, 2020 far .mrﬁew Jun30. 2021 Juni3n, 2021
| Rupees ('000)-— = e RUpA 88 (C00). Rupées FOQCY Fupess |'000}
Develeping fislds-Joint oporations
Mahar 25,00% 537,895 - - 537 B9S) - - - - - - - -
Tando Allah yar (al fiskds) 22.50% 483 - - - a9 - - - - - - -
Kandra 25.00% 3577 - - - - 3577 - - - 3577 - 3577 -
Him 22 S0t 85,347 151,085 - - {88 153) 148,258 - - . . - R 148,254
Katra 20.004% 87721 1622 - . 85,243 - - - - 50,824 50 B24 38519
Tal 15.00% 285178 - - - (285, 178) - - -1 - - . - .
Mirpurkhas (all finlds) 25 [0% 49 - - - 4d) - - . - - -
Khigro (all fiakds) 25 00%, 68,640 - - 181,220) 7,420 . - . . e 7420
Masnpa 15.60% 1,192,475 7,831 - - 1,151,682 a8 614 - - . . - s 48614
Gambal Sauth 25 6% 1,203,856 - 1z - [233,651) 570654 - - - - - 70,684
Block-22 22 50% 15,6484 - . - . 15534 - - 15,554 - 15,534 .
Zamnzama 25 00% 219,265 - (453 . . 218,781 - - . 140,823 5,551 146,443 72,538
Sinjhora 22 50 B5 441 - - - CLEER - - - - - - - .
Chanda 17.50% S30077 - - - {580,077} - - - - s -
Bolan 17 .50% 307 924 - - - {307 824) - - - B - &= - =
Khewari 25 00% 100524 154,196 B . 1100.524) 154,196 - - - = - : 154,196
Decammissoning ost 366 582 . B (15,147} (77,58 168,546 - - - 7,294 7254 182,263
Sub fatal developing flelds 5,051,564 4714 1605) (8147} (3.520.572) 1,825,954 - - 160, D04 63,668 122672 1,602,281
Total AzB142T  2,955.340 {153.535) (704456} 70,293 A5 481,583 71,245,130 3972122 27,217,252 3,261,561 TLINM 3,384,172 14 910,565

%3 Daveleping fiedds camprise of cost of wells and ralated expendidure which are under develapmentt undar drilling and, henca, o amarization ereen has baen charged.

OAFAL
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MNVESTMENT IN SUBSIDIARIES
Investment in subsidiarles - at cost

Inter State Gas Systams {Private) Limited {ISGSL)
Shares issued by ISGSL
Advance against issye of shares

Pakistan LNG Limited (PLL)

Mota

101
22.3

10.2

2022 2021
—mmeeian —~Rupeas {'000)--—-----veerre.
3,401,281 2,958,821
2,329,895 2,338,081
5,731,156 5294912
30,000 30,000
5,761,156 5,324,912

Inter State Gas System (Private) Limited {ISGSL) was incorporated on August 4, 1996 in Pakistan undsr the repealed
Companies Ordinance, 1984 {repealed by Companigs Act, 2017) as a private limited Company. The Company has a
shareholding of 100% with 340,126,105 (2021:100% with 285,882,090) equity shares of Rs 10 each held in ISGSL

Significant projects being pursued by the ISGSL include:

- Pakistan Stream Gas Pipeline (PSGP) Project (formerly known as North South Gas Pipeline)

- Turkmenistan - Afghanistan - Pakistan - india (TAPI} Gas Pipeline;
- Iran Pakistan (IF) Gas Pipeline Project;

- Strategic Underground Gas Storage {SUGS) Project; and

- Bouth North Gas Pipeline {BNGP) Project,

Pakistan LNG Limited {PLL} was incorporated in Pakistan as a public company on December 11, 2015 under the

Companies Ordinance, 1984 (repealed by the Companies Act, 2017)

1,500,003 (2021:100% with 1.500,003) equity shares of Rs.10 each held in PLL.

.The Company has a sharehclding of 100% with

Pakistan LNG Terminals Limited (PLTL) was merged into PLL with PLL being the surviving entity with effect from January 1,

2021,

The summarised financial information for ISGSL & PLL is given below. The information disclosed reflects the amounts
preésented in the unaudited financial statements for the period ended June 30, 2022

2022 2021
Inter State Gas -
Systems (Privale) t?;:f;:n{;rg Total Total
Limited (ISGSL)
Rupees ('000}
Summarised statement of financial position
Current assets 545,790 173,637,115 174,182 908 93,888,787
Non- current assets 3,735,543 124,532 722 128,268,265 130,103,585
Current liabilities (481,598} (168664,717) (188,156 315) {80,508,230)
Non-current liabilities (40.672) (141,393,736) {141,434 408) {119,987 880}
Net assels 3,749,083 {11,888,612) {8,139,549) 13,006,163
Recongiliation to carrying ameunts:
Opeaning net assets 3358,759 0 B48,035 13,206,794 2,140,115
Advance against issue of shares {6,196) - {8,106) 1,921 764
I8sue of Share Capital 447 440 - 442 440 -
Changes in reserves 284 460 - 284,400 408,116
Fair value adjustment on collateral arrangement
with parent company - - (337,383)
Remeasurement loss on employees' retirement
benefits - net of tax {23,752 - [23.752) {21,996)
Profit / {Loss) for the year / period (306,678)  (21,736,647) {22,043 325) 3,984 546
Ciosing not agsets 3,749,063 (11.888812) {8.139,5649) 13,095,163
Company's percentage shareholding
in the subsidiary 100% 100%
Company's share in net assets at cost 3,749,083 {11,888,612 (8,139,543) 13,085,163
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2022 2021

Inter State Gas .
Bystems (Private) i aperiCHC Total Total

Limited gisGsLy  Wmited (PLL)

Rupees ('000)----
Summarised statements of comprehensive Income
Gross profit s 23,282,485 23,262 485 9,565,656
Profit f {Loss) for the year (496,231}  ({27,800,108) {28,395,339) 13,008,502
Tax for the year 188,553 6,163,461 8,353,014 {4,024 856)
Othar cormnprehensive income / {lass} 260,738 “ 260,738 {90,178}
Total comprehansive loss (45,9400  (21,736.647) {21,782,687) 8,894,388

During the year ended June 30, 2022, management assessed the investment in ISGSL for impairment in respect of
triggering events as specified by IAS 36 applicable o the non-current assets. An impairment test has been carried out Dy
the management to determine the recoverable amount of non-current assets of ISGSL due to changes impacling the
projects being pursued by ISGSL on account of non-availability of necessary financing, implementation delays and
international sancticns on Iran leading to significant project delays efc.

For the purposse of determining the recoverable amount, the management performed impairment assessment during the
year ended June 30, 2022 using the value-in-use (VIU) model. The project's VIU based on management cash flow forecasts
is determined to be higher than the carrying amount. Based on tha above, management has concluded that there is no need
lo recognise an impairment loss in the financial statemants.

2022 2021
Mote -—r—-cmevsuee. Rupees ("000)-—-—mmmmeemmme
LONG TERM INVESTMENT IN ASSOCIATE
Unguoted Company
Pakistan International Oil Limited {PIOL) -
Foreign Qperation
Cost of invastment (2,500,000 (2021: Nil} fully
paid ordinary shares of USD 10 each) 111 4,206,600 .
Share of loss for the year 11.4 {2,513,552) -
Effect of translation of investmsnt 474,041 =
{2,039,511) -
2,165,989 -

During the year, the Company, along with other cansortium members i.e. Mari Petroleum Company Limited (MPCL},
Pakistan Petroleum Limited (PPL) and Oil and Gas Development Company Limited {OGDCL) has been awarded Offshore
Block 5 in Abu Dhabi's second competitive exploration block bid round. The consortium companies have establishad an
independent entity named Pakistan International Cil Limited (PIOL). PIOL is engaged in the business of extraction of oil and
natural gas and is registered as a limited liability company in the Emirate of Abu Ohabi and incorporated in Abu Dhabi
Global Market on July 15, 2021, with each consartium company having a 25% equily stake in PIOL. The exploration
concession agreement between PIOL and Abu Dhabi National Qil Campany {ADNQGC) was signed on August 31, 2021
Following the award of Offshore Black- 5, the Company has subscribed 2.5 million ordinary shares of PIOL, by paying USD
25 million (Rs 4,205 million}. Subsequent to the year end, the Company subscribed to a further 1 million ordinary shares of
FPIOL, by paying further USD 10 million {Rs 2,226 million},

The investment in PIOL has been ¢lassified as an investment in associate as per the requirements of International
Accounting Standard 1AS-28, “Investment in Assaciates and Joint Venturas",

Share of loss for the year mainly represents 30 seismic cost incurred by PIOL,

SOAALL.
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The share of loss of PIOL and the below summarized financial information is based on the audited financial stataments of the
associate for the period from inception to December 31, 2021, adjusted for transactions and events up to June 30, 2022 basad

on management accounts.

Summarized staternent of financlal position
Cument

Non-current assets

Current

Net asseals

Cempany’s percentage sharsholding in the associate
Campany's share in carrying value of net assets

Summarized statemant of comprehensive income
Total comprehensive loss for

2022
Rupees ("000}

2,968,078
6,310,510

(614,634)
8,663,954

25%
2,165,988

{10,054,208)

Share of comprehensive loss (2,613,662}
LONG TERM LOAN TO SUBSIDIARIES AND STAFF
2022 2021
Note  oirrent P Tatal Current  Non - Current Total
Current
----------------- Rupees ('000} Rupees {'000)---——--—-—--—-

Loan to subsidiaries
Principal
Pakistan LNG Limited (PLL} 12,1 1,240,291 2,486,347 3,706,638 1,000,000 3,946 929 4,848 929
Inter Siate Gas Systems 12.2 270,302 - 270,302 270,302 - 270,202
{Privale) Limited (ISGSL)
Accrued Interest
Pakistan LNG Limited {PLL) 304,462 1,237,523 1,541,985 250,000 1,137,852 1,387,892
Inter State Gas Systems 284,808 - a4.808 70873 - 70,873
(Privata) Limited {ISGSL)
Loan to staff 12.3 10,715 20,368 31,083 8,551 14,728 24 279

1,410,578 3,724,238 5,634 818 1,600,726 5 099 549 8,700,275

2022 2021
Note o] Rupees ('000)--- +vm- -

Balance at baginhing of the year 4,845,929 5,316,347
Transferred from Pakistan LNG Tarminals Limited (PLTL} 12.1.1 128,873
Repayment by PLL during the year {1,240,291) {490,291)
Balance at end of tha yaar 3,706,638 4,945,939

Effective from January 1, 2021, Pakistan LNG Terminals Limited {PLTL} was merged into PLL, with PLL being the sunviving
entity. Conseguently, the |oan amount was transfarrad from PLTL to PLL.
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The Company had provided advances to PLL for operational activities related to LNG imports and also to fulfill the gugrantees
set forth in the LNG import contracts. On November 22, 2017, the Company agresd to convert the entire amount of advances
into an interest-bearing loan, as agreed upon in the term sheet signed by both parties. On October 19, 2018, both parties
renegotiated the loan repayment schedule in a term sheet amendment, with the loan now payable 1o the Company over a
period of three years until March 2021. The rate of interest on the loan was set to six (08) months KIBOR plus 2% as of the
dats of the transaction.

The loan rapayment timeline has been adjusted once more and PLL is paying Rs. 200 million towards the principal and Rs. 50
million towards the interest every two months. The repayment of the loan will be constantly monitored by the board.

2022 2021
Note  —--eeeeee- Rupees ("000)-----+----—-
Balance at beginning of the vear 270,302 1,472,802
Disbursed to ISGSL during the year 1221 - 497,500
Repayment by ISGSL during the year 1222 - (1,300,000}
Balance at end of the year 270,302 270,302

This represenis amaount paid to ISGSL, the Company and the ISGSL signed a loan agreement on August 9, 2018 as per the
directive of the ECC dated December 15, 2016, wharein ECC directed the Company ta fund all expenditure on the
Government mandated projects being undertakan by the ISGSI. The lzan carried an interest rate of annual KIBOR + 0.1%
effective from the date of disbursement. Loan aleng with interest was repayable in a single bullet payment due on December
14, 2020.

The facility was entered into in line with ECC decision, however, as a secondary arrangement secured by the way of lien,
charge, first and preferred rightfinterest on any of the assets/propsrties whether movabla or immovable, rights, interests, gross
revenues, profits, receivables and properties whether existing or acquired in future wherein the 15GSL has any ownership,
right or interest. The ISGSL can not dispese of any of the properties and assets as mentioned hersinabove, except with the
prior written consent of the Company.

Pursuant to the decision of ECC of the Federal Cabinet in its maeting held or December 24, 2020, repayment of Company's
loan is approved through Gas Infrastructure Development Cess (GIDC) funds till the date of actual payment / setlement by the
Finance Divisicn. Accordingly, upon retease of GIDC funds by Finance Division, the repayment of loan amounting Rs. 1,680
miltion {Principal arount Rs. 1,300 million and interest accrued Rs. 360 million) was made to the Company during the year
ended June 35, 2021, As at June 30, 2022 remaining loan is Rs. 270 million (2021; 270 million). The management expects that
amount will be setlled in next financial year.

2022 2021
mmmrman --Rupees {'000}m-mmm-
Balance at beginning of the year 24,280 9,105
Loan disbursed during the year 18,737 24 028
Repayment received during the yaar (11,934} {8,851)
Balance at end of the year 31,083 24,280

This includes loan to managing director / chiaf executive officer amounting to Rs. 2,677,471, The loan was granted in
accardance with the Company’s service rules, is deductible against salary and carries no interest.

2022 2021
---------- Rupees ('000)------------
Balance at beginning of the year 5,598 -
Loan disbursed during the year = 7,789
Repayment received during the year {2,921) {2,181)
Balance at end of the year 2877 5,508

FTAL-
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2022 2021

Note ~evcemcee—e- Rupaes ['000)---------—-—
STORES, SPARES AND LOOSE TOOLS - SHARE IN
JOINT OPERATIONS" INVENTORY
Store, spares and loose tools 4,628,464 4 584 917
Impairment for slew moving and obsolete stores, spares
and |eose iools 131 {495,707) (485,707)

4,132,757 4,089,210

Movement of provision for slow moving, obsolete
and in transit stores
Balance at beginning of the year 495 707 495,707
Impairment (reversal) f charge for the year - -
Balance at end of the year 495,707 495,707

Stores and spares include items which may result in fixed capital expenditure but are not yet distinguishable.

2022 2021
Note ammrerammsraas Rupees ("000)---—----emmm--.
ACCRUED INTEREST RECEIVABLE
Accrued interest receivable on bank deposits a5 160,036 57,978

This reprasents interest accrued on bank deposits carrving mark-up at the rate ranging between 11.50% and 13.00%
p.a(2021: 5.50% and 6.70% p.a).

2022 2021
Note ~  ——— Rupees ('000}-~----mmmm--
TRADE DEBTS
Unsecured - considered good 141,458,170 108,955,084
Unsecured - considered doubtful 539,704 .
141,997 874 108,955 084
Provision for doubtful debts 15.3 {539,704) .

141,458,170 108,955 084

Trade debts include overdue amount of Rs. 119,271 million (2021: Rs. 54,218 million} on account of Inter-corporate
circular debt, receivabie from oil refineries and gas companies out of which Rs. 80,718 million (2021: Rs. 62,025
million} and Rs. 37,046 millien (2021, Rs. 30,004 million} is mainly overdue from related parties, Sui Southern Gas
Company Limited and Sui Norther Gas Pipeline Limited respectively. The management of Companry considers this
amount to be fully recoverable because Government of Pakistan has been assuming the responsibility to settle the Inter-
Corporate circular debt in the energy sector. The Government of Pakistan (GoP) is committed, hence continuously
pursuing for satisfactory settlement of Inter-corporate circular debt issue, however, the progress is slower than
expected resulting in accumulation of Company's trade debts. The Gompany recognizes interest / surcharge, if any, on
delayed payments from customers only to the extent that it is highly probable that a significant reversal in the amount of
income recognized will not cccur when the uncertainty associated with the interest / surcharge is subsequently
resolved, which is when the interest / surcharge on delayed payments is received by the Company. As disclosed in note
3.3 to these financial statements, SECP has deferred the applicability of ECL. model til December 31, 2024 on financial
assets due directly / ultimately from GoP in consequence of the circular debt.

Ko 157 1/)
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15.2  Total amount due from related parties as on June 30, 2022 is Rs 130,502 million (2021; Rs 102,646 million) and
maximum amount due at the end of any month during the year was Rs 130,502 million {2021: Rs 102,645 million}. For
party wise details refer note 41.

2022 2021
Note —em—veeeed Rupees ('000)---—---—m-am
15.3  Movament in provision for doubtful debts
Balance at beginning of the year - -
Provigion during the year 539,704 S
Reversal of provision - -
Balance at end of the year 539,704 -
16 LOANS, ADVANCES AND OTHER RECEIVABLES
Securad
Advances against salary to staff 9,813 9.563
Unsecured and considered good
Advances to suppliers 806 800
Payment of securily services an behaif of subsigiaries 301 635
Cther receivables 1,631 -
12,641 10,798
17 TRADE DEPQSITS AND SHORT TERM PREPAYMENTS
Security depasits “ 55
Short term prepayments
Software maintenance fee 4,128 3,674
Insurance 7,159 8,675
11,287 10,350
11,287 10,405
18 DEPOSIT WITH THE GOVERNMENT OF PAKISTAN
FOR EQUITY STAKE IN REKQ DIQ PROJECT
Deposit for equity stake in Reko Dig project 158.1 34,301,231 -

181 On March 17, 2022 the Government of Pakistan (GoP), through the Federal Cabinet, ratified the decision of the
Economic Coordination Committee (the Decision) which approved inter alia issuance of directions to the Campany,
Pakistan Petroleum Limited (PPL) and Qil and Gas Development Company Limited (OGDCL} {collectively the SOEs) to
participate in reconstitution of a joint mining project at Reke Dig (the Project). As part of the settlement arrangement,
Barrick Gold Corporation (Barrick) will be retaining 50% shareholding in Tethyan Copper Company Pakistan (Pvt)
Limited ({TCCP) along with cperatorship, whereas the other sharehalder, Antofagasta PLC will exit TCCP upon receipt
of USD 900 millicn and subject to other conditions precedent. TCCP will be renamed to Reko Gig Mining Company
{Private) Limited (RDML) as a part of these developments.
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Pursuant to the Decision, each SOE was also directed to pay USD 187.5 milion (collectively USD 562.5 million) intg an
escrow account maintained by the Hongkong Shanghai Banking Carporation. and jointly operated by the GoP and
Antofagasta as entry fee which would be utilized towards acquisition of 8.33% interest of each SOE in TCCP. The entry
fee attributable to the Government of Balochistan {GoB) would be funded by the GaP amounting to USD 337.58 mfllion.
On the basis of the Dacision, the Board of Directors of the Company resoived to enter into a non-binding framework
agreement with the GoP, the GoB, PPL, OGDCL and Barrick, which sets out, inter alia, the ownership / transaction
structure, rights, obligations and common objectives of the parties towards facilitating the implementation of the Project
(Framework Agreement). In terms of the Framewark Agreement, several conditions are raquired to be satisfied before
binding arrangements are effective including receipt of administrative and regulatory approvals, execution of definitive
agreements, deposit of USD 900 million in a designated escrow account, stabilization of the fiscal regime and
legisiative and judicial validation amongst others.

If the conditions were not satisfied by June 30, 2022, interest at the rate of US Prime plus 2% {Interest Amount) would
ke payable to Antofagasta. If the conditions were not salisfied latest by December 15, 2022, the terms of seftlement /
resolution will be cancelled and terminated and the entry fee along with the Interest amount will be refunded to the
respective 80Es / GoP to their USD bank accounts. Only upon satisfaction of the stated conditions in the Framework
Agreement, the antry fee along with the Interest amount, if any, will be released to Antofagasta against acquisition of
correspending equity interest by the SOEs and GoB, thereby settling the historical disputes relating te Reko Dig project.

Subsequent to the Decision and based on written advice from the Finance Division dated March 29, 2022 and approval
of the board of directors, the Company deposited its corresponding share of the entry fee amounting to USD 187.5
million (Rs 34,301 million} in an escrow account maintained by the Hongkong Shanghai Banking Corporation, and
jointly operated by the GoP and Antofagasta. Further, the Company agreed to fund its corresponding share of the
Interest amount as and when accrued and payable. The amount of USD 187.5 millien {Rs 34,301 million) represents
deposit with the GoP for the acquisition of equity stake in the Reko Diq project.

Since the conditions set cut in the Framework Agreement were unable to be satisfied by June 30, 2022, an Interest
equivalent to US Prime plus 2% was applicable on the Company's deposit of USD 187.5 million with the GoP, as
mentioned above,

Subsequently, on December 9, 2022, the apex court declared the agreement signed with the Canadian campany
Barrick Gold Corporation for the development of the Reko Dig mine in Balochistan as "legai”. On December 12, 2022,
the upper house of parliament approved the Fareign Investment (Promation and Protection) Bill, 2022 to promote and
protect foreign investment in relation to the Reko Dig project.

As a result of these developments, the Company has invested in the project company i.e, RDML through Pakistan
Minerals {Private) Limited (PMPL), an entity incorporated in Pakistan with initial subscribed share capital of 12,000
shares (4000 shares of each SOE) with par value of Rs 10 each in accordance with the agreements for collective
representation of the company and other SOEs. RDML is engaged in the mineral exploration activities in Pakistan.
PMPL holds an indirect working interest of 25% (8.33% of each SQE) in the RDML through offshore holding cormpanies
namely Reke Dig Holdings Limited and Reko Dig investments Limited (herein after referred ta as "Holdcos"). RDML is
incorporated in Pakistan and Holdeos are incorporated in Bailiwick of Jersey. The Company 's equity interest in PMPL
is 33.33% with an effective interest of 8.33% in RDML. The SOEs have the right to have representation on the Boards
of Holdcos and ROML through PMPL.

2022 2021
-------------- Rupees {"000)=-—m---mnenenes
RECEIVABLE FROM THE GOVERNMENT OF PAKISTAN (GoP)
Receivable from the Government of Pakistan {GoP) 63,966 965 =

This represents amount paid by the Company in connection with the Reko Dig Project on behalf of the Govemment of
Balochistan (GoB) upon instructions of the Federal Government. The amount is inclusive of the pfincipal amount and all

related expenses i.e. transaction cost, out of pocket expense incurred by the company and accrued interest on the
principal ameunt.

0AAY.
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In order to fulfil} the cornmitment of the Government of Pakistan {GoP) towards the Government of Balochistan {GoB)
for partially acquiring equity stake in the reconstituted Reko-Dig Project, the GoP, through the Company, arranged a
term finance facility up to Rs. 65,000 million from the National Bank of Pakistan (NBP), against a GoF guarantee. As at
year end, the amount of Rs 81,742 million equivalent to USD 337.5 million has been availed against this facility.

The loan was initially drawn for a period of nine months, with interest calculated at 8-menth Karachi Interbank Offered
Rate (KIBOR) + 0.50% effective from the date of dishursement i.e. March 31, 2022, and was repayable directly by the
GoP in a single bullet installiment. Subsequent to the year-end, the loan facility has been renewed, with the approval of
Economic Coordination Committee (ECC) of the Federal Cabinel, for a tenor of seven years (inclusive of a two-year
grace period) with effect from December 31, 2022 and carries an interest rate of §-month KIBOR + 0.20%. The
restructuring will result in the apportionment of the principal amount of the borrowing from NBP and related receivable
from GoP as well as related finance cost / income into current and non-current assets and liabilities. As per the revised
terms of the agreement, the loan is repayable in equal semi annual installiments of principal amount starting from June
30, 2025. As at June 30, 2023, interest accrued amounts to Rs 5,262 million as per revised agreement.

2022 2021
Note =  ——ee Rupees {'000}-—---—-----.
SHORT TERM INVESTMENTS
Investment held at amortized cost
Term depasit receipts 201 24,000,000 39,000,000
Interest accrued 53,955 621,954
24,053,955 39,621,954

Investment in term deposit receipts placed with the commercial banks. The breakup is as under:

2022 2021
Credit rating Rating agency L s p— Rupees {'000)---—---m-ee-—.
investments maturing withln three months
A-1+ VIS - 27,000,000
A-14+ FACRA 14.15% 10,000,000 -
A1+ FACRA 15.25% 4,000,000 -
Interest accrued 26,818 33,303
14,026,818 27.033,303
2022 2021
Credit rating Rating agency Rats Note B et Rupees ("000}---—-s-rrrscen
Investments maturing after three months
A-1+ PACRA . 2,000,000
A-1+ PACRA - 6,000,000
A-1+ VIS 14.15% 10,000,000 -
Interest accruad 27,137 418,514
10,027,137 8,418,514
Investments marked under lien
A-1+ PACRA 20.2 - 4,000,000
Interest accrued : 170,137
- 4. 170,137
Total investments 24,053 955 39,621,954

A7
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The Cempany had a lien against its investments for the guarantee issued by PLL in faver of LNG suppliers amounting
to USD 18.2 million {2021: USD 18.2 million). During the year, the said lien against the Company's investments was
released.

2022 2021
i (v (T — Rupees {"Q00)s=msrrrazannr-ar
CASH AND BANK BALANCES
Cash:
- In hand 54 150
- At banks - savings accounts 21.1 7,180,549 4,500,981
7,180,803 8,501,131

These carry mark-up at the rate ranging between 6.25% and 13.00% p.a (2021: 5.50% and 6.70% p.a).

2022 2021
Note e Rupees ("000}scmamrmmceums
Cash and cash equivalents
Term deposit receipts 201 14,026,818 27,033,303
Cash and bank balances 21 7,180,603 9,501,131
Accrued interest with up-to 3 manths maturity 14 160,036 57,978
21,367,457 36,592 412
SHARE CAPITAL
Authorized share capital
2022 2021 2022 2021
------------ Number of sharegess—-—----. mmmmmeemeenuns R pERS {000)--m e
Ordinary shares of Rs 10 each
4,500,000.000 4,500,000,000 45,000,000 45,000,000
Issued, subscribed and paid up capital
2022 2021 2022 2021
{(Number of shares}
Ordinary shares of Rs. 10 each, fully paid
2,132,766,107 2,088,512,092_in cash 21,327,561 20,885,121
2.103,260,097 2,088,512,092 Weighted average shares
The movement in issued, subscribed and paid up capital is as follows:
2022 2021 2022 2021
Number of shares o Rupees {"000}---------—--—-
At July 1 2088 512,002  2,088,512082 20,885,121 20,885,121
Ordinary shares of Rs 10 each paid in
cash issued during the year 44,244,015 - 442 440 -
At Jjune 30 2,132,756,10Y  2,088,512,052 21,327,561 20,885,121
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Government of Pakistan holds 100% shares. Of these shares, two nominee directors hold one qualification share,
each.

Economic Coordination Committee (ECC) of the Federal Cabinet, in its decision on Case Mo ECC-145/25/2015
dated December 15, 2014, in respect of the *Funding of Expenditure of Inter State Gas Systerns Private Limited”,
approved that the Company is to fund all project activities of ISGSL as a 100% subsidiary company and all
Government investments (e.g. from GIDC) in projects being undertaken by ISGSL shall be routed through the
Company. Pursuant to the foregoing, the Finance Division vide its Office Memorandum No. F. 4(2) CF-V2007 dated
October 24, 2017 instructed ISGSL to issue shares ta the Company being its Parent Company and going forward
the Company is required issue the shares in the name of the President of Pakistan through Secretary M/o Energy
{Petroleum Division) in refation to the Government's investrment in ISGSL's projects. Accordingly the increase in
share capital of the Company represents Government's investment In |SGSL being routed through the Company.

ECC of the Federal Cabinet in its meeting held an December 24, 2020 approved Company's funding from Gas
Infrastructure Development Cess {GIDC) as an equity fram Government of Pakistan (GoP) for Pak stream gas
pipeling (PSGP) Project of Rs, 14,355,000,000 (utilized Rs. 9,650,000), loan repayment to the Company smounting
Rs. 1,720,000.000 (released and repaid Rs. 1,660,000,000) and Rs. 224,000,000 for ISGSL's operational
expenditures.

2022 2021
17 (- —— Rupees {"000)---rwrmeenen -
RESERVES
Revenue reserves
General reserve 232 2,284,625 2,284 B26
Fair value adjustment on loan to subsidiary 23.7 S 1,464,191
Foreign currency translation regserve 23.8 383,973 :
2,668,599 3,748,817
Capital reserves
Committed outlay reserve 233 20,946,247 20,946,247
Asset insurance reserve 23.4 3,000,000 3,000,000
Assets acquisition reserve 2315 5,000,000 5,000,000
LNG project reserve 236 25,000,000 25,000,000
53,946,247 53 946 247
— 56,614,846 57,695,064

The Company has appropriated and created these reserves in accordance with the principles of prudence.

The general reserve is created to cater for contingencies related ta relevant interest carried cost based on current
exploration commitments and other unforeseen events. Accordingly, this reserve is available for distribution to
shareholders.

The committed outlay reserve is created for future requirements based on expected cash outlay for capital
commitments, decommissioning obligations and liabikity against relevant interest carried cost. Accordingly, this
reserve is not available for distribution to shareholders.

The asset insurance rgserve has been created for seif insurance of investments in assets like wells, plants,
pipelines, vehicles and furniture & fixture of those jeint operations where insurance policy has not been taken out by
the Operator. Accordingly, this reserve is net available for distribution to shareholders,

in view of the Company's business expansion, it is intended to acquire sizable production reserves for which a
Separate asset acquisition reserve has been established. The Company plans ta continue to build up this reserve in
future years. Accordingly, this reserve is not available for distribution to shareholders.
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This reserve is created to cater funding / financial support for LNG Projects being undertaken by incorporated
subsidiary Pakistan LNG Limited {PLL} . This reserve is not available for distribution to shareholders.

This reserve was created to represent the interest charged over and above of market rate to PLL, on account of lien
created on the term depasit recelpt of GHPL for issuing guarantee on behalf of PLL. Consequently, this has heen
routed through unappropriated profits upon the release of the lien during the year.

Thig represents the translation reserve net of related tax of the retranslation of the investment in the associated
company.

2022 2021
Note  —-—ee—er Rupees {"000)-------==nr-u-
LONG TERM LIABILITY
Due ta the joint aperators 241 5,036,503 4,331,436
Current portion shewn under current liabilities {1,599,557) {819,632)
3,436,946 3.511.804

This represents lang term liability on account of the Company's carried interest of 5% in the exploration expenditure
aof various joint opéerations. This expenditure is incurred by the joint operaticn partners up to the date of commercial
discovery, and the amount will be adjusted in five equal annual installments, against the Company's share of
commercial preduction in each respective joint eperation,

2022 2021

Note  -—eemeeee Rupees ('000}-----—-mmo-
Balance at beginning of the year 4,331,436 4,883,115
Unwinding of long term liability 9,829 22,930
Fayments net off exchange loss (108,003) {748 B95)
Additions { adjustments during the year 214,317 851,516
Discounting of long term liability a5 {646,289) {177.617)
Unrealized exchange Loss K{gain) on revaluation 1,236,213 (600,213)

242 5,036,503 4 331 436

Long term liability in US Dollars have been discounted at a rate of 3.32% (2021: 0.24%).

2022 2021

Note oo Rupess {"000)-—--—---—---
DEFERRED TAXATION
Deferred taxation 251 2,579.898 5,870,866
Movement in the deferred tax liability:
Balance at beginning of the year 5,870,866 5,232,141
Credited to the statement of profit or loss 40 (3,363,449) 644,408
Credited to statement of other comprehensive income 72,481 {5,683}

%W = 2BTABIR 5. 870,866
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Deferred tax comprises of the following:
Taxable temporary difference arising in respect of.

Accelerated depreciation on properly, plant and equipment
Development and production expenditure

Provision for decommissioning cost

Unwinding of long term liability (carried interest)

Effects of translation of investment in a foreign associate

Deductible temporary difference arising in respect of:

Impairment of stores, spares and loose tools
Unrealized exchange gain f {loss)

Expenditure of exploration and prospacting
Provision for windfall levy on oil f condensate
Remeasurement of employees' retirement benefits
Net impairment loss on financial assets

Share of loss from associate

Deferred tax has been calculated at the current effective tax rate of 44% (2021: 40%).

PROVISION FOR DECOMMISSIONING COST

Pravision for decommissioning cost

Provizion for dacommissioning cost

Balance at bheginning of the year

Provision / {reversal) made during the year

Revisions due to change in estimates

Revaluation exchange loss / {gain}

Unwinding of discourt on provision for decommigsioning cost

Provision made during the year is distributed as under

Share in Jaint Operations' fixed assets
Share in Joint Operations' fixed assets - CWIP
Development and production assets

Adjustment made during the year is distributed as under

Share in Joint operations’ fixed assets

Share in Joint Qperations’ fixed assets - CWIF
Exploration and evaluation assets
Development and produclion assets
Operating expenses

Significant financial assumptions used were as follows:

Discount rate par annum
inflation rate per annum

»
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2022 2021
------------- --Rupeas ('000)--=----m-mm-mmx
6,301,880 5,927,201
4,508,753 4 616,644
131,817 513,571
294,443 13,002
90,068 -
11,326,961 11,070,508
{218,111) {198,283)
(1,083,672} {873,817
{1,689,405) {1,558, 674)
(5,017,560) (2,563,284}
{23,270} {5,683)
(237,470) -
{477 575 -
(8,747,063) {5.199,641)
2,579,898 5 870,868
8,240,916 7,343 545
7.343,545 8,263,965
562,331 1,000,868
{1,928,151) (1,604,504}
1,868,326 {533,148)
394,365 216 362
2,240,916 7.343,545
95,424 87,526
23,669 388
441,738 612,953
562,81 4,000,868
{543,078} (720641)
{18,805} (2,934}
(21,571) (2,306)
{897,475) {704,458)
{347,222} {174,167}
(1,928,151} {1,604,505)
9.0% ~ 9.6% 4,1% ~ 2.5%
£00% 2.75%
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2022 2021

Note —-eecmesememeaed] Rupees {"000}-----weenmmeame
DEFERRED EMPLOYEE BENEFITS
Accumulating compensated absences 271 64,797 39,183

64,797 39,183

Accumulating compensated absences
Present value of defined benefit obligation at beginning of 39,183 38322
Charge for the period - net 41,999 12,411
Payments made during the period (16,385} (12,550)
Presant value of defined benefit obligation at end of the year 64,797 39,183
Principle actuarial assumptions: ~ semseesseeoeeee Percentagesssser--—----eaem
Valuation discount rate (%} 13.50% 10.25%
Salary increase rate (%) 12.50% 5.25%
Sensitivityanalysls e Rupees ('000)=rr--mmmrmnnn -
Defined Benefit Chligation 64,797 39,183
1% ingrease in discount rate 58,368 35,190
1% decrease in discount rate 72,202 43,790
1% increase in salary rate 72,147 43758
1% decrease in salary rate 58,310 35,151

Description of risks to the Company
The compensated absences plans expose the Company 10 the following risks:

Discount rate risk - The risk of changes in discount rate, since disceunt rate is based on corporate ! government
bonds, any decrease in bend yields will increase plan liabilities.

Salary increase [ inflation risk - The risk that the actual salary increase are higher than the expected salary
increase, where benefits are linked with final salary at the time of cessation of service, is likely to have an impact on
liahility.

Mortality risk - The risk that the actual mortality experience is lighter than that of expected i.e. the actual life
expectancy is longer than assumed.

Withdrawal risk - The risk of actual withdrawals experience may different from that assumed in the calculation.

2022 2021

-------------- —Rupees {"000)-—-=rrmmmmmmmm
SHORT TERM BORROWING

Short Term Borrowing 281 63,966,965 -

This amount represents a term finance facility arranged by the Company through the Government of Pakistan
{GoP) of an amount up to Rs. 65,0600 million from the Natienal Bank of Pakistan (NBP), against a GoP guarantee in
order to fulfill the commitment of the (GoP) towards the Government of Balochistan (GoB) for partially acquiring
equity stake in the reconstituted Reko-Dig Praject. As at year end, the amount of Rs 61,742 million equivalent to
USD 337.5 million has been availed against this facility upon instructions of the Federal Government. The amount is
inclusive of the principal amount and all related expenses i.e. fransaction cost, out of pocket expense incurred by
the company and accrued interest on the principal amount.

AT



28.2

29

291

29.2

29.3

-472-

The loan was initially drawn for a pericd of nine months, with interest calculated at 9-month Karachi Interbank
Offered Rate {KIBOR) + 0.50% effective from the date of disbursement i.e. March 31, 2022, and was repayable
directly by the GoP in a single bullet instalment. Subsequent to the year-end, the loan facility has been renewed,
with the approval of Economic Coordination Committee (ECC) of the Federal Cabinet, for a tenor of seven years
{inclusive of a two-year grace periad) with effect from December 31, 2022 and carries an interest rate of &-month
KIBOR + 0.20%. The restructuring will result in the apportionment of the principal amount of the borrowing from
NBP and related receivable from GoP as well as refated finance cost / income inte current and non-current assets
and liabilities. As per the revised terms of the agreement, the loan is repayable in equal semi annual instaliments of
principal amount starling from June 30, 2025, As at June 30, 2023, interest accrued amounts to Rs 5,262 million as

per revised agreement.

2022 2021
Note —mmme Rupees {"000)------—--n-veran

TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES
Creditors due to joint operations 3,634,748 3,414,548
Accrued liabilities 37,039 53,234
Current account with Subsidiary - [SGSL 28.1 192,198 389
Current account with Subsidiary - PLL 292 1,307,074 308,572
Payable to gratuity fund 29.3 68,539 41,286
Payable to provident fund 3,010 2877
Sales tax payable 807,936 344,796
Other payables 5,066 4,871
Levies payable 11,359 599
Royaity payable 1,317,878 919,908
Provision for windfall levy on oilfcondensate 11,403,545 6,408,209

14,788,392 11,497,087

This amount includes Rs. 191,223 being net of the advance tax paid by the Company on behalf of ISGSL and the
amount recoverable from the Federal Board of Revenue (FBR) on behalf of ISGSL under group taxation.

This amount is net of the advance tax paid by the Company on behalf of PLL and the amount recoverable from the

Federal Board of Revenue (FBR} on behalf of PLL under group taxation.

2022 2021

Note  -———ememeeee Rupees {000} rr--mmmnmaeemmen
Gratuity fund
The amount recognized in tha statement of financial position is as follows:
Present value of defined benefit abligation 224,062 163,258
Fair value of plan assets {165,523} (121,972)
MNet liability at end of the year 68,539 41,286
The movement in the present value of defined banefit obligation is as follows:
Present value of defined benefit obligation at beginning of the year 163,258 120,663
Current service cost 29,443 26,706
Interest cost 16,581 11,125
Benefits paid (23,886) (1.693)
Remeasurament of defined benefit abligation 38,666 6,457
Present value of defined benefit obligation at end of the year 224,062 163,258
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The movament in the fair value of plan assets is as follows:

Fair value of plan assets at beginning of the year 121,972 95,624
Contributions 41,286 25,039
Payment by employar on behalf of plan 2,991 785
Expected return on plan assets 14,465 9,967
Benefits paid {23,886) {1.693)
Remeasurement of plan assets {1,305} {7.749)
Fair value of plan assets at end of the year 155 523 121,872

The movement in assat / (liability) recognized in the statement
of financlal position Is as follows:

Liability at beginning of the year 41,286 25,039

Expense for the year 31,559 27,864

Remeasurement loss recognized in other comprehensive income

during the year 39,971 14,207

FPayments to the fund during the year (44,277} {25.824)

Liability at end of the year 68,519 41,286

Datail of plan assets

Cash at bank 16,721 401

Temn deposits 138,802 121,571
156,523 121,972

Funds covered were invested within limits specified by regulations governing investment of approved retirement
funds in Pakistan. The gratuity plan is a defined benefit final salary plan invested through approved trust fund. The
fund is governed under Trusts Act, 1882, Trust Deed and Rules of Fund, Companies Act, 2017, The Income Tax
Ordinance, 2001 and the Income Tax Rules, 2002, The trustees of the fund are responsible to plan administration
and investment. The Company appaints the trustees. All trustees are employees of the Company.

2022 2021
------------- Rupees {"000)-—r------nmm-=--
Amounts recognized in statement of profit and loss:
Current service cost 29,443 26,706
Met interest cost 2,116 1,158
31,559 27,864
Amounts recognlzed In statement of other comprehensive income:
Remeasurement lpss recognized on dafined benefit abligation 38,666 8 457
Remeasurement loss recognized on plan assets 1,305 7,748
39,971 14,207
The remeasurement loss arising from:
Experience Adjustments 39,971 14,207
Financial Assumptions - -
39,971 14,207
Principle actuarial assumptions:
Valuation discount rate (%) 13.50% 10.25%
Salary increase rate (%) 12.50% 8.25%

Mortality Rates Adjusted SLIC 2001-2005
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--------------- Rupees {'000)-==e-mmmmn-mmmme
Sensitivity Analysis
Defined Benefit Obligation 224,062 153,258
1% increase in discount rate 201,872 147,022
1% degrease in discount rate 280,262 18,245
1% increase in salary rate 250,452 18,259
1% decrease in salary rate 201,265 146,572
For the year
ending
June 30, 2023
Expacted defined banefit cost to be recognized in statement of profit or loss Rupses ('000)
Current service cost 32,696
Interest expense 29,781
Interest income on plan assets {23,315)
39,162

Description of risks to the Company
The gratuity plans expose the Company to the following risks:

Discount rate risk - The risk of changes in discount rate, since discount rate is based on corporate ! government
bonds, any decrease in bond yields will increase plan liabilities.

Salary increase / inflation risk - The risk that the actual salary increase are higher than the expected salary
increase, where benefits are linked with final safary at the time of cessation of service, is lkely to have an impact an
liability.

Mortality risk - The risk that the actual morality experience is lighter than that of expected ie. the actual life
expectancy is longer than assumed.

Withdrawal risk - The risk of actual withdrawals experience may different from that assumed in the calculation.

Investment risk - The risk of cccurrence of losses relative to the expected return on any particular investment.

2022 2021
PROVISION FOR TAXATION (1 15) - T ——— I R 1] L ——
Income tax - payable at beginning of the year 422,041 3,866,646
Income tax paid during the year [18,504,129) (17,180,434
Recoverabla from FBR on kehalf of PLL
under group taxation 1,507,315} {554,22%)
Recoverable from FBR on behalf of ISGSL
under group taxation {191,224) .
Provision for current taxation for the vear 40 25,152 601 14,285,386
Provision for taxation - prior years 40 - 14,672
Income tax - payable at end of the year 4,571,974 422,041

The tax authorities had amended the assessments of the Company for the tax years 2003 to 2020 raising an
aggregate demand of Rs. 24650 million, which primarily relates to depletion allowance, development and
production expenditure, decommissioning cost, super tax, unrealised exchange losses, rebate on donation and tax
credits under sections 61, 65 of the Income Tax Crdinance, 2001. The Company had pafd the said amounts under
protest to avoid penalties under the Income Tax Ordinance 2001.
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An amount of Rs 14,633 million out of the said aggregate demand relates to depletion allowance. The aforesaid
matter has been decided in favor of the Company by Islamabad High Court for tax years 2004, 2005, 2008, 2009
and 2010, however the matter has been taken up by tax authorities in the Honorable Supreme Couri of Pakistan
wherein it is at pre admission stage and leave to appeal is not yet granted to the tax authorities.

The Company, based on the advice of its legal counsel, is confident that it has sound grounds to defend the case
on the aforesaid issue. However, considering the fact that matter has not yet attained finality due to its pending
status before Honorable Supreme Court of Pakistan, the Company as a matter of abundant caution, has continued
to provide for tax liabilities primarily in respect of depletion allowance, super tax, deveiopment and production
expenditure and tax credits under sections 85 in the books of accounts. In case the matter relating to the said
issues are decided in favor of the Company, the amount provided for as well as paid under pretest in the past will
be credited to the Profit or Loss for that year.

2022 2021
Note --—--emeeeeeeed] Rupees ("000)------—-ssemmar-
CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS
Contingencies
Relating to carried cost liability 31141 1,765,033 1,280,463
Sales tax contingency 311.2 18,177,B37 18,177 837
19,942,870 19,458,299

This represents confingencies in respect of 5% carried cost of the discovered fields where Declaration of
Commercialities (DOCs) have not yet been submitted at the year end and for those Development and Production
leases where the Company's estimates varies with those of the aperator.

The Federal Board of Revenue (FBR) issued a show cause notice to the Company in respect of non-applicability of
zero percent sales tax on crudefcondensate supplies from 2009-10 to 2013-14 as per SRO No. 549{1)/2008, which
includes the condition of "import and supplies thereof" The Company disputed the notice on the grounds that it
does not import crude / condensate and has filed writ petition with Islamabad High Court which is pending for
adjudication. The estimated tax contingency has been cailculated based on the sales {ax amount involved, penaity,
and default surcharge.

The income tax assessment for the tax year 2021 was amended by the Additional Commissioner Inland Revenue
(ADCIR) by making certain disallowances and add backs including, depletion allowance, development and
production expenditure, actuarial loss, provision for windfall levy etc. and created an aggregate tax demand of Rs
1,436.48 million. The Company filed appeal against the order of ADCIR hefore GIR (A) which is pending for
adjudication.

Contingency with respect to imposition of Windfall Levy on cil / condensate

The Company is a working interest owner in Tal, Mirpur Khas, Khipra, Mehar, Mubarak, Tando Allah Yar, Gurgalat,
Sinjhoro, Bitrism, Khewari and Nim Blocks whose Petroleum Concession Agreements (PCAs) were executed under
the framework of Petroleum Policies 1984 and 1987. Subsequently, in pursuance to the option available under
Petroleurn Pelicy 2012, the Company along with other working interest cwners signed Supplemental Agreements
{SAs} with the the Government of Pakistan (GoP) for conversion of eligible existing and future discoveries under
aforesaid PCAs to the Petroleumn Policy (PR}, 2012. Under the said arrangement, price regimes prevailing in PP
2007, PP 2009 and PP 2012 in terms of PP 2012 shall be applicable, correlated with the spud dates of the wells in
the respective policies starting from November 27, 2007 The conversion package as defined in the SAs included
windfall levy on natural gas anly.
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On December 27, 2017, the Ministry of Energy (Petroleum Division) notified amendments in Petreleurn Policy 2012
atter approval from the Council of Commen Interests (CCl) dated November 24, 2017, These amendments include
imposition of Windfall Levy on Oil/Condensate {WLO). Under the said Notification, the Supplemental Agreements
already executed for conversion from Petroleurn policies of 1994 and 1997 shall be amended within 90 days, failing
which the working interest owners will not remain eligible for gas price incentive. On January 03, 2018, Directorate
General Petroleum Concessions {DGPC) has required all exploration and production companies 1o submit
supplemental agreements to incorporate the aforementioned amendments in Petroleum Concession Agreements
(PCAs} signed under 1994 and 1897 policies, for execution within the stipulated time as specified above or to forgo
the incentives available for gas pricing.

Based on legal advice, the Company is of the view that terms of the existing PCAs as amended to-date through the
supplemental agreements already executed cannot unilaterally be amended by the GoP thraugh introduction of
amendmeant nor can the GoP lawfully require and direct that such amendments be made to include imposition of
WLO retrospectively and nor the GoP unilaterally hold and direct that the gas price incentive to which the Company
is presently entifled to and receiving under the conversion package as enshrined under the supplemental
agreement stands withdrawn or the Company ceases to be eligible for such incentive in case of failure to adopt the
unilateral amendments in the existing PCAs. Accordingly, the aforementioned amendments as well as the
subsequent etters requiring implementation of the amendments are nat enforceable or binding upon the Gompany.

The Company along with other joint operation Partners has challenged the applicability of WLO against the
backdrop of supplemental agreements already executed pursuant to PP 2012 in the Honorable islamabad High
Court which has granted stay order against the CCI decision dated November 24, 2017 on imposition of WLO, It is
pettinent to note that all writ petitions on subject matter have been consolidated by the Honorable High Court. The
Patitions are pending with date in office.

The cumutative impact of Windfall Levy on oil (WLO) since application of incremental gas pricas up till June 30,
2022 amount to approximately Rs 21,719 million (2021: Rs 16,724 milion}. As mentioned above, the Company
based on the advice of legal counsels, is confident that it has valid grounds to defend the aforesaid issue in the
Court and that the issue will be decided in its favor. However, without prejudice to the Company's legal contention
and as a matter of prudence, the Company has booked provision of Rs. 11,404 million to prospectively account for
the impact of WLO from the date of the SRO i.e. December 27, 2017 till June 30, 2022.

Unitization of Salamat / Adam West Field Reserves

A resenvoir communication study by an independent third party, is currently in progress to determine reserve volume
estimates and level of communication between Salamat field {operated by UEPL; GHFL Working Interest (W)
25%) and Adam West field (operated by PPL; GHPL Wi Nil}. If reservoir communication between the fields is
proved then subject to final results of the study, agreement of concerned parties and Director general petroleum
concession's (DGPC) approval, financial exposure may arise equivalent to revenue from additional producticn from
the reservoir to be offset by royalty f CPEX / tax and other refated expenses incurred.

Other contingencies

As part of the arrangement, as disclosed in nate 11 of these financial statements, each of the consorium
companies including GHPL have also provided, joint and several, parent company guarantees to ADNCC and
Supreme Coungil for financial and Economic Affairs Abu Dhabi, UAE, to guarantee the obligations of the assaciate,
Pakistan International Qil Limited (FIOL).

On Dacember 17, 2018, Attock Refinery Limited {ARL) filed a writ petition against the Company before Islamabad
High Court and has disputed and withheld amounts invoiced to it prior to the signing of sales agreement i.e. March
13, 2018 on account of adjustment of premium or discount as announced by Saudi Aramco for deliveries 1o Asian
customers / destinations under the sales agreement. The amount withheld and disputed by ARL amounts to Rs 411
rillien (2021: Rs 411 million). The Company believes that the debit notes / invoices have been raised in
accordance with the sales agreements signed with the GoP and ne provision is required in this respect.

-
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Commitments

Minimum work commitment a1.21 3,636,842 4,742 992

This represents the Company's share in the minimum wark cemmitments relating to non-operated Joint operations
and the Company's own capital budget.

Curing the year, the Company entered into shareholders' agreement with the consertium pariners, as referred o
under Nate 11.1 of the financial statements, under which the Company has committed to invest up to USD 100
million in PIOL during five years out of which USD 25 million {Rs. 4,205 million} have been invested fill June 30,
2022, Subsequent to the year end, the Company further invested USD 10 millicn (Rs 2,226 million).

REVENUE FROM CONTRACTS WITH CUSTOMERS - NET

Naturai gas - gross sales 51,926,836 46,517,332
Sales tax (7,543,752) {6,755,924)
Excise duty {635,693} (695 523)
Matural gas - net sales 43,747,311 38,085 8886
Crude 0il- gross sales 43,743,933 23,462 625
Sales tax {2,919,845) .
Crude oil- net sales 45,824,083 23,462 626
Liquefied petroleum gas - gross sales 11,401,864 5,710,832
Sales tax {1,656,859) (827 400
Excise duty {6,419) (8,665)
Petroleum development lewvy {349,419) {342,060)
Liquefied petroleum gas - net sales 9,389,167 4,534,707
98,960, 646 67.063.218

Contract liabilities

The Company has recognised the following canfract liabilities related to contracts with customers of liguefied

petroleum gas (LPG):

Movement in contract liabilities

Balance at beginning of the year 82,097 -
Advances received during the year 4,386,640 -
Transferred to revenue during the year {4,401,384) -
Balance at end of the year B7,353 -

OKFE L.
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2022 2021
Note -—eecemmeeee- Rupees ('000)-—--ssrauven--x

ROYALTY AND OTHER LEVIES
Royalty 334 10,595,840 7.447 360
Windfall levy 332 763,551 152,782

11,359,391 7,800,142
Royalty and other levies charged by the Government of Pakistan.
This pertains to production from Gambat South, Dhok Sultan and Shah Bandar.
OPERATING EXPENSES
Joint operation's operating expenses 341 8,818,952 6,764 945
Depreciation 6.4 2,581,680 2,297 716
Amortization of development and production assets 9 3,805,248 3grenz2
Impairment 2 1,232,021 307,512
Decommissioning cost actualized during the year 71,107 —
Reversal due to change in decommissioning cost estimates 26.1 {347,222) (174,167)

16,161,786 13,168,128

It represents the Company’s share in operaling expenses of joint operation mainly comprising of personnel cost,
field / contract services, repair and maintanance, workovers, travelling etc.

2022 2021
Nota e Rupees {'000)—---wr-mera-mmn
Impairmant
impairment on property, plant and equipment 5.5 459,808 235200
Impairment on development and production assets 9 772,213 72,311
1,232,021 307 512

During the current year, the Company carrigd out impairment testing of its joint operations assets, as required under
IAS 36 - ‘Impairment of Assets’ to assess whether there is any provision required on these assets. Based on the
assessment, management has made a provision of impairment oh property piant and equipment, development and
production assets as specified in above note,

The Company considers the relationship batween international oil prices, production profiles, petroleum reserves
and carrying value of its joint operation investments, amongst other factors, when reviewing for indicatars of
impairment. As at June 30, 2022, the estimates of future production profiles of producing / discovered fields within
the Joint operations have revised based on latest technical information, indicating a potential impairment.

For the purpose of carrying out impairment testing, each joint operation has been considered a separate cash
generating unit and the recoverable value of tha each joint operation investment has been separately determined
and compared with the respective camying value of the assets of that joint operation.

The recoverable amount of the joint venture investment is based on 'value-in-use' computations. In assessing the
value in use, estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value, using a pre-tax discount rate that is
based on the existing policy rate prevailing within the country. The discount rate applied to cash flow projections is
11.88% (2021: 14.78%).

HIATEL .
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Note
FINANCE INCOME { (COSTS)
Finance income

Finance income from financial assets
Return on bank deposits

Return on term deposit receipts

Interest on loan to subsidiaries

Finance income from non financial assets

Gain on long term liability due to change in estimate 24.1
Finance Income

Finance Cost

Unwinding of discount on provision for decommissioning

cost 26.1
Unwinding of discount on long term liability

Bank charges

Finance cost

Net Finance income

EXPLORATION AND PROSPECTING EXPENDITURE

Cost of dry and abandoned wells 8
Prospecting expenditura

GENERAL AND ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES

Salaries, wages and benefits 37A
Travelling and conveyance

Repairs and maintenance

Rent

Communications

Utilities

Training and seminars

Printing and stationery

Advertisement

Entertainment

Legal and professional charges

Auditors' remuneration and tax services 375
Fee and subscription

Software maintenance fee

Ingurance

Business developmant

Internship program of Ministry of energy

Amortization of intangible assats 7
Depraciation 6.4
Security services

Others

2022 2041
-------------- Rupees ("300)-----—emammm-
1,136,271 875,983
3,431,349 2161 845
254,998 572,821
4,922,618 3,610,650
546,289 177,617
6,568,907 3,768,267
{394,365) (216,362)
{9,529 (22,930}
{1,436) {63)
{405,630) {239,3535)
5,163,277 3,548, 812
388,609 306,996
297,326 254,335
686,935 561,331
506,075 423 234
4,060 1,187
5,866 5,853
15,501 15,454
1,580 1.550
11,510 8 580
1,834 2,444
2,487 1,445
1,970 1,823
2124 1,513
5,708 5,503
6,439 2,076
3,688 2,987
37,944 18,829
13,960 6,939
89,865 2,235
2,368 172
18,212 25845
23,620 18,783
4,115 3,750
4,214 3,328
763,140 556,342
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3rA {tincludes Rs. 80.927 million (2021: Rs.48.196 million) in respect of post employment benefits,

ar.2 The zggregate amounts charged in these financial statements for the remuneration of the Chief Executive Officer
and Executives are as foliows:

Chief Executive Officer Executives
2022 2021 2022 2021

Rupees ("000)

Managerial remuneration 42,633 32,802 308,624 275,721

Bonus . - - -

Post employment benefits 14,505 €689 104,736 545,307

Reimbursable expenses 207 135 1,382 1,233
57,345 38,626 414,752 332,281

Number of persons 1 1 38 34

37.3 Key management personnel

Key management personnel comprises chief executive, chief financial officer, Company secretary, executive
directors and general managers of the Company,

2022 2021
.............. Rupees l'ﬂﬂﬂ:l...-"..".-uun
Managerial Remuneration 113,473 116,333
Bonus N B
Post Employment Benefit 35,483 23,403
Reimbursable Expenses 222 325
152,178 140,061

374 Fee paid 1o non-executive directors for attending the Board of Directors meetings amounted to Rs. 25,000,000
(2021. Rs. 18,000,000}

2022 2021
------------- Rupees {"000}----—~-mmnmemrmnm
irh Audifors' remuneration and tax services
Statutory audit fee 3,944 1,640
Report on compliance of Public Sector
Companies (Corporate Governance) Rules
2013 116 B0
Decommissioning cartification 812 200
Cut of pocket expenses 342 178
Tax services 1,225 .
6,439 2,078
a8 OTHER EXPENSES
Exchange loss 2,074,799 -
Windfall levy on oil / condensate 3114 4,995,338 1,320,292

w 7,070,135 1,320,292
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OTHER INCOME
Other income from non financial assets

Exchange gain

Gain on disposal of fixed asset
Signature bonus

Others

Fair Value Adjustment Reserve- Subsidiary

TAXATION
Current

Charge for the year
Charge for prior year

Deferred

(Credit) / charge for the year 25

Recongiliation of tax charge for the year:

Accounting profit
Tax rate

Tax on accounting profit at applicable rate 44% {2021: 40%)

Tax effect of:

Unwinding of discount on provision of decammissioning cost
Exchange loss f (gain) on provision of decommissioning cost
Change in estimates refated to provision of decommissioning cost
Depletion allowance

Income chargeable to tax at reduced corporate rate

Prior years charge

Unrealized exchange gain / (loss)

Difference in tax and accounting depregiation

Effect of change in tax rate

Interest on loans from subsidiaries

EARNINGS PER SHARE - BASIC AND DILUTED

Profit for the year Rupees
Weighted average ordinary shares Number
Earnings per shara - basic Rupees

There is no dilutive effect on the earnings per share of the Company.

SOAFEL.

2022 2021
-------------- Rupees ('000)---—---mnnnmm---
- 656,289
1,003 139
31,500 .
394 316
32,897 656,744
116,298 337,383
148,195 994,127
25,352,601 14,285,386
- 14672
25,352,601 14,300,058
{3,363,449) 544,408
21,989,152 14,844 467
65,179,475 48.401.023
44% 40%
28,678,969 19,360,409
173,521 26,545
822,063 (213,258)
{558,812) (248,144)
{7,396,793) {3,127,881)
74,107 {515,001)
- 14,672
- (48,783)
{30:3,789) .
655,414 -
{155,528) {364.082)
(6,689,817) (4,415,943}
21,988,152 14,944 467

43,190,323,069
2,103,260,097

33,456,556,187
2,088,512,092

20.53

16.02
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52.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

The following detail shows the carrying amounts of financial assets and liabiiities. It does not include fair value
information as the carrying amount is a reasgnable approximation of fair value as the current financial assets and
liabilities are short term and some financial assets are also interest bearing. Further, the financial assets due direcilyf
ultimately from GoP carries contractual right and entitlement to receive interest on late payment and is exempt from
ECL accounting/ disclosure as disclosed In note 3.3, The non current financial assets are also interest bearing.

Carrying amount

2022 2021

FINANCIAL ASSETS

Financial assets classifled as amortised cost:

Short term investrent 24,053,855 39,621,954

Loans { advances to staff 440,896 33,843

Loan to subsidiaries 5,603,733 5,675,996

Trade debts- net 141,458,170 108,955,084

Loan, advances and other receivables exclusive of

staff loans and advances 1,721 635

Security deposits - 55

Cash and bank balances 7,180,603 9,501,131
178,339,078 164 788 688

FINANCIAL LIABILITIES

Financial Kabilities classifled as amortised cost:

Long term ligbility 5,036,503 4331436

Trade and other payahles 4,997,741 4,395,236

10,034,244 8726672

Credit quallty of financial assets

The credit quality of the company's financial assets have been assessed below by reference to externat credit ratings
of counterparties determined by The Pakistan Credit Rating Agency Limited {PACRA)} and JCR - WIS Credit Rating
Company Limited (JCR-VIS). The counterparties for which external credit ratings were not available have been
assessed by reference to internal credit ratings determined based on their historical information for any defaults in
meeting chligations.

Rating 2022 2021
............... Rupees ['00()-rmssvanuennavian
Trade Dabts
Counter parties without external credit rating
Due fram associated companies 130,502,464 102,645,906
Others 10,955,704 6,309,179
141,458,168 105,955,084
Loans, advances, deposits and other receivables
Counter parties without external credit rating 23,356 20,404
Bank Balances
Counter parties with external credit rating A-1+ 7,180,549 9,500,981

ARRFQL
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interest rates used for determining fair value

The interest rates used {o discount estimated cash flows, when applicable, are based on the government yield
curve at the reporting date plus an adequate credit spread. Since the majority of the financial assets are fixed
rate instruments, there is no significant difference in market rate and the rate of instrument, fair value
significantly approximates to carrying value.

Determination of fair values

A number of the Company's accounting policies and disclosures require the determination of fair value, for
beth financial and non-financial assets and liabilities. Fair values have been determined far measurement
andfor disclesure purposes based on the following methods.

Non - derivative financial assets

discounted at the market rate of interest at the reporting date. This fair value is determined for disclosure
purposes.

Non - derivative financial liabilities

Fair value, which is determined for disclosure purposes, is calculated based on the present value of future
principal and interest cash flows, discounted at the market rate of interest at the reporting date.

FInancial risk factors

The Company has exposure to the following risks from its use of financial instruments:

- Credit risk
- Liquidity risk
- Market risk

This note presents information about the Company's exposure to each of the above risks, the Company's
cbjectives, policies and processes for measuring and managing risk, and the Company's management of
capital. Further quantitative disclosures are included throughout these financial statements.

The Board of Directors has overall responsibility for the establishment and oversight of the Company's risk
management framework. The Board is responsible for developing and monitoring the Company's risk
management policigs.

The Company's risk management poiicies are established to identify and analyze the risks faced by the
Company, to set appropriate risk limits and controls, and to monitor risks adherence to limits. Risk
management policies and systems are reviewed regularly to reflect changes in market conditions and the
Company's activities. The Company, through its training and management standards and procedures, aims to
develep a disciplined and constructive control environment in which all employees understand their roles and
cbligations.

The Board's audit and risk management committee oversees how management moenitors compliance with the
Company's risk management palicies and procedures and reviews the adequacy of the risk management
framework in relation to the risks faced by the Company. The audit and risk management committes is
assisted in its oversight role by internal audit. Internal audit undertakes both regular and ad hoc reviews of risk

management controls and procedures, the results of which are reported to the audit and risk management
committes,
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42.2 Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk that a customer or counterparty will not meet its obligation under a financial instrument or
customer contract, leading 1o a financial less. Company's credit risk is primarily aftributable 1o its trade debts,
loan to subsidiaries, short term investments and its balances at banks.

Trade debts

Trade debts are essentially due from oil refining companies, gas distribution companies and power generation
cempanies and the Company does not expect these companies to fail to meet their obligations. Majority of
sales to the Company's customers are made on the basis of agreements approved by the GoP.

Sale of crude oil and gas is at prices specified in relevant agreements and / or as notified by the Government
autharities based on agreements with custorners or relevant applicable petroleumn policy or Petroleum
Concession Agreements. Prices of liquefied petroleum gas are determined by the Company subject to
maximum price notified by OGRA.

The Company establishes an allowance for impairment that represents its estimate of incurred losses in
respect of trade debts that are due directly / ultimately from the GoP till June 30, 2022 as per policy disclosed
in note 3.3 to the financial statements.

Others

The credit risk related to balances with banks, in term deposits and saving accounts, are managed by
investing in liquid securities and maintaining bank accounts only with counterparties that have a credit rating of
at least A. While bank balances and investments in term deposits are alse subject to the requirements of

IFRS 9, the identified impairment loss was immaterial as the counter parties have reasonably high credit
ratings.

The credit risk on advances to suppliers and loan to subsidiaries is minimal as the Company has long
established relationship with the entities. Subsidiaries are mainly state owned enterprises, and management
does not expect non-performance by these counter parties on their obligations to the Company. The Company
establishes an allowance for impairment that represents its estimate of incurred losses in respect of Ioan to

subsidiaries.
2022 2021

Short Long Short Long Credit rating

Tearm Term Term Term Agency
MNational Bank of Pakistan A1+ AAA A1+ AAA PACRA
Allied Bank Limited A1+ AAA A-1+ AAA PACRA
Bank Alfalah Limited A-1+ Al A1+ AL+ PACRA
Habib Bank Limited A1+ AAA A1+ AAA, VIS
MCB Bank A1+ AAA A-1+ AAA PACRA
United Bank Limited A1+ ABA A-1+ AAA VIS
Bank of Punjab A-1+ Al+ A+ Al+ PAGCRA

RSN
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The Company's maximum expesure to credit risk for the componanls of statement of financial position al June 30, 2622 and 2021 is aquai to the carrying amounts of financial assets as given below:

2022 2021
Rupees ('000) —
Loan to stalf 31,083 24 270
Trade debits - nat 141,456,170 108,855,084
Loan to subsidiaries 5,603,733 6,675,996
Loan, advances and ather receivables 391 635
Security deposits - 55
Sho term investments 24,053,955 39 621,854
Cash and bank halances 7,180,603 8,501,131
178,327,935 164,779,135
The Company has maintained saving accounts with differen] banks having credit rating as mentioned below:
Cradit rating Rating agency
A1+ PACRA 5,018,026 6,453,316
A1+ JCR-VIS 2,161,523 3.047 666
7,180,549 9,500,981
Credit ratings for short term investmeants disclosed in note 20.1 to the financial statements,
42.2.2 Impairment losses
The aging of rade delits at the reporling date is as follows:
2022 201
Grogs Dabts Impaired Gross Dabts Impaired
- -—Rupees {004} Rupees {'¢00)
Mot Past Due 20,714,103 - 13,828,408 -
Past due up to three months 12,772,673 - 12,646,016 -
Past due three to six manths 11,885,705 - 11,057,851 -
Past dua more than six months 96,515,393 535,704 71,422 805
141,837,874 539,704 108,355,084 -
Party wise aging of irade debts other than related partizs at reporling date is as under:
2022
Past Due
Party name Nat past due Up ta three Three to six More than six Impaired balance Total
maonths manths months
Rupees ('00D)
Attock Refinery Lirited 7,254,200 1,123,206 {245} 214,619 (S7,549) 2,530,131
Nztional Refinery Limited 184,554 875 . 152,708 {152,235} 188,003
Fakistan Refinery Limited 551,076 - (2,637} 733 - 643,172
United Energy Fakistan Limited 1,437,913 - - - - 1,497 %13
Others 97,243 (78,841} 7.613 163,171 98,701) 90,485
%687 088 1,045,240 4,731 527,132 {308,435) 10,355,704

JAFS 2.
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2021
| Past Oug
Party name Mot past due Up Lo three Three I six months More than six Impaired balance Total
rmgnths manths
Rupees ('000)—
Attock Refinary Limited 2,875,386 8925 804 1.684 454 170 - 4,387 142
Nzlional Refinery Limited 126,926 36,065 - 152,228 - 315,219
Pakistan Refinery Limited 443,612 455,621 105,632 T33 - 1,005,598
United Energy Pakistan Limited 492 513 - - - - 492 513
Cthers 79,118 - 29,587 - - 108,706
4,117 558 1.417 587 136,803 837,11 - 6,309,179
Party wise 5ging of frade debts of related parties at reporting date is as under:
2022
Past Due
Party name Not pasit due Up to threa Threa to six More than six Impaired balanca Total
months months munths
Rupees ("000)-—
Sui Northern Gaz Pipelines Limited 2.483,515 2,673,578 3,285,956 1,080,717 . 39,529,770
Sui Southern Gas Company Limited 4,393,157 8,799,352 8,606,423 €3,312,585 - &Y, 111,497
Pak Arab Refinery Company Limited 1,497,423 201,318 {1,904) I3z {1,180} 1,728,768
Enar Petrolesm Refining Facility 115,191 - - {29) - 118,152
Gil & Gas Development Company 496,944 - - 1,663,056 (230,03%) 1,929,961
Pakistan Petraleum Limited 35,812 47,184 435 (1,179} . 83,315
11,037,018 11,727,432 11,890,574 35.&88,2&1 {231,219} 130,502,464
2021
Fast Due
Party name Mot past dug Up to three CN oy ey Morg than six Impaired balance Total
moriths months
Rupses {000)
Sui Northern Gas Pipelines Limited 2254918 3.422 082 3343005 23,233,749 - 32 258,823
Sui Southern Gas Company Limited 4,321,794 6,967,795 7517437 47,538,544 - 65.346,573
Pak Arab Refinery Company Limited 1,298 154 22,066 - 6,337 . 1.326 557
Enar Patroleum Refining Facility 10.818 - - - - 10412
Qil & Gas Development Company 1,815,775 802 395 41,402 6,047 - 2,665,618
Pakistan Petroleumn Limited 9388 14,112 14,014 - - 37.514
9710 851 11,225,430 10,920 g44 70 7B5 677 - 102.645 906

As explaingd in note 15,1 to the financlal statements, the Company believes that no impairment allowance is necessary in respect of irade debis past due from Sui Northern Gas Fipelines Limited and
Bui Southem Gas Campany Limited and loan to subsidiaries. Trade debs are essertially due from oil refining companies. natural gas ard liguefied petroleum gas transmission and distribution
companigs, tha Company is aclively pursuing for recovery of debls and the Company does nat expect these companies to fail to meet their obligations. Impac! of ECL on financial assets not covered
under exemption as explained in note 3.3 has been recorded in note 15.3 to the financial statements. Loan {0 subsidiaries are receivable from wholly owned subsidiaries of the Company, GoP is
ullimate owner of these subsidiaries thersfore ECL has nol been assessed in respect of these loans,

Expecled credit loss on loans, advances, depasits and other receivables is calculated using gensral approach {as disclosed in note 5.10.1). As at the reporting date, Company envisages that default
risk on account of loang, advances. deposits and other receivablas is immateral based on historic trends adjusled to reflect forward laoking information.

Bank balances and investments in term deposits are also subject to the requirerments of IFRS 9 the identified impairment loss was immatertal 25 the counter paries have reasonably high credit ralings.

HRTEL.
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The movement in the allowance for impairment in respect of rade debts during the year was a5 follows:

2022 2021
— -Rupees {"000) e
Balance at beginning of the year - o
FProvision ! (reversal) during the year £39,704 -
Balance at end of the year 539,704 -

42,3  Liguidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company will not be able to meet its financial obligations as they fall due. Prudent liquidity risk management implies maintaining sufficient cash and marketable
securities to close out rmarkel positions due to dynamic nature of the busingss. The Company's approach to managing liquidity is to ensura, as far a5 possible, that it will shways have sufficient liquidity
to meet its liabilities when due, under both narmal and stressed conditions, withaut incurring unacceptable losses ar risking damage ko the Company's reputation.. Since the Company has sufficient
assets againsl ils liabilities, and being a subsidiary of the GaP it does not have any signrificant liquidity risk.

The maturity profile of the Company's financial assets and lizbilitkes based on June 30, 2022, is summarized below:

D2 Effactive yield Markup/ Interast Ncn marku!ﬂ Total
Intarest Rate bearing Interesti bearing
% —_ Rupaes {000}
FINANCIAL ASSETS
Maturity up to one year
Loan to staff - - 10,715 18,715
Trade debts - net - - 141,458,170 141,458,170
Loan, advances and other receivables - - i) | 391
Loan to subsidianes - ISGSL KIBOR-+0.1 355,110 - 355,110
Loan to subsidiaries - PLL KIBOR+2 1,544,753 - 1,544,753
Deposits - - = =
Short-tenm investments 5.9 -7.56 24,053,955 - 24,053,955
Bank balancas 14.15 - 15.25 7,180,549 - 7,180,549
33,134,367 141,489,276 174,803,643
Maturity after one year:
Loan o staff - - 20,368 20,368
Loan to subsidlarles - PLL KIBOR+2 3,703,870 - 3,703,270
3,703,870 20,368 3,724,238
36,838,237 141,489,644 178,327 8381
FINANCIAL LIABILITIES
Maturity up to cne year
Trade and other payables - - 5,BB5,575 5,885,575
Gurrerdt portion of long lerm jiability - - 1,599,657 1,599,557
= 7485132 7485132
Maturity after ong yaar:
Long term liability - - 3,436,946 3,436,946

W - 3,436,348 3,436,946
- 10,922 078 10,922,077
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Effective yieldl Markup! Interest Non markip/
e Imeresi Rate baaring Interes! bearing Uil
B e Rupaes {"000)- &
FINANCIAL ASSETS
Maturity up to ong year
Loan to staff - - 9,551 9,551
Trade debls - nat - - 108,255,084 108,955,084
Loan, advances arsd other receivables - - 535 635
Laan 1o subsidiaries - ISGSL KIBOR+0.1 341,175 - 31175
Loan to subsikdiaries - PLL KIBOR+2 1,250,000 - 1,250,000
Deposits - - 55 55
Short-lerm investrnants 6.9-7.93 39,621,054 - 39,821,954
Bank balances 5.5-6.7 9,558,958 - 8,558,958
50,772,085 108,965,326 158,737,414
Maturity after one year: 2
Long-term kan - - 14,728 14,728
Loan to subsidiaries - PLL KIBOR+2 5,084 821 - 5,084,821
5,084,821 14,728 5,008,549
55 856,909 108,980 054 164,836 562
FINANCIAL LIABIELITIES
Maturlty up to one year
Trade and other payables - 4,781,917 4 781,917
Current portion of long term Hability - 819,632 819632
5,601,548 5,601 549
Maturity after one year:
L.ong term Yability - - 3,511,804 3,511,804
- 3511804 3,511,804
- 8,113,353 8,113,353
2022 2021
QOFF BALANCE SHEETITEMIZE @ e Rupees {'000)-—moe e
Capital expenditure commitments 3,516,842 4,742 902

Y
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42.4.1

42.4.2

Market risk

Market risk is the rigk that the fair value of future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in
market prices. Market prices comprise three type of risks; interest rate risk, foreign exchange risk and other price risk,
Financial instruments affected by market risk include trade debts, balances held in banks in saving and term deposits,
long term liability in respect of carried interest and payable to joint operation partners.

Interest rate risk

Interest / mark-up rate risk management is the risk that the value of a financial instrument will fluctuate due to
changes in interest rate. The Company does not have interest bearing financial liability; therefore, i does not have any
interest rate/mark-up risk in respect of financial liabilities. The Company has invested in fixed interest bearing securities
in the form of shott term deposit receipts as mentioned in Note 20,1, Further the Cormpany has bank balances in deposit
accounts that carry variable interest rates, as mentioned in Note 21.1.

Foreign currency risk

Currency rigk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fiuctuate because of the
changes in fareign exchange rates. Currency risk arises mainly from future commercial transaclions or receivables and
payables that exist due to transactions in foreign currencles.

Pakistani rupee (Rs)} is the functional currency of the Company and as a result currency exposure arise from
transactions and balances in currencies other than Pakistani rupee. The Company's potential currency expasure
comprise;

- Transactional exposure in respect of non functional currensy monetary items.
- Transactional exposure in respect of non functional currency expenditure and revenues.

The potential currency exposures are discussed below;

Transactional exposure in respect of non functional currency monetary items

Manetary items, including financial assets and liabilities, denominated in currencies other than the functional currency of
the Company are periodically restated to Pakistani rupee equivalent, and the associated gain or Ioss is taken to the
staterment of profit or loss. The fereign currency risk related to monetary items is managed as part of the risk
management strategy.

Transactional exposure in respect of non functional currency expenditure and revenues

Certain operating and capital expenditure is incurred by the Company in currencies other than the functional currency.
Certain sales revenue Is earned in currencies other than the functional currency of the Company. These currency risks

are rmanaged as a part of overall risk management strategy. The Company does not enter into forward exchange
contracts.

Exposure ta foraign currency risk

The Company's exposure to the risk in changes in foreign exchange rates relates primarily to the trade debts, long term
liability in respect of carried interest and payable 1o joint operation operators. At the date of statement of financial
position, the net foreign currency exposure aggregates to USD 11.86 million (2021: USD 4.50 miltion).

FINANCIAL ASSETS
Short term exposure

Trade debts 54,2H 44,718
FINANCIAL LIABILITIES

Short term exposure

Due to joint operation operatars i17,784) {21705)
Long term liability {carried intergst) {7,826) (5,210)
{25,610) (26,915)
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2022 2021
................ USD ("000)-resm—nnneas-ma-
Long term aexposure
Lang term liability (carried interest) {16.816) (22,324}
(42,426) (49,239
Met exposure to foreign currancy risk 11,865 {4 522)
The following significant exchange rates applied during the year:
Average rate Reporting date spot rate
2022 2021 2022 2021
{Pak Rupees)
177.45 160.3 204.38 1657.31

Foreign currency sensitivity

A 10% strengthening of the functional currency against USD at June 30, 2022 would have reduced profit by Rs. 242.5
million {2021 increased profit by Rs. 71.1 million}. A 10% weakening of the functional currency against USD at June 30,
2022 would have had the equal but opposite effect of these amounts. This analysis assumes that all other variables, in
particular interest rates, remain constant. The analysis Is parformed on the same basis for June 30, 2021,

Capital management

The Company's objective when managing capital is to safeguard the Company's ability to remain as a going concern
and continue to provide return for GoP. The Company is solely financed by the shareholders' gquity.

The Company manages its capital structure which comprises capital and reserves by manitoring return on nel assets
and makes adjustments to it in the light of changes in economic conditions. In order to maintain or adjust the capital
structure, the Cempany may adjust the amount of dividend paid to GoP and / or issue new shares.

TRANSACTIONS AND BALANCES WITH RELATED PARTIES

The Company is whally owned by Government of Pakistan. Therefore, all entities owned and controlled by the
Gavemment of Pakistan are related parties of the Company. Cther related parties comprise subsidiaries, directors,
major shareholders, companies with cornmon directorship, key management persennel and gratuity fund. The Company
in normal course of business pays for electricity, gas, airfare and telephone charges to entities controlled by Gavernment
of Pakistan which are not material, hence not disclosed in these financial statements. Amount due from and due to
these undertakings are shown under receivables and payables. Significant transactions of the Gompany with related
parties and balances outstanding at the period end are as follows:

2022 2021
------------ Rupees {'000)------wummomeeeen

Subsidiary companies
Shares held in subsidiary companies 3,431,261 2,988,821
Advance against investment in Shares 2,329,395 2.336.091
Long Term Loan to Subsidiary

Non- Current Portion 3,703,870 5,084,821

Current Portion 1,899,863 1,591,175
Interest Income on loan to subsidiaries 354,998 572,821
Fair value adjustment on loan te subsidiary - 1,464,191

XKFIES.
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2022 2021
e ~Rupees ("000)-rrecreacacanaus

Pakistan LNG Limlted (PLL) - wholly owned subsidiary and common directorship

Loan as at June 30 3,706,638 4,946,929
Current accaunt with PLL - receivable 391 635
Tax payable under group taxaticn 1,307,074 306,573
Interest receivable 1,541,985 1,387,892
Interest Income 341,063 436,988
Inferest received 300,000 54,984
Fair value adjustment on lean to subsidiary (1,464,191} 337,383

Interstate Gas Systems (Private) Limited (ISGSL) - wholly owned subsidiary
and common diractorship

Advance against issue of shares 2,329,895 2,336,091
Advance received by ISGSL from Government of Pakistan against

issue of shares to the Company 436,244 1,921,764
Loan as at June 30 270,302 270,302
Loan disbursed during the year - 97.500
Loan repaid during the year - 1,300,000
tnterest receivable 84,808 70,873
Current account with ISGSL- payable 142,198 139
Interest income 13,935 135,833
Interest received - 350,000

Pakistan International Oil Limited (PIOL)- Associated Company - 25% share
haolding of the company and commen directorship

Cost of Investment 4,205,500 B
Share of loss in associate {2,513,5652) -
Major shareholders

Governiment of Pakistan {100% share holding)

Dividend paid 5,000,000 7,000,000
Deposit against Reko Dig project 34,301,231 -

Related parties by virtue of GoP holdings and / or common directorship
Pak Arab Refinery Company Limited

Sale of crude oil - net 8,919,236 4 703,899
Trade debts as at June 30 1,728,768 1,326,557

Sui Northern Gas Pipelines Limited

Sale of natural gas - net 12,918,367 12,843,792
Trade debts as at June 20 39,529,770 32,258,823

JRAFEY.
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2022

Sui Southern Gas Company Limited

Sale of natural gas - net 30,288,716
Trade debts as at Junpe 30 87,111,497

Enar Petroleum Refining Facility

Sale of crude oil - net 404,009
Trade debts as at June 30 119,152

Oil and Gas Development Company Limited

Receivable as at Jure 30 1,929,961
Fayable as at June 30 1,938,970
Expenditure charged by joint operation pariner 4,702,205
Cash calls paid against joint operation partner expenses 3,573,822

Pakistan Petroleum Limited

Receivable as at June 30 3,316
Fayahle as at June 30 620,551
Expenditure charged by joint operation partner 1,761,889
Cash calls paid against joint operation pariner expenses 1,793,632

National Bank of Pakistan

Balance of bank accounts 2,253,351
Balance of Investment (term deposit receipts) as at June 30 -

Interest earned during the year 250,561
Short term borrowing 63,966,965

Other related parties

Contribution to gratuity fund {refer note 29.3) 41,286
Remuneration to key management personnel (refer note 37.3) 152,178
NUMBER OF EMLPOYEES 2022
Number of employees as at year end 64
Average number of emplayess employed during the year a4

STAFF PROVIDENT FUND

25,755,924
66,346,573

55624
10,818

2,665,619
1,477,344
3,547,350
3,089,761

37,514
605,625
3,349,158
4,175,284

1610,157
4,000,000
189,445

25,824
140,061

2021

85
53

Investments out of provident fund have been made in accordance with the provision of section 218 of the Companies

Act, 2017 and rules formulated for this purpose.
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46  IMPACT OF COVID-19 ON THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Company's operations, financial position and results have not been affected by Covid-19 during the
year. Management's focus and efforts continued for coping up with the changing scenaric at all levels.

Based on management's assessment there is no material impact on the carrying values of assets and
liabilities as of June 30, 2022. From the very outset of Covid-19, the management has adopted various
policies and practices to minimize adverse impact of Covid-19 on the husiness and is continuously
monitoring the situation in order to proactively address any challenges which may arise from Covid-1$.

47 GENERAL

47.1 Capacity and production
Production for the year

Product Unit 2022 2021

Gas MMSCF 80,005 82,098
Qil Barrels 2,862,337 2,785,328
LPG Metric ton 75,097 68,931

Due to the nature of operations of the Cempany, installed capacity of above products is not relevant.

47.2 Figures have been rounded off to the nearest thousand of rupees unless olherwise stated.

47.3 Corresponding figures have been reclassified wherever necessary to reflect more appropriate presentation
of events and {ransactions for the purpose of better presentation in accordance with the accounting and
reporing standards as applicable in Pakistan.

48 EVENTS AFTER THE END OF THE REPCRTING DATE

48.1 On September 21, 2022, a fire incident was reported at the TAL concession and loss including loss of
inventory was reperted. The Company is a non-operator in the said concession. The Company's share in
the amount of inventory damage caused by the fire is preliminary assessed at Rs 415 million which will be
finaiised upon further action by operator including finalisation of related insurance claims.

48.2 Subsequent to the year end, deposit with the Government of Pakistan for equity stake in Reko Dig project
was changed to equity in Reko Dig Mining (Private) Limited (RDML) through Pakistan Minerals {Privaie)
Limited (PMPL} after finalisation of related agreements and regulatory approvals as explained in Note 18.1.

48.3 Subsequent to the year end, the loan facility from National Bank of Pakistan (NBP) has been restructured
with the approval of Economic Coordination Committee (ECC) as explained in note 28.2.

49 DATE OF AUTHORIZATION OF ISSUE

These financial statements have been authorized for issue by the Board of Directors of the Company in its

meetini held on M@:a.lﬂ,.l—.?ls

Chief Executive Officer Director
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Independent Auditor's Report

To the members of Government Holdings (Private) Limited
Report on the Audit of Consolidated Financial Statements

Opinicn

We have audited the annexed consolidated financial statements of Government Hoidings
(Private) Limited and its subsidiaries (the Group), which comprise the consolidated statement of
financial position as at June 30, 2022, and the consolidated statement of profit or loss, the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of changes in
equity and the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the
consolidated financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies and
other explanatory information.

In our opinion, consclidated financial statements give a true and fair view of the consolidated
financial position of the Group as at June 30, 2022 and of its consclidated financial performance
and its consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with the accounting and
reporting standards as applicabie in Pakistan.

Basis for Oplnlon

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (ISAs} as
applicable in Pakistan. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the
Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consclidated Financial Statements section of cur
report. We are independent of the Group in accordance with the International Ethics Standards
Board for Accountants' Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants as adopted by the Institute
of Chartered Accountants of Pakistan (the Code), and we have fulfilled our other ethical
respeonsibiities in accordance with the Code. YWe believe that the audit evidence we have
obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Information Other than the Consolidated Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report Thereon

Management is responsible for the other information. The other infermation comprises the
infermation included in the annual report, but does not include the consolidated financial
statements ang our auditor's report thereon.

Our cpinion on the consalidated financial statements does not cover the other information and
we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our responsibility is to read
the other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially
inconsistent with the consclidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or
otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we
conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are reqguired to
report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

KIS,

A, F. FERGUSON & C0., Chartered Accountants, a member firm of the Pw(C network
74-East, 2nd Floor, Blug Area, Jirnoeh Avenue, P.O.Box 3021, Islamaboed-44000, Pokistan
Tel: +02 (51) 2273457-60/2604934-37; Fax: +62 (51) 2277024, 2206473; < WWW.puwe.cor/pk

KARACH! *LAHORE =ISLAMABAD



Responsibilities of Management and Board of Directors for the Gonsolidated Financial
Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated
financial statements in accordance with accounting and reporting standards as applicable in
Pakistan and Companies Act, 2017(XIX of 2017) and for such internal control as management
determines is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or ervor.

In preparing the consclidated financial statements, management is responsible for assessing
the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to
going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either
intends to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Board of Directors are responsible for overseeing the Group's financial reporting process.
Auditor’'s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements

Qur cbjectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consclidated financial
statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and
to issue an auditer's report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of
assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with 1SAs as
applicable in Pakistan will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements
can arise from fraud or error and are considerad material if, individually or in the aggregate, they
could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis
of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs as applicable in Pakistan, we exercise professional
judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

« |dentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consclidated financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive
to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresertations, or the override of intemal control,

+ Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Group's internal control.

* Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management.

« Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of
acceunting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty
exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Group's
ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists,

QARTLL.



we are required to draw attention in our auditor's report to the related disclosures in the
consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our
opinion. Our conclusions are hased on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our
auditor's report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Group to cease to
continue as a going cancern.

» Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated financial
staternents, including the disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial statements
represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation.

» Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the
entities or business activities within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated
financial statements. We are responsible far the direction, supervision and performance
of the group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Board of Directors regarding, among other matters, the planned
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies
in internal contrel that we identify during cur audit.

We also provide the Board of Directors with a statement that we have complied with relevant
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships
and other matters that may reasonably be thought t¢ bear on our independence, and where
applicable, related safeguards.

Other Matters

The consolidated financial statements of the Group for the year ended June 30, 2021 were
audited by another auditor who expressed an unmeodified opinion on those statements on July
22, 2022 before amendment.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent auditer's report is
JehanZeb Amin.

EINNLA ,

Chartered Agtountants
Islamabad

Date: June 23, 2023

UDIN: AR20221008316TWGYDo



GOVERNMENT HOLDINGS [PRIVATE) LIMITED

CONSQOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

AS AT JUNE 30, 2022

Note
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
EQUITY
Share capital 25
Reserves 25
Unappropriated profit
Advance against issie of shares 253
EQUITY ATTRIBUTABLE TO OWNERS
CF THE HOLDING COMPANY
NON-CONTROLLING INTEREST
TOTAL EQUITY
NON CURRENT LIABILITIES
Long term liabifities 27
Deferred taxation 28
Provision for decommissioning cost 29
Lease liability 71
Defered employee benefits 30
CURRENT LIABILITIES
Trade and other payables 32
Current portion of lang term liabilities 27
Contract liabilities 36.2
Short term borrowing 31
Lease liability - current portion 71
Payable to Gavernment 33
Prowvision for taxation 34

TOTAL LIABILITIES
TOTAL EQIATY AND LEABILITIES
CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS 35

2022 2021
------------- Rupees {'006)--------su.
21,327,561 20,885 121
56,979,651 56,365,241
137,913,444 || 121,690,487

2,329,896 2,336.082
218,550,552 201,276,951
218,550,552 201,276,951

3,436,946 3,511,804

- 2,348 133
8,240,917 7.343 545
137,666,792 || 114,848,833
124,681 85,586
149,469,336 128,138,901
52,454,002 32,630,911
1,599,557 819,832
67,353 -
63,966,965 -
11,528,681 2,509,955
120,565,163 5%,.314,065
- 308,574
250,181,721 101643137
399,651,057 228,782,038
618,201,609 431,058 580

ASSETS
NON CLURRENT ASSETS

Property, plant and equipmeant
Right of use asset

Intangible assets

Exploration and evaluation assets
Develepmeant and production assets
Long term laan

Long term investment in associate
Investment in foint venture

Deposit with the Government of Pakistan
for equity stake in Reko Dig project
Deferred taxation

CURRENT ASEETS

Stores, spares and loose fools - share in joint
operations’ inventory

Current portion of long term loan

Stock in trade

Trade debis - net

Recoverahle from tax authorities

Loans, advances and other receivables
Trade depasits and short term prepayments
Receivahle from the Government of Pakistan {GoP}
Accrued interest receivable

Advance tax

Short term invesiments

Cash and hank balances

TOTAL ASSETS

The annexed notes from 110 53 form an inteqral part of these consclidated financial statements.

WHFHL -

Upanlesi. -

Chief Executive Officer

2330%wa

13

14
28

15

12
16
18
19
20
21
22
17

23
24

e

2021

29,968,846 30.579.682
112,365,027 123,066,458
8,577 25,119
8,775,066 5,752,966
13,759,289 14,910,565
20,368 14,728
2,165,989 -
1,203,483 975,184
34,301,231 :
9,530,548 -
209,104,404 175324701
4,132,758 4,089,210
33,307 5,551
15,720,587 2,874,926
272,175,706 192,006,383
9,337,737 3,898,458
326,174 336,992
12,146 18,659
63,966,965 0
216,721 57,978
51,888 -
25,517,895 41,098,758
17,604,323 11,234,375
409,097,206 255,734,289
618,201,609 431 055990

L i

Director
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GOVERNMENT HOLDINGS (PRIVATE) LIMITED
CONSCLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2022

Revenue from contracts with customers - net

Royalty and other levies
Operating expenses
GROSS PROFIT

Exploration and prospecting expenditure
General and administrative expenses
Net impairment loss on financial assets
Other income

Other expenses

OPERATING PROFIT

Finance income
Finance cost
Finance cost — net

Share of loss of associate accounted for
under equity method

Share of loss of joint venture accounted for

under equity method
PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION

Taxation
PROFIT FOR THE YEAR

PROFIT ATTRIBUTABLE TO:
Owners of the Holding Company
Non-centrolling interest

Earnings per share- basic and diluted (Rupees)

Note

36

37
38

40
41
18.3
43
42

39
39

i1

13

44

45

2022 2021
-------------- Rupees {'000)-—we-vremmuee.
497,639,810 283,976,536
{11,359,391) (7,800,142}
(391,366,832} (219,239,563)
94,813,587 56,436,832
(685,935) (561,331)
(1,694,708) (1,199,331)
{539,704) .
34,582 10,261,100
{51,833,581) (1,320,292)
40,094,241 63,616,978
5,652,653 3,577,147
{6,288,361) (5,800,391)
(635,708) (2,223,244)
(2,513,552) -
(50,211) (20,781)
36,894,770 61,372 953
{15,636,138) (19,056,216)
21,258,632 42 316,737
21,258,632 42 316,737
21,258,632 42,316,737
10.11 20.26

The annexed notes from 1 to 53 form an integral part of these consclidated financial statements

UerUtdl.

Chief Executive Officer

Director



GOVERNMENT HOLDINGS (PRIVATE) LIMITED
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2022

Note
PROFIT FOR THE YEAR
Other comprehensive income / {loss) for the year

items that will not be subsequently reclassified to
consofidated statement of profit or foss:

Remeasurement loss on employeses' retirement benefils 32.2
Impact of tax

ltems that will be subsequently reclassified to
consclidated statement of profit or toss:

Effects of translation of investment in a foreign associate - 11
net of tax

Effects of translation cf investment in a foreign joint 13
venture - net of tax

TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FOR THE YEAR

2022 2021

21,258,632 42,316,737

(63,724) (36,203)
28,039 5,683
(35,685) (30,520)

383,973 ;
230,437 (68,182)
614,410 (68,182)

21,837,357 42,218,035

The annexed notes from 1 to 53 form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.

M ame-Qpof.-

Chief Executive Officer

Lo, e

Director




GOVERNMENT HOLDINGS (PRIVATE) LIMITED

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHAMGES IN EQUITY

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUME 30, 2022

Atiributabla to ewners of e Holding Company

i : Ravenus
Share Capital Revenue Reserve Capital Reserve Resirve
MNen-
Foreign contrelling Total Equily
[3aued, Advance Comrithed i Assat Asscts . interest
subscribed  against issue 2:::2' t;unr;f;?:n autjay Lr:lf;:;eut insUrANGY Acquisilion Ummrﬂed Tolal
and paid-up of shares reaerve reserve reserve
reserve
Rupeas {'00)
Palancs as at July 1, 2020 20,8851 414,928 2,284 626 w225 20846247 25000 000 3,000,000 5, 20D, 000 86.408,141 184,140,678 1375 164,142 053
Total comprehensive income for the year
Froft lor the year . - - - . - - - 42,316,737 43 36,737 42,216,737
Qther camprehardive I6ss far the yaar - - - (88,182} - — - - {30 S0, {58, 702) {38.702)
Taotal comprahensive income far the year - - - (88,182) - - g - 42286217 42,248,035 - 42 218,035
Transactions with owners of the Holding Company
Arguisition of minority inlerest - - - ey - - - - ABE1) (3.525) {1.475) (A 800
Contributlens
Advance received ggaingt igsue of sheres - 1921764 - - . - - 1521764 - 1831764
Distribulionrs
Inteeim dividend 2021: Rs. 5.35 per share B - - - (F 000, 000y 7 000,000 5 (7000000
Total contribubons and distibutions- ret . 1,921,764 - - - - - (7 G000 00 {5,078,236) - (5.078.22E6)
Balance as al Juna 30, 2021 285121 2.336.092 2.2B4 G2E 134 368 20,846,247 25000 000 2.000.000 5,000,000 121,590,497 201,276,991 - 201,276,951
BEalance A% al July 01, 2021 20,885,121 1,306,092 2,284,626 134,368 20,948,247 25,000,000 3,000,004 5,000 0043 121,580,457 201 27E 951 - 201,275,901
Tetal comprehansive incoma for Lha year
Profit for the year - - - - - - 1,258,632 21,258,632 5 21,258 632
Qther comprehensive income f {loss) for the year . - 14,410 - - {35,656) 578,725 . 78,715
Total camprehensive income far the year - - - &14,410 - - 21,222,047 21,837,357 S 1,837,357
Transaclions with ewners of the Halding Company
Contributions
Advance received againat msue of shares - 4345 244 - - - 436,244 . 436 244
1550 of & haraes 42440 {3,440 - - - - - - -
442,440 {8198 - - 438,244 436,244
Distributions
Interim dividend 2022: Rs. 2.34 per share - - - | - (5,000,000 {5.000.000) {5,000,000)
Totel contributions and distrkbutlons- net 442 440 (6,196} - - - {5.000,000} 14.563.T58) 14,563,756}
Balance as at June 3, 2022 21,387 561 2,323 898 2,284 626 T48,7TE 20 946!24? 25,000 000 2,000,004 4000 000 137 913 444 18550 552 S 218 650 662

The annexed nobtas rarn 1 1a 53 foem an inlegral par of ihess cansolidaisd Snancial staleranis.

JRTIL /

Chiel Executive Cfficar Director




GOVERNMENT HOLDINGS {PRIVATE) LIMITED
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2022

Mote
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Profit before taxaticn
Adjustments for:
Amortisation of development and production assels 10
Depreciation on joint operations' fixed assels 6.2
Depreciation on right of use assets 38
{Gain} / loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment 43
Loss on assets written off
Impairment on property, plant and equipment g2
Impairment on development and production assets 382
Depreciation on owned fixed assels 6.1
Amoptisation of intangible assels g
Share of loss of associale 11
Dry hole wells 40
Provision for employee henefits 30 &32.2
Unwinding of discount on provision for
decommissioning cost 291
Unwinding of discount on 1ong term liability 271
Discount of long term liability 271
Unrealised exchange {gain) / 108
Share of loss from joint venture - nef of taxation
Provision for windfall levy on oil } condensate 42
Reversal due to change in decommissioning
cost estimates 293
Net impairment loss on financial assets 18.3
Interest on delayed payment 39
Interest expense on lgase liability 38
interest income 39
Changes in working capital;
Increase in stores, spare and loose tools - share in
joint operations’ inventory
{Increase} / dacrease in stock in trade
increase in trade debts
increase in recoverable from tax authorities
Decrease { (increase} in loans, advances and other receivables
increase in trade deposits and short-tertn prepayments
increase in trade and other payables
Increase in contract habilities
Cash generated from operations
Long term loan to staff 12
Income tax paid 34
Employee benefits paid 308 32.2
Interest paid on delayed payments 39

Net cash (used)! generated from operating activities

URFKFEL

Page 1 of 2

2022 2021
------------ Rupeas {'000)-------r—="="
36,894,770 61,372,953
3,805,248 3,972,122
2,581,680 2,297,716
10,701,431 10,701,431
{2.481) 41
- 2635
459,808 235,200
772,213 72.311
37,397 38,372
18,786 26,022
2,513,552 -
388,609 306,996
131,814 81,867
394,365 239,292
9,329 -
{646,289) {(177.617)
47,611,701 [10,101,221}
50,211 20,781
4,995,336 1,320,292
(347,222} (174,167}
539,704 -
179,767 77,561
5,683,227 5,473 875
(5,006,366} (3,399,531)
101,767,090 72,385,833
{33,546) (546,903}
{12,845,661) 436,125
(80,225,672) (59,608,983}
{5,338,281) {1,562,880]
16,819 {130,541}
(488) (3,308)
15,178,288 12,358,180
67,353 -
{83,181.,188) (49,058.410}
18,585,902 27 327,423
(29,396) {8,960)
(27,991,363} {20,435,756)
{90,744) {101,628}
(179,767} (77.561)
{9,706,367) 2,702,518




CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Capital expenditure

Deposit with the Government of Pakisian in

connection with Rike Dig project

Proceeds from disposal of property, plant and equipment
Interest received

Invastment in associate

Investment in joint venture

Purchase of non controlling interest

Sale { {purchase} of short term investments

Met cash used in investing activities
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Advance received against issue of shares
Dividend paid

Lease rentals paid

Government loan procaads

Net cash used in financing activities

MNET INCREASE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT BEGINNING
OF THE YEAR

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT END OF THE YEAR

25.3

242

Page 2 of 2

2022 2021
-------------- Rupees {'000)--—-—-camramrenrs
(7,220,722) {(6,055,745)
{34,301,231) -
1,511 331
5,567,878 3,276,907
{4,205,500) -
- {28,113}
- {4,900}
2,000,000 {6,000,000)
{38,158,064) {8,811,520)
436,244 1,921,764
(5,000,000) {7,000,000)
{15,312,568) {13,788,298)
61,251,098 37,215,777
41,374,774 18,349,245
(6,488,658) 12,240,244
39,800,460 27 560,216
33,311,802 39,800,460

The annexad notes from 1 to 53 form an integral part of these consclidated financial statements.

Lo, clised

SOEFEL.

Waninch.

Chief Executive Offlcer

Director



GOVERNMENT HOLDINGS (PRIVATE) LIMITED
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2022

1.
11

1.2

13

THE GROUP AND ITS OPERATIONS

Constitution and ownership

These consclidated financial statements comprise of Government Holdings (Private) Limited ("the Holding
Company”} and its subsidiaries, Inter State Gas Systems (Private) Limited (ISGSL) and Pakistan LNG Limited
{PLL), {collectively referred to as "the Group™).

Government Holdings (Private) Limited

Government Holdings (Private} Limited (the "Haolding Company”} was incorporated in Pakistan as a private
limited company on January 15, 2000, under the Companigs Ordinance, 1984 (now the Companias Act,
2017}, The Heolding Company's registered office is situated at 7th Floor, Petraleum House, Ataturk Avenue, G-
5/2, Islamabad. The main objectives of the Holding Company are to:

a}

b)

Acquire shares of the companies or interest of Government of Pakistan (GoP) in the existing and new
oil and gas concessions, either by payment or by issuance of shares, credited as fully paid, or other
securities, ag the Helding Company may think fit and to hold and enjoy all interests, rights, contracts
and privileges vested in, or connected with, the title of such shares; and

Take over, acquire, renew, unitize, and hold any exploration, prospecting, development and production
concessions of whatever nature or otherwise acquire any estate or interest, develop resources of work,
dispose off or otherwise turn to account jand or sea beds in any part of the world containing or thought
ta contain petreleum or any cther oil in any form, and to search for or participate in the exploration for
petroleum or any other ¢il in any form, asphalt, bitumen or similar substances or natural gas, ar any
substance used or which may be capable of use, and to organize, equip and employ expeditions,
experts and other agents to carry out drilling and other exploratory operations, and to establish and
operate oil and gas wells and other undertakings for the extraction of any of the aforesaid substances.

As of the date of consclidated statement of financial position, the Heolding Company has the following
investments:

a)

b}

Inter State Gas System (Private) Limited (ISGSL) - wholly owned subsidiary

The Helding Company has 100% shareholding in the Inter State Gas System (Private) Limited (ISGSL)
under share subscription agreement. The main ohjective of the ISGSL is to carry on the business of
importing, processing, purifying, buying, storing, supplying, transporting, transmitting, selling and
exparting natural gas and other natural gas products whether as such or in a liquid state, for lighting,
heating, motive power, power generation or for any other purpose whatsoever. TAPI Pipeline Company
Limited {TPCL}, the associate of ISGSL is registered in the Isle of Man as a limited liability company
and its head office is situated in Dubai, United Arab Emirates. TPCL is principally engaged to carry out
the business of developing, engineering, funding the construction of, procuring the equipment
engineering and other services for construction and operation of, constructing owning, operating and
providing maintenance for the proporticn of TAPI Pipeline running from the borders of Turkmenistan
and Afghanistan tc the barder of Pakistan and India.

Pakistan LNG Limited {PLL) - wholly owned subsidiary

The Holding Company has 100% shareholding in Pakistan LNG Limited (PLL}, a public company
incorporated on December 11, 2015 under the Companies Ordinance, 1984 {Currently Companies Act,
2017). The principle activity of PLL is to import, transport, market and distribute Liquefied Natural Gas
{LNG). PLL has achieved its commercial operation date on January 04, 2018, With effect from January
01, 2021 PLL merged with Pakistan LNG Terminals Limited (PLTL) pursuant to completion of all legal
requirements, with PLL being the surviving entity.



[ —)

1.4

dj

2.
Pakistan International Qil Limited {PIOL) - foraign operation - 25% shareholding

During the year, the Holding Company, along with other consortium members i.e. Mari Petroleum
Company Limited (MPCL}), Pakistan Petrcleum Limited {PPL) and Qil and Gas Development Company
Limited (QGDCL) has been awarded Offgshore Block 5 in Abu Dhabi's second competitive exploration
black bid round. The consortium companies have established an independent entity named Pakistan
International Gil Limited (P1OL). PICL is engaged in the husiness of extraction of oii and natural gas and
is registered as a limited liabilty company in the Emirate of Abu Dhabi and incorporated in Abu Dhabi
Global Market on July 15, 2021, with each consortium company having a 25% equity stake in PIQL. The
exploration concession agreement between PIOL and Abu Dhabi National Qil Company (ADNOGC) was
signed on August 31, 2021.

Peposit with the Government of Pakistan {GoP) for equity stake in Reko Diq project -
3.33% shareholding

The Holding Company has deposited its share of USD 187.5 milkon upen instruction of the Federal
Government for an equity stake in Reko Dig project. Reko Dig is owned 50% by Barrick, 25% by three
Federal State-Owned Enterprises {SOEs) i.e. the Helding Company, Pakistan Petroleumn Limited (PPL)
and Oil and Gas Development Company Limited (OGDCL} , 15% by the Government of Balochistan
(GOB) on a fully funded basis and 10% by the GOB on a free carried basis. The reconstitution of the
Reko Dig project was completed in December 2022. Reko Dig is expected to have a life of at least 40
years as a truck-and-shove! open pit aperation with processing facilities preducing a high-quality copper-
gold concentrate. Construction is expected in two phases with a combined process capacity of 80
million tonnes per annum.

The Group has interest in certain joint aperations / concessions as non-gperator. Geographical |ocation of
concessions / blocks is as under:

Operator Concession ! Block Working Interest (%} Province

Al-Haj Baska North 4.15 Balochistan & KPK
Al-Haj Potwar South 2.5 Punjab

Hycarbex Yasin 5 Sindh & Balochistar
KPBY Makhad 2.5 KPK

Tallahasse Karak North 2.5 KPK

MOL Tal 5 (Exp) ~ 15 (Dev}* KPX

MPCL Bolan / Zarghun South 17.5 Balochishtan
MPGL Wali West 2.5 KPK

MPCL Sharan 25 Balochishtan
MPCL MNarek 25 Balochishtan
OGDCL Bitrism 5 {Exp) ~ 22.5 (Dev)* Sindh

OGDCL Gudau 5 {Exp) ~ 22.5 {Dev)* Sindh & Punjab
OGDCL Gwadar 25 Balochistan
OGDCL Jhakro 22.5 Sindh

OGDCL Khewari 5 {Exp) ~ 25 (Dev)* Sindh

GGDCL Khuzdar Morth 25 Balochistan
OGDCL Khuzdar South 2.5 Sindh & Balochistar
OGDCL Kotra 5 (Exp) ~ 20 {Dev}* Balochishtan
OGDCL Mashpa 5 (Exp} ~ 15 {Dev)* KPK

OGDCL Nim 5{Exp) ~ 22.5 (Dev)* Singh



Operator

OGDCL
QGDCL
OGDCL
OGDCL
OGDCL
QGDCL
OGDCL
OGRCL
OGDCL
QGDCL
OGDCL
OGDCL
OGDCL
OGDCL
QGDCL
OGDCL
OGDCL
OPPL
PEL
PEL
PEL
POL
POL
POL
PPL
PPL
PFL
PPL
PPL
PPL
PPL
PPL
PPL
PPL
PPL
PPL
UEP
UEP
UEP
UEP
UEP
UEP
UEP
UEP
UEP
Faiga

Concession ! Block

Orakzai
Falantak
Pasni West
Pezu
Rakhshan
Ranipur
Chanda
Sinjhora

Tirah

Tando Allah Yar
Gurgalot

Zin

Lilla

Jhelum
Sujawal South
Khewari East
Sulgiman
Zamzama
Block 22
Kandra

Mirpur Mathelo
Fariwali
Minwal

North Dhumal
Bela West
Dhok Sultan
Gambat South
Hisal
Mazarani
Chachar
Nausherwani
Shah Bandar
Sirani

South Kharan
Musakhe!
Punjab
Badinll
Gambat/ Tajjal
Khipro

Kubhan

Mehar
Mehran
Mirpur Khas
Mubarak
Sawan
Murgha Fagir Zai

* Exp- Exploratory phase
* Dev- Development phase

UNRFEL.

Working Interest (%)

4.66

25

2.5

264

25

2.5

5 (Exp) ~ 17.5 (Dev)*
5 (Exp) ~ 22.5 (Dev)*
5

5 (Exp) ~ 22.5 (Devy*
5

5

25

2.5

2.5

25

2.5

25

5 (Exp) ~ 22.5 (Dev)"
5 (Exp) ~ 25 (Dev)*
5

17.5

17.5

25

2.5

25

25

2.5

12.5

25

25

2.5

25

2.5

2.5

2.5

5 (Exp) ~ 24 ({Dev)*
5 (Exp) ~ 22.5 (Dev)*
5 (Exp) ~ 25 (Dev)*
2.5

5 (Exp) ~ 25 (Dev)*
5{Exp) ~ 25 (Dev)*

5 (Exp) ~ 25 (Dev)*

5 (Exp) ~ 25 (Dav)*
225

)

Province

KPK
Balochistan
Balochistan
Punjab & KPK
Balochistan
Sindh

KPK

Sindh

KP¥

Sindh
Punjab & KPK
Balochistan
Punjab
Punjab
Sindh
Sindh
Balochistan
Sindh

Sindh

Sindh

Sindh
Punjab
Punjab
Punjab
Balochistan
Funjab & KPK

Sindn
Punjab

Sindn

Sindh
Batochistan

Sindh

Sindh

Balochistan

Balochistan

Punjab

Singh

Sindh

Sindh

Balochistan

Sindh & Balochistar

Sindh
Sindh
Sindh
Sindh
Balochistan
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BASIS OF PREPARATION
Statement of Compliance

These consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the accounting and reporting
standards as applicable in Pakistan. The accounting and reporting standards applicable in Pakistan comprise
of.

- International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS Standards) issued by the International Accounting
Standards Board (IASB) as notified under the Companies Act, 2017 and

- Provisions of and directives issued under the Companies Act, 2017.

YWhere provisions of and directives issued under the Companies Act, 2017 differ fram the IFRS Standards,
the provisions of and directives issued under the Companies Act, 2017 have been followed,

Basis of measurement

These consglidated financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost convention except for
certain items as disclosed in the relevant accounting policies below.

Functional and presentation currency
lterms included in the consclidated financial statements are measured using the currency of the primary

economic environment in which the Group operates. The consolidated financial statements are presented in
Pakistan Rupee {PKR/ Rupees/ Rs) which is the Group’s functional currency.

NEW AND REVISED STANDARDS AND INTERPRETATIONS

Standards, amendments and interpretations to existing standards that are not yet effective and have not been
early adopted by the Group:

Effective date (annual
reporting periods
beginning on aor after)

IAS 1 Presentation of Financial Statements {Amendments) January 1, 2023
IAS 8 Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errars

{(Amendments) January 1, 2023
1AS 12 Income Taxes (Amendments} January 1, 2023
IAS 186 Property, Plant and Equipment (Amendments) January 1, 2022
IAS 37 Provigions, Contingent Liakilities and Contingent Assets {Amendments} January 1, 2022
1AS 41 Agriculture (Amendments) January 1, 2022
IFRS 3 Business Combinations {Amendments) January 1, 2022
IFRS 4 Insurance Contracts {Amendments} January 1, 20232
IFRS 8 Financial Instruments (Amendments) January 1, 2022
IFRS 16 Leases {(Amendments) January 1, 2022
IFRS 10 Consclidated Financial Statements (Amendments} January 1, 2021
IAS 28 Investments in Associates and Jeoint Ventures {Amendments) January 1, 2021

The management anticipates that adoption of above standards, amendments and inlerpretations in future
pericds will have no material impact on the Group's consolidated financial statements other than in
presentation / disclosures.
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further, the following new standards and interpretations have been issued by the International Accounting
Standards Board (JASB), which are yet to be notified by the Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan
{SECP}, for the purpose of their applicability in Pakistan:

IFRS 1 First-time Adoption of International Financial Reporting Standards
IFRS 17 Insurance Contracts

The following interpretations issued by the |1AS8 have been waived of by SECP:

IFRIC 12 Service Concession Arrangements

Standards and amendments to approved accounting standards that are effective

There are certain arrangements and interpretations to the accounting and reporting standards which are
applicable on the Group fram July 1, 2021, however, these do not have significant impact on the Group's
financial reporting.

The Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan (SECP) through 5.R.O. 67(1)/2023 dated January 20,
2023, in partial medification of its previcus S.R.O. 1177 (/2021 dated September 13,2021, has notified that
in respect of companies holding financial assets due from the Government of Pakistan (SoP) in respect of
circular debt, the requirements contained in FFRS 9 with respect to application of Expected Credit Loss (ECL)
model shall not be applicable till December 31, 2024, provided that such companies shall follow relevant
requirements of IAS 39 'Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement' in respect of above referred
financial assets during the exemption period. Earlier to the S.R.C. 985{1)/2019 dated September 02, 2019,
SECP in a press release dated August 22, 2019 communicated that IFRS 9 needs to be iooked into from
Pakistan perspective where phenomenaon like circular debt need to be given due consideration. It was nated
that concerns expressed by companies regarding practical limitations in determining ECL on debts due from
GoP, due fo uncertain cash recovery patterns of circular debt, carry weight. Public information regarding
expected seftlement of circular debt by GoP in coming years may result in subsequent reversals of
impairment losses recognised in 2019. Financial assets due from GoP include those that are directly due from
GoP and that are ultimately due from GoP in conseguence of the circular debt. In accordance with the
exemption granted by SECP, ECL has not been assessed / recognised in respect of financial assets due
directly / ultimately frem GeP which includes trade debts amounting to Rs. 240,441 million (2021; Rs. 171,573
million) on account aof inter-carporate circular debts.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGMENTS

The preparation of consolidated financial staterments in conformity with approved accounting standards
requires the use of certain critical accounting estimates. It also requires management to exercise its judgment
in the process of applying the Group's accounting policies. Estimates and judgments are continually evaluated
and are based on historic experience and other factors, including expectations of future evenis that are
pelieved to be reasonable under the circumstances. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in the
period in which the estimates are revised and in any future period affected.

In the process of applying the Group's accounting policies, the management has made the following
estimates, assumptions and judgments which are relevant to these consolidated financial statements:

Property, plant and equipment - notes 5.1 and 6

The Group reviews appropriateness of the rate of depreciation, useful Iife and residual value vsed in the
calculation of depreciation on property, plant and eguipment. Further, where applicable, an estimate of the
recoverable amount of property, plant and equipment is made for possible impairment on an annual basis. in
making these estimates, the Greup uses the technical resources available with the Group. Any change in the
estimate in the future might affect the carrying amount of the respective items of property, plant and
equipment, with corresponding effects on the depreciation charge and impairment.
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Exploration and evaluation expenditure - notes 5.2 and 9

The Group's accounting policy for exploration and evaluation expenditure results in cerain items of
expenditure being capitalised for an area of interest where it is considered likely to be recoverable by future
exploration or sale or where the activities have not reached a stage which permits a reasonable assessment
of the existence of reserves. This policy requires management to make certain estimates and assumptions as
to future events and circumstances, in particular whether an ecenomically viable extraction operation can be
established. Any such estimates and assurmnptions may change as new information becomes available, If,
after having capitalised the expenditure under the policy, a judgment is made that recovery of the expenditure
is unlikely, the relevant capitalised amount is written off to consolidated statement of profit or loss.

PDevelopment and production expenditure - notes 5.4 and 10

Joint operations where the Group has carried cost working interest, on announcement of commercial
discovery, the Group initially provides for the liability related to relevant carried cost of the joint operations and
then recognise corresponding development and production expenditure; on the basis of best estimates
available from the shared cost statement of the relevant joint operation. An adjustment is made based on the
finalised cost agreed with the operator.

Taxation - notes 5.17 and 44

In determining tax provision, the Group takes into account the current tax laws and decisions taken by
appellate authorities. The current tax payable or receivable is the best estimate of the tax amount expected
10 be paid or received that reflects uncertzinty related to income taxes, if any. Instances where the Group's
view differs fram the view taken by the income tax department at the assessment stage and the Group
considers that its view on items of material nature is in accordance with law, the amounts are disclosed as
contingent liabilities unless the possibility of any outflow is remote. Where the final tax outcome of thase
matters is different from the amounts that were initially recorded, such differences will impact the current and
deferred tax balances in the year in which such determination is made.

Measurement of the expected credit loss allowance - notes 5.13.1 and 18.3

The measurement of the Expected Credit Loss ("ECL") allowance for financial assets raguires the use of
cornplex models and significant assumptions about future economic conditions and credit behavior {e.g. the
likelihood of counter parties defaulting and the resulting losses).

Elements of the ECL models that are considered accounting judgments and estimates include:

- Development of ECL models, including the various formulas and choice of inputs:

- Determining the criteria if there has been a significant increase in credit risk and so allowances for
financial assets should be measured on a lifetime ECL basis and the qualitative assessment;

- The segmentation of financial assets when their ECL is assessed on a cellective basis;

- Determination of associations between macroeconomic scenarios and, economic inputs, and their
effect on Probability of Default (PDs), Exposure At Default (EADs) and Loss Given Defauit {LGDs); and

- Selection of forward-looking rmacroeconomic scenarios and their probability weightings, to derive the
aconomic inputs into the ECL madels.

SIFRL .
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Provision for decommissioning cost - notes 5.15 and 29

Provigion is recognised for the future decommissioning and restoration cost of oil and gas wells, production
facilities and pipelines at the end of their useful lives and involves estimates related to future expected cost,
discount rate and timing. Estimates of the amount of provision recognised are based on current legal and
constructive requirements, technology and price levels. Provision is based on the best estimates, however,
the actual outflows can differ from estimated cash outflows due to changes in laws, regulations, public
expectations, technology, prices and cenditions, and can take place many years in the future. The estimated
timing of decommissioning may change due to certain factors, such as reserve life, a decision to terminate
operations or change in legislation. The carrying amount of provision is reviewed annually and adjusted to
take account of such changes.

During the year, the Group revised its estimates of decommissioning cost, reserve life, discount and inflation
rates. This has been treated as change in accounting estimates, applied prospectively, in accordance with
IFRIC Interpretation 1 "Changes in Existing Decommissioning, Restoration and Similar Liabilities".

Following line items would have been affected had there been no change in estimates:

Rupess 000"
Provision for decommissioning cost would have been higher by 1,928,151
Prapery, plant and equipment would have been higher by 561,853
Development and production assets woulkd have been higher by 897,475
Exploration & avaluation assets would have been higher by 21,571
Operating expenses would have been higher by 347222
Totat comprehensive income would have been lower by 347 222

Estimation of oil and natural gas reserves for amortisation of Development and Production Assets -
notes 5.4 and 10

Qil and gas reserves are an important element in calculation of amortisation charge and for impairment
testing of development and preduction assets of the Group. Estimates of oil and natural gas reserves are
inherently imprecizge, require the application of judgement and are subject to future revision. Reserves are
estimated by reference to available reservoir and well information, including production and pressure trends
for producing reserveoirs and, in some cases, subject to definitional limits, to similar data from other producing
reservairs. All reserve estimates are subject to revision, either upward or dewnward, based on new
information, such as from development, drilling and production activities or from changes in economic factors,
inciuding product prices, contract terms or development plans.

Changes in estimates of reserves, affects the amount of amortisation recorded in the consolidated financial
staterments for development and production assets,

Impairment of non financial assets including exploration and evaluation assets, development and
production assets and related property, plant and equipment - notes 5.5, 6, 9 and 10

At each reporting date, the Group reviews the carrying amount of its non financial assets to determine

whether there is any indication of impairment, If any such indication exists, then the assets recoverable
amount is estimated.
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Exploration and Evaluation {E&E) assets are assessed for impairment when facts and circumstances indicate
that carrying amount may exceed the recoverable amount of EAE assets. Such indicators include, the point at
which a determination is made that as to whether or not commercial reserves exist, the period for which the
Group has right to explore has expired or will expire in the near future and is not expected to be renewed,
substantive expenditure on further exploration and evaluation activities is not planned or budgeted and any
other event that may giva rise to indication that E&E assets are impaired.

Impairment test of dewvelopment and production assets and related property, plant and equipment is
performed whenever events and circumstances arising during the development and production phase indicate
that carrying amount of the development and production assets may exceed its recoverable amount. Such
circumstances depend on the interaction of & number of variables, such as the recoverable quantities of
hydrecarbons, the production profile of the hydrocarbons, the cost of the development of the infrastructure
necessary to recover the hydrocarhons, the production costs, the contractual duration of the production field
and the net selling price of the hydrocarbens produced. For impairment testing, assets are grouped together
into the smallest group of assets that generate cash inflows largely independent of other assets or Cash
Generating Units {CGUs). The CGU applied for impairment test purpose is generally based on a number of
fields grouped as a single cash generating unit where the cash flows of each field are inter-dependent.

The carrying value is compared against expected recoverable amount of an asset or CGU, generally by
reference to the future net cash flows expected to be derived from such assets. An impairment loss is
recognised if the carrying amount of an asset or CGU exceeds its recoverable amount. Impairment losses are
recagnised in consolidated statement of profit or loss. The impairment loss is allocaled to the assets in CGU
LN a prorata basis.

Where conditions giving rise to impairment subsequently reverse, the effact of the impairment charge is also
reversed as a credit in consolidated statement of profit or loss to the extent that the asset's carrying amount
does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined, net of depreciation or amortisation, if
ne impairment loss had been recognised.

Employee benefits - notes 5.16, 30 and 32.2

Defined benefits plans are provided for employees of the Group. Provident fund contribution plan and gratuity
fund plan are structured as separate legal entities managed by trustees where as accumulating compensated
absences plan is managed by the Group. These calculations require assumptions to be made of future
outcomes, the principal ones being in respect of increases in remuneration and pension henefit leveis, the
expected long term return on plan assets and the discount rate vsed to convert future cash flows to current
values. The assumptions used vary for the different plans as they are determined by independent actuaries
annually. The amount of the expected return on plan assets is calculated using the expected rate of return for
the year and the market related value at the beginning of the year. Service cost primarily represents the
Increase in actuarial present value of the ohbligation for benefits earmed on employees service during the year
and the inferest on the chligation in respect of employee's service in previous years, net of the expected
return on plan assets. Calculations are sensitive to changes in the underlying assumptions.

Provision against financial assets not subject to ECL model

As referred to note 3.3, the SECP has deferred applicability of ECL modet in respect of financial assats due
directly / ultimately from Government of Pakistan (GoP) till December 31, 2024 in respect of circular debt.
Accardingly, the Group reviews the recoverability of its trade debts and investments that are due directly /
utimately from GoP in respect of circular debt to assess whether there is any objective evidence of
impairment as per requirements of IAS 39 'Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement’ at each
reporting date,

NINGEYA
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The Group has overdue receivables on account of inter-comorate circular debt. These overdue balances are
receivable from oil refineries and gas distribution companies. GoP is committed, hence continuously pursuing
for satisfactory settlerment of inter-corporate circular debt issue. However, the progress is slower than
expected resulting in accumulation of Group's debts. Inter-corporate circular debt in Pakistan arises due to
delayed payments in the energy sector supply chain; GoF either directly or through its direct / indirect
ownership of entities within energy sector supply chain is at the core of circular debt issue. The Central Power
Purchase Agency (CPPA), a government owned entity, is sole power purchaser for the Country and the
circular debt is a shorifall of payments primarily by the CPPA, however, in case of gas distribution and
transmission companies the shortfall zlso occurs because of a delay in receipts of subsidies from the GoP for
supply of gas to certain domestic / industrial consumers,

Settlement of the Group's receivables is slower than the contractual terms primarily because circular debt is a
macro economic level issue in Pakistan and its level at any given time is dependent on policies and / or
priorities of the GoP, the level of subsidies offerad by GoF to certain domestic and industrial consumers,
exchange rate fluctuations, global crude oil prices and certain other systemic issues within energy sector
(tariffs, losses, non f detayed recoveries).

The Group’s assessment of objective evidence of impairment with respect to over dug amounts on account of
inter-corporate circular debt takes into account commitment made by the GoP, contractual rights to receive
compensation for delayed payments and plans of the GoP to address the issue of inter-corporate circular
debt.

The Group has contractual right and is entitled to charge interest if payments from customers delayed beyond
credit terms, however, the Group recognises interest, if any, on delayed payments from customers or
investments only to the extent that it is highly probable that a significant reversal in the amount of income
recognised will not occur when the uncertainty associated with the interest is subsequently resolved, which is
when the interest on delayed payments is received by the Group.

Stores, spares & loose tools - share in Joint operations' inventory - notes 5.10 and 15

The Group reviews the stores, spares and loose tools for possible wriite downs f provisions on an annual
basis. Any change in the estimates in future years might affect the carrying amounts of the respective items
with a corresponding affect on the provision.

Accounting estimates related to capital work in progress and lease are disclosed and explained in notes 5.8
and 5.9 respectively.

SUMMARY OQF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
Property, plant and equipment

These are initially recognised at acquisition cost, including any costs directly attributable to bringing the assets
to the location and condition necessary for it to be capable of operating in the manner intended by the Group's
management. These assets are subsequently measured using the cost model, which is cost less subsequent
depreciation and impairment losses (if any), except for freehold land and capital work in progress, which are
stated at cost less impairment loss (if any).

The cost includes the cost of replacing parts of the plant and eguipment when that cost is incurred, if the
recognition criteria are met. Depreciation is charged using the straight line method when assets are avaitable
for use over the useful life of the underlying asset. The cost of replacing part of an item of property, plant and
equipment is recogniged in the carrying amount of the item if it is probable that the future economic benefits
embodied within the part will flow to the Group and its cost can be measured reliably. The carrying amount of

the replaced part is derecognised. Maintenance and normal repairs are charged to consolidated statement of
profit or loss.

O
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An item of property, plant and equipment and any significant part initially recognised is derecognised upon
disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal. The gain or loss arising
en derecognition of an item of property, plant and equipment is determined as the difference between the
sales proceeds and the carrying amounts of the asset and is recognised in as other income in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss.

An assel's carrying amount is written down immediately to its recoverable amount if the asset's carrying
amount is greater than its estimated recoverable amount,

Capital work in prograss is transferred to the respective itemn of property, plant and equipment when available
for intended use.

Intangible assets

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured at cost on initial recognition. Following initial recognition,
intangible assets are carried at cost less accumulated amortisation and any accumulated impairment loss.
Costs associated with routine maintenance of intangible assets are recognised as an expense when incurred,
However, costs that are directly attributable to identifiable intangible assets and which enhance or extend the
performance of intangible assets beyond the original specification and useful life is recognised as capital
improvement and added to the crginal cost of the intangible assets. The cost of intangible assets is
amortised over the estimated useful life on a straight line basis.

The useful lives of intangible assets are reviewed at each reporting date. The effect of any adjustment to the
useful life is recognised prospectively as a change in accounting estimates.

Exploration and evaluation assets (E&E Asseis)

The exploration cost of all the joint operations is accounted for under the "Successful Efforts” method. Under
the successful efforts method of accounting, all property acquisitions, exploratory / evaluation drilling costs
are initially capitalised as intangible Exploration and Evaluation {(E&E)} assets in well, field or specific
exploration cost centers as appropriate. Costs directly associated with an exploratory well are capitalised as
an intangible asset until the drilling of the well is completed and results have been evaluated. Major costs
include employee benefits, material, chemical, fuel, well services and rig operational costs. All other
exploration costs including cost of technical studies, seismic acguisition and data processing, geological and
geophysical activities are charged in the consolidated statement of profit or loss as exploration and
praspecting expenditure. Pre license cost are charged to consolidated statement of profit or loss as and when
they are incurred.

intangible E&E assets refating to each exploration license f field are carried forward, until the existence or
otherwise of commercial reserves have been determined subject to certain limitations including review for
indications of impairment. If commercial reserves have been discovered, the canying value after any
impairment loss of the relevant EAE assets is then reclassified as development and production assets and if
commercial reserves are not found, the related costs are written off in consolidated statement of profit or loss.
E&E assets are not amortised prior to the conclusion of appraisal activities.

Development and production assets (D&P Assets)

During exploratory phase under carried cost working interest holding, relevant working interest of the Group in
various concessions i3 carried by its relevant partners in the respective joint operations, in accordance with
the related Petroleum Concession Agreements {PCAs). Consequent to the declaration of commercial
discovery by the operator and approval by the Director General Petroleum Concessions (DGPC), the Group
has right to increase its working interest up to 25% and the resulting consideration is payable to relevant joint
operation partners in these joint operations, according to the provisicns of the related PCAs.
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The carried cost payable to joint operation partners comprise of the cost of the successful wells and
expenditure that are attributable to the commercial discovery. The cost is directly recognised as
development and production assets to the extent to which the cost relates to wells. The remaining portion of
the cost is charged off to consolidated statement of profit or loss as exploration and praspecting expenditure.

Development and production assets also include the cost of developing the discovered commercial reserves
and bringing them into production, together with the capitalized E&F expenditures incurred in finding
commercial reserves transferred from E&E assets as outlined in accounting policy 5.3 above and the cost of
recognising provisions for future site restoration and decommissioning.

Expenditure carried within each field is amortised from the commencement of production on a unit of
production basis, over the estimated useful life of the field determined by reference to proved reserves, on a2
field by field basis. Changes In the estimates of commercial reserves or future field development costs are
dealt with prospectively. Amortisation is charged to consolidated statement of profit or loss. Amortisation
expense for the year is computed on all development and production assets at year end including additions /
adjustments made during the year. Changes in the estimates of commercial reserves or future field
development costs are dealt with prospectively.

Impairment of non financial assets

At each reporting date, the Group reviews the carrying amount of its non financial assets to determine
whether there is any indication of impairment. If any such indication exists, then the assets recoverable
amount is estimatead,

Exploration and Evaluation (E&E)assets are assessed for impairment when facts and circumstances indicate
that carrying amaunt may exceed the recoverable amount of E&E assets. Such indicators include, the poini at
which a determination is made that as to whether or not commercial reserves exist, the period for which the
Group has right to explore has expired or will expire in the near future and is not expected to be renewed,
substantive expenditure on further exploration and evaluation activities is not planned or budgeted and any
other event that may give rise to indication that E&E assets are impaired.

Impairment test of development and production assets and related property, plant and equipment is
performed whenever events and circumstances arising during the development and production phase indicate
that carrying amount of the development and production assets may exceed its recoverable amount. Such
circumstances depend on the interaction of 8 number of variables, such as the recoverable quantities of
hydrocarbons, the production profile of the hydracarbons, the cost of the development of the infrastructure
necessary to recover the hydrocarbons, tha production costs, the contractual duration of the production field
and the net selling price of the hydrocarbens produced.

For impairment testing, assets are grouped together intc the smallest group of assets that generate cash
inflows largely independent of other assets or Casg Generating Units (CGUs). The carrying value is
compared against expecied recoverable amount of an asset or CGU, generally by reference to the future net
cash flows expecied to be derived from such assets. An impairment loss is recognised if the carrying amount
of an asset or CGU exceeds its recoverable amount. Impairment lesses are recognised in consolidated
staternent of profit or loss.

Where conditions giving rise to impairment subsequently reverse, the effect of the impairment charge is also
reversed as a credit in consolidated statement of profit or ioss to the extent that the asset's carrying amount
does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined, net of depreciation or amortisation, if
no impairment loss had been recognised.

If the change in estimate results in an increase in the decommissioning liability and, therefore, an addition to
the carrying value of the asset, the Group considers whether there is an indication of impairment of the asset
88 a whole, and if s, test for impairment in accordance with the 1AS-38 Impairment of Assets.
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Joint arrangemeants
Joint operations

Investments in joint arrangements are classified as either joint operations or joint ventures depending on the
contraciual right and obligations of the parties to the arrangement. The Group has assessad the nature of ils
Jjoint arrangements and determined them to be joint operations. The Group has recognised its share of
assets, liabilities, income and expenditure jointly held or incurred under the joint operations on the basis of
latest available audited accounts of the joint operations and where applicable, the cost statements received
from operators of the joint arrangements for the intervening period up to the consolidated statement of
financial position date.

Joint venture

Jeint ventures are joint arrangements whereby the parties that have joint contral of the arrangement have
rghts to the net assets of the jeint arrangement. Joint ventures are those investments in distinct legal entities
over whose activities the Group has joint control, established by contractual agreement and requiring
unanimeous consent for strategic financial and operating decisions.

Investments in joint ventures are accounted for using the equity methad and ars initially recognised at cost,
which includes transaction costs. Investment in foreign joint venture is translated into presentation currency at
each reporting year end. The related exchange rate difference is charged / credited to foreign currency
translation reserve.

The consolidated financial statements include the Group's share of the profit or loss and other comprehansive
income, after adjustments to align the accounting policies with those of the Group, from the date that joint
conirol commences, until the date that joint control ceases.

When the Group's share of losses exceeds its interest in a joint venture, the carrying amount of that interest
{including any long term investments) is reduced to nil and the recognition of further losses is discontinued
except to the extent that the Group has a constructive or legal obligation to contribute to such Iosses or has
made payments on behalf of the investee.

After application of equity method, the Group determines whether it is necessary to recognise an impairment
loss on its investment in joint venture. When necessary, the entire carrying amount of the nvestment
{including goodwill) is tested for impairment in accordance with 1AS 36 Impairment of assets.

Investment in associated company

An associate is an entity over which the Group has significant influence and that is neither a subsidiary nor an
interest in the joint venture. Significant influence is the power to participate in the financial and operating
policy decisions of the investee but is not control or joint control over those policies.

The results, assets and liabilities of the associate have been incorperated in these consolidated financial
statements using the equity mathod of accounting. Under the equity method, investments in associates are
initially recognised at cost adjusted thereafter to recognise the Group's share of the post-acquisition profits or
losses of the associate in consolidated profit or loss and the Group’'s share of movements in other
comprehensive income of the associate in consalidated other comprehensive income. Dividends received or
receivable from the associate is recognised as a reduction in the carrying amount of the investment.
Adjustments to the carrying amount may also be necessary for changes arising from the foreign exchange
transfation differences. The Group's share of those changes is recognised in the Group's consolidated other
comprehensive income. Losses of an associate in excess of Group's interest In that associate are recognised
onhly to the extent that the Group has incurred legal or constructive obligation or made payment on behalf of
the associate. Where objeclive evidence of impairment of investment in asscciate is identified, then the

carrying amount of equity-accountad investment is tested for impairment in accordance with the paolicy
described in note 5.5

i



5.8

59

-13-

Capital work in progress
Capital work in progress is stated at cost less accumulated impairment losses, if any.

The carrying amount of the capital work in progress is reviewed at each reporting date to determine whether
there is any indication of impairment loss. If any such indication exists, the assst's recoverable amount is
estimated in order to determine the extent of impairment loss. Impairment losses are charged to consolidated
statement of profit or loss.

Lease liability and right-of-use asset

At inception of a contract, the Group assesses whether a contract is, or contains, a lease based on whether
the contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of time in exchange for
coensideration. Lease terms are negotiated on an individuat basis and contain a wide range of different terms
and conditions,

Leases are recognised as a right-of-use asset and a corresponding liability at the date at which the leased
asset is available for use by the Group.

The lease liability is initially measured at the present value of the lease payments that are not paid at the
commencement date, discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease, or if that rate cannct be readily
determined, the Group's incremental borrowing rate.

Lease payments include fixed payments, variable lease payment that are based on an index or a rate
amounts expected to be payable by the lessee under residual value guarantees, the exercise price of a
purchase option if the lessee is reasonably certain to exercise that option, payments of penalties for
terminating the lease, if the lease term reflects the lessee exercising that option, less any lease incentives
receivable. The extension and termination options are incorporated in determination of lease term only when
the Group is reasonably certain to exercise these options.

The lease liability is subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest rate method. It
Is remeasured when there is a change in future lease payments arising from a change in fixed lease
payments or an index or rate, change in the Group's estimate of the amount expected to be payable under a
residual valug guarantee, or if the Group changes its assessment of whether it will exercise a purchase,
extension or termination option. The corresponding adjustment is made to the carrying amount of the right-of-
use asset, or is recorded in profit and loss if the carrying amount of right-of-use asset has been reduced to
zero.

The right-of-use asset is initially measured based on the initial amount of tha lease liability adjusted for any
lease payments made at or before the commencement date, plus any initial direct costs incurred and an
estimate of costs to dismantle and remove the underlying asset or to restore the underlying asset or the site
on which it is located, less any lease incentive received. The right-of-use asset is depreciated on a straight
line method over the lease term as this method most closely reflects the expected pattern of consumption of
future economic benefits. The right-of-use asset is reduced by imgairment losses, if any, and adjusted for
certain remeasurements of the lease liability.

IFRS 16 requires the Group to assess the lease term as the non-cancelable lease term in line with the lease
contract together with the period for which the Group has extension opticns which the Group is reasonably
certain o exercise and the periods for which the Group has termination opticns far which the Group is not
reasonably certain to exercise thase termination options.

The reasonably certain period used to determine the lease term is based on facts and circumstances related
lo the underlying leased asset and lease contracts and after consideration of business plan of the Group
which incorporates economic, potential demand of custormers and economic changes.
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Stores, spares & loose tools - share in joint operations’ inventory

Stores, spares & loose tools are valued at the lower of cost and net realisable value less impairment for slow
maoving items. Cost is determined on the basis of costing methods adopted by operators of respective joint
operations. Net realisable value signifies the estimated selling price in the crdinary course of business less
¢osts necessarily to be incurred in order to make a sale.

Stock in trade

Invenlteries are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Costs of inventories are determined on
FIFO basis. Net realisable value represents the estimated selling price for inventories less all estimated costs
of compiletion and costs necessary to make the sale. Previcusly, the value of inventory was determined on
weighted average basis. Net realisable value signifies the estimated seiling price in the ordinary course of
business less all estimated costs of completion and costs necessarily to be incurred in order to make the
sales. Provision is made for slow moving and obsolete stocks, where considered necessary. The change in

accounting peolicy has been applied consistently to all periods presented in these consolidated financial
statements

Recoverable from tax authorities

This represents receivable from the tax autherities for the amount unadjusted against the sales tax liabilities
respectively.

tn sales tax returns, limitation of claiming input tax as lower of ninety percent of output tax or actua! input tax
gives rise to adjustable or refundable sales tax.

Financial instruments

All financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised at the time when the Group becomes a pariy to the
contractual provisions of the instrument. All the financial assets are derecognised at the time when the Group
losses control of the contractual rights that comprise the financial assets. All financial liabilities are
derecognised at the time when they are extinguished that is, when the obligation specified in the contract is
discharged, cancelled, or expires. Any gains or losses on de-recagnition of the financial assets and financial
liabilities are taken to the consoldated statement of profit or loss,

Financial assets
Classification
The Group classifies its financial assets in the following measurement categories:

a) Amortised cost where the effective interest rate method will apply;
b) Fair value through profit or loss {(FVTPL); and
¢} Fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI)

The classification depends on the Group's business model for managing the financial assets and the
contractual terms of the cash flows.

For assets measured at fair value, gains and losses will either be recerded in consolidated statement of profit
or loss or consolidated statement of other comprehensive income (OCI). For investments in equity
instruments that are not held for trading, this depends on whether the Group has made an irrevocable election
at the time of initial recognition to account for the equity investment at fair value through other comprehensive
income (FVYTOCI). The Group reclassifies debt investments when and only when its business model for
managing those assets changes.
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Recognition and derecognition

Regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are recognised on trade-date, the date on which the
Group commits to purchase or sell the asset. Financial assats are derecognised when the rights to receive
cash flows from the financial assets have expired or have been transferred and the Group has transferred
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownershig.

Measurement

Al initial recognition, the Group measures a financial asset at its fair value plus, in the case of a financial asset
not at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL), transaction costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition
of the financial asset. Transaction costs of financial assets carried at FVTPL are expensed in consolidated
statement of profit or loss,

Debt instruments

Subsequent measurement of debt instruments depends on the Group's business model for managing the
asset and the cash flow characteristics of the asset. There are three measurament categories into which the
Group classifies its debt instruments:

{a) Amortised cost

Assets that are held for collection of contractual cash flows where those cash flows represent solely
payments of principal and interest are measured at amortised cost. Interest income from these financial
assets is included in finance income using the effective interest rate method. Any gain or loss arising on
derecognition is recognised directly in consolidated statement of profit or loss and presented in other
income / expenses, together with foreign exchange gains and losses. Impairment losses are presented
as separate line item in the consolidated statement of profit or loss,

(b} Fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCIH

Assets that are held for collection of contractual cash flows and for selling the financial assets, where
the assets' cash flows represent solely payments of principal and interest, are measured at FYTCOCI.
Movements in the carrying amount are taken thraugh OCI, except for the recognition of impairment
gains or losses, interest revenue and foreign exchange gains and losses which are recognised in
consolidated statement of profit or loss. When the financial asset is derecognised, the cumulative gain
or loss previously recognised in OC| is reclassified from equity to consolidated statement of profit or
loss and recognised in other income ! expenses. Interest income from these financial assets is inciuded
in finance income using the effective interest rate method. Foreign exchange gains and losses are
prasented in other income ! expenses and impairment expenses are presented as separale line item in
the consclidated statement of profit or foss.

{c) Fair value through profit or loss (FYTPL)

Assets that do not meet the criteria for amortised cost or FYTOCI are measured at FVTPL. Any gain ar
less on a debt investment that is subsequently measured at FVTPL is recognised in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and presented net within other income / expenses in the period in which it
arses.

De-recognition of financial assets

A financial asset (or, where applicable part of a financial asset or part of a group of similar financial assets) is
derecognised when:

i) The rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired.

i) The Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset or has assumed an obligation
to pay the received cash flows in full without material delay to a third party under & ‘pass-through’
arrangement, and either (a) the Group has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the
asset, or (b} the Group has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the
asset, but has transferred control of the asset.

WIALY.
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When the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from an asset or has entered into a pass
through arrangement, and has neither transferred nor retained substantially all of the risks and rewards of the
asset nor transferred control of the asset, the assel is recognised to the extent of the Group's continuing
involvement in the asset,

In that case, the Group alse recognises an associated liabiity. The transferred asset and the associated
liability are measured on a basis that reflects the rights and obligations that the Group has retained.
Continuing invelvement that takes the form of a guarantee over the transferred asset is measured at the lower
of the original carrying amount of the asset and the maximum amount of consideration that the Group could
ke required 1o repay.

Impairment of financial assets

The Group assesses on a forward locking basis the Expected Credit Losses (ECL) associated with its debt
instruments carried at amortised cost and FYTOCL The impairment methodology applied depends on
whether there has been a significant increase in credit risk.

Following are financial instruments that are subject to the ECL model:

- Trade debts

- Trade deposits

- Long term lpans to staff

- Leans and other receivables
- Cash and bank balances

«  Short term investments

- Receivable from GoP

General approach for loans and other receivables, trade deposits, long term loans to staff, Receivable
from GoP, short term investments and cash and bank balances

The measurement of expected credit losses is a function of the probability of default, loss given default (i.e.
The magnitude of the loss if there is a default) and the exposure at default. The assessment of the prabability
of default and loss given default is based on historical data adjusted by forward-looking information {adjusted
for factors that are specific to the counterparty, general economic conditions and an assessment of both the
current as well as the forecast direction of conditicns at the reporting date, including time value of money
where appropriate). As for the exposure at default for financial assets, this is represented by the assets’ gross
carrying amount at the reporting date. Loss allowances are forward looking, based on 12 month expecled
credit losses where there has not been a significant increase in credit risk rating, otherwise allowances are
based on lifetime expected losses,

Expected credit losses are a probability weighted estimate of credit losses. The probability is determined by
the risk of default which is applied to the cash flow estimates. In the absence of a change in credit rating,
allowances are recognised when there is reduction in the net present valug of expected cash flows. On a
significant increase in credit risk, aflowances are recognised without a change in the expected cash flows,

altholgh typically expected cash flows do also change; and expected credit losses are rebased from 12
month to lifelime expectations.

Simplified approach for trade debts

The Group recegnises life time ECL on trade debts, using the simplified approach. The measurement of ECL
reflects:

= an unbiased and probability-weighted amount that is determined by evaluating a range of possible
outcomes,

- reasonable and supportable information that is available at the reporting date about past events,
current conditions and forecasts of future economic conditions.
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Trade debts are separately assessed for ECL measurement, The lifetime expected credit losses are
estimated using the Group's historical credit loss experience, adjusted for factors that are specific to the
debtors, general economic conditions and an assessment of both the current as well as the forecast direction
of conditions at the reporting date, including time value of money where appropriate.

Significant increase in credit risk

The Group considers the probability of default upon initial recognition of asset and whether there has been a
significant increase in credit risk on an ongoing basis throughout each reporting period. To assess whether
there is a significant increase in credit rigk, the Group compares the risk of a default ocourring on the
instrument as at the reporting date with the risk of default as at the date of initial recognition. It considers
available reasonable and supportable forward-looking information.

A financial asset is credit-impaired when one or more events that have a detrimental impact on the estimated
future cash flows of that financial asset have occurred. Evidence that a financial asset is credit-impaired
includes observable data about the following events:

- aclual or expected significant adverse changes in business, financial or economic conditions that are
expected o cause a significant change to the debtor's ability to meet its obligations;

- actual or expected significant changes in the operating results of the debtor;

- significant increase in credit risk an other financial instruments of the same debtar:

- significant changes in the value of the collateral supporting the obligation or in the quality of third-party
guarantees;

- significant financial difficulty of the borrower,

- abreach of contract, such as a default or past due event:

- the Group for economic or contractual reasons relating to the borrower's financial difficulty, have
granted to the borrower a concession(s) that the Group would not otherwise consider;

- itis becoming probable that the borrower will enter bankrupicy or other financial recrganisation; or

- the disappearance of an active market for that financial asset because of financial difficulties; if
applicable.

Definition of default

The Group considers the following as constituting an event of default for internal credit risk management
purposes as historical experience indicates that receivables that meet either of the following criteria are
generally not recoverable.

- when there is a breach of financial covenants by the counterparty; or
- information developed internally or obtained from external scurces indicates that

the dettor is unlikely to pay its creditors, including the Group, in full (without taking into account any collaterals
held by the Group}. Irrespective of the above analysis, a significant increase in credit risk is presumed if 3
debtor is more than 365 days past due in making a contractual payment unless the Group has reasonable
and supportaile information to demonstrate that a more lagging default criterion is more appropriate.

AFLL2.
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Recognition of loss allowance

The Group recognises an impairment gain or loss in the consolidated statement of profit or loss for all
financial instruments with a corresponding adjustment to their ¢ammying amount through a loss allowance
account,

Write-off

The Group write off financial assets, in whale or in part, when it has exhausted zll practical recovery efforts
and has concluded there is no reasonable expectation of recovery. The assessment of no reasonable
expectation of recovery is based on unavailability of debtor's sources of income or assets to generate
sufficient future cash flows to repay the amcunt. Financial assets written off may still be subject to
enforcement activities under the Group's recovery procedures, taking into account legal advice where
appropriate. Any recoveries made are recognised in consclidated profit or loss.

Financial liahilities
Classification, initial recognition and subsequent measurement
The Group classifies its financial liabilities in the following categories:

— at fair value through profit or loss ("FVTPL"}: and
— at amortised cost,

The Group determines the classification of its financial liabilities at initial recognition. All financial liabiiities are
recognised initially at fair value and, in the case of other financial liabilities, also include directly attributable
transaction costs. The subseguent measurement of financial liabilities depends on their classification, as
follows:

Fair vatue through profit or loss

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss include financial liabilities held-for-trading and financial
liabilities designated upon initial recognition as being at fair value through profit or loss. The Group has not
designated any financial liability upon recognition as being at fair value through profit or loss.

Amortised cost

After initial recognition, other financial liabilities which are interest bearing are subsequently measured at
amortised cost, using the effective interest rate method. Gain and losses are recognised in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss, when the liabilities are derecognised as well as through effeclive interest rate
amortisation process.

De-recognitlon of financial liabilities

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled or expires.
When an existing financial liability is replaced by ancther from the same lender on substantially different
terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or modification is
treated as & de-recognition of the original liability and the recognition of a new iiability, and the difference in
the respective carrying amounts is recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or loss.

The Group derecognises financial liabilities only when its obligations under the financial liabilities are
discharged, cancelled or expired. The difference between the carrying amount of the financial liability
derecognised and the consideration paid and payable, including any non-cash assets transferred or liabilities
assumed, is recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or loss.

Offsetting of financlal assets and financial liabilities

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the consolidated statement of
financial position if the Group has legally enforceable right to set-off the recognised amounts and the Group
intends to seltle on a net basis or realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.
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Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents in the consolidated statement of financial position comprise of term depository
receipts maturing within 3 months, cash in hand, cash at banks and the related accrued interest income
maturing within 3 months. Cash equivalents are short term highly liquid investments, that are readily
convertible to known amounts of cash and which are subject to an insignificant risk of change in value,

Decommissioning cost

The activities of the Group normally give rise to obligations for site restoration. Restoration activities may
include abandonment and removal of wells, facility decommissioning and dismantling, removal or treatment of
waste materials, land rehabilitation, and site restoration.

Liabilities for decommissioning cost are recognised when the Group has an obligation for site restoration, and
when a reliable estimate of that liability can be made. The Group makes provision in full for the
decommissicning cost on the declaration of commercial discovery of the reserves, to fulfil the obligation of
site restoration and rebabilitation. The obligations for oil and natural gas praduction or transportation facilities,
are required on construction or installation. An gbligation for decommissioning may also crystallize during the
period of operation of a well / facility through a change in legislation or through a decision to terminate
operations,

The amount recognised is the estimated cost of decommissioning, discounted Lo its net present value at &
current pre-tax discount rate that reflects the risks specific to the decommissioning liability and the expected
outflow of economic rescurces to settle this obligation is up to next thirty years.

Decommissioning cost, as appropriate, relating to producing or developing fields is capitalised to the cost of
development and production assets and property, plant and equipment as the case may be. The recognised
amount of decommissioning cost is subsequently amortised / depreciated as part of the capital cost of the
development and production assets on a unit of praduction method and property, plant and eguipment over
the assets useful life respectively. At the fime of decommissioning of the field, any differences arising from
setliement of the provision are recognised in consolidated statement of profit or loss.

While the provision is based on the best estimate of future costs and the economic life of the fields, there is
uncertainty regarding both the amount and timing of incurring these costs. The Group reviews the
decommissioning provision at the reporting date. Any change in the present value of the estimated
expenditure is dealt with prospectively and reflected as an adjustment to the provision and a corresponding
adjustment to property, plant and equipment and development and preduction assets. If a decrease in a
provision is greater than the carrying value of asset, the excess is recognised in consolidated statement of
profit or loss. The unwinding of the discount on the decommissioning provision is recognised as finance cost
in the consolidated statement of profit or loss,

If the change in estimate results in an increase in the decommissioning liability and, tharefore, an addition to
the carrying value of the asset, the Group considers whether there is an indication of impairment of the asset
as a whole, and if so, test for impairment in accordance with the I1AS-36 Impairment of Assets.

Employee benefits
Empleyees gratuity fund

The Group operates approved gratuity fund for its regular and contract employees. The investments of
gratuity funds are made through approved trust funds. Contributions are made in accordance with actuariat
recommendations. Actuarial valuations are conducted by an independent actuary, annually using projected
unit credit method related details of which are given in note 32 2 to the consolidated financial statements. The
cbligation at the date of consclidated statement of financial position is measured at the present value of the
estimated future ¢ash outflows.

RFFRL.
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Actuarial gains and iosses {remeasurement gains / losses) on employees’ gratuity fund are recognised
immediately in consolidatad other comprehensive income and past service cost is recognised in consolidated
statement of profit or loss when they ocour,

Cost primarily represents the increase in actuarial present value of the obligation for the employees’ gratuity
fund earned on employees service during the year and the interest on the net liability / tasset) in respect of
employee’s service in previous years. Calculations are sensitive to changes in the underlying assumptions.

Calculation of gratuity obligations require assumptions to be made of future outcomes which mainly includes
increase in remuneration, expected long-term return on plan assets and the discount rate used to convert
future cash flows to current values. Calculations are sensitive to changes in the underlying assumptions. The
assumptions used vary for the different plans and they are determined by independent actuary annually.

Employee compensated absences

The Group provides for compensated absences for all eligible employeas in accordance with the applicable
rules.

Defined contrlbution plan

The Group operates an approved contributory provident fund for all employees. Equal menthly contribution is
made both by the Group and the employee to the fund at the rate of 8.33% and 10% of basic salary for the
Holding Company and Subsidiary companies respectively. The Group's contributions are recognised as
employee benefit expensa when they are due.

Taxation
Income tax expense comprises of current and deferred tax.
Current tax

Provision for current taxation is based on taxable income at the applicable rates of taxation after taking into
account tax credits and tax rebates, if any, adjusted for payments to the Government of Pakistan (GoP) for
payments on account of royalty and any adjustment to tax payable in respect of previous years. income tax
expense is recognised in consolidated statement of profit or loss except fo the extent that it relates to items
recognised directly in equity or in other comprehensive income,

The Group recognises provision for income tax based on best current estimates. However, where the final tax
outcome is different from the amounts that were initially recorded, such differences impact the income tax
pravision in the period in which such determinafion is made,

The Group takes into account the current income tax law and decisions taken by the taxation authorities.
Instances where the Group's views differ from the income tax department at the assessment stage and where
the Group considers that its view on items of material nature is in accordance with law, the amounts are
shown as contingent liabilities.

Deferred tax

Deferred income tax is accounted for using the consolidated statement of financial pasition liakility method in
respect of all temporary differences arising between the carrying amount of assets and liabilities in the
consolidated financial statements and the corresponding tax bases used in the computation of taxable profit
Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary differences and deferred tax assets are
recognised to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profits will be available against which the
deductble temporary differences, un-used tax losses and tax credits can be utilised. Deferred tax is
calculated at the rates that are substantially expected to apply to the period when the differences reverse
based on the tax rates that have been enacted. Deferred tax is charged or credited to income except in the
case of items credited or charged to equity in which case it is included in equity.
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Deferred taxation is recognised taking into account avaitability of taxable profits. The management uses
assumptions about future best estimates of the availability of future taxable profits based on available
information. Deferred tax assets are reviewed at each reporting date and are reduced to the extent that it is
no longer probable that the related tax benefit will be realised.

Deferred tax is not recognised for the temporary differences arising from the initial recognition of assets or
liabilities in a transaction that is not a business combination and that affects neither accounting nor taxable
profit or loss, and differences relating te investments in associates and interast in joint arrangements to the
extent that it is probable that they will not reverse in a foreseeable future and the investor / joint operator is
able to control the timing of the reversal of the temporary difference. In addition, deferred tax is not
recognised for taxable temporary differences ariging on the initial recognition of goodwill.

Offsetting deferred tax assets and liabilities

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable right to offset current tax
assets and liabilities and when the deferred tax balances relate to the same taxation authority. Current tax
assets and tax liabilities are offset where the Group has a legally enforceable right to offset and intends either
to settle on a net basis, or to realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

Group tax

The Group is taxed as a one fiscal unit along with Holding Company and its other wholly owned subsidiaries
under section 59AA ta the Income Tax Crdinance, 20071. Current and deferred income taxes are recagnised
by each entity within the Group in their respective consolidated statement of comprehensive income,
regardless of who has the legal rights or obligation for the recovery or payment of tax from or to the tax
authoritiss. Tax liability / receivable is shown by the Holding Company, on submission of annual tax return,
who has the legal obligation tc pay or right of recovery of tax from the taxation authorities.

Provisions and contingent liabilities

A pravision fs recegnised in the consolidated statement of financial position when the Group has a present,
legal or constructive obligation as a result of a past event, and it is probable that an cutflow of economic
benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of such
obligation. Provisions are determined by discounting the expected future cash flows at a pre-tax discount rate
that reflects current market assessment of time value of money and risk specific fo the ligbility,

A contingent liability is disclosed when the Group has a possible obligation as 2 result of past events, whose
existence will be confirmed only by the occurrence or non-occurrence, of one or more uncertain future avents
not wholly within the control of the Group; or the Group has a present legal or consiructive obligation that
arises from past events, but it is not probable that an outflow of resources embodying ecanomic benefits will
be required to settle the obligation, or the amount of the cbligation cannot be measured with sufficient
reliability.

Revenue recognition

Revenue from contracts with customers is recognised when or as the Group satisfies a performance
obligation by transferring a promised good to a customer. Revenue associated with the sale of crude oil, gas
and liquefied petroleum gas is recognised at transaction price that is allocated to that performance obligation.
Revenue from contracts with customers is recognised when the Group satisfiss a performance obligation by
transferring a promised geod to a customer. A good is transferred when the customer cbtains control of that
good or service. The transfer of control of crude oll, gas and liquefied petroleum gas coincides with title
passing to the customer and the customer taking physical possession. The Group principally satisfies its

Eerformanc:e obligations at a point in time and recognises revenue relating to the performance.
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Revenue is measured at the transaction price, net of government ievies. Transaction prices of crude oil and
gas are specified in relevant agreements and / or as nolified by the government authorities based on
agreements with customers, relevant applicable petroleurn policy, decision of Econcmic Coordination
Committee {ECC) of the Cabinet or Petroleurn Concession Agreements {PCAs). Prices of liguefied petraleum
gas are approved by the appropriate authority of operator keaping in view the ceiling price notified by Oil &
Gas Regulatory Authority (OGRA}. Effect of adjustments, if any, arising from revision in sale prices is
reflected as and when the prices are finalized with the customers and / or approved by the Government of
Pakistan (GaP).

Revenue associated with the sale of Regasified Liguified Natural Gas (RLNG) is recognised at transaction
price that is allocated to that performance obligation. Revenue from contracts with customers is recognised
when or as the Group satisfies a performance obligation by transferring a promised good or service 1o a
customer. A goed or service is transferred when the customer cbtains control of that good or service. The
transfer of control of RLNG coincides with injection of RLNG into customer's pipeling infrastructure at the tig in
point through Custody Transfer Station {CTS). The Group principally satisfies its performance obligations at a
peint in time and recognises revenue relating to the performance.

Revenue refated to RLNG is measured at the transaction price, net of government levies. Transaction prices
of RLNG are notified by the government autharities on monthly basis on agreements with customers, relevant
agplicable petroleum policy, decision of ECC of the Cabinet. Effect of adjustments, if any, arising from
revision in sale prices is reflected as and when the prices are finalised with the custormers and / or approved
by the GoP.

Billings are generally raised by the end of each month which are payable within 30 to 45 days except for
RLNG where billings are generally raised by the end of each week which are payable within 5 days in
accordance with the contractual arrangement with customers. Amounts billed or received prior to being
earnad, are deferred and recognised as advances from customers. The Group based on its assessment has
not identified a significant financing component in its current contracts with customers because payment
terms of allowed days are explicitly specified and delay in settlerent of invoices does not result in a significant
financing companent.

Finance income and cost

Finance income comprises interest income on funds invested and gain on long term liabllities due to change
In estimate. Interest income of financial assets at amortised cost is calcutated using the effective interest
method and is recognised in consolidated statement of profit or loss. interest income is calculated by applying
the effective interest rate to gross carrying amount of a financial asset except for financial assets that
subseguently become credit impaired. Far credit impaired financial assets, the effective interest rate is applied
to the net carrying amount of the financial assets. Dividend income is recognised when the right to receive the
payment is established. Foreign currency gains and losses are reported on a net basis.

The Group has contractual right and is entitied to charge interest if payments from customers are delayed
beyond credit terms, however, the Group recogrises interest, if any, on delayed payments from customers
only to the extent that it is highly probable that a significant reversal in the amount of income recognised wili
not occur when the uncertainty associated with the interest is subsequently resolved, which is when the
interest on delayed payments is received by the Group.

Finance cost comprises interest expanse on lease liabilities (if any), interest expense on borrowings (if any),
unwinding of discount on provisions or liability, interest on delayed payment and bank charges. Mark up,
interest and other charges on borrowings are charged to consoligated staterment of profit or loss in the period

- in which they are incurred.
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Foreign currencies
Foreign currency transactions and translations

Transactions in foreign currencies are recorded at the rates of exchange ruling on the date of the transaclion.
All monetary agsets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated into Pakistani Rupess at
the rate of exchange ruling on the consolidated statement of financial position date and exchange differences,
if any, are credited / charged to consolidated siatement of profit or loss for the year.

Foreign operations

The transactions of foreign operation are translated at rate of exchange prevailing on the date of transaction.
All menetary and non-monetary assets and liabilities of foreign operation are translated into Pak Rupees at
exchange rate prevailing at the date of consolidated statement of financial position and the resulting currency
translation differences are recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated as a separate
reserve in equity until the disposal of foreign operation, upon which these are reclassified from equity to
consolidated statement of profit or loss when gain or loss on disposal is recognised.

Dividends

Dividend distribution and appropriation of reserves are recognised in the consolidated financial statements in
the period in which these are approved.

Earnings per share

The Group presents basic and diluted eamings per share (EPS) data for its ordinary shares. Basic EPS is
calculated by dividing the profit or loss attributable to ordinary shareholders of the Group by the weighted
average number of ordinary shares outstanding during the pericd. Diluted EPS is determined by adjusting the
profit or loss aftributable to ordinary shareholders and the weighted average number of ordinary shares
outstanding for the effects of all dilutive potential ordinary shares.

Trade and other payables

These amounts represent liabilities for goods and services provided to the Group prior to the end of financial
year which are unpaid. Trade and other payables are presented as current liability unless payment is not due
within tweive (12} months after the reporting period. They are recognised initially at their fair value and
subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method.

Reserves

At the discretion of the Board of Directors of respective group companies a reserve is created which is to be
applied for meeting contingencies, or for any other purpose to which the profits of a group entity may be
properly applied, and pending such application may, in the like discretion, sither be employed in the business
of the group entity or be invested in such investments, as the respective Board of Directors may from time to
time think fit. Reserves are reviewed periodically and adjusted as considered necessary by the respective
Board of Directors.



6.4

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Owned fixed assets

Share in joint operations' fixed assets
Share in joint operations' capital work in progress

Capital work in progress

Owned fixed assets

As at July 1, 2020

Cosi
Accumulated depreciation

MNet book value
Year ended June 30, 2021

Opening net book value
Additions
Disposals

Cost

Accumulated depreciation

Wirite off
Cost
Accumulated depreciation

Depreciation charge
Closing net hoak value
As at July 1, 2021

Cost
Accumulated depreciation

Net baok value
Year ended June 30, 2022

Qpening net book valug
Additions
Disposals

Cost

Accumulated depreciation

Depreciation charge
Closing net hook value
As at June 30, 2022

Cost
Accumulated depreciation
Net book value

Annual rate of
depreciation {%)

2022 2021
Note  w—meemeeeem e Rupees [000)------rem-rem
8.1 69,510 77,728
6.2 24,021,823 24,900 716
6.3 3,366,195 3,089,920
6.5 2,511,318 2,511,318
29,968,846 30,579.682
Office Furniture and Computer .
equipment fixtures equipment Mehicles Lt
11T i) | R P -
45,399 57,392 87,874 36,258 226,923
{30,426) {258.219) (51,176) {26,524) (136,345)
14,973 29173 35,698 9,734 80,577
14,973 28173 35,698 0,734 80,577
13,352 4,002 9,175 - 26,529
438 - 3,556 - 3,985
{438) - (3,185) 2 (3,623)
- - 372 - 37z
817 5197 - - 5,014
{586) (2,793) . (3,379)
23 2,403 - - 2.635
(7,498) (6,8259) (18,222) (3.824) (38,372)
20,596 23,842 27,280 5,910 77,728
57,496 56,197 93,493 36,258 243,444
{38,900} (32,255) (66,213) (30,348) {165,716)
20,596 23,942 27,280 5,910 77,728
20,596 23,942 27,280 5,910 77,728
3,895 3,083 20,330 2,652 28,930
4,749 243 3,197 1,268 4,457
14,629} [218) (2,991) {1,268) {8,706)
120 25 60& - 751
{9,009} {7,023} {17,502) {3,863} {37,397)
15,362 19,947 29,502 4,699 69,510
56,642 §9,007 110,628 37,642 263,917
{41,280) {39,060} {81.124) (32,943) (194,407)
15,362 19,947 29,502 4,699 69,510
15-20 15 20-33 15-20




Share in joint operaticns’ fixed assets

Leasehold Plant and Office Furniturg and Decommissioning

fpeli i Total
land equipment Pipelines equipment fixturas i cost .
Rupees (000}

As at July 1, 2020

Cost 54,215 44,670 646 7,358,278 335957 77 807 172 609 1,082 838 53752348
Accumulated depreciation {40,460} {20,088 198) (3,877,138) {284 688) (71,839 {159,454} (505,699) (25,027 574)
Accumulated Impairment {6.,458) (2,851,547} {634,729) (25,939 (3,816) {3,130} (59,022) {3,584,649)
Net bank value 7,297 21730903 2 846,411 25 330 2052 10,025 518,105 25,140,125
Year ended June 30, 2021

Opening net book value 7,297 21,730,803 284641 25,330 2,052 10.025 518,105 25,140,125
Additions 880 934,064 413,711 8,789 62 7.281 387 526 1,752,122
Adjustment of decommissioning cost - (351,086} {58,905) - - - (310,680} {720,641}
Transfers from capital work in progress - 845118 201,721 - - 221 1,051,060
Depraciation chargea {1,489) (1,938,336) (402,80) (8,240) {836} {7.408) 61,197 {2,297 716}
Impairmsni charge - (2,611} {14,591) {30y - - - (24,233}
Closing net book value 6,488 21,215,081 2,885 540 25,849 1,478 9.510 856,370 24,900,716
As at July 1, 2021

Cost 54,805 46,102,772 7,514,804 344,746 77,8592 172,500 1,155,903 55,834 889
Accurmulated depreciation {41,850 {22,026,532) (4,279,844} {262,928) {72,575) {168,880) {444,502) (27,325,261}
Accumulated Impaiment {6,458) (2.861,158) {649,320} {25,969) £3,816) {3,130) {59.032) {3,608 883}
Net book value 5,488 21,215,081 2,985,540 25,849 1,478 9,910 696,370 24,900,716
Year ended June 30, 20232

Dpening net book value 6,488 21,215,081 2,985 540 25,349 1,478 9910 656,370 24,904,716
Additions - 1,762,650 357,238 6,077 {180} 4,393 95,424 2,225,608
Adjustment of decommissioning cost 1251,847) - - s (291,231} {543,078}
Transfers from capital work in progress 301,389 178,676 - - - - 459,065
Depreciation charge . (2,145,065} (319,277) {4,568) {207) {5,259} {107,304) (2,581,680}
Impairment charge {6,488) {310,143) {121,677) i4,302) - {66) (17.1328) {459,308}
Clasing net book value - 20,572,065 3,080,500 23,056 1,001 B,984 336,127 24,021,823
Az at June 30, 2022

Cost 54,895 47,914,564 3,450,718 350,822 77,689 184,299 964,096 57,997 484
Accumutated depreciation (41,850} (24,171,598} (4,599,224) {207 408} (T2,762)  (172,119) {551,808) (29,906,972}
Accumulated Impairment {12,845} (3,171,301} (770,997 {30,271} {3,818 {3,196) {76,183) (4,068,689)
Net book value - 20,572.065 3,080,500 23,056 1,091 5,984 336,127 24,021,823
Annual rate of

depreciation (%} 334 334 34 20 15 20 334

D0R7EL.
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2022 2021
----------- Rupees {'000}--—-------—
6.3 Share in joint operations’ capital work In progress
Balance at the beginning of the year 3,311,421 2,865 291
Cost incurred during the year 756,340 1,582,167
Transferred to development and production asseis - (94 877}
Transferred to share in joint cperations' fixed assets (480,085) (1,051,060}
3,587,696 3311421
Accumulated impairment (221,501) {221 5013
Balance at the end of the year 3,366,195 3,089,820

6.3.1 Total capitalized cost includes asset decommissioning cost amounting to Rs. 151.9 million as at June 30,
2022 (2021: Rs. 147.03 million)

2022 2021
Note  -—ememeeme Rupees {'000}--------mme-
6.4 Allocation of depreciation
Operating expenses 38 2,681,680 2,297 718
General and administrative expenses 41 37,397 36,372
2,619,077 2,334,088
6.5 Capital work in progress
Iran Pakistan Gas Pipeline Project 8.5.1 2,511,318 2,511,318
6.5.1 Iran Pakistan Gas Pipeline Project
Consultancy services B.5.1.1 2,546,571 2,546 571
Travelling and transportation expenses 63,901 63,501
Field security expenses 25,345 25,345
Tendering expenses 19,227 19,227
Rent, rates and utilities 28,288 28 288
Personnel costs and benefits 246,580 246,580
Training and capacity building 5,060 5,060
Insurance 2,919 2919
Repairs and maintenance 27,782 27782
Legal and professicnal services 11,176 11,176
Depreciation 39,409 39,409
Amortisation 8,893 8,893
Mark up on loan 28,922 25,922
Others 11,1861 11,161
Impairment loss 6512 {553,916) {553,916}
2,511,318 2,511,318

6.5.1.1 The Governments of Pakistan {GoP) and Iran signed an Inter-Governmental Framework Declaration {IGFD}
for the Iran Pakistan Gas Pipeline Project (IP-Project) on May 24, 2008, The Group has entered via 1SGSL
info an Iran Pakistan Gas Sale Purchase Agreement (IP-GSPA} with Naticna! Iranian Qil Company (NIOC)
on June %, 2009 which became effective on June 13, 2010 upon completion of all conditions precedent to
IP-GSPA, The commitments under IP-GSPA are backed by a sovereign guarantee issued by the GoP on
May 28, 2010, whereas, the financial requirements were envisaged to be met through Gas Infrastructurs
Development Cess (GIDC) and Private Sector Entity (PSE) equity injection as approved by Economic
Coordination Committee (ECC) of the Federal Cabinet.

ST
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To commence work on the IP-Project, ISGSL hired an Engingering and Project Management Consultant
(E&PM) which is a joint venture between a German based firm ILF Beratende Ingenieure GMBH and
National Engineering Services Pakistan (Private} Limited {(NESPAK). ILF - NESPAK submitted reports on
Stage | and Stage || which have been accepted by ISGSL. Complete design of the pipeline system {Front
End Engineering & Design), feasibility study, installation of concrete markers and tender documents for the
supply of equipment and construction of the pipeline system have also been completed in a timely manner,

In accordance with the guidelings issued by the sub-committee / steering committee of the ECC, the initial
capital reguirement of the IP-Project is being funded through equity injection by the Holding Company.
Government to Government Co-operation Agreement as initialed on December 1, 2012 was endorsed by
the Federal Cabinet on January 30, 2013. The President of Pakistan and the President of Iran inaugurated
the construction phase of IP-Project in a Ground Breaking Ceremeny held on March 11, 2013,

The IP Project faced constraints, as a consequence of the international sanctions imposed on Iran by Uniled
Nations, United States of America and the European Union. Iran's association with the Project and risk of
violating sanctions was considered to affect potential financiers, reputable international suppliers of crucial
equipment and contractors. ISGSL believes that this has created a Force Majeure and Excusing Events
situation and accordingly the matter has been taken up with Government of iran as per the provisions of the
signed |P-GSPA. In terms of the letter dated April 14, 2014, NIQC rejected |1SGSL's Force Majeure natice on
the premise that substantively, the situations alluded by ISGSL do not consfitute any ground for the
cccurrence of Force Majeure or Excusing Events under the [P-GSPA,

On February 27, 2018 NIOC issued a formal notice of material breach of buyer's warranties under the |P-
GSPA. After negotiation with Iran, on September 5, 2019 Pakistan and Iran has signed an addendum to the
IP-GSFA for extension of limitation period of any ¢laims for further five years from the date of signing of the
addendum. In light of the aforesaid addendum, Iran withdrew the aforementioned notice and accordingly,
the Group did not accrue any penalty under the terms of IP-GSPA agreement with NICC,

Also, GoP has provided sovereign guarantee to NIOC on behalf of ISGSL regarding the performance of
abligations of ISGSL under the Gag Sale and Purchase Agreement signed between NIOC and ISGSIL.

Considering the indicators for impairment, the management performed impairment assessment during the
year ended June 30, 2022 using discount rate of 10.07% per annum and using the value-in-use model. The
project’s VIU based on management cash flow forecasts is determined to USD 328.67 miliion. Therefore,
despite the implementation delays, the management believas that, having considered the dynamics of
energy market in the country, prevailing gas pricing mechanism and continuad operational and financial
support of GoP, the project is still financiaily viable and costs capitalised as at the reporting date are not
impaired and are fully recoverable.

ECC in its meeting held on October 2, 2014 approved the Gwadar-Nawabshah LNG Terminat & Pipelineg
project (GNP). It was envisaged that GNP shall not only serve to meet ever growing energy needs of
Pakistan but can also be utiised to link up to Iranian border in future and therefore Pakistan would
substantially be complying with its contractual obligations under the GSPA. As essential technical work of
pipeline route has already been done for IP project, it has been envisaged that the same shall be utilised for
the GNP

AAFLY.
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During the visit of President of China to Pakistan on April 20, 2015, National Energy Administration of China
and Ministry of Energy (MoE} of Pakistan signed framework agreement at I1slamabad in relation to GNP, In
this respect, Chinese nominated entity i.e. China Petroleum Pipeline Bureau (CPP) submitted the technical
and financial bid to ISGSL for Engineering, Procurement, Construction and Financing (EPCF} under
Government o Government framework agreement, which was being nhegotiated. However, the Cabinet
Committee on Energy (CCE) through its decision taken in its meeting dated June 6, 2017 directed MoE to
drop the GNP forthwith. As per the said direction, ISGSL during 2017 discontinued the GNP and recognised
an impairmenl loss against aggregate cost incurred on GNP,

2022 2021
--------- Rupees (‘000)--------mmmm-
Allocation | {reversal) of impairment
Qperating expenses 38 459,808 235,200

As the Holding Company is a non-operator, property, plant and equipment other than owned fixed assets
are not in the possession of the Holding Company and are operated by joint operations in which the Holding

Company has warking interest.

RIGHT OF USE ASSET

2022

2021

.............

Cost

As at bedinning of the year 144 468,320 144,469,320
Addition / {defetion) during the year - -
As at end of the year 144 469,320 144,469,320
Accumulated depregiation

As at beginning of the year 21,402,862 10,701,437
Cepreciation charge 10,701,431 10,701,431
As at end of the year 32,104,283 21,402,862
Net carrying amount at end of the year 112,365,027 123 066 458
Lease liability

As at beginning of the year 123,358,788 140,590,132
Recognised during the year - i
Interest charge during the year 5,683,227 5,473,875
Lease payments during the year {15,312,568) (13,788,296}
Exchange loss ! {gain) during the year 35,465,026 (8,915,923}
As at end of the year 148,195 473 123,359,788
Current portion (11,528,681} {8,509,955)
Noen-current portion 137 666,792 114,849,833

Maturity analysis - contractual undiscounted cash flows

Not later than one year 17,579,398 13,532 523

Later than one year and not later than five years 87,993 321 54,167,166

Later than five vears 78,227,703 58,091,161
184,800,423 155,?90,@@

ML
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Lease arrangement

The Group recognises the lease for Floating Storage and Regasification Unit {FSRL), Jetty and connecting
pipelines assetfs located at LNG terminal. {nitially lease arrangement was entered by Pakistan LNG Terminal
Limited {(PLTL} through QOperation Services Agreement (GSA) with PGP Consortium Limited {PGPCL) as
main lease arrangement, additionally Terminal Use and Regasification Agreement (TURA) was entered inlo
by the Group with PLTL as sub lease arrangement. Subsequent to merger of PLTL with Pakistan LNG
Limited (PLL) , this iease arrangement effectively remained with PGPCL as lessor and the Group as lessee.

Under the lease contract the Group has to pay fixed lease rentals, interest rate impiicit in the lease was not
available therefore lease liability initially measured at the present value of the lease payments using the
Group's incremental borrowing rate. The Group used the discount rate of LIBOR+2% to reflect the rate at
which external financiers would lend to the Group for the type of asset leased.

2022 2021
------------ Rupees ("000)~----zn-am-
INTANGIBLE ASSETS - SOFTWARES
Cost 133,774 131,530
Accumulated amortisation (125,197) {106,411)
Net book value 8,577 25,119
Opening net book value 25,119 49,015
Additions 2,244 3,026
Disposals
Cost - .
Aceumulated amortisation - -
Amortisation charge {18,786} (26,922)
Closing net book value 8,577 25,118
Annual rate of amortisation {%} 20-33 20-33
EXFLORATION AND EVALUATION ASSETS
Balance at beginning of the year 5,752,966 5,456,332
Expenditure incurred during the year 410,709 978,946
6,163,675 6,435,278
Cost cf dry and abandoned wells during the year 40 {388,60%) {306,996)
Transfer to development and production assets during the year - {375,317)
{388,609) (682,313)
Balance at end of the year 5,775,066 b, 752 066

Total capitalised cost includes asset decommissioning cost amounting to Rs. 7.29 million at June 30, 2022

{2021 Rs. 28.86 miltion),

S
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DEVELOPMENT AND PRODUCTION ASSETS

“This includes reversal of decommissianing cost amaunting Rs. 271.09 million directly made against related field agsets under provisions of IFRIC 1 - Changes in existing decommissioning, reslerason and sirilar liabiliies.

275

Cost Amoriisatian Iimpaiment Camrying
amount
Asat . ) Adjusw‘enth of A at As at Charge A% at As at As at As at
" Wering. 11, 2024 Acdigiongs Adjustasciiis “*‘;‘:'::f""“' Trapsters e it 2025 for el une 30 i1, 2024 faf;’;f:m Jane % June 30, 2022
————————————— Rupees | Q- s eeeerramiinn warimsmmsnimmsnens s RLpRAS {'T00] Rupedas ['0¢]--mmermwar-. Rupees {000}
Praducing fields - Joint operations

Sadir 1l 25.00% 306,792 - - - 06,782 306,792 - 366,792 . - - -

Block-22 {all akds) 22 .50% 268,275 - {8.370) - 269,90 212,088 {8,370} 204,718 55,187 - 85,187 -
AhmadalPariwali 17.50% TTE T4 758 - - - 179472 585917 41,585 637,512 - - - 141,560
Mirmwat 17.50% iear 184 - - - 3,831 1,686 s 1,732 - - 2,049
Mazarani 12.50% 136,641 - {39]) - - 134,602 115,312 {3%) 115,273 21,328 21,328 1
Sawan 22.50% 2,411,766 8,555 - - - 3.420,321 2,556,130 26,688 2,523,013 504,063 - 604,063 193,240
Z2amrama 25.00% 4,554 36% 1.863 (587} - 218,731 4,774,426 3,683,025 27,736 1 711,562 870,287 148,843 | 1,015,730 45,134
Mubarzk 25.0d% 1,351,278 53,422 - - - 1,884 700 215,260 5,991 273,211 1.025,47T 64,398 | 1,089,875 42,614
Mim 22.50% 291,293 78,486 - - 131 065 520,844 115,903 14,560 237 483 N o s 283,361

Mehran 25.00% 69,203 - - - - §9.203 1.933 - 1,933 &7,270 - 67,270 -
Charda® 17.50% 1612518 - R g {1,121} {78) - 1,616 436 598,605 166,675 1,165 460 B - - 449,556
Gambat 25.00% 441439 964 - - - 442 403 241,756 o954 242,720 199,682 - 192682 1
Tal {all fiekds}* 16.00% 5,274 250 a6, 251 - |116,926) - &,253,676 4,833,519 432,895 5,272,414 - - o 981 281
Khipre {all fields)* 25.00% 2,870,245 211,781 {20,438} 115,847} - 3,245,901 2,230132 185,212 2,410 344 - - o 832,547
Mirpuri<has. (all fimlds)* 25.00% 5,570,871 TO&&14 [41,171) |37 585} - €,200 625 4,606 306 530,142 9,136 443 - - - 1,064,180
Chechart 25.00% 257,881 - - |6030) - 251,361 158,356 04 159,060 91 858 - 91,855 S4b
Nashpa* 15,00% 5,007 511 4.441 {16,288) 17,572} 41,391 £,029 453 2,098,007 836,095 2,734,902 - - - 2,294,581
Sinjhoo® 22 50% 501,138 334 418 - 15164} - 230,390 370,693 102,002 472,602 - - o IS7.786
Mehar 25.00% 318,982 4059157 (5,734) - - 4,372 405 1,194,311 £51,41% 1,145,730 - &g ET1,218 1,958,457

Jrakre 22.50% 149,107 - B - - 10,107 10,030 45 10,079 - 28 28 -
Guddu 22 50% 154,910 % - - - 154,939 111,424 B431 119,855 - - o 15,084
Bolan 17.50% 563,789 2,950 (924} - - 565,515 372328 100,783 47311 - - - 92,704
Sambat South” 25.00% 1,200,757 : 13,203) {70,824 1,734,830 539,539 162,988 702 827 - - o 1,042,403
Bitrisim 22.50% 288,080 25,327 - - - 312,907 70,220 o012 120,232 - - - 192,675
Tanda Allah Yar (all fiekfs)  22.50% 267,750 BRY - {19,118 - 258 6189 170z 36,362 215,374 - - 5 43,145
Shah Bandar* 2.50% 59,351 4 - {938 . sa.m7 11,342 45588 57,030 . - 1,957
Khewan 22.50% 176,725 5.698 - - 27,440 203 783 - &,770 8,770 - - - 202,991
Decommissianing oosi 3,28%,945 441,577 - 1681, 17%) - 3,062 347 1,337 823 521,613 1,861,536 195,352 26,560 231,921 944,890
Sub ttal progucing fields 43,856,038 3,24 BRY {98.625) 1852,263) 438,677 46,287,712 27,217 150 3,505,248 31,022,498 31310,501 918,556 4045967 11,216,057




Developing falds - Joint operatons

Carrying
Cost Amortization Impaimant S
Adjustment of A= at As at As at
. As at . et As at Charge As at Charge As at
Particulars m:f Jul1,z0zq Adefiens  Adjustments “ﬁ?";"'::;"’"' Transfers J“z';ezgo' Jul1, 2021 for the yeer ""z";:“' Jul1, 2021  for the year J"'z':’zgn" June 30, 2022
Rupees [D00] Ruy L) Rupees |'00)————— Rupees [000)
Developing fields - Joint oparations.
Mehar 25.00% - B R - N B . . = - R R
Tando Allzh Yar {all fields) 22 50% - 25311 - - - 25,311 - - - - - - 25,311
Kandra 25.00% 3577 - - - - 577 - - - 3,577 - 3577 -
Mim 22.50% 143,255 - - - (151 ,085) 2807} . - - - - B {2,807}
Keotra 20.00% BD,342 - {1.401) - - a7 ,942 - - - 50,824 - 50,824 37118
Tal 15.00% - 255,365 - - - 265 166 - - - - - - 255,366
Mirpurkhas (all islds) 26 0% - 139,731 - - - 139781 - - - - - - 139,781
Khipro {2l fields) 25.00% 7420 148,867 - - - 156 287 - - - - - - 156,287
Sawan 22.80% - - - - - - . . 5 5 5 - .
Washps 15.00% 48,514 EE5,358 - - 41,33) 572,581 - - . s - . 572 581
Gambat South 2500% 470654 - - - - 970,684 - - - - - - 870,684
Block-22 22.50% 15534 - - - - 15,534 - - - 15534 - 15,584 -
Zarnzama 25.% 218,781 - - - |121B,781) - - - - 146 443 (186,443] - -
Sinjhoro 22.50% - 163,010 - - - 163,010 - - - - - - 163,010
Khewarn 22 50% 154,196 42 523 (B0,579} - |27 440) 108,700 - - - - - . 104,700
Decommissiening cosl 169,546 151 - [45,212) - 124,495 - - - 7,294 . 7,294 117,201
Sub total develaping fislde 1,825,953 1,340,377 [61.980) [45,212) {438 677] 2620481 - - - 223,672 (146,443 Tr.229 2543,232
Total 45 481,589 4,584 180, 605 SOTATE - 48,8508, 172 27,217 250 3,805,248 31,022,498 3354173 T?lez_ﬂ 4,125 386 13.?5938_9,

101 Devetgping fields comprse of cost of wells and related expendilure which are under devetopment [ under driling and, hanca, no amatisallen thareon has been charged,
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10.2 DEVELOPMENT AND PRODLICTIOM ASSETS

Cosl Amorisalion impaimment Zmme:E
; Asal . .ﬁd_justment l As al A3 at Charge Az al Az at Charge { As at AS at
Particulars 1]'::;‘;:? sul1,20zp  Addions  Adjustrents “’“':’r:';'g:f;“’“' Transfers 30 2021 Ju1,2020  for thergear Jun 30,2021 Jul 1, 2026 ,gf:;:'::gr Jun 30, 2021 Jun 30, 2021
..................... Rupees ['00H—m ———————Rupees {000} Fupees {'000) Rupees {000}
Producing flaldz-Joint oparations

Badin Il 25.00% 306,792 - . - - 306,792 306,792 - 308,792 - - - -

Block-22 (ol fiokds) 22 50% 275418 - (7,143) - - 268,275 220,231 (7143} 213,088 55187 - 85,187 -
AhmadelFariwali 17.50% 777 261 1178 {425y - - Tre.T14 85,187 30,730 S35.917 - - - 182 796
Mimwal 17_50% X 149 - - - 3,647 1,584 102 1,686 - . - 1,861

Mazarani 12.50% 136,695 - {54} - - 136,841 115,367 (54) 115,313 21,328 . 21,328 B
Sawan” 22.50% 3350400 2,904 {4,822 {31.829] 95,313 3411788 2,564,254 32,076 2,596,330 804 DB3 - &04 083 211373
Zamzama® 25 .00% 4,637 852 BTG - {34.193) . 4,554,369 L7538 (32,313 3,583 826 861,643 8643 &70.287 256
Mubarsk 26,0004 1,234,127 117,151 - - - 1,351,278 208 85D 6610 215,260 1,025 477 - 1025477 110,641
Nira 22 5% 112,439 o] - - BB, 153 291,293 112,435 1464 115,903 - - - 175,380

Ibehran 280084 69,203 . - - . G203 1,833 - 1933 BT.270 - E7 270 -
Chanda 17.50% 1,040,444 6,226 (24,343} . BaD,077 14812514 412 434 187 271 909 505 - - - G612, 709

Gambat 25.00% 3731 BY,200 {7,102} - - 441 435 187 858 54,098 244257 1949 883 N 199,682 -
Tal {all fields)” 15.00% 5,747 498 313 462 (2872} (64,579), 284,841 6,274 350 3,694 165 1,145,353 4 838 518 - - . 1,434,831
Khipra (all lrelds)® 25.00% 2,674,753 153,155 - (48,782) 61,220 2,870,346 1,965,314 264 B19 2 230,130 - - . 640,214
Mirpurkhas (all fialns)* 25.00% 5.508 593 256,259 {12,234} (181,788) 40 5,570,870 3,810,353 £95 583 4 B0 - - - 54,554
Chachar 25.00% 257,891 - - . - 257,891 158,308 BS0 158,556 91,355 - 31,885 7,081
Mgt 15 00% 3720.E14 147,585 (21,582} - 1,151 682 5007 510 1,434 148 668 Be0 2098008 . - - 2,908 503
Sinjhorg 22.50% 414 597 . - . EE 441 01,128 275,936 B4 857 370,555 - - - 130,545
hehar 25007 2312134 490 429 {7524y (14,551} 537 895 3318083 GB0, 758 233513 1,194,311 - . - 2124672
Jhakre 22 B 10,107 - - - . 10,107 2,835 195 10,030 . - - kel
Slackche 22 50% 154,501 a8 - - - 154 909 BE,D05 13,419 111,424 - - - 45,454
Bolan® 17.50% 397,221 3173 156,1140) (80,419) 307 424 563,799 260,503 102,725 372328 - - . 191 460
Gambat Sout 25.00% 1,053,110 249 857 B420) (32 Aud) 548 415 1808 757 432,924 106,613 539,539 - - . 1270219
Eitrisim 22 50% 261,235 24,345 . - - 286 081 15,335 34,885 The0 - - - 215,361
Tandao Allah Yar (all fiedds) 22.50% 267 262 - - - 488 267,750 162,504 16505 173,012 . - - BB, T8
Shah Barwia 2.50r% - - - - 56,651 53,551 B 11542 11,342 - - - 48,609
Khewari 22.50% - 76201 - B 100,524 176,725 . - - - - . 176,725
Decommissioning cost 2,741 357 B12 8563 - {132,252} 77880 3,299,847 1,050,235 267 BEE 1,337,823 185352 . 195,352 1,755 672
Sub total producing flekiz 37 B&2 ¥a3 2,540 628 (192.931) (B85,3039) 3,990,964 43 656,025 23245430 3572123 27 277 253 3,121 BAT 8,643 3,134,501 13,308 281

“This includes reversal of decommissioning cost amounting Rs. 553 .06 million directly made againsl refated field assets under provisions of IFRIC 1 - Changes in existing decemmissioning, restoratian and similar liatilities.
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Develoging fields-Joint operations

Cosl Amartisation Impairment gfn”;ﬂ:?
A at ) Ailstmeniiol &g al As al Char, As at As at Charge As al A at
Particulars T:fe’:::? sy, gogp  Addtions  Adjustments dem";”:“’“' Transters | p20.2021  Jul1.2020  forthe ?\:w an 30,2021 Jull, 2020 far t::gear Jun 30,2020 Jun 36, 2021
Rupans /000 e — — Fupass DO} Rupess [T00———  Rupees (000
Rastatad
Davaloplng fialds-Joint eparations

Mehar 25.00% £37.895 . - : 1537 895) N N X N - } N -

Tando Altah Yar (2l tields) 22 50% 455 . - - 1488} . - . . : : . c

Kandra 25.00% 1577 ; - . ) 3,577 ; y - 2577 ; 3577 :
heirn 2% 50% BE.347 151,058 . . {88,153} 148,258 - - . . C : 148,250
Kotra 20.00% B7.721 1,622 - - ; 89,343 . . . . 50,624 50,824 38,519

Tal 15.00% 235478 . . . {285.178) R ; . . ; ; . ;

Mirpurkpias {all fields) 25.00% 40 . . {40) § ; . . ; - . ;
Khipro (=l fizids) 25.00% 56,640 . - . {61,220 7,420 ; . . ; . . 7420
Nﬂﬂ'lpﬂ 150004, 1,192,11?5 ?,331 - - (1_151.692) 48 614 - - - - - 43,514
Sambat South 2500% | 1,203,858 122} . {233,054} 070,883 ; ; . ; - . 570,583

Block-22 22 50% 15,534 - - . - 15.534 . . . 15,534 . 15,534 .
Zamrama 25,00% 219,265 - {483} . . 218.782 ; ; 140,893 5,551 146,443 72,339

Sinjharo 22.50% 6,441 - - - 186,441} - - - - - - - -

Ghanda 17.50% 590.077 . . . (690,077 ; . ; ; ; y . .

Botan 17.50% 207,924 . . . {307,924 ; . ; ; - . . .
Khawar 22 50% 100524 154,158 i - (100,524) 164188 - ; . . . . 154,198
Decommissioning cost 266,582 - - f19.147] (77889 169,545 . . . . 7.294 7.294 162,252
Sub 1otal devaloping fialds 5 051,564 4714 1605) (19147) (352057 1,825,956 - - - 160,004 63,658 223.572 1,602,282
Total 42014347 2.955342 (153,536 [704,456) 470,292 45481990 23245130 3072124  27.217.253 3251861 72319 3354172 14.010.565

16.3  Developing lialds comprise af cost of wells and redated expendilure which are under development [ under drilling and, hence, na amartisation thersen has besn ¢harged,
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2022 2021
Note -—---—--r-r Rupees ("000)==rumerv-amnr
LONG TERM INVESTMENT IN ASSOCIATE
Unquoted Company
Pakistan International Gil Limited {PIQOL) - Foreign Operation
Cost of investment (2,500,000 {2021: Nil} fully
paid ordinary shares of USD 10 each) 111 4,205,500 .
Share of loss for the year 1.3 {2,513,552) .
Effect of translation of investment 474,041 -
{2,039,511) -
2,165,989 -

During the year, the Hoiding Company, along with other consortium members ie. Mari Petroleum
Company Limited (MPCL), Pakistan Petroleum Limited (PPL) and Qil and Gas Development Company
Limited {OGDCL) has been awarded Offshore Block 5 in Abu Dhabi's second competitive exploration
block bid round. The consortium companies have established an independent entity named Pakistan
tnternational Cil Limited {PIOL). PIOL is engaged in the business of extraction of gil and natural gas and is
registered as a limited liabilty company in the Emirate of Abu Dhabi and incorporated in Abu Dhabi Global
Market on July 16, 2021, with each consortium company having a 25% equity stake in PIOL The
exploration concession agreement between PIGL and Abu Dhabi National Qil Company (ADNOC) was
signed on August 31, 2021. Following the award of Offshore Block- 5, the Holding Company has
subscribed 2 5 million ordinary shares of PIOL, by paying USD 25 million {Rs 4,205 million). Subseguent to
the year end, the Holding Company subscribed to a further 1 million ordinary shares of PIOL, by paying
further USD 10 million {Rs 2,226 millign},

The investment in PIOL has been classified as an investment in associate as per the requirements of
International Accounting Standard 1AS-28, “Investment in Associates and Joint Ventures”,

Share of loss for the year mainly represents 3D seismic cost incurred by PIOL.

TORFLS.
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11.4 The share of loss ¢f PIOL and the below summarized financial information is based on the audited financial

12

121

statements of the associate for the period from inception to December 31, 2021, adjusted for transactions and events
up to June 30, 2022 based on management accounts,

2022
Rupees {'00Q0)
Summarized statement

Current assats 2,968,078
Non-current assets 6,310,510
Current liabilities {614,634)
Net assets 8,663,954
Hoelding Company's percentage sharehalding in the associate 25%
Holding Company's share in carrying value of net asseis 2,165,988

Surnmarized statement
Total comprehensive loss for the year {10,054,208)
Share of comprehensive loss (2,513,552)

LONG TERM LOAN

2022 2021
Current Non - Current Totad Current Non - Current Total
------------------ Rupees ("000}----—--n-mmmnm- e - RUpees (000} --em e
Loan to staff 33,307 20,368 b3,675 9,551 14,728 24 279
33,307 20,368 53,675 8,551 14,728 24 274

This includes loan to managing director / chief executive officer amounting to Rs. 2.68 million. The loan was granted

in accordance with the Group's service rules, is deductible against salary and carries no interast. Movement is as
follows:

2022 2021
Note  —mm-emeeeed Rupees ['D00)-rw-smreraas
Balance at beginning of the year 5,598 -
Loan disbursed during the vear . 7,789
Repayment recaived during the year {2,921) {2,151)
Balance at end of the year 2,677 5,598

WAFEL.
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2022 2021
Note  —ommemmamean Rupees {'000)-=-nan~nm---= ~
13 INVESTMENT IN JOINT VENTURE
TAP! Pipeline Company Limited (TPCL) 13.1 1,209,463 975,184
1,209 463 975,184
134 Opening cost of investment
(560,000 shares (2021, 265,000 shares) of USD 10 each) 1,077,561 635,121
Investment during the year - 442 440
Closing cost of investment
(560,000 shares (2021, 580,000 shares} of USD 10 each) 1,077,561 1.077.561
Post acquisition losses brought forward {102,377) {13,414}
Share of loss for the pearicd - net of taxation (50,211} {20,781)
Foreign exchange translation gain / (loss) 284,490 {(68,182)
234,279 (88,963}
Post acquisition profits carry forward 131,902 (102,377}
Balance at the end of the year 1,209,463 975,184

TPCL, the joint venture is registered in the Isle of Man, with registered address as Forte Anne, Douglas, Isle
of Man, IM1, 5PD, as a limited liability company and its head office is situated in Dubai, United Arab
Emirates. TPCL is principaliy engaged to carry out the business of developing, engineering, funding the
construction of, procuring the equipment engineering and other services for construction and operation of,
constructing owning, operating and providing maintenance for the proportion of TAP| pipeline running from
the borders of Turkmenistan and Afghanistan to the border of Pakistan and India. The capacity of the TAPI
pipeline is expected to be 35 billion cubic meters per annum. The Group through ISGSL holds 5% equity
interest in TPCL, however it has joint control due to its rights in decision making of TPCL. Under the terms
of Shareholders Agreement, decisions about significant relevant activities shall be approved unanimously by
all the founding shareholdears.

2022 2021
Note  —eemmeememes --Rupees ("000)---rm-mmru -
14 DEPOSIT WITH THE GOVERNMENT OF PAKISTAN
FOR EQUITY STAKE IN REKO DIQ PROJECT
Deposits for equity stake in Reko Dig project 141 34,301,231 u

14.1 On March 17, 2022 the Government of Pakistan (GoP}, through the Federat Cabinet, ratified the decision of
the Economic Coordination Committee (the Decision) which approved inter alia issuance of directions to the
Holding Company, Pakistan Petroleum Limited {PPL) and Qil and Gas Development Company Limited
(OGDCL} (collectively the SOES) to paricipate in reconstitution of a joint mining project at Reko Dig {the
Project). As part of the settlement arrangement, Barrick Gold Corporation (Barrick) will be retaining 50%
shareholding in Tethyan Copper Company Pakistan {Pvt.) Limited {TCCP} along with operatorship, whereas
the other shareholder, Antofagasta PLC will exit TCCP upon receipt of USD 900 million and subject to other
conditions precedent. TCCP will be renamed to Reko Dig Mining Company (Private) Limited (RDML) as a
part of these developments,
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Pursuant to the Decision, each SOE was also directed to pay USD 187.5 million {collectively USD 562.5
million) into an escrow account maintained by the Hongkong Shanghai Banking Corporation, and jointly
aperated by the GoP and Antofagasta as entry fee which would be utilized towards acquisition of 8.33%
interest of each SOE in TCCP. The entry fee attributable to the Government of Balochistan (GoB} would be
funded by the GoP amounting to USD 337.5 million. On the basis of the decision, tha Board of Directors of
the Holding Company resolved to enter inta a non-binding framework agreement with the GoF, the GoB,
PPL, OGDCL and Barrick, which sets out, inter alia, the ownership / transaction structure, rights, obligations
and common objectives of the parties towards facilitating the implementatian of the Project (Framework
Agreement). In terms of the Framework Agreement, several conditions are required 1o be satisfied before
binding arrangements are effective including receipt of administrative and regulatory approvals, execution of
definitive agreements, deposit of USD 900 million in a designated escrow account, stabilization of the fiscal
regime and legislative and judicial validation amongst others.

if the conditions are not satisfied by June 30, 2022, interest at the rate of US Prime plus 2% (Interest
Amount) woulid he payable to Antofagasta. |f the conditions are not satisfied latest by December 15, 2022,
the terms of settlement / resolution will be cancelled and terminated and the entry fee along with the [nterest
amount will be refunded to the respective SOEs / GoP to their USD bank accounts. Only upon satisfaction of
the stated conditions in the Framework Agreement, the entry fee along with the Interest Amount, if &ny, will
be released to Antofagasta against acquisition of corresponding equity interest by the SOEs and GoB,
thereby settling the historical disputes relating to Rekoe Dig projest.

Subsequent to the Decision and based on written advice from the Finance Division dated March 29, 2022
and approval of the Board of Directors, the Holding Company has deposited its corresponding share of the
entry fee amounting to uysD 187.5 million (Rs 34,301 million) in an escrow account maintained by the
Hongkeng Shanghai Banking Corporation, and jointly operated by the GaP and Antofagasta. Further, the
Holding Company has agreed to fund its corresponding share of the Interest Amount as and when acerued
and payable. The amount of USD 187.5 million {Rs 34,301 million) represents deposit with the GoP for the
acquisition of equity etake in the Reko Dig project.

In line with the Framework Agreement, varous definitive agreements are being finalised and the legislative
and judicial validation process is underway. Since the conditions set out in the Framework Agreement were
unable to be satisfled by .June 30, 2022, an interest equivalent to US Prime plus 2% is applicacle on the
Holding Company’s deposit of USD 1875 million with the GaP, as mentioned above.

Subsequently, on Decembper g, 2022, the apex cour declared the agreement signed with the Canadian
Group Barrick Gold Corporation for the development of the Reko Diq mine in Baloghistan “legal”. On
December 12, 2022, the upper house of parliament approved the Foreign Investment {Promotion and
Protection’ Bill, 2022 ta pramote and protect foreign investment in relation to the Reko Dig project.

As a result of these developments, the Holding Company has invested in the project company i.e. RDML
through Pakistan Minerals {Private) Limited (PMPL), an entity incorporated in Pakistan with initial subscribed
share capital of 12,000 shares {4000 shares of each SOE) with par value of Rs 10 each in accordance with
the agreements for collective representation of the Holding Company and other SOEs. RDML is engaged in
the mineral exploration activities in pakistan. PMPL holds an indirect working interest of 25% {8.33% of each
SOE) in the RDML through oifshore holding companies namely Reko Dig Holdings Limited and Reko Dig
investments Limited (herein after referred to as "Holdeos"). ROML is incorporated in Pakistan and Haldecos
are incorporated in Bailiwick of Jersey. The Holding Company's equity interest In PMPL is 33.33% with an
effective interest of 8.33% in RDML. The SOEs have the right to have representation on the Beards of
Holdcos and RDML through PMPL.

AMEL.
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2022 2021
Note  ————ooemmm —Rupees {'000}—mereren-o

STORES, SPARES AND LOOSE TOOLS - SHARE IN
JOINT OPERATIONS' INVENTORY
Store, spares and loose tools 4,628,463 4,594 917
Impairment for slow moving and obsolate stores, spares
and loose tools 15.1 (495,707) {495,707)

4,132.756 4 099 210
Movement of provision for slow moving, obsolete
and in transit stores
Balance at beginning of the year 495,707 495,707
Impairment {reversal} / charge for the year - .
Balance at end of the year 495,707 495,707

Stores and spares include items which may result in fixed capital expenditure but are not yei
distinguishable,

2022 2021
Note  -—--memmeeeeee Rupees ("000}---—-mrmmeeem-
STOCK-IN-TRADE
L.LNG held with third party 38 15,619,240 2,852,022
RLNG held in pipeline 38 101,347 22,8904
15,720,587 2,874,926

This represents closing stock of LNG 135,823.76 m? (2021: 112,787 62 m* inventiory held with PGP
Consortium Limited (PGFCL) at the Floating Storage and Regasification Unit (FSRU as at June 30, 2022.

This represents RLNG held in 14 km pipeline between Floating Storage and Regasification Unit (FSRU)
and Custody Transfer System (CTS).

2022 2021
Note  —omemmmeeeee Rupees {'000)------e-rmeemee
ACCRUED INTEREST RECEIVABLE
Accrued interest receivable on bank deposits 17 216,721 57,878

This represents interest accrued on bank deposits carrying mark-ug at the rate ranging between 11.50%
and 13.00% p.a {2021: 5.50% and 6.70% p.a).

WATEL



-30-

2022 2021
Note  —eececee—ead Rupees {'000)—vuwsessvanras
18 TRADE DEETS
Unsecured - considered good 272,175,706 192,006,383
Unsecured - considered doubtful 539,704 -
272,715,410 192,006,383
Pravision for doubtful debts 18.3 {539,704) -

272,175,706 197,006,383

18.1 Trade debts include cverdue amount of Rs. 240,441 million (2021: Rs. 171,573 million) on account of inter-
corporate circular debt, receivable from oil refineries and gas companies out of which Rs. 80,718 million
{2021: Rs. 62,025 million} and Rs. 156,743 million {2021; Rs. 108,450 million) is mainly overdue from
related parties, Sui Southern Gas Company Limited and Sui Northern Gas Pipeline Limited respectively,
The management of the Group considers this amount to be fully recoverable because Government of
Fakistan (GoP) has been assuming the responsibility to settle the inter-corporate circular debt in the energy
sector. The Government of Pakistan (GoP) is committed, hence continuously pursuing for satisfactory
settlement of inter-corporate circular debt issue, however, the progress is slower than expected resulting in
accumulation of the Group's trade debts. The Group recognises interest / surcharge, if any, on delayed
payments from customers only to the extent that it is highly probable that a significant reversal in the
amount of income recognised will not occur when the uncertainty associated with the interest / surcharge is
subsequently rasolved, which is when the interest / surcharge on delayed payments is received by the
Group. As disclosed in note 3.3 to these consclidated financial statements, Securities and Exchange
Commission of Pakistan {SECP)} has deferred the applicability of ECL model till December 31, 2024 on
financial assets due directly / ultimately from GoP in consequence of the circular debt.

18.2 Total amount due from related parties as an June 30, 2022 is Rs. 261,220 million {2021 Rs. 185,697
million) and maximum amount due at the end of any month during the year was Rs. 261,220 million (2021
Rs. 185,697 miflion). For party wise details refer note 46.2.2,

2022 2021
Note  sememsmemmuins Rupees (000 )ereavcrnancs
18.3 Movement in provision for doubtful debts
Balance at beginning of the year - -
Provision during the year 539,704 -
Reversal of provision - -
Balance at end of the year 539,704 -
19 RECOVERABLE FROM TAX AUTHORITIES
General szalas tax recoverable 9,337,737 3,880 456

AT
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2022 2021
Note  --—---e—mm- —~Rupees ('000)---------nmumm-

LOANS, ADVANCES AND OTHER RECEIVABLES
Secured
Advances against salary to staff 201 10,013 10,169
Unsecurad and considered good
Advances to suppliers 11,321 1,083
Receivable fram PSGP - SPV 20.2 - 56,666
Advance against arbitration 94,931 66 915
Other receivable 20.3 203,909 202159

320,174 336,902

The advances are granted to employees of the Group in accordance with the Group's service rules. These
advances are for short term period against salaries and carry no interest.

The subsidiary Company, ISGSL is the nominated entity working on the directions of the Government of
Pakistan (GoP) for the implementation of Pak Stream Gas Pipeline Project (PSGP). The project activities
are heing under taken in compliance with the decision of the Honorable Supreme Court of Pakistan on
utilisation of Gas Infrastructure Development Cess (GIDC). The GoP is committed for the funding of the
project through GIDC. The negotiation process of Shareholders Agreement in respect of establishment of
PSGP - Special Purpose Vehicle {PSGP - SPV} is temporarily an hold between ISGSL and Russian state
nominated company, pursuant to sanctions impesed on Russia due to ongoing Russia-Ukraine conflict.
Accordingly, PSGP-SPV receivable pertaining to the year ended June 30, 2021 has been written off and the
expenditura incurred during the year in relation thereto has been charged to the consclidated statement of
profit or loss.

It includes Rs. 200.45 million (2021; Rs. 200.45 million) related to cost incurred and paid by the Subsidiary
Company, PLL, on commissioning cargo due to associated costs such as extended lay time, additional
crew and activities related to commissioning of Floating Storage and Regasification Unit (FSRU}. It will be
recovered from Sui Northern Gas Pipelines Limited {SNGPL) after the actualisation of provisianal price by
Oil and Gas Regulatry Authority (OGRA).

2022 2021

TRADE DEPOSITS AND SHORT TERM PREPAYMENTS

Security deposits 330 385
Short term prepayments
Software maintenance fee 4128 3674
Insurance 7,159 6,676
Others 7,529 7,925

W&% 18,816 18,274

19,146 18,659
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2022 2021
Note seemrmeeeees Rupees ("000}-------------
RECEIVABLE FROM THE GOVERNMENT OF PAKISTAN {GoP)
Receivable from the Government of Pakistan {GoP) 221 63,966,965 -

This represents amount paid by the Holding Company in connection with the Reko Dig project on behalf of the
Government of Balochistan (GoB} upen instructions of the Federal Government. The armount is inclusive of the principal
amount and all related expenses i.e. transaction cost, out of pocket expense incurred by the Holding company and
accruetd interest on the principal amount.

In arder ta fulfill the commitment of the Government of Pakistan (GoP} towards the Government of Balochistan {GoB)
for partially acquiring equity stake in the reconstituted Reko-Diq project, the GeP, through the Holding Company,
amranged a term finance facility up to Re. 65,000 million from the National Bank of Pakistan {NBP}, against a GoP
guarantee. As at year end, the amount of Rs 61,742 million eguivalent to USD 337.5 million has been avalled against
this facility.

The loan was initially drawn for a period of nine months, with interest calculated at 9-month Karachi interbank Otfered
Rate (KIBOR) + 0.50% effective from the date of disbursement i.e. March 31, 2022 and was repayable directly by the
GoF in a single bullet installment. Subsequent to the year-end, the loan facility has heen renewed, with the approval of
Economic Coardination Committee {(ECC) of the Federal Cabinet, far a tenor of seven years (inclusive of a two-year
grace pericd) with effect from December 31, 2022 and carries an interest rate of 6-month KIBOR + 0.20%. The
restructuring will result in the apportionment ¢f the principal amount of the borrowing from NBP and related receivable
from GoP as well as related finance cost / income into current and non-current assets and liabilities. As per the revised
terms of the agreement, the loan is repayable in equal semi annual instaliments of principal amount starting from June
30, 2025, As at June 30, 2023, interest accrued amounts to Rs 5,282 million as per ravised agreement.

2022 2021
Note @~ —emememeeeee Rupees ('300)----- -
SHORT TERM INVESTMENTS
Investment held at amertised cost
Term depasit receipts 23.1 25,446,864 40,448,000
Interest accruad 71,031 628,754

25,517,895 41,096 758

The break up of Investment in term deposit receipts placed with the commercial banks is as under:

2022 2021
Credit rating Rating agency Ratee = e —~Rupees ({000}----mwm-mneen
Investments maturing within three months
A-1+ PACRA 14.15% 10,000,000 50,000
A1+ PACRA 15.25% 4,000,000 1,408.000
A1+ VIS 11.82% 1,371,064 -
A-1+ VIS 12.91% 75,000 27,000,000
Interest accruad 43,894 40,107

15,490,758 28,508 107
Investments maturing after three months

A1+ PACRA - 2,000,000
A1+ PACRA - 5,000,000
A1+ VIS 14 15% 10,000,000 .
Interest accrued 27,137 418,514
10,027,137 8.418,514
Investments marked under fien
A1+ PACRA e 4,000,000
Intergst accruaed - 170,137
- 4.170,137
Total investmants 25,517,895 41,096,758

DRAFLU -
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2022 2021

Note —  «ceeoeeeee- Rupeeas {'000}--v----rans--
CASH AND BANK BALANCES
Cash:
- In hand 1,981 361
- At banks 241
Saving accounts 17,571,611 11,233,926
Current accounts 30,721 a8
17,604,323 11,234,375
These carry mark-ug at the rate ranging between 3.01% and 13.00% p.a (2021; 2.75% and 6.70% p.a).
2022 2021
Note =—-emeeeees Rupees {"00Q)-------------
Cash and cash equivalents
Investment in term deposit receipts 231 15,490,758 28,508,107
Cash and bank balances 24 17,604,323 11,234,375
Accrued interest on savings accounts 17 216,71 57 978
33,311,802 39,800,460
SHARE CAPITAL
Authorised share capital
2022 2021 2022 2021
-------------- Number of shares------------— memmemamnee -RUPEES {'O00)-mrmem e on
Ordinary shares of Rs. 10 each
4,500,000 000 4,500,000,000 45,000,000 45 100,000
lssued, subscribed and paid up capital
2022 2021 2022 2021
{Numbsrofshares) — eemeunael Rupees ('0N0)--w--s-z-aun
Ordinary shares of Rs. 10 each, fully paid
2,132,756,107 2,088 512,082 in cash 21,327,561 20,885,121
2,103,260,087 2,088,512,092 Weighted average shares
The movement in issued, subscribed and paid up capital is as follows:
2022 2021 2022 2021
Numbier of shares = wesssvousen Rupees ('000)rmmswmmmrmrms
At July 1 2,088 512,092 2,088 512,092 20885121 20,885 121
Ordinary shares of Rs 10 each paid in
cash issved during the year 44 244 015 - 442,440 -
At June 20 2132756107 2088,612,092 21,327,561 20,885,121

03741,
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Government of Pakistan (GoP} holds 100% shares. Of these shares, two nominee directors hold one
qualification share, each.

2022 2021
Advance agalnst issue of shares Note  ---mememeemeemeees Rupees {'000}—-—-—---------
Balance at beginning of the year 2,336,091 414,327
Advance received against issue of shargs 2531 436,244 1,821,764
issu2 of shares {442,440} -
Balance at end of the year 2,328,895 2,336 091

Economic Coordination Committee (ECC) of the Federal Cabinet, in its decision on Case No ECC-
145/25/2015 dated December 15, 2018, in respect of the "Funding of Expenditure of Inter State Gas
Systems Private Limited", approved that the Holding Company is to fund all project activities of ISGSL as a
100% subsidiary company and all Government investments {e.g. from GIDC) in projects being undertaken
by ISGSL shall be routed through the Holding Company. Pursuant to the foregoing, the Finance Division
vide its Office Memorandum No, F. 4(2) CF-V/2007 dated October 24, 2017 instructed I1SGSL to issus
shares to the Holding Company and going forward the Holding Company is required to issue the shares in
the name of the President of Pakistan through Secretary Mo Energy (Fetroleum Division) in relation to the
Government's investment in 1SGSL's projects. Accordingly, the increase in share capital of the Holding
Company represents Government's investment in ISGSL being routed through the Holding Company.

2022 2021
[ [ Rupees ("000)-------mmmvemenmn
RESERVES
Revenue reserves
General reserve 26.2 2,284,626 2,284 626
Foreign currency translation reserve 26.7 748,778 134,368
3,033,404 2,418,894
Capital reserves
Committad outlay reserve 26.3 20,948,247 20,946,247
Asset insurance reserve 26.4 3,000,000 3,000,000
Assets acruisition reserva 26.5 5,000,000 5,000,000
LNG project reserve 26.6 25,000,000 25,000,000
53,946 247 53,946,247
56 979,651 56,365,241

The Group has appropriated and created these reserves as per discretion of the Board.

The general reserve is creatad to cater for contingencies related to relevant interest carried cost based on
current gxploration commitments and other unforeseen evenis. Accordingly, this reserve is available for
distribution to shareholders.

The committed outlay reserve is created for future requirements based on expected cash outlay for capital
commitments, decommissioning obligaticns and liability against relevant interest carried cost. Accordingly,
this reserve is not available for distribution to shareholders.

The asset insurance reserve has been created for self insurance of investments in assets like wells, plants,
pipelines, vehicles and fumniture & fixture of those joint operations where insurance policy has not been
taken out by the Operator. Accordingly, this reserve is nol available for distribution to shargholders.

In view of the Group's business expansion, it is intended to acquire sizable production reserves for which a
separate asset acquisition reserve has been established. The Group plans to continue to build up this
reserve in future years. Accordingly, this reserve is not available for distribution to sharehalders.

HFLL.
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This reserve is created to cater funding / financial support for LNG projects being undertaken by incarporaled
subsidiary Pakistan LNG Limited (PLL). This reserve is not available for distribution to shareholders.

This represents the translation reserve net of related tax of the retranslation of the investment in the associated
company and joint venture.

2022 2021
Note  em-mmmeemeees Rupaes {'000Q)------mn-msares
LONG TERM LIABILITIES
Due io the joint operators 271 5,036,503 4 331436
Current portion shown under current lizbilities {1,599,557) {812,632)
3,436,946 3,511,804

This represents long term liability on account of the Group's carried interest of 5% in the exploration expenditure
of various joint oparations. This expenditure is incurred by the joint operation partners up to the date of
commercial discovery, and the amount will be adjusted in five equal annual installments, against the Group's
share of commercial production in each respective joint operation. The mevement in amount due to joint operators
is as follows:

2022 2021

Note —  ssmascmeeeeeee- Rupees ("000)-----m=-msr
Balance at beginning of the year 4,331,436 4,983,115
Unwinding of long term Hability 9,829 22,930
Paymenis net off exchange loss (108,003) (748 635)
Additions / adjustments during the year 214,217 B51,916
Discounting of long term liability {646,289) {177 617}
Unrealised exchange Logs / (gain} on revaluation 1,236,213 {600.213)

27.2 5,036,503 4,331,436

Long term liability in LS Dollars have been discounted at a rate of 3.32% (2021: 0.24%).

2022 2021

Note  =mr-re---— Rupges ('000}----wmmmmamenns
DEFERRED TAX ASSET ! [LIABILITY)
Deterred tax asset / {liability) 281 9,530,548 {2,348,133)
Movement in the deferred tax asset / {liability):
Balance at beginning of the year {2,348,133} 31,839
Credited to the consolidated staterment of profit or loss 44 11,994,763 {2,385,655)
Credited to the consolidated statement of comprehensive income {116,082) 5,633

9,530,548 (2,348,133)

Deferred tax comprises of following:
Taxable temporary difference arising in respect of.
Accelerated depreciation on property, plant and equipment (6,301,880) {5,926,130)
Development and production expenditure (4,508,753) {4,616 644)
Unwinding of long term liabilities {(carried interest) {131,817} {13,092)
Provigion for decommissioning cost {204,443) (513.571)
Effects of translation of investment in a forsign joint venturg (54,053) :
Effects of translation of investment in a foreign associate {90,068} 0

IAFEL.

(11,381,014}

{11,089426]
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Deductible temporary difference arising in respect of:

Impairment of stores, spares and loose tools

Unrealised exchange gain { {loss)

Exploration and prospecting expenditure

Provision for windfall levy on oil / condensate

Operaling lease on Floating Storage and Regasification Unit (FSRU)
Minimurn tax paid over and above corporate tax liability
Remeasurement of employees' retirement benefits

Net impairment loss on financial assets

Share of loss from assaciate

2022

2021

218,111 198,283
1,083,672 873,817
1,689,405 1,558,574
5,017,560 2,563,284

12,154,047 85,066
) 3,429,951
13,722 12,329
237,470 -
477,575 -
20,941,562 8.721.303
9,530,548 (2,348,133}

Deferred tax has been calculated at the current effective tax rate of 44% (2021 40%) in case of the Holding

Company and 33% (2021: 28%) in case of subsidiary comparies.

PROVISION FOR DECOMMISSIONING COST
Provision for decommissioning cost
Provision for decommissioning cost

Balance at heginning of the year

Provision / [reversal} made during the year

Revision due 1o change in estimates

Revaluation exchange ioss / (gain)

Unwinding of discount en provision for decommissioning cost

Provision f (reversal) made during the year is distributed as under

Share in joint operations' fixed assets
Share in joint operations’ capital work in progress
Development and production assets

Revision due to change in estimates

Share in joint operations' fixed assets

Share in joint operations' fixed assets - capital work in progress
Expleration and evaluation assets

Development and production assets

Operating expenses

Significant financial assumptions used were as follows:

Discount rate per annum
Inflation rate per annum

SXAFL.

Note

2941
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6.2
6.2
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2022

........... —Rupees ("000)

2021

...............

8,240,917 7,343,545
7,343,545 8,263,965
562,832 1,000,868
(1,928,151) {1,604,505}
1,868,326 (533,148)
394,365 216,362
8,240,917 7,343,545
95,424 387,526
23,870 389
443,738 612,953
562,832 1,000,868
(543,078) (720,641)
{18,805) (2,934}
(21,571) {2,306}
(997,475) (704,458}
(347,222) (174,167}
(1,928,151) {1,504, 505)

8.0% to 9.6%

5.00%

4.1% to 5.5%

2.75%
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2022 2021

1] - TR — Rupeeas ("000}-----=-=menmmr
DEFERRED EMPLOYEE BENEFITS
Accumulating compensated abhsences 30.1 124,681 85,586
Accumulating compensated absences
Fresent value of defined benefit abligation at beginning of the year 85,586 54,080
Charge for the year - net 64,020 27,775
Payments made during the year {24,925} {26,249)
Present value of defined benefit ohligation at end of the year 124 681 85,586
Principle actuarial assumptions: mamtmrmmmannas] Percentage------------- =
Waluation discount rate {%) 13.50% 10.25%
Salary increase rate (%!} 12.60% to 13.50% 9.25% to 10.25%

Description of risks to the Group
The compersated absences plans expose the Group to the following risks:

Discount rate risk - The risk of changes in discount rate, since discount rate is based on corporate § government
bonds, any decrease in bond yields will increase plan liabilities.

Salary increase / inflation risk - The risk that the actual salary increase are higher than the expected salary increase,
where benefits are linked with final salary at the time of cessation of service, is likely to have an impact an liability.

Mortality risk - The risk that the actual mortality experience is lighter than that of expected i.e. the actual life
expectancy is longer than assumed.

Withdrawal risk - The risk of actual withdrawals experience may different from that assumad in the calculation.

2022 2021
Naote  --em—eeeee Rupees {"000)---mmnsmumx.
SHORT TERM BORROWING
Short term borrowings - Securaed 31.1 83,966,965 -

This amount represents a term finance facility arranged by the Holding Company through the Government of
Pakistan {GoP) of an amount up te Rs. 65,000 million from the National Bank of Pakistan (NBP), against a GoR
guarantee in order to fulfill the commitment of the {GoF} towards the Government of Balochistan {GoB) for partially
acquiring equity stake in the reconstituted Reko-Dig Project. As at year end, the amount of Rs 61,742 million
equivalent to USD 337.5 million has been availed against this facility upon instructions of the Federal Government.
The amount is inciusive of the principal amount and all related expenses i.e. transaction cost, out of pockst expense
incurred by the Holding Company and accrued interest on the principal amount.

The loan was initially drawn for a period of nine months, with inlerest calculated at §-month Karachi Interbank
Offered Rate (KIBOR) + 0.50% effective from the date of disbursement i.e. March 31, 2022, and was repayable
directly by the GoP in a single bullet installment. Subsequent to the year-end, the Ioan facility has been renewed, with
the approval of Economic Coordination Committee (ECC) of the Federal Cabinet, for a tenor of seven years
{inclusive of a two-year grace period) with effect from December 31, 2022 and carries an interest rate of 8-month
KIBOR + 0.20%. The restructuring will result in the apportionment of the principal amount of the borrowing from NBP
and related receivable from GoP as well as related finance eost / income into current and non-current assats and
liabilities. As per the revised terms of the agreement, the loan is repayable in equal semi annual installments of
principal ameunt starting from June 30, 2025, As at June 30, 2023, interest acerued amounts 1o Rs 5,262 million as
per revised agreement.
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2022 2021

TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES Note  ———-emeeeee- Rupees {"000)-------------~
Trade Creditors
Due to joint operators 3,634,747 3,414 548
Due to vendors for services acquired 39,283 66 470
Trade payables 321 25,494,135 16,170,068

29,168,215 14,651,086
Other Payables
Accrued liabilities 138,804 136,819
Gratuity fund 32.2 . 144 480 78,752
Payable to provident fund 3,010 2677
Sales tax payable 807,936 344 953
FPort charges recovered 3,871,262 1,959 224
Withholding tax payable 6,372 4,505
CUther payables 11,418 8613
Excise duty and cess payable at import stage 5,569,753 3,175,569
Gther levies (receivable) / payable 11,359 569
Rovalty payable 1,317 878 919,908
Provision for windfall levy on oil / condensate 35.1.1.4 11,403,545 6,408 208

23,285,787 13,039,826

52,454 002 32,690,911

WAILL '

This amount includes payable to Pakistzn Gas Port Consortium Limited (PGPCL) of Rs. 1,732.64 million (2021: Rs.
1,344.34 milllen) on account of regasification charges and payable to LNG suppliers amounting to Rs. 23,761.54
million {2021: Rs. 14,823.58 million).

Mareover, the Group has issued demand letters fo it's LNG suppliers namely ENJ and Gunvor to claim the amaount
due to the Group in relation to ameunts over hilled to the Group in lieu of port charges. In this respect, ENI made the
payment for an amount of USD 2.19 million under protest and has started arbitration proceedings against the Group
at London Court of International Arbitration {LCIA}, After the intermitent proceedings, the parties based on mutual
agreement, applied for partial award. On October 12, 2022, the Tribunal issued its order.

In relation to supplies made by Gunvar International, the Group has raised debit notes for an amount of USD 10.7
million. Pursuant to the Gunvor's refusal o renew their performance guarantee, the Group adjusted the aforesaid
amount from Gunvor's inveoice of February 2022 cargo against which Gunvor initiated arbitralion proceedings with
LCIA Subsequent to the year end, the Tribunal issued a procedural order accarding to which, the Group as the
claimant will be filing its statement of case en January 6, 2023.

On January 11, 2022, Gunvor Singapore commenced arbitration at LGIA against encashment of performance
guarantee. Gunvar's claim is that (a} it has discharged its obligations under the Contract; and (b} it has not failed to
satisfy or otherwise contravened or failed to perfarm any of the conditions of the Contract. The Group submitted its
statement of case to the Tribunal on Movember 18, 2022 which is pending for adjudication.

2022 2021
Gratuityfund e ~-Rupees {'000)---r-smrreeume
The amount recognised in the consolidated statement of financial
position is as fellows:
Present value of defined benefit abligation 393,609 289,251
Fair vaiue of plan assets (249,159} (210,498
Net liability at end of the year 144,450 78,752
The movement in the present valus of defined benefit obfigation is as follows:
Present value of defined benefit obligation at beginning of the year 289,2514 248,125
Current service cost 62,593 54,228
Interest cost 28,718 19,137
Benefits paid (45,836} {54,796)
Remeasurement of defined benefit obligation 58,883 22,558
Present value of defined benefit obligation at end of the year 393,609 289.257
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2022 2021

-------------- Rupees {'000)-—--=-----=-:
The movement in the fair value of plan assets is as follows:
Fair value of plan assets at beginning of the year 210,499 184,289
Contributions 44.27¢ 52,680
Expected return on plan assets 23,518 19,272
Benefits paid {24,294) {32,087)
Remeasurement of plan assets (4.841) {13.645)
Fair value of plan assets at end of the year 249,159 210 499
The movement in asset / (liability) recognised in the consolidated statement
of financial position Is as follows:
Liability at beginning of the year 78,752 63,837
Expense for the yvear 67,793 54,091
Remeasurement loss recognised in other comprehensive income
during the year 63,724 36,203
Payments to the fund during the year {65,819) (75,379)
Liability at end of the year 144,450 78,752
Detall of plan assets
Cash at bank 110,357 401
Term deposits 138,802 210,098

249,159 210,499

Funds covered were invested within limits specified by regulations governing investment of approved retirermeant
funds in Pakistan. The gratuity plan is a defined benefit final salary plan invested through approved trusl fund. The
fund is governed under Trusts Act, 1882, Trust Deed and Rules of Fund, Companies Act, 2017, the Income Tax
Ordinance, 2001 and the Income Tax Rules, 2002. The trusiees of the fund are responsible to plan administration
and investment. The Group appeints the trustees. All trustees are employees of the Group.

2022 2021
------------- Rupesas {"000)-----e-meammeme
Amounts recognised in consolidated statement of profit and loss:

Current service cost 62,593 54.226
Net interest cost 5,201 {135)
67,794 54,051
Amounts recognised in consolidated statement of comprehensive income:
Remeasurement lass recognised on defined benefit obligatian 58,883 22,558
Remeasurement loss recognised on plan assets 4,841 13,545
63,724 36,203
The remeasurement loss arising frotm:
Experience adjustments 63,724 36,203
Financial assumptions : -
63,724 36,203
Principle actuarial assumptions: e Percentage-------—-
Valuation discount rate (%) 13.50% 10.25%
Salary increase rate (%) 12.5% to 13.5% 9.25% to 10.25%
Mortality rates Adjusted SLIC 2081-2005

These results and balances related to employees' benefits are based on actuarial calculations carried aut for the
year ended June 30, 2022 for the Helding Company and subsidiaries respectively. The management believes that

any change in market assumptions as of today would not have any material impact on the consolidated financial
statements.

AT L
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Description of risks to the Group
The gratuity plans expose the Group to the following risks:

Discount rate risk - The risk of changes in discount rate, since discount rate is based on corporate / government bonds, any
dacraase in bond yields will increase pian liabilities.

Salacy increase J inflation risk - The risk that the actual salary increase are higher than the expected salary increase, where
benefits are linked with final salary at the time of cessation of service, is likely to have an impact on liability,

Mortality risk - The risk that the aclual mortaiity experience is lighter than that of expected i.e. the actual life expectancy is
longer than assumed.

Withdrawal risk - The risk of actual withdrawals experiance may different from that assumed in the calculation.

Investment risk - The risk of cccurrence of losses relative ta the expected return on any paricular investment.

2022 2021
Note e Rupees ('000)---------mm- e
PAYABLE TC GOVERNMENT
Balance at the beginning of the year 59,314,085 22,008 288
Uhtilisation during the year 331 75,464,202 37218777
Amount repaid during the year (14,213,104} -
Balance at the end of the year 120,665,163 59 314,065

During the financial year ended June 30, 2019, the Govemnment of Pakistan {GoP}) and International Islamic Trade Finance
Corporation {ITFC) entered into a deferred financing facility dated April 22, 2019, with the Subsidiary Company, PLL.
designated as an executing agency by the GoP. As per the agreement, payments to LNG suppliers are processed by ITFC,
with PLL processing the payment Lo the State Bank of Pakistan {SBP) in the designated bank account in USD equivalenl
PKR. Accordingly, during the year PLL executed 13 transactions (2021; 14 transactions) wilh LNG suppliers under the
agreement, amounting to Rs. 75,464 million {2021; Rs. 37 216 millicn).

2022 2021

Noteg e ~Rupees {'000)----------—mrmv-=-
{ADVANCE TAX) i PROVISION FOR TAXATION
Income tax - payable at beginning of the year 308,574 4,073,768
Income tax paid during the year (27,991,363} {20,435,758)
Provision for taxation for the year 44 27,630,501 16,655 883
Provision for taxation - prior years 44 - 14,672
Incorme tax - {receivable] / payable at end of the year (51,688) 08,574

The tax authorities had amended the assessments of the Holding Company for the tax years 2003 to 2020 raising an
aggregate demand of Rs. 24,650 million, which primarily relates to depletion allowance, development and production
expenditure, decommissioning cost, super tax, unrealised exchange losses, rebate on donaiion and tax credils under
sections 61, 65 of the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001. The Helding Company had paid the said amounts under protest o
avoid penalties under the Income Tax Ordinance 2001,

An amount of Rs 14,833 million out of the said aggregate demand relates to depletion allowance. The aforesaid maller has
besn decided in faver of the Holding Company by Isiamabad High Court for tax years 2004, 2005, 2008, 2009 and 2010,
however the matter has been taken up by tax authonties in the Honorable Supreme Court of Pakistan wherein it is at pre
admission stage and leave to appeal is not yet granted to the tax authorities.

The Halding Company, based on the advice of its legal counsel, is confident that it has sound grounds to defend the case on
the aforesaid issue. However, considering the fact that malier has not yet attained finality due to its pending status before
Honorable Supreme Court of Pakistan, the Holding company as a matter of abundant caution, has continued to provide for
tax {iabilities primarily in respect of dapletion allowance, super tax, development and production expenditure and tax credils
under section €5 in the books of accounts. In case the matter relaling to the said issues are decided in faveor of the Holding
Company, the amount provided for as well as paid under protest in the past will be credited to the conzolidated statement of
profit or loss for that year.

MNIFLL .
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2022 2021
Note —  —--mmeeeeeeeee Rupees ("000)--——-—-mmaemm

CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS
Contingencies
Government Holdings {Private) Limited {The Helding Company)
Relating to carried cost liabitity 351.1.1 1,765,033 1,280,463
Tax conlingencies 351.1.2 48,177,837 18,177 837

19,942 870 19,458 299

This represenls canlingencies in respect of 5% camied cost of the discovered fields where Declaration of
Commercizlities (DOCs) have not yel been submitted at the year end and for those development and production
leases where the Holding Company's estimates varies with those of the operator,

The Federal Board of Revenue (FBR) issued a show cause nolice to the Helding Company in respect of nan-
applicability of zero percent sales tax on crude / condensate supplies from 2009-10 to 2013-14 as per SRO No.
549(1)/2008, which includes the condition of "import and supplies thereof." The Holding Company disputed 1he nolice
on the grounds that it does not impart crude / condensale and has filed writ petition with Islamabad High Court which
is pending for adjudication. The estimated tax contingency has been calculated based on the sales tax amount
involved, penaity, and default surcharge.

The income {ax assessment for the tax year 2021 was amended by ihe Additional Commissionar Inland Revenue
{ADCIR) by making certain disallowances and add backs including, depletion allowance, development and production
expenditure, actuarial loss, provision for windfall levy ete. and created an aggregale tax demand of Rs 1,4356.49
million. The Holding Company filed appeal against the order of ADCIR befare CIR (A] which is pending.

Contingency with respect to imposition of Windfall Levy on oil f condensate

The Holding Company is a working interest awner in Tal, Mirpur Khas, Khipro, Mehar, Mubarak, Tanda Allah Yar,
Gurgalot, Sinjhoro, Bitrism, Khewari and Mim Blocks whose Pelroleumn Goncession Agreements {PCAs) were
executed under the framewoark of Petroleum Policies 1694 and 1997, Subsequently, in pursuance to the oplion
available under Petroleum Policy 2012, the Helding Company along with other working interes! owners signed
Supplemental Agreements (SAs) with the Government of Fakistan {GoP) for conversion of gligible existing and
fulure discoveries under aforesaid PCAs to the Petroleum Policy (PP), 2012. Under the said arrangement, price
regimes prevailing in PP 2007, PF 2008 and PP 2012 in terms of PP 2312 shall be applicable, correlated with the
spud dates of the wells in the respective policies starting from November 27, 2007, The conversion package a3
defined in the SAs included windfall fevy on natural gas anly.

On December 27, 2017, the Ministry of Energy {Petroleun Division) notified amendments in Petrolaum Policy 2012
after approval from the Council of Common Interests {CCI} dated November 24, 2017. These amendments include
imposition of windfall lavy on ail / condensate {WLOY. Under the said notification, the Supplemental Agreements
already executad for conversion from Petroleum Policies of 1994 and 1997 shall be amended within 50 days, failing
which the working interest owners will not remain eligible for gas price incenlive. On January 03, 2013, Directorate
General Petroleum Concessions (DGPC) has required all exploration and production companies to submit
Supplemental Agreements to incorporate the aferementionad amendments in Petroleum Concession Agreements
{PCAs) signed under 1994 and 1997 policies, for execution within the stipulated time as specified above or to forgo
the incenlives available for gas pricing.

Based on legal advice, \he Holding Company is of the view that terms of the existing PCAs as amended lo-date
through the Supplemental Agreements already executed cannot unilaterally be amended hy the GoP through
introduction of amendment nar can the GoF lawfully require and direct that such amendments be made lo include
imposition of WLO retrospeclively and nor the GoP unilaterally hold and direct that the gas price incentive o which
the Heolding Company is presently entitled to and receiving under the conversion package as enshringd under the
Supplemental Agreement stands withdrawn or the Holding Company ceases to be eligible for such incenlive in case
of failure to adopt the unilateral amendments in the existing PCAs. Accordingly, the afoerementioned amendments as

well as the subsequent letters requiring implementation of the amendments are not enforceable or binding upon the
Holding Company,
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The Holding Cempany along with other joint operation partners has challanged the applicability of WLO against the
backdrop of Supplemental Agreements already executed pursuant to PP 2012 in the Hongrable Islamabad High
Ceourt which has granted stay order against the CC/ decision dated November 24, 2017 on imposilion of WLO. It is
perinent to nots that all wril petitions on subject matler have been consolidated by the Honorable High Gourt. The
petitions are pending with date in office.

The cumulative impact of windfall levy on ol (WLO) since application of incremental gas prices up till June 30, 2022
amount to approximately Rs. 24,719 million (2021: Rs. 16,724 million). As mentioned above, the Holding Company
based cn the advice of legal counsels, is confident that it has valid grounds to defend the aforesaid issug in the Court
and that the issue will be decided in its favor. However, without prejudice to the Holding Company’s legal contention
and 85 a matter of prudence, the Holding Company has booked provision of Rs. 11,404 million to prospeciively
account fer the impact of WLG from the date of the SRO .. December 27, 2017 till June 30, 2022,

Unitization of Salamat { Adam West Field Reserves

A resenvoir communication study by an independent third party, is cummently in pregress to determine reserve volume
estimates and level of communication between Salamat field (operated by UEPL; GHPL Waorking Inlerest (WI1): 25%)
and Adam West field {operated by PPL; GHPL WI: Nil}. If reservoir communication between the fields is proved then
subject to final results of the study, agreement of concerned parties and Director General Petroleum Concessions’s
(DGPC) approval, financial exposure may arise equivalenl to revenug from additional production from the reservair to
be offset by royally / OPEX f tax and other related expenses incurred.

Cther contingencies

As part of the arrangement, as disclosed in note 11 of these consalidaled financial statements, each of (he
consortium companies including GHPL have also provided, joint and several, parent company guarantees to ADNOC
and Supremeg Council for Financial and Economic Affairs Abu Dhabi, UAE, to guarantee the obligaiions of Lhe
associate, Pakistan International Oil Lirmited (PIOL).

On December 17, 2018, Attock Refinery Limited (ARL) filed a writ petition against the Holding Company before
Islamabad High Court and has disputed and withheld amounts invaiced o it prior to the signing of sales agresmani
i.e. March 13, 2018 on account of adjustment of premium or discount as announced by Saudi Aramco for deliveries to
Asian customers f destinations under the sales agreement. The amount withheld and disputed by ARL amounts to Rs
411 millign (2021: Rs 411 million}. The Holding Campany helieves that the debit notes f inveices have been raised in
accordance with he sales agreements signed with the Government of Pakistan (GoP) and no provision is required in
this respact.

Inter State Gas Systems (Private) Limited - |SGSL (the Subsidiary Company)
There are ne contingencies as at June 30, 2022 (2021: Nil}

Pakistan LNG Limited - PLL {the Subsidiary Company)

Tax Contingencies

Far tax year 2018, 2010 and 2020 tax authorities amended the PLL's assessment under seclion 122(5A) and crealed
lax demand of Rs. 1,691 million, Rs. 4,207 million and Rs. 2,928 million by making disallowances of mainly relaled to
unrealised exchange loss, credit of tax paid under import stage, capacity, utifisation, fiexibility charges and employees
benefits encashment,

The Subsidiary Company, PLL, fited appeals on relevant forms which are currently pending, however management,
based on the opinion of its tax consultants, believes that they have strong arguments in these matters hence, most
likely these will be dacided in their favour.

Pakistan LNG Terminals Limited (PLTL) entered into an Operalion and Service Agreement (OSA) with PGP
Cansortium Limited {Operator), under which the Operator was required to achieve the commercial start date on or
before July 1, 2017, failing which, PLTL was entitled to receive liquidated damages. The commercial start date was
delayed by 187 days and achieved on January 4, 2018. Accordingly in pursuance of OSA, PLTL imposed liquidaled
damages of USD 41.1 million and claim for other damages of USD 991,000. The Operator dispuled the demand
made by PLTL and referred the matter for international arbitration at London Geurt of International Arbitralien {LCIA)
wheraby it was original case number 204638,

.
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FLTL sent a notice for termination of OSA to the Operator on October 14, 2019 with immediate affect citing persisient
breach by the Cperator of its obligations under the QSA to provide adequate assurance of performance. PGPCL
disputed the termination and referred the matter to LCIA on February 28, 2020, whereby il was original case number
204583, The LCIA has merged both the aforesaid arbilration matters inte one under the case number 204593 and
same is pending for decisian,

As par its commitment, PLL had previded Standby Letter of Credit (SBLC) equivalent to three {03) months capacity
charge {LUED 21.48 million). However, PGPCL had dispuied the amount and had referred the matiar to international
arbitration. Further, the Operator has also demanded from PLL, reimbursement of Port Qasim Rovally, PLL has
disputed the claim of royally and accordingly matter is pending at international arbitration,

During arbitration proceedings, Operator has raised further counter claim related 1o

1) Loss of revenue due to delay in commercial start amounting USD 58,13 million and Rs. 414.31 million.

2y Services charges for period prior to commercial start amounting USD 2.23 million.

3} Addilional costs amounting to Rs. 376.05 million with interest at the Default Interest Rate from December
28, 2016 1o the date the SBLC is provided.

4)  Direct respondent to issue the SBLC for an amount of USD 22.07 million.

PGPCL disputed iha termination and invoked dispute resolution clause of OSA for amicable setfement of dispute.
The dispule resolution mechanism could not achieve desired objective of amicable settlement, hence, matter was
referred to international arbitration at London Court of Internalional Arbitration (LCIA) on February 28, 2020, under
case number 2045%3. The LCIA has appointed Arbitration Tribunal and has merged the two arbitrations into ane
under Arbitration Case Number 204583. The relief sought by PGPCL against termination of OSA is to declare
termination null and void and to ask PLL o reimburse the legal cost. As per the Arbitral Tribunal revised limetable
the Tribunal will award its decision in January 2023.

The first hearing of the arbitration was held from May 1-5, 2022, followed by closing arguments on June 8-9, 2022
The Tribunal's decision is expacted during 2023,

2022 2021
Note —reeemvereen Rupees [‘000)- mrmeeersun
CONMMITMENTS
Government Heldings {Private) Limited [the Holding Company)
Minimum work commitment 35.21.1 3,636,842 4,745,992

This represents the Holding Company's share in the minimum work commitments relaling to non-gperated joint
operations and the Holding Company's own capital budget.

During the year, the Holding Company entered into shareholders' agreement with the consortium pariners, as referred
to under note 11.1 ¢of the censolidated financial statements, under which the Holding Company has commitiad to
invest up to USD 100 million in PIOL during five years out of which USD 25 million {Rs. 4,205 millicn) have been
invested till June 30, 2022, Subsequent to the year end, the Holding Company further invested USD 10 million (Rs.
2.226 million).

Inter State Gas Systems {Private) Limited - ISGSL {the Subsidiary Campany)

ISGSL has entered into an investment agreament in raspect of which it shall be subscribing for 940,000 shares in
TAPI Pipeling Company Limited (TPCL) at a consideration of US$ 10 per share. The said subscription shall be
against first, second, third and fourth closings. Commitment amounting to USD 2.65 million in respect of fourth
closing is still pending.

Pakistan LNG Limited - PLL [the Subsidiary Company)

In accordance with the provisions of the Operations and Services Agreement {OSA), PLL shall pay 1o PGPCL a
capacity charge of USD 245,220 per day subject to capped availability factor (96%) and a fiexibilily charge in the
ovent of excess lerminal capacity ufilisation at the rate of 25% of the applicable capacity fee, from the
commencemeant of commercial operation date.
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In accordance with the provisions of Master Sale and Furchase Agreement {MSPA}, PLL is obliged to import one
cargo of LNG per month from Mfs. ENI SPA (the Sellers) for a period of 15 years respectively from the start of
cammercial operation date.

PLL usas premises for official purposes which is rented from the Ministry of Energy (Petroleurn Division). In respect of
the same, PLL is required to make rental payments to ihe Ministry of Energy {Petroleum Division) on applicable rates
nolified frem time to time. Subhsequent to year end, PLL has paid rent 1o the Minisiry, due till June 30, 2021,
consequen to which, PLL has recognised accrual for {he rental expense amounting to Rs. &.17 million.

2022 2021

REVENUE FROM CONTRACTS WITH CUSTCMERS - NET

MNatural gas - gross sales 51,926,836 46,517,332
Sales tax {7,543,752) (8,755,924)
Excise duty (635,693) (695,523)
MNatural gas - net sales 43,747,391 39,065,886
Crude oil- gross sales 48,743,933 23,462,625
Sales tax {2,919,845) -
Crude oil- net sales 45,824,088 23462625
Liquefied petreleum gas - gross sales 11,401,364 5,710,832
Sales tax {1,656,859) {827,400
Excise duty (6,419} (6,665)
Fetroleum development levy {349,419) {342,060)
Liquefied petroleum gas - net sales 9,389,167 4,534,707
Gross sales - Regasified liquified natural gas 460,982,957 242 842 917
Sales tax on sales of Regasified liquified natural gas {66,980,429) (26,029,598)
Gross sales - Regasification services 5,308,893 -
Sales Tax on Regasification services (732,262) 5
Regasified liquified natural gas - net sales 398,579,164 216,813,318
497,539 810 283,976 536

As per the decision of the Economic Coordination Committes (ECC) vide case no. ECC-62/12/2018 dated May 30,
2018, the LNG margin of PLL was increased from 2.5% 0 3.75% w.e.f June 01, 2018, However, implementation of
the same is currently pending with Qil and Gas Regukatory Autherity (OGRA). Once implemented, the margin will be
recoverad by PLL prospectively.

Fudhermore, Regasified Liquified Natural Gas (RLNG) sales include sales to Sui Nodhern Gas Pipelines Limited
{SMNGPL} invoiced on provisional prices. There may be adjustment ih revenug upon issuance of final RLNG price
netification by QGRA, for the respective month, impact of which cannot be delermined at this stage for all cosls. Any
possible impact related to such adjustrents wilk be adjusted prospectively,

Contract liabilities
During the year ended June 30, 2022, the Greup has recognised the following contract liahilities related to contracls
with customars of liquefied petroleun gas (LFG):

Movement in contract liabilitles

Balance at beginning of the year 82,097
Advances received during the year 4,386,640
Transferred to revenue during the year (4,401,284}

Balance at end of the year

WAFLL.

67,353
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2022 2021
Note  —vereeems --Rupees ("090)-------------
ROYALTY AND OTHER LEVIES
Royaity 374 10,595,840 7447 360
Windfall levy 37.2 763,551 152,782
11,359,391 7,600,142
Rovalty and other levies charged by the Government of Pakistan.
This pertains to production from Gambat South, Dhok Sultan and Shah Bandar.
OPERATING EXPENSES
Operating and other direct expenses LA 373,322,567 202,834 948
Depreciation on property, plant & eguipment 5.4 2,581,680 2,297,716
Depreciation on right of use asset 7 10,701,431 10,701,431
Amortisation of development and production assets 10 3,805,248 3,972,123
[mpairment 38z 1,232,021 307,512
Decommissioning cost actualised during the year 71,107 -
Reversal due to change in decommissioning cost estimates 29.3 {347,222) {174 167}
391,366,832 218,939 563
Operating and other direct expenses
Operating expenses - joint operations & L NG 38.1.1 & 38.1.2 373,030,927 202,567 373
Capacity, utilisation and flexibility chargas 281,640 267,575
73,322 567 202 834 948

It includes the Holding Company's share in operating expenses of joint operation amounting to Rs. $,819 million
{2021: Rs. & 765 milien) mainly comprising of personnel cost, field / contract services, repair and maintenance,
workovers, travelling etc.

Under the Master Sales and Purchase Agreement ("MSPA"} and the respective Confirmation Notices (“CN"} signed
with LNG Suppliers "Seller” of FLL, it is agreed that PLL "Buyer" shall make paymant of invoices raised by the Seller
and the Parties shall adjust port charges retrospectively upon availability of final Port Qasim Authodity {PQA) invoices.
PLL on the bases of legal cpinion, is of the view that definition of "Port Charges”, under the MSPA and CN, is
restricted to Pilotage Fees (inclusive of towage charges) and any Monscon Charges. Management is of the view that
any other charges which do not fall under this definition of “Port Charges” are the responsibility of the Seller.

During the period from November 2047 to October 2020, the liquified natural gas suppliers have claimed Porl Charges
which included certain components. The management, based on the above |egat opinion, has disputed such charges
and issued debit notes to respective term and spot suppliers for the recovery of such charges in the manth of
December 2020.

Total disputed recoverable amount on account of Port Charges fram inception to Octaber 2020 was USD 27.61 million
out of which USD 12.71 million has been withheld during the year ending June 30, 2021. Amount recovered in
presented in note 32 of these consclidated financial statements as liability as one of the liquified natural gas suppliers
W/s Eni 5.p.A ("Eni") after paying the disputed amount initiated arbitration on July 23, 2021 {Suit No. LCIA 215245 of
USD 11.043 million) before the London Court of International arbitration ("LCIA". The arbitration is still at an early
stage. After Eni filed its request for arbitration ("RFA") on July 23, 2021, the PLL filed its response lo the RFA on
October 01, 2021. Cn November 19, 2021, the LCIA confirmed the appointment of the arbitral tribunal. Procedural
order is yet to be issued by the arbitral tribunal after which exchange of correspondence between the arbitral tribunal
and the parties will take place. PLL is also pursuing the matter of ‘Port Charges’ with its liquified natural gas suppiiers
of both term and spot cargoes who have not paid as per demand notices issued.



2022 2021
Notg -commmmeeee Rupees {'000}------—amcv-.
38.2 Impairment
Impairment on property, plant and equipment 5.2 459,803 235,200
Impairment on developmeant and production assets 10 772,213 72,312
1,232,021 307,512

-H5.

38.2.1  During the current year, the Holding Company carried out impairment testing of its joint operations assets, as required
under 1AS 36 - 'Impairment of Assets’ to assess whether there is any provision required on these assets. Based on the
assessment, management has made a provision of impairment on property plant and equipment, development and
production assets as specified in above note.

38.2.2 The Holding Compary considers the relationship between international oil prices, produclion profiles, petroleum
reserves and carmrying value of its joint operation investments, amongst other factors, when reviewing for indicators of
impairment. As at June 30, 2022, the astimates of future production profiles of producing / discovered fields within the
Jjoint operations have revised based on latest technical information, indicating a potential impairment.

38.2,3  For lhe purpose of carrying out impairment testing, each joint operation has been considered a separate cash
generzting unit and the recoverable value of the each joint operation investment has been separately determined and
compared with the respective camying value of the assets of that jeint operation.

38.2.4 The recoverabie amount of the joint operation investment is based on ‘value-in-use' computations. In assessing the
value in use, estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value, using a pre-tax discount rate that is
based on the existing policy rate prevailing within the country. The pre-tax discount rate applied to cash flow
projections is 11.88% (2021: 14.78%).

2022 2021
T - S — Rupees ['000)------sxmmummr
39 FINANCE INCOME ! {COSTS)
Finance Income
Finance income from financial assets
Return on bank depasits 1,575,015 1,237 685
Return on term depasit receipts 3,431,349 2,161,845
5,006,364 3,398,530

Finance income from non financial assets
Gain on long term liability due to change in estimate 27.1 644,289 177,617
Finance Income 5,652,653 3,977,147
Finance Cost
Interest expense on lease liability {5,683,227) {5,473,875)
Unwinding of discaunt on provision for decommissioning
cost 291 {394,365) {216,362)
Unwinding of discount on long term liability {9,829) {22,930}
Interest on delayed payment {179,767) {77,561}
Bank charges (21,173 {3,663)
Finance cost (6,288,361) {5,800,391)
Net finance cost {635,708} {2,223.244;

DATEL.




40

41

41.1

-58-

EXPLORATION AND PRQSPECTING EXPENDITURE

Cost of dry and abandoned wells
Prospecting expenditure

GENERAL AND ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES

Salaries, wages and benefits
TAPI-project expenditure

FPak Stream Gas Pipeline {PSGP) project expenditure
Travelling and conveyance
Repairs and maintenance

Rent

Communications

Utilities

Training and seminars

Printing and stationary
Advertisement

Enlertainment

l-egal and professional charges
Auditors' remuneration

Fee and subscription

Software maintenance fee
Insurance

Business development
Corporate social responsibility
Internship program of Ministry of Energy
Arbitration cost

Amortisation of intangible assets
Depreciation

Security services

Loss on disposal

Others

Note

41.5

G.4

2022 2021
--------------- Rupees ('000}-----—---

388,609 306,996
297,326 254,335
685,935 561,331
1,042,560 790,404
13,893 13,530

80,316 -
18,424 5,038
27,724 24 881
36,464 39,772
1,580 1,550
28,889 15,528
6,750 7,803
7,032 3.677
7,771 11,899
3,055 2,252
124,880 75,747
20,089 5,830
3,683 2,987
43,609 20,795
19,930 13,639
49,865 2,235
2,368 172

44,848 -
18,786 26,922
37,398 36,372
5,873 5,054
- a1
8,882 91,203
1,694,708 1,199,331

tincludes Rs. 172.59 million (2021: Rs.81.04 million} in respect of post employment benefits,

JAFEL
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41.2 The aggregate amounts charged in these consoclidated financial statements for the remuneration of the chief
executive officer and executives of the Group are as follows:

Chief Executive Officer Executives
2022 2021 2022 2021
- Rupees ('000) - ————
Managerial remuneraticn 42,633 32,802 615,848 452 180
Bohus - - - -
Post employment benefits 14,505 6,689 111,974 59852
Feimbursable expenses 207 135 55414 43 646
Additional charge allowance - - 696 1,843
87,345 34,626 783,932 567 621
Number of persons 1 1 38 34

41.3 Key management personnel

Key management personnel comprises chisf axecutive, chief financial officer, company secretary, executive directors
and genaral managers of the Group.

2022 2021
---------------- Rupees ('000)~——-rr-rere-
Managerial remuneration 184,482 153,175
Bonus 1,176 688
Fost employment Benefil 50,496 28,229
Reimbursable expenses 1,774 1.241
237,928 183,333
41.4 Fee paid 10 non-executive directors for attending the Board of Directors meelings amounted to Rs. 68.4 million (2021:
Rs. 57.2 million).
2022 2021
------------- Rupees {'000)---=--mxnsmnueen
41.5 Auditors' remuneration
Holding Company
Statutory audit fee 3,944 1,640
Report on compliance of Public Sector
Companies (Corporate Governance) Rules 2013 116 60
Decommissioning certification 812 200
Qut of pocket expenses 342 176
Tax services 1,225 .
6,439 2.076
Subsidlaries
Statutory audit fee 2,900 3,483
Report on compliance of Public  Sector
Companies (Corporate Governance) Rules 2013 200 B
Other Services 700 -
Out of pocket expenses 167 272
Tax senvices 9,663 -
13,630 3.755
20,069 5,830
42 OTHER EXPENSES
Exchange loss - net 11,373,219 o
Exchange loss on translation of lease liability 35,465,026 =
Windfall levy on oil f condensate 35114 4,995.338 1,320,292

W 51,833,581 1,320,292
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OTHER [NCOME
Other income from non financial assets

Exchange gain

Exchange gain on translation of lease liability
Gain on disposal of fixed asset

Signature bonus

Cthers

TAXATION
Current

Charga for the ysar
Adjustment an account of group taxation
Charge for prior year

Deferred

{Credit} / charge for the year

Reconciliation of tax ¢harge for the year:

Accounting prafit
Tax rate

Tax on accounting profit at applicable rate 44% (2021: 40%)
Tax effect of:

Unwinding of discouni on provision of decommissioning cost
Exchange loss / {gain) on provision of decommissioning cost
Change in estimates related to provision of decommissioning cost
Depletion allowance

Effect of change in tax rate

Incame chargeable to tax at reduced corporate rate

Deferred tax derecognised

Prior years charge

Difference in tax and accounting depreciation

Others

EARNINGS PER SHARE - BASIC AND DILUTED

Profit for the year Rupees
Weighted average ordinary shares Number
Earmings per share - basic Rupeas

There is no difutive effect on the earmings per share of the Group.

-

2022 2021
---------------- Rupees {'000}ccemsaarrrmneras
- 1,344,424
- 8915923
2,481 .
M, 500 -
601 753
34,582 10,261,100
29,615,620 16,855,859
(1,984,719} -
- 14,672
27,630,901 16,670,561
{11,994.,763] 2,385,655
15,636,138 19,056,216
36,894,770 61,372 853
44% 40%
16,233,699 24,549,181
173,521 86,545
822,063 (213.258)
{558,812) {248, 144)
(7,356,754 (3,127.891)
655,414 -
2,787,285 {1,956,106)
3,741,075 -
: 14,672
{303,787}
{517,524) (48,783)
{597,561 {5,492 965)
15,636,138 18,056,216

21,258,631,601

2,103,260,097

42.318,736.801

2,088,512,092

10.11

20.26
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FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

The following detail shows the camying amounts of financial assets and liabilities. It dees not include fair value
information as the carrying amount is a reasonable approximation of fair value as the current financial assets and
liabilities are short term and some financial assets are also interest bearing. Further, the financial assets due
directly / uitimately from GoP carries contractual right and entittement to receive interest on late payment and is
exempt from ECL accounting / disclosure as disclosed in note 3.3. The non current financial assets are also interest
bearing.

Carrying amount
2022 2021

FINANCIAL ASSETS

Financial assets classified as amortised cost;

Short term investment 25,517,895 41,006,758
Leoans to staff 53,675 24 280
Trade debts- net 272,175,706 192 006,383
Loan, advances and other receivables exclusive of
staff loans and advances 203,909 258,825
Security deposits 330 385
Cash and bank balances 17,604,323 11,234 375
Accrued Interest 216,721 57978
315,772,569 244 678 984
FINANCIAL LIABILITIES
Financial Habilities classified as amortised cost:
Long term liabiity 5,036,503 4,331 436
Trade and other payables M E0T 57T 22,675 647
Lease liakility 149,195,473 123,359,788
Payable to Government 120,565,163 59,314,065
309,304,716 209,680,936

Credit quality of financial assets

The credit quality of the Group financial assets have been assessed beiow by reference to external credit ratings of
counterparties determinad by The Pakistan Credit Rating Agency Limited (PAGRA) and JCR - VIS Credit Rating
Company Limited (JCR-VIS). The counterparties for which external credit ratings were not available have been
assessad by reference to internal credit ratings determined based on their historical information for any defaults in
meeting obligations.

Rating 2022 2021
B —— Rupees {"000)---—-m--mnemmmom-
Trade Debts
Counter parties without external credit rating
Due from associated companias 261,220,000 185,697,203

Others 10,955,707 6,308,180

272,175,707 192,006,384
Loans, advances, deposits and other receivables
Counterparties without external ¢redit rating 40,480 28,912
Bank Balances
Counterparties with external credit rating A+ 17,602,333 11,234,014

OATLL
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Interest rates used for determining fair value

The interest rates used to discount estimated cash flows, when applicable, are based on the government yield curve at
the reporting date plus an adequate credit spread. Since the majority of the financial assets are fixed rate instruments,
there is no significant difference in markel rate and the rate of instrument, fair value significantly approximates to
carrying value.

Determination of fair values

A number of the Group's accounting policies and disclosures require the determination of fair value, for both financial
and non-financial assets and liabilities. Fair values have beer determined for measurement and / or disclosure
purposes based on the following methods,

Non - derivative financial assets

The fair value of non-derivative financial assets is estimated as the present value of future cash flows, discounted at
the market rate of interest at the reporting date. This fair value is determined for disclosure purposes.

Non - derivative financial liabilities

Fair value, which is determined for disclosure purposes, is calculated based on the present valug of future principal and
interest cash flows, discounted at the market rate of interest at the reporting date.

Finangial risk factors
The Group has exposure to the following risks from its use of financial instruments;

- Credit rigk
- Liquidity risk
- Market risk

This note presents informaticn about the Group's exposure ta each of the above risks, the Group's objectives, policies
and processes far measuring and managing risk, and the Group's management of capital. Further quantifative
disciosures are included throughout thase consolidated financial statements,

The Board of Directors has overall responsibility far the establishment and oversight of the Group's risk management
framework. The Board is responsible for developing and monitoring the Group’s risk management policies.

The Group's rigsk management policies are established to identify and analyze the risks faced by the Group, to set
appropriate risk limits and controls, and to monitar risks adherence to limits. Risk management policies and systems
are reviewed regularly to reflect changes in market conditions and the Group's activities. The Group, through its
training and management standards and procedures, aims to develop a disciplined and constructive control
enviranmeni in which all empleyees understand their roles and obligations,

The Group's audit and risk management committee oversees how management monitors compliance with the Group's
rigk management policies and progedures and reviews the adequacy of the risk management framawaork in relation ta
the risks faced by the Group. The audit and risk management committee is assisted in its oversight role by internal
audit. Internal audit undertakes both regular and ad-hoc reviews of risk management contrels and procedures, the
results of which are reported to the audit and risk management committee,

DORHEL
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46.2 Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk that a counterparty will not meet its obligation under a financial insteument or customer contract,
leading to a financial loss. Group's credit risk is primarily attributable to its trade debts, short term investments and its
balances at banks.

Trade debts

Trade debts are essentially due from oil refining companies, gas distribution companies and power generation
companies and the Group does nat expect these companies to fail to meet their obligations. Majority of sales to the
Group’s customers are made on the basis of agreemants approved by the GoP.

Sale of crude oil and gas Is at prices specified in relevant agreements and/ or as notified by the Government authorities
based on agreements with customers or relevant applicable petroleum policy or Petroleum Concession Agreements.
Prices of liquefied petroleum gas are determined by the Group subject to maximum price notified by Oil and Gas
Regulatory Authority (QGRA).

The Group establishes an allowance for impairment that represents its estimate of incurred losses in respect of trade
debts and lease receivables that are due directly / ultimately from the Government of Pakistan {GoP) till June 30, 2022
as per policy disclosed in note 5.13.1 to the consolidated financial statements.

Others

The credit risk related to balances with banks, in term deposits and saving accounts, are managed by investing in liquid
securilies and maintaining bank accounts only with counterparties that have a credit rating of at least A. While bank
balances and investments in term depasits are also subject to the requirements of IFRS 9 the identified impairment
loss was immaterial as the counterparties have reasonably high credit ratings.

The credit risk on advances to suppliers and other receivables is minimal as the Group has long established
relationship with the counterparties, which are mainly state owned enterprises, and management does not expect non-
performance by these counterparties on their obligations to the Group.

2022 2021
Short Term  Long Term  Short Term Long Term  Credit rating Agency
National Bank of Pakistan A-1+ AAA A1+ AMA PACRA
Allied Bank Limited A-1+ AAR A1+ Ao PACRA
Bank Alfalah Limited A1+ Al A-1+ AA+ FACRA,
Habib Bank Limited A1+ AAR A-1+ AAA VIS
MCB Bank A-1+ ABA A-1+ AAR PACRA
United Bank Limited A1+ AN A-1+ AAL, VIS
Meezan Bank Limited A-1+ ARA A-1+ AAL, VIS
Askari Bank Limited A-1+ Al A-1+ AL+ PACRA
Habib Metropolitan Bank A-1+ Ab+ A-1+ Add PACRA
Bank of Punjab A1+ AA+ A-1+ Al PACRA

JAF4L.
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Exposure 1o credit risk
The Group's maxirnum grposure to cradit risk for the components of consolidated statement of finangial posilion at June 30, 2022 and 2021 s equal 1o the camying amounis of financial assets as given
befow:
2022 202
mmmmmnme e RUGREE {000 - eemmemmee -
Loan to staff 53,675 24 280
Trade debts 272,715,410 192,006,383
Loan, advances and other receivables exclusive of staff lnans and advances 203,909 258 825
Securily deposils 330 385
Short 1erm investments 26,617,895 41,095,758
Cash and bank balances 17,604,323 11,234 375
Aperued Interest 216,72 457 978
316,312,263 244 375 984
The Group has maintained saving actounts with different banks having credit raling as mentioned below;
Credit rating Rating agency
A PACHEA 14,554,667 8,244,326
A-1+ JCR-VIS 3,047,666 3.047 666
17,602 333 11,251 9682
Credit ratings for shart term investments disclosed in nole 23 o the consolidated financial stalements.
Impairment losses
The aging of trade deblts at the reporting date is as follows:
2022 2021
Groes Debts impaired Gress Debis Impaired
Rupees. Rupees
Mol Past Due 31,734.926 - 20,433,320 -
Past due up lo three months 132,460,385 - 89,092,404 -
Past dueg Ihree W Six months 11595706 - 11.057.851 -
FPast dug more Lhan six manths 96,615.393 530,704 ¥1.422 EO8 -
272 745 410 534,704 192,006,383 -
Parly wise aging of trade debls other than related parties at reporting date is as under:
2022
Past Due
Party name Not past due Up to thres Three to six fore than six impairad balance Tatal
! manths manths months
Attock Refinery Limited 7,254,200 1,125.208 (245) 210,519 {57 . 549) 8,520,131
National Refinery Limited 186,554 7E - 152,708 (152,235} 128,003
Pakistan Refinery Limited £51,075 - {2,637) 733 - 649172
United Energy Pakistan Limited 1,497,393 - - - - 1,297,313
Others 97,343 (75,941) 7613 163,171 (58,701} 90,485
3,687 085 1,045.249 4,731 527,132 _{308,485) 10,955,704
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2021
Fasl Due
Farty namz kot pasl dus ) ! Impaired balance Total
ty P g Up to three monthg{i Three to six months || More than six months ¢
Attock Refinery Limited 2,975,386 525901 1.684 484,170 — 4,387 141
Mational Refinery Limnited 126,926 36,085 - 152,228 - 315,214
Pakistar Refinery Limited 443812 455 621 105,632 733 1,045,588
Uniled Energy Pakistan Limited 482 513 - - - 492,513
Cthers 79,719 - 29,587 - 108,706
4,117.556 1.417 587 136,903 63713 5309177
Party wise aging of trade debts of related parties at reporting date is as under:
2022
Past Due
Party name Hot past dua Up to three Three to six fare than six Impaired balance Total
manths months momths
Sul Northern Gas Pipalines Lirmitad 13,504,343 122,276,290 3,285,956 31,080,717 - 170,247,206
Sui Sputhemn Gas Company Limited 6,393,137 8,799,352 8,606,423 £3,312,585 - 87,111,497
Pak Arab Refinery Company Limited 1,497,423 201,318 (1,904} 3311 {1,180 1,728,768
Enar Petrolsum Refining Facility 119,181 - - {29) - 118,152
Qil & Gas Development Company 496,544 - - 1,663,066 {230,039} 1,929,961
Pakistan Patrofeum Limited 36,812 47,184 493 {1,179) - 83,316
22047 840 131,424,144 11,680,874 86,088,261 {231,219} 261,220,000
2021
Fast Due
A ot past due Up 10 three manths|| Three 1o six months ||More than six months Mg el
Sui Morthem Gas Pipelines Limited B859.829 78,568 450 3,348,085 23,233,749 - 115,310,122
Sut Southern Gas Company Limfled 4,321,798 8,967 705 7517437 47 539 544 - B6, 346 573
Pak Arab Refinery Company Limited 1,298 154 22068 - 6,337 - 1,326 557
Enar Petraleum Refining Facility 10818 - - - S 10,818
Qil & Gas Developmenl Company 1815775 802 385 41,402 6,047 - 2 665618
Pakistan Petraleurn Limited 9,388 14,112 14,014 - = 37 514
16.315.782 87 674818 10,920,948 70785677 - 185,697,203

As explained in note 18,1 10 the consolidated financial statements. the Group belizves thal no impainmeni allowance is necessary in respect of rade debts pasl due from Sui Northem Gas Pipelines
Limited and Sui Southern Gas Company Limited. Trade debts are essentislly due fram oil refining companies, natural gas and liquefied pelroleum gas transmmission and distribution campanies, the
Group is aclively pursuing for recovery of debts and the Graup does not expect these companies Lo fail to meef their obligations. Impaci of ECL on financial assets not covered under exemption as
explainad in note 3.3 has been recorded in note $8.3 to the consalidated financial stalements.

Expected credit loss on loans. advances, deposils and olher receivables is caloylated using general approach (as disclosed in note 5.13.1). As at the reporting date, Group envisages that defautt risk on
#ceount of loans, advances. depasits and other receivables is immaterial based on nistofic ttends adjusled t0 refiect forward Ipoking information.

Bank balances and invastmenls in (erm deposits are also subject o the requirements of IFRS @ the iderniified impairment loss was immaterial as Ihe counterparies have reasanably high credit ratings.

DRAFLS -
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2022 2021
The movement in the alfawance for impairment in respect of trade debts during the yaar was as follows: Rupces
Balance at beginning of the year =
Proviglon f (reversal) during the year 538,704
Balance at end of the year 539 704

Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Group will not be able to meet its financial obligations as they fall due, Prudent liguidity risk management implizs maintaining sufficien] cash and markelable securities to
close out market positions due 1o dynamic nature of the business. The Group's approach to managing liquidity is to ensure, a3 far as possible, that it will always have sufficient liguidity 10 meet its
liabilities when due, under bolth normal and stressed condilions, without incurring unacceplable losses or risking damage to the Group's reputation. Since the Group has sufficient assels againat ils
liabilities, and being fully cwned by Govermment of Pakistan {GoP) it does not have any significant liquidity risk.

The maturity profile of the Group's financial assets and lizbilities based or June 30, 2022, is summarized below:

Effective yield / Markup { Intarast Non markup {

2022
Interest Rate bearing Interest bearing Total
i et L [ 1] . 1-T-F- A W1 L1 )]
FINANCIAL ASSETS
Maturicy up to ong yaar
Long term loan - - 33,307 33,3G7
Trade debts - nat - - 272,175,706 212175, 706
Loan, advances and other receivables - - 120174 320,174
Deposils - - 330 330
Receivable from Govemment of Pakistan {GoP) KISOR + 0.50 63,966,965 - 63,966,965
Short-term investments 11.82 - 1415 25,517,895 - 25,517,885
Bark balarces 2.75-13.0 17,604,323 - 17,604,323
107,089,183 272,529,517 379,618,700
Maturity after one year:
Long term loan - - 20,368 20,368
B 20,168 20,368
107,080,183 272,549 B85 379,639,068
FINANCIAL LIABILITIES
Maturity up to one year
Trade and other payaties - - 34,507,577 34,507 577
Current portion af iong lerm liabilities - - 1,598,557 1,599,557
Lease liability 4.20 11,528,681 - 11,528,681
Shorl term bomrowing KIBOR + 0.50 63,966,965 - 63,966,965
Fayable to Govemment - - 120,565,183 120,565,163
75,495,644 156,672,287 232 1687,943
Maturity after one year:
Long term liabililies . - 3,436,946 3,438,945
Lease liability 4.20 137,666,782 - 137,666,792
137,666,782 3,436,946 141,403,738

W 213,162,438 180,109,243 373,271,681
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Effective yiaid / MWarkup f Interest Non markup f
o Inlerest Rate bearing Interest bearing s
o s ——— Rupees ('00}———-rreer——
FINANCIAL ASSETS
Maturity up tc one year
Long term loan 9.551 9,551
Trade debts - nel 192,006,383 192,006,383
Loan, advances and ather receivables 258.225 258,825
Deposits - - 385 385
Short-term investmants 6.9-7.55 41,086,758 - 41,098,758
Bank balances 55-6.7 11,291,904 - 11,291,904
52,388.662 192,275,144 244 BE3 806
Maturity after one year: =
Long termn loan - - 14,728 14,728
- 14,728 14,728
52,358,662 192 289,872 244 678,534
FINANCIAL LIARILITIES
Maturity up to one year
Trade and ather payables - - 22 675,647 22575647
Currenl podion of long term ltabilities - - 810,832 819,632
Lease liability 4.20 §.508.955 - 8,509,955
FPayable to Governmant - 58,314,065 58,314 065
§.509,955 82,809,344 91,319,299
Maturity after one year:
Long lerm liabilities - B 3,511,804 3.511,B04
Lease liability 4.2Q T14.84% 633 B 114,840,833
114,844 B33 3.511.804 118,361,637
123.359,788 86,321,143 209,680,936
2022 2021
GFF BALANCE SHEET ITEMS S — Yot ol 1111 | EO—
Capilal expenditure commilments 3,635 842 4.745 992

o1V S A
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46.4.1

Market risk

Market risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in
market prices. Market prices comprise three type of risks; interest rate risk, foreign exchange risk and other price risk.
Financial instrumenis affected by market risk include trade debls, balances held in banks in saving and term depasits, long
term liability in respect of carried interest and payabls te joint operation partners.

Interest rata risk

Interest / mark-up rate risk management is the risk that the value of a financial instrument will fluctuate due to changes in
interest rate. The Group does not have interest bearing financial liability; therefore, it does not have any inlerest rate/mark-up
risk in respect of financial liabiliies. The Group has invested in fixed interest bearing securities in the form of short tarm
deposit receipls as mentioned in note 23.1. Further the Group has bank balances in deposit accounts that carry variable
interest ratas, as mentioned in note 24.1,

46.4.2 Foreign currency risk

Currency risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financiad instrument will fluctuate because of the changes
in foreign exchange rates. Currency risk anses mainly from future commercial transactions or receivables and payables Lhat
exist due to transactions in foraign currencies.

Pakistani rupee (Rs.} is the functional currency of the Group and as a result currancy exposureg arise from transactions and
balances in currencies other than Pakistani rupee. The Group's potential currency exposure comprise;

- Transactional exposure in respect of non functional currency monetary items.
- Transactional exposure in respect of non functional currency expenditure and revenues.

The potential currency exposures are discussed below,

Transactional exposure in respect of non functional currency monetary items

Manetary items, including financial assets and liabilities, denominated in currencies otiher than the functional currency of the
Group are periodically restated to Pakistani rupes equivalent, and the associated gain or loss is taken to the consolidated
statement of profit or loss. The foreign currency risk related to monetary items is managed as part of the risk management
stralegy.

Transactional exposure in respect of non functional currency expenditure and revenues

Cenain operating and capital expenditurs is incurred by the Group in currencies other than the functional currency. Certain
sales revenue is eamed in currencies other than the functional currency of the Group. These curfency risks are managed as
a part of gverall fisk management strategy. The Group does not enter into forward exchange contracts.

Exposure to foreighn cutrency risk

The Group's exposure to the risk in changes in foreign exchange rates relates primarily to the trade debis, long term liability
in respect of camed interest and payable to joint operation operators. At the date of consclidated statement of financial
positien, the net foreign currency exposure aggregates to UED 10440 million (2021: USD 298.70 million).

2022 2021
FORERRRSIIN [T 41 s ) SO —
FINANCIAL ASSETS

Short term axposure

Trade debts 54,291 44,718
FINANCIAL LIABILITIES

Short term 2xposure

Due to joint operation aperators {17,784) {21 708)

Long term liability (carried intarast) (7,826} {5.210)

Foreign currency payables {116,262} {84177)
(141,872} £121.003)

Long term exposure

Long term liability (carried interest) {16,816} [(22,324)
(158,688) (143,417)

Net exposure to foreign currency risk (104,397 {98,701}

2RI
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2022 2021

-------------- Rupees ('000}-—-xm-mmnn-nmane
FINANCIAL ASSETS
Short term exposure
Trade debts 11,096,074 7,034,517
FINANCIAL LIABILITIES
Short term exposure
Due to joirt operation cperators {3,634, 748) {3,414 548}
Long term hability {carried intarest) {1,583 557) {819 632}
Foreign currency payabiles (23,761,547 (14,815,001}

{28,995,853} {19.049 181}
Long term exposure

Long term liability (carried interest) (3,435,9d486) (3,511,804}
(32,432,799) {22,560,885)
Met exposure to foreign currency rigk (21,336,725) {15 526 468)

The following significant exchange rates applied during the year:

Average rate Reporting date spoi rate
202z 2021 2022 2021
- {Pak Rupees) e
177.45 160,30 204.38 157.31

Foreign currency sensitivity

A 10% strengthening of the functional currency against USD at June 30, 2022 would have increased consolidated profit and
less by Ra. 2,134 milion {2021: Rs. 1,553 million). A 10% weakening of the functional currency against USD at June 30,
2022 would have had the equal but opposite effect of these amounts. This anzlysis assumes that all olher variables, in
particular interest rates, remain constant. The analysis is performed on the same basis for June 30, 2021

Capital management

The Group's objective when managing capital is to safeguard the Group's ability 10 remain as a going concermn and continue
te provide retarn for Government of Pakistan (3oP}. The Group is solely financad by the sharehalders’ equity,

The Group manages its capital struciura which comprises capital and reserves by monitoring return on net assels and makes
adjustraerts to it in the light of changes in economic conditions. In order te maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Group
may adjust the amount of dividend paid to GoP and / or issus new shares.

BALANCES AND TRANSACTHINS WITH RELATED PARTIES

The Group is controlled by Government of Pakistan. Therefore, all entities owned and controlled by the Governmant of
Pakistan are related parties of the Group. Other related parlies comprise subsidiaries, directors, major shareholders,
companies with common directorship, key management personnel and gratuity fund. The Group in normal course of business
pays for electricity, gas, airfare, rent and telephone to entities controlled by Government of Pakistan which are not material,
hence not disclosed in these consolidated financial statements. Significant transaclions of the Group with related parties and
balances outstanding at the year and are as follows:

2022 2021

.............. Rupees {"000)--—exmsmmnea.
Pakistan International Gil Limited {PIOL)- Associated Company - 25% share
holding of the company and commaon directorship
Cost of investment 4,205,500 &
Share of loss In associate (2,502,980}
Major shareholdars
Goverpment of Pakistan {100% share holding)
Dividend paid 5,000,000 7,000,000
Deposit against Reko Dig project 34,301,231 =

WIF4L
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Related parties by virtue of GoP holdings and 7 or common directorship
Pak Arab Refinery Company Limited

Sale of crude oil - net
Trade debts as at June 30

Sui Northern Gas Pipellnes Limited

Sale of natural gas - net
Sale of RLNG - net
Trade debts as at June 30

Sui Southern Gas Company Limited

Sale of naturat gas - net
Trade defts as at June 30

Enar Patroleum Refining Facility

Sale of crude oil - net
Trade debts as at June 30

Qil and Gas Davefopment Company Limited

Receivable as at June 30

FPayable as at June 30

Expenditure charged by joint aperatinn partner

Cash calls paid against joint operation partner expenses

Pakistan Petrolaum Limited

Receivabile as at June 30

Fayable as at June 30

Expenditure charged by joint oparation pariner

Cash calls paig against jeint operation partner expenses

MNational Bank of Pakistan

Balance of bank accounts

Balance of Investment {term daposit receipts) as at June 30
Interest earned during the yvear

Short term borrowing

Othar related parties

Contribution to gratuity fund (refer note 32.2

Remunaration to key managament personnel {refer note 41.3)
Contribution o provident fund

NUMBER OF EMLPOYEES

Number of employees as at year end
Average number of employess employed during the year

STAFF PROVIDENT FUND

2022

8,919,235
1,728,763

12,916,367
398,579,164
170,247,306

30,288,716
87,111,498

404,009
119,152

1,929,961
1,338,970
4,702,205
3,973,822

83,316
620,551
1,761,669
1,793,832

2,253,351

250,561
63,966,965

44,277
237,928
77,507

2022

138
135

2021

T T 1111 [E—

4,700,889
1,326,557

12,843,792
218,013,318
118,310,122

25,756,925
66,346,573

55,624
10,818

26656819
1,477,344
3,547,350
3,089,781

37514
505,625
3,349,158
4,175,284

1610157
4,000,000
180445

52,680
140,061
11,738

2021

130
122

Investments out of provident fund have been made in accordance with the pravision of section 218 of the Companies Act,

2017 and rules formulated for ts purpose.
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IMPACT QF COVID-19 ON THE CONSOLIDATED FIMANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Group's operations, financial position and results have not been affected by Covid-19 during the year.
Management's focus and efforts continued for coping up with the changing scenario at all levels.

Based on management's assessment there is no material impact on the carrying values of assets and
liabilities as of June 30, 2022. From the very cutset of Covid-19, the management has adopted various

policies and practices to minimize adverse impact of Covid-18 on the business and is continuously
monitoring the situation in order to proactively address any challenges which may arise from Covid-19.

GENERAL
Capacity and production

Government Holdings (Private) Limited (The Holding Company)
Production for the year

Product Unit 2022 2021

Gas MMSCF 80,005 82099
Oil Barrels 2,862,337 2,785,326
LPG Metric ton 75,097 68,931

Due to the nature of operations of the Group, installed capacity of above products is not relevant.

Pakistan LNG Limited - PLL {the Subsidiary Company)

Regasified liquified natural gas Capacity Production
In MMSCFD
2022 600 414
2021 a0 472

Inter State Gas Systems (Private) Limited - ISGSL {the Subsidiary Company)

The company has not yet commenced any commercial operations and does not have any installed capacity
as at reporting date.

Figures have been rounded cff to the nearest thousand of rupees uniess otherwise stated.

Corresponding figures have been reclassified wherever necessary to reflect mere appropriate presentation
of events and transactions for the purpose of better presentation in accordance with the accounting and
reporting standards as applicable in Pakistan.

EVENTS AFTER THE END OF THE REPORTING DATE

On September 21, 2022, a fire incident was reported at the TAL concession and loss including loss of
inventory was reported. The Holding Company is a non-operator in the said concession. The Holding
Company's share in the amount of inventory damage caused by the fire is preliminary assessed at Rs 415
million which will be finalised upon further action by operator including finalisation of related insurance
claims.

AT
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Subsequent to the year end, deposit with the Government of Pakistan for eguity stake in Reko Dig project
was changed to equity in Reko Dig Mining (Private) Limited (RDML} through Pakistan Minerals (Private}
Limited (PMFPL} after finalisation of related agreements and regulatory approvals as explained in note 14.1.

Subsequent to the year end, the loan facility from National Bank of Pakistan (NBP) has been restructured
with the approval of Economic Coordination Committee (ECC) as explained in note 31.2.

DATE OF AUTHORISATION OF ISSUE

These consclidated financial statements have been authorised for issue by the Board of Directors of the
Group in its meeting heid on Mo 19, 2.023

WIFEE

Chief Executive Officer Director






